
 
Commission Meeting Agenda  April 28, 2022 
 

Information about access: 

 

Please contact Julia Otani at julia.otani@first5alameda.org or (510) 227- 6987 three business days in advance if you need special assistance 
or translation/interpretation support so we can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.   We will swiftly resolve any requests 

for accommodation to resolve any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility.   

 

 

 

 

 
 
FIRST 5 ALAMEDA COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA    

Thursday, April 28, 2022  
9:00 AM – 11:30 AM 

Members of the public may access this meeting via: 
                   Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/95115612493  

                   Meeting ID: 951 1561 2493 

  
Commissioners: Chair: Renee Herzfeld, Vice Chair: Cecilia Oregón, Dave Brown, Scott Coffin, Andrea 
Ford, Tomás A. Magaña M.D., Karina Moreno, Kimi Watkins-Tartt  
 
Alternates:  George Ayala, Anissa Basoco-Villarreal, Sarah Oddie 

 
1. Call to Order 

Commission Chairperson Renee Herzfeld will call this meeting to order at 9:00 AM. 

2. Public Comment  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Commission on any 
matter not on the agenda. Speakers are limited to three minutes except as otherwise ordered 
by the Chairperson.  

3. Consent Calendar  
The consent calendar may be voted on in one motion. Commissioners may pull any consent item 
for discussion or separate vote. 

a. Approve Special Commission Meeting Minutes from April 21, 2022 
b. Approve Commission Meeting Minutes from February 17, 2022 

 

4. Receive Executive Committee Report 

 
5. Receive Staff Announcements  

a. Receive General Staff Report 
b. Receive CEO Contract Authorizations Report 

6. Communication from Commissioners 

7. Receive Presentation from Applied Survey Research on Kindergarten Readiness Assessment 

8. Approve Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of the Grant Application to First 5 California 
and Agreement to Execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if Awarded 

Recommended Action: Approve resolution authorizing the submittal of the grant application to 
First 5 California and agreement to execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded. 

mailto:julia.otani@first5alameda.org


 
Commission Meeting Agenda  April 28, 2022 
 

Information about access: 

 

Please contact Julia Otani at julia.otani@first5alameda.org or (510) 227- 6987 three business days in advance if you need special assistance 
or translation/interpretation support so we can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.   We will swiftly resolve any requests 

for accommodation to resolve any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility.   

 

9. Approve First 5 California FY 2020-21 Annual Report 

Recommended Action: Approve First 5 California FY 2020-21 Annual Report. 

10. Receive First 5 Alameda County FY 2022-27 Strategic Plan – First Reading 
a. Receive FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget – First Reading  
b. Receive FY 2022-31 Proposed Long Range Financial Plan – First Reading 

 
11. Receive First 5 California Commission and First 5 Association Updates  

12. Receive Legislation and Public Policy Updates  

13. Adjournment 

mailto:julia.otani@first5alameda.org


AGENDA ITEM 3a

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

R. Herzfeld None None

R. Herzfeld None None

K. Spanos

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

R. Herzfeld None None

Respectfully Submitted By: Julia Otani, Executive Assistant

    Commissioner Alternate: Anissa Basoco-Villarreal for Andrea Ford, Sarah Oddie for Supervisor Brown

There was no Public Comment.

The Commission meeting was called to order by Chair Herzfeld who gaveled in at 9:10AM.                                   

Chair Herzfeld shared that the meeting was being recorded.

                                                         DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

First 5 Alameda County Special Commission Meeting
April 21, 2022, 9:00 AM - 9:10 AM

Zoom Webinar Meeting ID: 930 5661 7473

    Commissioners Present: Chair: Renee Herzfeld, Scott Coffin, Kimi Watkins-Tartt

    Absent: Cecilia Oregón, Tomás A. Magaña M.D., Karina Moreno

    First 5 Staff Present: Kristin Spanos, Tyson Jue, Brittney Frye, Christine Hom, Julia Otani

Chair Herzfeld adjourned the meeting and gaveled out at 9:14AM

Ms. Spanos recommended that the Commission adopt the resolution for the period of April 21, 2022-

May 21, 2022.

CALL TO ORDER

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

3. ADJOURNMENT

2. Resolution Adopting Findings That There is a Proclaimed State of Emergency and That Meeting In Person Poses Imminent Health and Safety Risks to Attendees and Authorizing 

Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Commission and Committees For the Period of April 21, 2022-May 21, 2022 Pursuant to AB 361

[Attachment] Ms. Otani will record the 

vote and send the 

resolution to Chair 

Herzfeld for her 

signature via DocuSign.Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to approve the resolution adopting findings that there is a proclaimed 

state of emergency and that meeting in person poses imminent health and safety risks to attendees and 

authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the Commission and Committee meetings for the period 

of April 21, 2022-May 21, 2022., pursuant to AB 361.

Motion: Scott Coffin                                         

Second: Kimi Watkins-Tartt                                              

No abstentions.                

Motion passed.

Special Commission Meeting Minutes April 21, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Special Commission Meeting Book 4-21-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Special Commission Meeting Book 4-21-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Special Commission Meeting Book 4-21-22.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 3b

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

R. Herzfeld Commissioner Watkins-

Tartt joined at 9:05am

None

R. Herzfeld None None

Motion: C. Oregón None

A. Approve Special Commission Meeting Minutes from February 10, 2022. Second: T. Magaña

B. Approve Commission Meeting Minutes from December 16, 2021. No abstentions.

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote to approve. Motion passed. 

R. Herzfeld None None

K. Spanos None None

J. Harrison A. Early Care and Education Update

Agency legal counsel, James Harrison of Olson Remcho provided an update on the Children's Health and Child 

Care Initiative.

There was no public comment.

Laura Schroeder

    Guest Presenters: James Harrison, Melanie Moore, Maricela Pina, Lisa Truong, Justine Wolitzer

The Commission meeting was called to order by Chair Herzfeld who gaveled in at 9:02 AM.                                          

Chair Herzfeld shared that the meeting was being recorded.                                                                                                    

Commissioners Oregón, Brown, Coffin Cox, Magaña, Moreno stated their names to indicate that they were present 

for the meeting.

                                                         DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

4. RECEIVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT

Chair Hezfeld reported to the Commission that the Executive Committee met on February 10, 2022. The committee 

reviewed and approved the Media Policy and the updates to the Investment Policy. The approved policies are 

included in the meeting book for reference.

First 5 Alameda County Commission Meeting
February 17, 2022, 9:00 AM – 11:30 AM

Zoom Webinar Meeting ID: 916 3822 0136

    Commissioners Present: Chair: Renee Herzfeld, Cecilia Oregón, Dave Brown, Scott Coffin,  Lori Cox, Karina Moreno, Tomás A. Magaña M.D., Kimi Watkins-Tartt

    First 5 Staff Present:  Kristin Spanos, Charla Black-Edwards, Lisa Forti, Christine Hom, Tyson Jue, Carla Keener, Julia Otani, Ana Rasquiza, Alma Reyes, Michele Rutherford

R. Herzfeld [Attachment]
3. CONSENT CALENDAR

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to approve the February 10, 2022 Special Commission Meeting and the 

December 16, 2021 Commission Meeting minutes.

5. RECEIVE STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS

[Attachment]

Commission Meeting Minutes February 17, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 3b

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

K. Spanos

B.Receive General Staff Report

Ms. Spanos provided an overview of the Staff Update slides.

C. Receive CEO Contract Authorizations Report

There were 3 contracts approved by the CEO that were between $50,000 to $250,000 per contract action 

since the last Commission meeting; the summary is located in the meeting packet.

M. Moore None None

R. Herzfeld Commissioners Cox, 

Moreno and Watkins-

Tartt left the meeting at 

11:00 am

None

R. Herzfeld None

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

Motion: D. Brown None

Ms. Hom presented the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Budget Update and Proposed Modifications Second: C. Oregón

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote. No Abstentions.                                           

Motion passed. 

C. Hom Motion: T. Magaña    None

Second:  D. Brown

No Abstentions.                                                    

Motion passed.Motion passed. 

Ms. Hom presented the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Investment Update

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote to appove the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year 

Investment Update.

C. Hom [Attachment]

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to approve the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Budget Update and Proposed Modifications

6. SPEAKER: MELANIE MOORE FROM OAKLAND THRIVES

10. APPROVE FY 2021-22 MID-YEAR INVESTMENT UPDATE

[Attachment]

8. ELECT CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2022

DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

9. APPROVE FY 2021-22 MID-YEAR BUDGET UPDATE AND PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS

Ms. Moore presented on Oakland Thrives and the connection with the Youth Ventures Joint Powers Authority.

5. RECEIVE STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

[Attachment]
Chair Herzfeld asked for a nomination for the Commission Chair and Vice Chair positions to serve for the calendar 

year 2022.

Chair Herzfeld announced the departure of Commissioner Lori Cox from the Commission.

Motion: T. Magaña                      

Second: S. Coffin                                    

No Abstentions.                               

Motion passed.

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote for the nominations of Renee Herzfeld and Cecilia Oregón as Chair and Vice Chair 

respectively for the calendar year 2022.

Ms. Spanos presented the General Staff Announcements and CEO Contract Authorizations.

7. COMMUNICATION FROM COMMISSIONERS

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

Commission Meeting Minutes February 17, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 3b

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

K. Spanos None None

L. Forti                              

L. Schroeder

Ms. Forti and Ms. Schroeder presented the Data and Evaluation: Neighborhoods Ready for School and 

L. Schroeder Help A Mother Out.

L. Truong

J. Wolitzer Ms. Wolitzer presented the Help A Mother Out Bay Area Diaper Bank Alameda County Final Evaluation Report

M. Pina

Ms. Pina presented the NRFS Cross-Site Evaluation

12. FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA AND FIRST 5 ASSOCIATION UPDATES
None None

13. LEGISLATION AND PUBLIC POLICY UPDATES
None None

R. Herzfeld None None

Respectfully Submitted By: Julia Otani, Executive Assistant

K. Spanos [Attachment]
K. Spanos presented the First 5 California and First 5 Association Updates.

A. Public Profit on Help a Mother Out's (HAMO) Diaper Distribution in Alameda County

B. Community Centered Evaluation and Research on First 5's Neighborhoods Ready for School Grants 

14.   ADJOURNMENT

Chair Herzfeld adjourned the meeting and gaveled out at 11:30 AM.

DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

[Attachment]

K. Spanos [Attachment]
K. Spanos noted that due to time constraints, the Legislation and Public Policy Updates are in the meeting packet.

11. RECEIVE EVALUATION PRESENTATIONS

Commission Meeting Minutes February 17, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/commission/Commission Meeting Book 2-17-22 FINAL.pdf


 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
Executive Committee Meeting Agenda  April 21, 2022 
 
Information about access: 
 
Please contact Julia Otani at julia.otani@first5alameda.org or (510) 227- 6987 3 business days in advance if you need 
special assistance or translation/interpretation support so we can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.   
We will swiftly resolve any requests for accommodation to resolve any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility.   
 
 

 

 

 

 

FIRST 5 ALAMEDA COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
 

Thursday, April 21, 2022     Members of the public may access this meeting via: 
Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/93361251102  

Meeting ID: 933 6125 1102 

9:15 AM – 10:30 AM  

Commissioners:  
 

Chair: Renee Herzfeld, Vice Chair: Cecilia Oregón, Scott Coffin 
 

1. Public Comment 
 

2. Staff Announcements 
 

a. General Staff Announcements 
b. CEO Contract Authorizations 
c. Return to Work Update 
 

3. Approval of Minutes from February 10, 2022 
Recommended Action: Approve Minutes from February 10, 2022. 

4. Approval of the Amended First 5 Alameda County Bylaws 
Recommended Action: Approve the amendment of the First 5 Alameda County Bylaws. 

5. Approval of the First 5 Alameda County Governance Policies 
 

Recommended Actions: Approve the following amendments to and new policies: 

 
a. Financial Policies 
b. Conflict of Interest Code 
c. Conflict of Interest Policy 
d. Incompatible Activities Statement and Policy 

 

6. FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget – First Reading 
 

7. FY 2022-30 Proposed Long Range Financial Plan – First Reading 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

8. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Closed Session (held pursuant to Gov. Code 
§54957) 
Title: CEO 

 

mailto:julia.otani@first5alameda.org


 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
Executive Committee Meeting Agenda  April 21, 2022 
 
Information about access: 
 
Please contact Julia Otani at julia.otani@first5alameda.org or (510) 227- 6987 3 business days in advance if you need 
special assistance or translation/interpretation support so we can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.   
We will swiftly resolve any requests for accommodation to resolve any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility.   
 
 

 

REGULAR CALENDAR 
 

9. Report on Any Action Taken in Closed Session 
 

10. Approval of the Compensation for the Chief Executive Officer 
Recommended Action: Approve the compensation for the Chief Executive Officer. 
 

11. Adjournment 

mailto:julia.otani@first5alameda.org


AGENDA ITEM 4.1

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

R. Herzfeld None None

R. Herzfeld None None

K. Spanos None None

A. General Staff Announcements
• Ms. Spanos provided an overview of the Staff Update slides.

B. CEO Contract Authorizations

• There were 3 contracts approved by the CEO that were less than or equal to $250,000 per contract action 

since the last Commission meeting; the summary is located in the meeting packet.

Motion: C. Oregón None

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote to approve the minutes. Second: R. Herzfeld

No Abstentions.                                                    

Motion passed.

Motion: C. Oregón

Ms. Hom presented the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Financial Report and Proposed Budget Modifications. Second: R. Herzfeld

No Abstentions.                                                    

Motion passed.

    Not Present: Scott Coffin

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

The FY 2021-22 Mid-

Year Financial Report 

and Proposed Budget 

Modifications will be 

brought to the full 

Commission for final 

review and approval.

Ms. Spanos presented the General Staff Announcements and CEO Contract Authorizations

[Attachment]

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to approve the December 9, 2021 Executive Committee Meeting minutes.

C. Hom [Attachment]

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to recommend the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Financial Report and Proposed 

Budget Modifications be brought to the full Commission for final review and approval.

First 5 Alameda County Executive Committee Meeting

February 10, 2022, 9:15 AM – 10:30 AM 

Zoom Webinar Meeting ID: 934 2619 1744

    Commissioners Present: Chair: Renee Herzfeld, Vice Chair: Cecilia Oregón

    First 5 Staff Present: Kristin Spanos, Tyson Jue, Christine Hom, Julia Otani

There was no Public Comment.

2. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS

CALL TO ORDER

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

                                                         DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

[Attachment]

The meeting was called to order by Chair Herzfeld who gaveled in at 9:15 AM and stated that the meeting was 

being recorded. Commissioners Herzfeld and Oregón stated their names to indicate they were present for the 

meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM DECEMBER 9, 2021

R. Herzfeld

4. FY 2021-22 MID-YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT AND PROPOSED BUDGET MODIFICATIONS

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 10, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 4.1

AGENDA ITEM 

SPEAKER
ACTION FOLLOW UP

C. Hom Motion: C. Oregón

Ms. Hom presented the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Investment Report. Second: R. Herzfeld

T. Jue Motion: C. Oregón

Second: R. Herzfeld

C. Hom Ms. Hom presented the changes and recommendations to the Investment policy.

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

R. Herzfeld

Respectfully Submitted By: Julia Otani, Executive Assistant

No Abstentions.                                                    

Motion passed.

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to recommend the FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Investment Report be 

brought to the full Commission for final review and approval.

Mr. Jue presented the First 5 Alameda County Governance Policies and the overview and recommendation to 

adopt the Media policy.

Chair Herzfeld facilitated the vote to adopt the new Media policy and updates to the Investment policy.

None[Attachment]

6. FIRST 5 ALAMEDA COUNTY GOVERNANCE POLICIES

                                                         DISCUSSION HIGHLIGHTS

The FY 2021-22 Mid-

Year Investment Report 

will be brought to the 

full Commission for final 

review and approval.

Chair Herzfeld asked if there was any public comment before taking a vote.

Chair Herzfeld gaveled out and adjourned the meeting at 10:12 AM.

[Attachment]
5. FY 2021-22 MID-YEAR INVESTMENT REPORT

7.  ADJOURNMENT

No Abstentions.                                                    

Motion passed.

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes February 10, 2022

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Executive Committee Meeting Book 2-10-22.pdf


Staff Announcements
April 28, 2022

1

AGENDA ITEM 5a



GENERAL AGENCY ANNOUNCEMENTS

• Current policy of remote work continuing until at least September 1, 2022. Survey sent to staff to 
assess how we can continue to provide support.

• Equity. Finished a three-part Equity 101 training series with staff. Consultant now working with Equity 
Committee to develop process to engage colleagues around the development of an agency-wide 
definition of equity.

• Strategic Plan. Moving from development to public launch and implementation. In the process of 
creating Results Based Accountability plans for each strategy, in partnership with the Policy, 
Planning, and Evaluation team.

• New audit firm. We are now working with Eide Bailly as we begin the annual audit process.
Eide Bailley was selected in January 2022 through a Request for Qualifications process.

• "Clean" Single Audit. We did not have any issues, material findings, or discrepancies in our single 
audit. Again, a BIG thank you to the Finance Team and all staff.

• Recruitment. Posting remains open for Public Information and Communications Officer. Working 
with Wendi Brown Creative Partners Inc.

first5alameda.org | 1



We partner with communities to build relationships, 
services, and infrastructure that support neighborhood 

conditions for family and child well-being.

PLACE



• Submitted a proposal to Alameda County Housing and Community Development’s request for 
proposals for American Rescue Plan Act funds going to unincorporated (UC) areas. Proposed early 
care and education (ECE) UC facilities site assessments and creating a UC ECE Needs Assessment.

• Completed meetings with Neighborhood Ready for School Executive Directors and now discussing 
potential updates to our program, communications, evaluation, and policy strategies with First 5 
teams.

• Ana Rasquiza, Senior Administrator, represented First 5 Alameda County at the “It Takes a Village 
Act” Day of Action with Assemblymember Bonta and Hayward Promise Neighborhoods at Youth 
Uprising in East Oakland.

• Oakland Starting Smart and Strong Partnering to support mapping early childhood services and 
resources, with a specific focus on family navigator needs.

• Help Me Grow. Participating in the planning of a series of webinars by WestEd and the First 5 
Association focused on California Tribal Communities to describe the complex issues associated 
with tribal decision-making processes and tribal sovereignty.

first5alameda.org | 3

PLACE

https://www.einpresswire.com/article/563840080/assemblymember-mia-bonta-champions-grant-program-to-expand-coordinated-neighborhood-community-services-networks


We partner with stakeholders to support parents, caregivers, 
and children and ensure that families and providers have 

the resources they need for children to thrive.

PEOPLE



• $200,000 grant awarded to First 5 from Kaiser Permanente in support of fatherhood training 
and technical assistance for a collaborative of family justice centers in northern California.

• Care Coordination Expansion. Continued discussions with Alameda Alliance for Health in 
March and April regarding of our FY 22–23 Pediatric Care Management proposal and 
potential opportunities tied to CA Department of Health Care Services’ “Medi-Cal Strategy to 
Support Health and Opportunity for Children and Families.”

• Conducting an ECE Facilities Needs Assessment to better understand and measure the 
current conditions of licensed ECE facilities in the county using an equity lens and to 
identify areas of opportunity. There were 332 responses overall from 85 centers and 247 
family child care providers.

• DULCE. Working with East Bay Community Law Center to collect local data that reflects 
DULCE’s interdisciplinary approach. The new tool, Legal Partner Data Collection Template, 
will allow sites to integrate legal partner data as part of the Center for the Study of Social 
Policy’s biannual data process.

first5alameda.org | 5

PEOPLE



first5alameda.org | 5

PEOPLE (CONT’D)

• Afghan Resettlement Support

• Request for Qualifications (RFQ): Worked with First 5 Contra Costa County to conduct 
RFQ and select Jewish Family & Children Services-East Bay and Refugee and 
Immigrant Transitions to partner with, in response to First 5 California’s request for 
applications to create a local action plan to support Afghan families.

• First 5 Alameda County, The California Wellness Foundation, and Supervisor David 
Haubert provided funding to two agencies supporting Afghan Resettlement efforts 
in Alameda County. East Bay Refugee and Immigrant Forum will receive $25,000 for 
planning and facilitation. International Rescue Committee will receive $75,000 
for direct services to Afghan refugee families and children.

• Afghan Adjustment Act: We signed on to a support letter urging Congress to pass 
the Afghan Adjustment Act which proposes to provide legal permanent residence 
to Afghans arriving with humanitarian parole in the US.

• Nowruz Fair: Tabled at the at the first United Afghan Association Afghan Refugee 
Resource and Nowruz Fair with 225 attendees from 15 different cities.



POLICY
We advocate for policy and systems change that centers the needs 
of families, young children, and caregivers and supports community 

and family conditions for children and families to thrive. We also 
support community-led efforts, including parent leadership. 



• Met with state elected officials and staffers as part of First 5 Association’s annual Advocacy Day.

• Recognition from Board of Supervisors (BOS) for Month of the Young Child. Kristin Spanos, CEO 
and Commission Chair Renee Herzfeld attended the BOS meeting to receive recognition and 
make brief remarks.

• Kindergarten Readiness Assessment. Completed last Research Advisory Group meeting and 
drafting final analysis report and recommendations.

• Senior Administrator Ana Rasquiza now co-chairs the Local Planning Council Public Policy 
Committee together with Jennifer Caban from Social Services Agency.

• Diana Garcia, Data and Policy Analyst, testified in-person before the California State Assembly 
Health Committee in support of AB 2402: Medi-Cal Continuous Eligibility, which would extend 
access to health and preventive services for children.

• Diapers. Submitted a letter of recommendation for Help A Mother Out’s successful application for 
a $25,000 Women’s Recovery Response grant from the California Commission on the Status of 
Women.

first5alameda.org | 7

POLICY

https://first5alameda.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/First5andExternalPartners/EX4MPGO0bWlArv4YOPg6e7MBV5ByQ_v_lNsEgKesm8vsAQ?e=5XrrJk


10



AGENDA ITEM 5b

FY 2021-22 CEO-Approved Contracts List

Strategy Award Number Contractor
Contract Start 

Date

Contract End 

Date
Original Description of Scope of Work Amount

New, Amendment 

or Ancillary 

Amount

New Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Funding to 

support 

COVID-19 

activities 

Description of New Contract or Added Scope of Work

Communications CS-CMC-2122-685 BAYCAT Studio 4/4/2022 6/30/2022 50,000.00$             50,000.00$         No

Funding to produce videos in support of advocacy for 

equity-centered policy and systems change and 

investment in a coordinated early childhood system of 

care.

Parent Engagment & Support PI-PES-2123-682 SupplyBank.org 4/1/2022 6/30/2022 51,186.00$             51,186.00$         No

Funding to purchase and distribute kindergarten 

readiness backpacks to a variety of supply distribution 

sites and school districts in Alameda County identified 

by First 5.

Parent Engagment & Support PI-PES-2122-686 International Rescue Committee 5/1/2022 6/30/2022 75,000.00$             75,000.00$         No

Funding to provide direct support for Afghan refugee 

families.

Parent Engagment & Support PI-PES-2122-687 East Bay Refugee and Immigrant Forum 5/1/2022 6/30/2022 25,000.00$             25,000.00$         No

Funding to provide meeting planning and facilitation 

support for a coalition of community organizations that 

serve Afghan refugee families.

Fatherhood PI-FAH-2122-684 LaNiece Jones 4/4/2022 6/30/2022

Funding to plan, coordinate, and execute 

activities related to hosting, promoting, and 

securing sponsorship for Dad-scussion sessions 

and the 2022 Fatherhood Summit for Alameda 

County fathers. 35,000.00$      50,000.00$             85,000.00$         No

Funding to organize a virtual event platform, coordinate 

video production and editing, organize graphic design 

(digital and print), and support online sponsorship and 

workshops for the 2022 Fatherhood Summit for 

Alameda County fathers.

35,000.00$      251,186.00$           286,186.00$       CEO Authorizations 2/11/22 - 4/21/22

CEO Contract Authorizations and Amendments (Up to or equal to $250,000 per contract/action - see light blue columns)

Original Award, approved by Commission (June 24, 2021) New Contracts or Augmentations, approved by CEO (2/11/2022 - 4/21/22)



First 5 Alameda County 
Commission Meeting 

April 2022

Kindergarten Readiness Assessment
Alameda County

2021

AGENDA ITEM 7



Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA

2008
1st K- Readiness 

Assessment 
(KRA) study 

begins with 3 
districts.

2013 
13 districts and 

Alameda 
County Office of 

Education 
participate.

2017
Begin to shift the frame of 

study from individual 
assessment to structural  
conditions; place- based 
analysis; 1st study to be 
representative of the 

county. 

2018
Longitudinal study of 
3rd,  4th, 5th, and 6th

graders who 
previously 

participated in the 
KRA in Hayward and 

Oakland.

2019
Frame of KRA 
moves from 

individual child to 
structural 

conditions; 
deeper place-

based lens.

2021
Move from 

assessment of 
children (KOF) to 

survey of parents, 
ECE, TK/K teachers. 
Examine impacts of 

COVID. Establish 
Research Advisory 

Group.



Structure of the Partnership and Process

Guiding Agencies

Research Advisory Group Parent/Caregiver Subcommittee Community Members - Teachers

Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Study

First 5 Alameda 
County (Lead)

Applied Survey 
Research

Community Centered Evaluation 
and Research

University of Oregon, 
RAPID-EC



Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage

Dec-JanSept-Nov Feb - April May-June

Data Collection

Trusted community 
messengers 

recruited to reach 
out to parents and 

caregivers

Analysis and 
Recommendations

Research Advisory 
Group interprets 

findings and prioritizes 
recommendations

Dissemination

Research Advisory 
Group will be invited 

to present on the 
KRA. Data will be 

made available to the 
public

Design

Research Advisory 
Group provides 

feedback on research 
questions, sampling 

approach, and survey 
tools



5

Research Advisory Group Members 

Parent/Caregiver Members and Referral Affiliations
1. Amani Almatri, Lincoln

2. Bi Yi (Biying), San Antonio Family Resource Center

3. Rajni Chauhan, San Antonio Family Resource Center

4. Noni Galloway, Parent Voices Oakland

5. Guadalupe Peña Grima, Union City Family Center

6. Carlo Hernandez, City of Newark Department of Recreation and 
Community Services

7. Danay Johnson, Lincoln

8. Phebe Kemp, Healthy Black Families

9. Miriam Mendez, City of Newark Department of Recreation and 
Community Services

10. Yolanda Monroe, San Antonio Family Resource Center

11. Luz Nonato, Help Me Grow

12. Yessenia Ramirez, Union City Family Center

13. LaRichea Smith, Roots

14. Kenya Snell, Roots

15. Valerie Tabarez, Healthy Black Families

Educators and Community Members
1. Shruti Agarwal, Shruti’s Family Day Care, Valley Family Child Care 

Association

2. Angela Ball, Alameda County Public Health Dept

3. Angela Cabrera, Early Learning Program, Alameda County Office of 
Education

4. Vanessa Cedeño, Alameda Co Social Services Agency (former), Office of 
Supervisor Dave Brown

4. Edgar Chávez, Hayward Promise Neighborhood

5. Joanne Clark, San Leandro Unified

6. Clarissa Doutherd, Parent Voices Oakland 

7. Hazelle Fortich, Kindergarten Teacher, Berkeley Unified

8. Mitchell Ha, Hayward USD Early Learning Program

9. Priya Jagannathan, Oakland Starting Smart and Strong

10. Gaylon Logan, Village Connect

12. Kimberly Mayfield, EdD, Holy Names University

13. Chris Nguon, Mandela Family Resource Center, Lincoln

14. Tanisha Payton, Parent Voices Oakland

15. Maria Sujo, Oakland USD Kindergarten Readiness

16. Rosemary Vasquez, Family Engagement & Equity, Hayward Unified

17. Dr. Tuwe Mehn, Oakland USD Kindergarten Readiness



Introduction and Purpose

 Kindergarten readiness is multifaceted: 
o Children thrive when they grow up in healthy and supportive communities and 

attend schools ready to meet their needs

 COVID-19 pandemic likely had adverse effects on readiness
 2021 Alameda County KRA built off past studies (most recently conducted 

in 2019) and used a participatory and equity-informed process
o Research Advisory Group was developed to advise on survey design, recruitment, 

outreach, interpretation of the results, and recommendations

 Study is intended to be research for action that will contribute to the 
achievement of equity in kindergarten readiness by informing programs, 
policies, and investments

6



Sample



Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods

The Kindergarten Readiness 
Assessment conducted intensive 
recruitment in 9 priority zip codes and 
the Ashland/ Cherryland 
neighborhood.
Outreach partners included:

o Early Care and Education Professionals
o Eden Church
o Hayward Promise Neighborhood
o Kindergarten Teachers
o Mandela Family Resource Center
o Oakland Head Start
o Parent Voices Oakland
o Roots Community Health Clinic
o San Antonio Resource Center
o Union City Family Center

8

San  Antonio Family 
Resource Center 

Roots Community 
Health Center

Union City Family 
Center

Ashland and  
Cherryland

Mandela Family 
Resource Center



9

Parent/caregiver surveys

Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)

2,015

100%

X%

X%

of families had at least one 
child between 3-6 year of age

of families spoke English in the 
home, 31% Spanish, 7% Chinese, 
16% another language*

were Hisp/Latino, 17% Black, 17% 
Asian/PI, 10% White, 7% 
multiracial, 10% another race

of children were typically 
developing X%

X%

X%

X%

of families earned under $50K 

of families resided in priority zip 
codes/neighborhoods 

attended licensed centers, 12% 
attended licensed family child care

2,015

100%

39%

73%

88%

50%

26%

45%

*Percentages do not sum to 100 because participants could select multiple languages



Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants

N=1,883 10



Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)

11

ECE professional surveys694

61%

82%

worked in center, 39% in 
family child care setting

spoke English, 24% Spanish, 15% 
Chinese, 11% Hindi, 6% another 
language*

had 10+ years of experience48%

37% 17% worked in a priority zip 
code/neighborhood

were Asian/PI, 26% Hisp/Latino, 
16% White, 15% Black, 2% 
multiracial, 4% another race

*Percentages do not sum to 100 because participants could select multiple languages



Map of ECE Professional Participants

N=694

1 50

12



Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)

13

K/TK teacher surveys284 82%

51%

18%

taught K, 18% taught TK

had 10+ years of experience70%

35%

24%
spoke Spanish, 7% spoke Chinese, 
15% spoke another language*

had 10+ years of experience60%

Kindergarten Teachers TK Teachers

spoke Spanish, 7% Chinese, 11% 
another language*

were White, 16% Asian/PI, 10% 
Hisp/Latino, 19% multiracial, 16% 
Black, 4% another race

were White, 19% Asian/PI, 15% 
Hisp/Latino, 10% multiracial, 3% 
Black, 2% another race

*All teachers also spoke English



Map of K/TK Teacher Participants

N=284

1                        69



Key Findings



16

Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready 
for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year

 Parents’ assessment of their child’s readiness was lower in 2021 than it 
was in 2019

41%

82%

58% 59%

33%
42%

34%
39%

Overall*** Physical*** Social and self-regulation*** Academic***

2019 2021

Source: Parent Survey (2019, 2021)
Note: N=1,466 (2019); 1,217-1,282 (2021, weighted). Data were weighted to approximate race/ethnicity, ***Differences are significant at p < .001.
On each domain, figures represent the percent of children fully ready (i.e., 4 was selected on the 4-point readiness scale). ‘Overall’ figures represent the percent of children 
who received an average of 3.25 or higher across the four domains. In 2019, parents were asked about social and self-regulation skills together. 



17

Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 
2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type

 Majority of K/TK teachers feel students are less ready now than they were 
pre-COVID; fewer ECE professionals believe students are less ready

66%

76%

85%

89%

69%

76%

85%

90%

41%

40%

49%

54%

Less ready in academic***

Less ready in physical***

Less ready in social***

Less ready in self-
regulation***

ECE TK K

Source: Teacher Survey (2021), ECE Survey (2021)
Note: N=43-44 (TK teacher, weighted); 195 (K teacher, weighted); 274 (ECE, weighted). Data were weighted to approximate Zip Code/district distribution. Percentages reflect those who 
reported children were “somewhat less ready” or “much less ready”. ***Differences between K/TK teachers and ECE professionals are significant at p < .001.



Top Factors Associated with Readiness
 In past research in Alameda County, teacher ratings of readiness were strongly associated with factors 

like child health & well-being, ECE attendance, kindergarten transition supports, father involvement, 
lower levels of parenting stress, family socioeconomics, demographics, and development

 In the current study, parent ratings of readiness were strongly associated with many of the same 
factors:

18Source: Parent Survey (2021)​
Note: N=1,815 (weighted). Data were weighted to approximate Zip Code distribution. The overall model accounted for 16% of the variance in readiness (R2 = .16). 
Another race includes Alaskan Native/American Indian, Arab/Middle Eastern, and those who selected ‘other’ and did not provide a description  ​

Readiness
(parent ratings)

Neighborhood
(resides in higher-income 

neighborhood)

Kinder 
Transition 
Supports

Father 
involvement

(use of kinder transition supports)

Child 
demographics

(older, Black, multiracial, or ‘another 
race’ have higher readiness)

Connection to 
resources
(NRFS participant)

Child health 
and well-being 
(attended well-child visits & 

better mental health)

Family income



Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income

19Note: N=1,667 (weighted). Data were weighted to approximate the Zip Code distribution of the young child population in the county. Numbers reflect average 
overall readiness on a 4-point scale. ***Differences are significant at p < 0.001. Estimates are adjusted for other significant factors in the regression model.



20

Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready 
for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income

27%

14%

30% 32%

51%

28%

15% 16%

34%
43%

59%

47%

67%

Hispanic/Latino* White*** Black Asian/PI** Multiracial*

Under $50K $50K-$99,999 $100K or more

Source: Parent Survey (2021)
Note: N=1,193 (weighted). Data were weighted to approximate race/ethnicity. Data suppressed for another race ethnicity, for Black families earning $100K or more, and for 
multiracial families earning $50K-$100K due to small sample size. Differences between income brackets are significant at * p < .05, **p < .01, ***p < .001.

N/A N/A



21

Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets

Note: N=2,015 (weighted). Data were weighted to approximate the Zip Code distribution of the young child population in the county. Numbers reflect average 
overall readiness on a 4-point scale. ***Differences are significant at p < 0.001. Estimates are adjusted for other significant factors in the regression model.



Community Supports Families Need

 The top supports families need include activities for children, child care, 
and help with finding and connecting to resources

22

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Free/affordable mental health care

Free/affordable health care/health insurance**

Free/affordable technology devices

Free/affordable developmental screenings*

Parenting support**

Free/affordable internet access/Wifi hotspots

Free/affordable food/nutrition

Help with finding and connecting to services*

Free/affordable child care*

Free/affordable activities for young children*

Parents/Caregivers ECE TK K

Source: Parent Survey (2021) , Teacher Survey (2021), ECE Survey (2021)
Note: N=1,704-1,752 (parent, weighted); 282-260 (teacher, weighted); 282-309 (ECE, weighted). Data were weighted to approximate Zip Code 
distribution. Percentages reflect those who reported supports were “somewhat important” or “very important”. Differences are significant at **p < 0.01; 
*p <. 05.



Research Advisory Group 
Priorities & Recommendations



Parent Policy 
Suggestions*

• Fund affordable high-quality child 
care (43%)

• Provide food, housing, and mental 
health resources (23%)

• Create safe and clean community 
spaces (21%)

• Improve schools through teacher 
and student supports (17%)

• Fund community activities to bring 
people together safely (10%)

N=932

* Parents made multiple suggestions, so percentages add 
up to more than 100%

24



KRA Policy Recommendations

KRA Survey
(Parents, ECE 

professionals, TK, 
K teachers)

Parent/ 
Caregiver 

Subcommittee

Research 
Advisory 

Group

Policy 
Recommendations

25

Key Priorities:
• Economic supports

• Mental health
• Family navigation and 

care coordination

• Affordable, quality 
child care

• Community 
investments

• Racial Justice

• Stable and consistent 
funding In upcoming slides:

A * signals a top policy priority 
identified by the Research Advisory 
Group



3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations

1. Supporting Children and 
Families

2. Supporting Communities

3. Supporting ECE Professionals, 
Teachers, and Care and 
Education Systems

26



Findings & Recommendations: 
Supporting Children and Families



Economic Supports and Basic Needs
FINDINGS

As in past research, family income was 
strongly related to readiness

 29 families in the study participated in the 
Oakland Resilient Families guaranteed income 
pilot; they reported significantly higher 
readiness than other similar families

 Families want policymakers to invest in 
supporting families’ basic needs, including food 
and housing

 Help with finding and connecting to resources is 
a top need for families (reported by 65% of 
families)

28

“The Child Tax Credit and the Universal Income are programs that are proven to improve the lives of children. It keeps food 
on tables, rent paid and allows parents to pay for sports or other fun things children need. They need to be permanent.”

Parent survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Support policies that increase job creation with family 
sustaining wages, economic supports like Universal Basic 
Income and expand programming that supports family's 
basic needs like diapers, freeing up resources to purchase 
other necessities like child care, housing, transportation.*

 Strengthen policies and practices that expand access to 
quality affordable housing and utility assistance.*

 Continue policies that were implemented during the 
pandemic to improve access to services including Medi-Cal 
continuous eligibility, free school meals to all children, and 
flexible redetermination processes for Cal Fresh and WIC.



Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being

FINDINGS

Child health and well-being associated with 
higher readiness

 Over half of ECE professionals and K/TK 
teachers say absences and illness increased 
during COVID

 Compared to 2019, the percent receiving 
screenings dropped by as much as 19 points

 37% of children missed a health check-
up during COVID

 Child emotional well-being and 
health/safety are the top concerns for ECE 
professionals and K/TK teachers

 Percent of parents very concerned about 
child well-being increased 22 points during 
COVID

29

“Kids need social and emotional support at 
school to help with the mental health 
impacts of pandemic isolation.”

Parent survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Systems need to improve access to 
affordable, culturally responsive, mental 
health services and supports for families 
and children within their community. *

 Systems need to expand access to quality 
health, vision and dental care services for 
children and their parents/caregivers in 
the community.



Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and 
Discrimination

FINDINGS

Past research in Alameda County found lower 
levels of parenting stress were linked to higher 
readiness

 The percent of parents/caregivers reporting high 
stress levels increased 13 points during COVID

 Experiences of discrimination almost 10 times 
higher in county relative to national sample
o Black and multiracial parents/caregivers over 

twice as likely as White parents/caregivers to 
report experiencing discrimination

 Families want policy makers to fund/provide more 
mental health services

30

“We need more mental health support for students, their families, and educators.”

K/TK teacher survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Invest in programs and services that are 
affirming and responsive to the cultural and 
language needs of communities to address 
historical inequities and mitigate current 
experiences of discrimination.*

• Invest in family resource centers, provide 
access to resources and navigation support.

• Invest in parent/caregiver peer groups, 
including those that are culturally, gender 
specific.



Early Care & Education

FINDINGS

Past research in Alameda County found ECE 
participation predicts higher readiness

 Families reported needing activities for young children 
and child care the most when asked what supports 
they need (needed by 73% and 69% of 
parents/caregivers, respectively)

 75% of families reported barriers to ECE, primarily 
closures, reduced hours, and safety concerns due to 
COVID, and the cost of care 

 Families want policymakers to fund/provide more 
affordable, high-quality child care

31

“Helping pay for child care has been the biggest help I’ve received this year.”

Parent survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Increase access to affordable, quality child care 
options.*

 Expand apprenticeships and workforce pipelines via 
Early Care and Education for parents.

 Expand quality development/educational 
experiences for children in family, friend and 
neighbor care.

 Increase child care based food programs.



Findings & Recommendations: 
Supporting Communities



Family Navigation and Care Coordination

33

FINDINGS

“More communication is needed with the community to let them know 
about the help that exists in our area.”

Parent survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS
 Increase identification of and support for 

children with special needs. One strategy is 
to improve connections to early screening 
and intervention services and systems in the 
community. *

 Support strategies and programs that 
improve timely access to community 
supports through family navigation and care 
coordination.

Connection to resources was significantly correlated with 
higher readiness 

 65% of families said help connecting to resources 
was important to them, but only 12% said they had 
received this kind of help

 Community resource use was lower in 2021 
compared to 2019

 Help Me Grow participants were more likely than 
other caregivers to say they were connected to 
resources like free food and other basic needs, 
playgroups, and parent/caregiver groups



FINDINGS

Families who resided in a higher-income neighborhood 
reported higher readiness

Research shows a positive correlation between 
neighborhood assets and readiness, regardless of family 
income

 Neighborhood assets were lower in 2021 compared 
to 2019

Receiving help from the place-based Neighborhoods 
Ready for School (NRFS) initiative was associated with 
higher readiness overall

 NRFS families reported using more community 
resources

Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 

“We need safe, clean, green spaces for families to access in East Oakland. We need 
playgrounds that have grass and shade and bathrooms. We need places to gather as 
neighbors. We need access to the places that we can’t afford. Zoos, aquariums, museums etc.”
Parent survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS
 Invest in the local economic development to 

support job creation and advance living wages 
particularly for Black and Brown communities.*

 Advance policies that promote family-friendly 
neighborhoods.*

 Increase family leadership opportunities and 
civic engagement.

 Expand place-based strategies and intentional 
partnerships.



Kindergarten Transition Supports

FINDINGS

Use of kindergarten transition supports, especially among 
fathers, linked to higher readiness

 Use of kindergarten transition supports by families 
dropped from 2019 (e.g., 87% visited the school in 
2019, while 44% visited in 2021)

 Over half of K/TK teachers and 4 in 10 ECE 
professionals reported that transition activities were 
moved online or cancelled during COVID

 Some transition supports were more likely to be 
offered by K/TK schools in 2021 compared to 2019 
(e.g., parent-teacher meetings, home visits), while 
others were less likely (e.g., kindergarten orientations)

35

“I have had good to excellent engagement with my families because I offer 
both in person and zoom meetings for required conferences as well as 
optional conferences when parents need to talk.”
K/TK teacher survey respondent

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Expand access to kindergarten readiness 
activities and transition supports that are 
accessible to all families within their 
community. Support includes summer 
programs, play groups, parent support, school 
events, and activities for children in K/1st grade 
who missed opportunities because of the 
pandemic.

 Promote policies and practices that 
intentionally engage and welcome fathers in 
programs and services from prenatal to 
kindergarten transition.



Findings & Recommendations:
Supporting ECE Professionals, 

Teachers, and Care and 
Education Systems



Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers

FINDINGS

ECE professionals and K/TK teachers need support to 
manage the stress and challenges of COVID

 Stress among ECE professionals and K/TK teachers has 
increased during COVID pandemic and is highest 
among K teachers (51% pre-COVID, 88% in the past 
week), relative to TK teachers and ECE professionals

 Those who reported high levels of stress were over 4 
times more likely to say they plan to leave the 
profession

 ECE professionals experienced the greatest changes to 
their hours and income during COVID: 49% reported 
decreased hours, 43% decreased wages, and 57% 
decreased household income 

37

RECOMMENDATIONS

 Access to affordable quality mental health and self-
care resources for ECE professionals and educators, 
as well as mental health consultation for the 
classroom to support child educational 
achievement.*

 Advance policies and supports for professional 
development, capacity building, and equitable  
compensation and working which support providers 
and quality care.

“Although teachers have access to these human resources for mindfulness and trauma education, we are asked to 
take our own time to utilize the resources. Unfortunately, many teachers do not because working beyond your 
workday is stressful in itself.”
K/TK teacher survey respondent



Support for Care & Education Systems

38

FINDINGS
Families want policy makers to improve teaching and 
schools through teacher and student supports
 70% of ECE professionals, 58% of TK teachers, and 46% 

of K teachers need training in Social Emotional 
Learning (SEL)

 ECE professionals and K/TK teachers are:
o most likely to have access to COVID supplies 

(available to 82% of ECE professionals, 96% of TK, 
and 85% of K teachers)

o least likely to have access to mental health/self-care 
resources (available to 17% of ECE professionals, 
26% of TK, and 23% of K teachers)

 Fewer than one-third of ECE professionals have access 
to supports for families like family services referral lists 
(29%) and translation support (21%) or child mental 
health consultants (19%)

RECOMMENDATIONS
 Support communication, collaboration, and 

partnerships between the home, informal care 
settings, early care and education professionals, 
community programs, and schools to facilitate the 
transition to TK/K.*

 Expand family navigation and care coordination 
services to ECE settings and schools to promote 
community partnerships that help connect 
families to available programs and services in the 
community.*

 Supports to mitigate  learning including smaller 
ratios and training to support students’ social-
emotional development.

“I would say [we need] more funding for SEL programs and staff training to help the children better cope with the 
new stresses they are encountering due to COVID/Pandemic.”
ECE Professional survey respondent



Research Advisory Group Perspective

39

Edgar Chavez
Executive Director, Hayward 

Promise Neighborhoods

LaRichea Smith
Parent and ECE Center Director

Clarissa Doutherd
Parent Voices Oakland



Questions?



2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           1 
 

Families, communities, ECE professionals, educators, and schools need adequate and stable investments to support them in preparing all children for 

kindergarten and later success. 

The following recommendations were developed using key findings and themes from the 2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment survey and with input from the 

Parent/Caregiver Subcommittee (SC) and the Research Advisory Group during meetings #5 and #6.  

  

 

KRA Key Finding 

Parent/Caregiver SC & 

Research Advisory Group 

(Advisory Group) Input 

Policy & System Recommendations Examples of Priority First 5 Alameda County Efforts 

SUPPORTING CHILDREN & FAMILIES 

Children and 
families need 
economic 
supports and 
access to basic 
needs. 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Highlight relationship between 
universal basic income (UBI) 
and school readiness 

▪ Provide UBI to families with 
young children  

▪ Prioritize the voices and 
experiences of low-income 
communities 

▪ High transportation costs, 
provide free bus passes 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Highlight families’ access to 
UBI/money and strong 
connection to school 
readiness 

▪ Support parents with income 
to meet basic needs 

▪ Families need housing 

Support policies that increase job 
creation with livable wages, economic 
supports like UBI, and expand 
programming that supports families’ 
basic needs like diapers, freeing up 
resources to purchase other necessities 
like child care, housing, transportation.* 
 
Strengthen policies and practices that 
expand access to quality affordable 
housing and utility assistance. Support 
strategies that eliminate barriers to rental 
assistance, support rent stabilization and 
tenant protections, and eliminate utility 
debt.* 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Investments 

• Invested over $5mil in distribution of essential supplies, 
including diapers. 

• Worked with family-serving shelters and provided capital 
awards, supply stipends, and technical assistance. 

Policy Advocacy 

• Advocated for increases in economic supports for 
families at local, state, and federal levels, e.g., child tax 
credits, diaper banks, supports for CalWORKs. 

• Funded the evaluation of Help A Mother Out’s diaper 
distribution, and provided letter of recommendation for 
the successful application to the California Commission 
on the Status of Women for a $25,000 Women’s 
Recovery Response grant.  

• Signed on to an open letter from the National 
Collaborative for Infants and Toddlers, laying out a vision 
for increased investments in prenatal-to-three issues in 

https://first5.foleon.com/first5/first-5-annual-report-2019-2020/invest/
https://first5.foleon.com/first5/first-5-annual-report-2019-2020/invest/#invest5
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/HAMO_Alameda_Report%20FINAL%202.7.22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/F5AC%20Letter%20of%20Support%20for%20Help%20A%20Mother%20Out%203-7-22%20%282%29.pdf
https://buildinitiative.cmail19.com/t/t-l-qpuhhl-ahtuhlrhk-j/
https://buildinitiative.cmail19.com/t/t-l-qpuhhl-ahtuhlrhk-j/


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           2 
 

supports, access to food, 
flexible, healthy, and quality 
school meals 

▪ Reduce barriers to economic 
supports (rental assistance 
and pandemic debt due to 
restrictions in government 
programs) 

▪ Continue school meal 
programs when children are 
not in school (P-EBT) 

Continue policies that were 
implemented during the pandemic to 
improve access to quality services 
including Medi-Cal continuous eligibility, 
free school meals to all children, and 
flexible redetermination processes for Cal 
Fresh and WIC. 
 
 

2022 and beyond. 

• Provided public comment to support Stable Rents and 
Stable Families campaign to strengthen rental 
protections for the unincorporated communities in 
Alameda County. 

• Provided public comment in support of AB 2053: The 
Social Housing Act (Lee) to connect early childhood and 
affordable and stable housing. 

Child health and 
well-being 
associated with 
higher readiness. 

Parent Discussion 

▪ Invest in support for medical 

check-ups 

▪ Connect medical needs at 

schools 
  

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Support parents with 

connections to child health 

check-ups, dental supports are 

a high need 

▪ Need to understand outcomes 

of HMG 

▪ Highlight the needs of families 

with children with special 

needs and families 

experiencing trauma 

▪ Need to understand the data 

around boys of color and how 

it has changed 

▪ Make services available at 

places where families are at 

Systems need to improve access to 

affordable, culturally responsive, 

mental health services and supports for 

families and children within their 

community. * 

 

Systems need to expand access to 

quality health, vision and dental care 

services for children and their 

parents/caregivers in the community by 

eliminating barriers like long applications, 

frequent renewals, and Medi-Cal 

premiums and co-payments. 

 

Program Investments 

• Help Me Grow (HMG) Alameda County supports families 
to connect to medical check-ups, with particular focus on 
Medi-Cal clients; trains providers to offer screenings; and 
provides the HMG central access point (phone line) for 
information and care coordination. 

• Fund DULCE at Highland Hospital to provide health, 
family and legal services to families. 

• As part of the Alameda County Emergency Child Care 
Response Team, partnered with Samuel Merritt 
University School of Nursing and ECE providers to 
provide health consultation support through the Health 
Heroes program. 

• Participation in workgroup led by the Alameda County 
Office of Dental Health to improve access to dental care 
for the 0-5 age group through communication, outreach, 
and integration with primary care. 

 

Policy Advocacy 

• Submitted a letter in support of AB1995, a proposal to 
eliminate monthly Medi-Cal premiums or copayments so 
that low-income households can put resources toward 
other essential needs. 

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Public%20Testimony_Housing%20Policies_Unincorporated%20Communties.pdf
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2053
https://alamedakids.org/
http://www.first5alameda.org/coronavirus-disease-covid-19-resources-2019/health-heroes-program/
http://www.first5alameda.org/coronavirus-disease-covid-19-resources-2019/health-heroes-program/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1995


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           3 
 

• In support of continuous Med-Cal eligibility, AB2402, 
Diana Garcia, Data and Policy Analyst, gave testimony 
(beginning at the 2:36:50 mark) at the California State 
Assembly.  

 

Past research in 
Alameda County 
found lower levels 
of parenting 
stress were linked 
to higher 
readiness 
 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Increase access to health care 
▪ Address stressors not related 

to income 
▪ Parents need mental health 

supports 
 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Services need to be more 
accessible and not feel 
discriminatory  

▪ Parent health and well-being 
supports child health/well-
being 

▪ Impact of stress also seen in 
birth disparities 

Invest in programs, services, and policies 

that are affirming and responsive to the 

cultural and language needs of 

communities to address historical 

inequities and mitigate current 

experiences of discrimination. * 

Invest in family resource centers, 

provide access to resources and 

navigation support as well as 

programming that promotes community, 

expansion of social connections/capital 

and provides respite for parent 

caregiver/developmental play for child. 

Invest in parent/caregiver peer groups, 

including those that are culturally, gender 

specific, e.g., dads groups, Afro-play, to 

support networks, community building and 

opportunities for leadership.   

 

Program Investments 

• Support for Afrocentric playgroups, promotora 

programming,  to address disparities in maternal and 

child health outcomes 

• Lead on a regional grant application with Contra Costa to 

support Afghan family resettlement, funding planning and 

direct services, engaging in community events and 

advocacy 

• Our Cultural Access Services program provides 

interpretation and translation for First 5 and partner 

programs to increase access to community-based 

services. 

• Fund parent and caregiver supports such as, Dad-

scussions, Parent Cafés, and culturally specific 

playgroups, through the work in each of the 

Neighborhoods Ready for School sites. 

Policy Advocacy 

• Submitted a letter in support of SB 65 the California 

Momnibus bill which would re-imagine maternal health to 

improve perinatal outcomes, close racial disparities in 

maternal and infant mortality and morbidity, and improve 

data collection and research on socioeconomic factors 

that contribute to negative birth outcomes. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2402
https://www.assembly.ca.gov/media/assembly-health-committee-20220329/video
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aWX_L-xI-Jw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aWX_L-xI-Jw
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Letter%20in%20Support%20of%20SB%2065%20%28Skinner%29%209-17-21.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Letter%20in%20Support%20of%20SB%2065%20%28Skinner%29%209-17-21.pdf


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           4 
 

Past research in 
Alameda County 
found ECE 
participation 
predicts higher 
readiness. 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Highlight the need to support 
child care on two fronts: 
affordable access for families 
and pay equity for providers 

▪ Need continued enrollment in 
ECE activities/child care 

▪ Need quality education 
 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Make quality child care 
affordable and accessible 

▪ Pay teacher living wages 
▪ Support FCCs with food for 

children 
▪ Family child care providers 

need mental health supports 
for staff 

▪ Family child care providers 
need more guidance and 
connections to supports that 
promote K-readiness 

Increase access to affordable, quality 

child care options that meet the needs of 

families and are open non-traditional 

hours, support language needs, celebrates 

child’s culture. * 

Expand apprenticeships and workforce 
pipelines via Early Care and Education 
for parents to provide access to 
secondary education.  
 
Expand quality 
development/educational experiences 
for children in family, friend and 
neighbor care, e.g. partnership with 
libraries, parks and recreation, faith-based 
communities and mobile programming at 
local parks.   
 
Increase child care based food 
programs, to support provider and family 
food security and conditions that support 
learning. 
 

• Named administrator of Measure C: Children’s Health 

and Child Care Initiative for Alameda County. Measure C 

creates a half-percent (0.5%) sales tax, estimated to 

raise ~ $150 million per year, to provide support and 

enhancements for child care, preschool, early education, 

and pediatric health care in Alameda County.  Measure 

C provides an opportunity to expand access to 

subsidized early care and education for thousands of 

families in Alameda County. 

Program Investments 

• Expand number of licensed family child care providers 
participating and benefiting from Alameda County Quality 
Counts, building peer support. 

• Jointly funded Alameda County’s ECE Apprenticeship 
Program to provide CalWORKs participants training, 
advanced degrees, and employment in ECE settings; 
advocated for additional investments in the model. 

• HMG care coordination and family navigation services 
provide connections to services and supports for parents 
and caregivers, as well as emotional support. 

• Supported child care providers with technical assistance 
in English, Spanish, and Chinese for the state-wide 
Minor Renovation and Repair Grant Request for 
Applications for both centers and family child care.  

• Support libraries to provide children’s books in multiple 
languages, offer playgroups, take-home resources for 
parents, including over 1000 literacy kits, and provide 
developmental screening and referral on-site through 
HMG. 

 
 
 

http://www.first5alameda.org/measure-c-childrens-health-and-child-care-initiative-for-alameda-county#:~:text=What%20does%20Measure%20C%20include,%2C%20prioritizing%20high%2Dneed%20families.
http://www.first5alameda.org/measure-c-childrens-health-and-child-care-initiative-for-alameda-county#:~:text=What%20does%20Measure%20C%20include,%2C%20prioritizing%20high%2Dneed%20families.
https://alamedakids.org/qualitycounts/
https://alamedakids.org/qualitycounts/
https://first5alameda-my.sharepoint.com/personal/diana_garcia_first5alameda_org/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?listurl=https%3A%2F%2Ffirst5alameda%2Esharepoint%2Ecom%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents&viewid=a41fa833%2D4881%2D48cf%2Da9ed%2D3c67b7a06f5d&login_hint=diana%2Egarcia%40first5alameda%2Eorg&id=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share%2FPolicy%2C%20Planning%2C%20and%20Evaluation%2FPolicy%2C%20Advocacy%2C%20Communication%2FBriefs%20and%20Memos%20by%20Policy%20Subject%2FApprenticeships%2FECE%20Apprenticeship%20Brief%20%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share%2FPolicy%2C%20Planning%2C%20and%20Evaluation%2FPolicy%2C%20Advocacy%2C%20Communication%2FBriefs%20and%20Memos%20by%20Policy%20Subject%2FApprenticeships
https://first5alameda-my.sharepoint.com/personal/diana_garcia_first5alameda_org/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?listurl=https%3A%2F%2Ffirst5alameda%2Esharepoint%2Ecom%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents&viewid=a41fa833%2D4881%2D48cf%2Da9ed%2D3c67b7a06f5d&login_hint=diana%2Egarcia%40first5alameda%2Eorg&id=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share%2FPolicy%2C%20Planning%2C%20and%20Evaluation%2FPolicy%2C%20Advocacy%2C%20Communication%2FBriefs%20and%20Memos%20by%20Policy%20Subject%2FApprenticeships%2FECE%20Apprenticeship%20Brief%20%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share%2FPolicy%2C%20Planning%2C%20and%20Evaluation%2FPolicy%2C%20Advocacy%2C%20Communication%2FBriefs%20and%20Memos%20by%20Policy%20Subject%2FApprenticeships
http://www.first5alameda.org/coronavirus-disease-covid-19-resources-2019/399-2/
http://www.first5alameda.org/coronavirus-disease-covid-19-resources-2019/399-2/
https://first-5.webflow.io/
https://first-5.webflow.io/


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           5 
 

Policy Advocacy 

• Provided a letter of support for Food with Care: SB 1481 
(Becker) would provide free daily meals to children in 
child care by enabling all child care providers to qualify 
for the highest level of reimbursements for the meals 
they serve. 

SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES 

Connection to 

resources was 

significantly 

correlated with 

higher readiness 

 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Connections to resources after 
screenings and for families 
with concerns 

▪ Support connections to 
pediatricians 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Support for families with 
children with special needs 

▪ Increase community 
navigation to make resources 
known to families and make 
sure they are accessible 
(services available and 
affordable) 

 

Increase identification of and support 

for children with special needs. One 

strategy is to improve connections to early 

screening and intervention services and 

systems in the community. * 

Support strategies and programs that 

improve timely access to community 

supports through family navigation and 

care coordination.  Strategies include 

increasing support for technology 

platforms, Family Resource Centers, 

family navigators, CalAIM and programs 

like Help Me Grow and Alameda County 

Fathers Corps. 

Program Investments 

• Provide training and coaching in early identification to 

newly recruited family child care providers. 

• HMG trains providers to offer their families early 
screenings and offers direct screening through the 
Developmental Screening Program; provides care 
coordination and navigation support to families referred 
to the Central Access Point (phone line); and conducts 
community outreach and networking events to stay on 
top of available services and resources. 

• Partner with the Alameda Alliance, federally qualified 

health centers, and UCSF Benioff Children’s hospital on 

efforts to expand care coordination and navigation to 

services through pediatric sites. 

Policy Advocacy 

• Advocated to ensure equitable implementation of 

CalAIM; submitted a letter to the state budget 

subcommittees in response to the state’s proposed 

sunset of the Child Health and Disability Prevention 

program. 

 

 

 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1481
https://alamedakids.org/developmental-screening-program-child-development
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Advancing%20Help%20Me%20Grow%20through%20the%20Pediatric%20Care%20System%202.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Advancing%20Help%20Me%20Grow%20through%20the%20Pediatric%20Care%20System%202.pdf
https://first5alameda.sharepoint.com/sites/AllStaffChannel/Shared%20Documents/Forms/Technology%20View.aspx?q=chdp%20sunset&id=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share%2FPolicy%2C%20Planning%2C%20and%20Evaluation%2FPolicy%2C%20Advocacy%2C%20Communication%2FState%20Policy%2FLetters%20of%20Support%2F2022%2FCHDP%20Sunset%5FLetter%20to%20Budget%20Committees%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FAllStaffChannel%2FShared%20Documents%2FFirst5Share&parentview=7


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           6 
 

Families who 
resided in a 
higher-income 
neighborhood 
reported higher 
readiness. 
 
Research shows a 
positive 
correlation 
between 
neighborhood 
assets and 
readiness, 
regardless of 
family income. 
 
Receiving help 
from the place-
based 
Neighborhoods 
Ready for School 
(NRFS) initiative 
was associated 
with higher 
readiness overall 
 
 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Provide financial assistance 
for extracurricular and after 
school activities to promote 
ross motor skills 

▪ Leverage resources available 
and make them widely known 
in the community, especially 
for extracurricular activities 

▪ No school closures, especially 
in communities serving Black 
and Brown children 

▪ Impact of community violence 
on children 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Support community 
partnerships 

▪ Schools are safe places. If 
closed, they won’t be replaced 
with community spaces for 
children/families 

Invest in the local economic 

development to support job creation and 

advance living wages particularly for Black 

and Brown communities impacted by 

structural racism that has resulted in 

disproportionate rates of poverty. * 

Advance policies that promote family-

friendly neighborhoods through 

investments in public schools; safe, clean, 

green parks, playgrounds, and 

communities; affordable housing; 

accessible libraries; and financial supports 

for extracurricular and after school 

activities that are affordable to all   

families. * 

Increase family leadership opportunities 

and civic engagement.  

Double-down on place-based strategies 

and intentional partnerships with other 

public systems, philanthropy, and 

community-based organizations to sustain 

investments in Neighborhood Ready for 

School Communities. 

Program Investments 

• As part of the Neighborhoods Ready for School strategy, 

First 5 funds trusted community organizations and family 

resource centers to build an ecosystem of support for 

families in the community. 

 
Policy Advocacy 

• Signed on to a budget letter requesting that the 
California Legislature and administration increase wage 
replacement rates for low-wage workers in the State 
Disability Insurance and Paid Family Leave programs. 

• In partnership with the City of Oakland, submitted a one-
time state budget request to improve Oakland’s play 
spaces for young children and their families. 

• Funded an evaluation of our place-based Neighborhoods 
Ready for School strategy to inform policy advocacy and 
public investments.  

• Partnered with parents and caregivers to inform the 
design, implementation, and interpretation of the 2021 
Kindergarten Readiness Assessment as part of a 
research to action approach and commitment to equity. 
as part of a research to action approach and commitment 
to equity. 

• Submitted a letter of support for AB 2517 (Bonta) which 
proposes to establish a two-year California Coordinated 
Neighborhood and Community Services grant program to 
implement new, and strengthen existing, neighborhood 
and regional cradle to career (C2C) networks to reduce 
inequities and increase economic mobility in 
communities across California through integrated place-
based support systems. 

http://www.first5alameda.org/neighborhoods-ready-for-school
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1qlkwgyVkygkywOZtXbHM1DC0lawDcSwRVwDiJjRVDZY/edit
http://www.acgov.org/board/bos_calendar/documents/DocsAgendaReg_4_18_22/PAL/State_budget_request_F5AC_playground_PAL_4_18_22.pdf
http://www.acgov.org/board/bos_calendar/documents/DocsAgendaReg_4_18_22/PAL/State_budget_request_F5AC_playground_PAL_4_18_22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/NRFS%20Interim%20Evaluation%20Brief.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/2021%20Alameda%20KRA%20Survey%20Results%20Commission%20Presentation%20DRAFT%204.13.22.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/2021%20Alameda%20KRA%20Survey%20Results%20Commission%20Presentation%20DRAFT%204.13.22.pdf
https://www.einpresswire.com/article/563840080/assemblymember-mia-bonta-champions-grant-program-to-expand-coordinated-neighborhood-community-services-networks


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           7 
 

Use of 
kindergarten 
transition 
supports, 
especially among 
fathers, linked to 
higher readiness. 

 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Connect families with 
parenting resources 

▪ Parents need additional 
resources 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Emphasizing the role of father 

and dismantle the myth 

around fathers/father figures, 

especially men of color 

▪ Highlight K transition programs 

▪ Activities for children and 

families to engage together 

▪ K readiness and transition 
supports through kindergarten 
and 1st grade 

▪ Make programs accessible by 
reducing paperwork to 
participate 

 
Expand access to kindergarten 
readiness activities and transition 
supports that are accessible to all families 
within their community. Support includes 
summer programs, play groups, parent 
support, school events, and activities for 
children in K/1st grade who missed 
opportunities because of the pandemic. 
 
Promote policies and practices that 
intentionally engage and welcome 
fathers in programs and services from 
prenatal to kindergarten transition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Program Investments 

• Funded school districts in Alameda County, using an 
equity index, to support kindergarten transition 
programming (educational materials, books, tablets) and 
supports for families (basic needs).   

• Leader of Alameda County Fathers Corps, a 
collaborative focused on empowering and supporting 
fathers, service providers, agencies, systems, and the 
wider community to raise awareness of the critical role of 
fathers and father-figures and the benefits of active 
father involvement on young children’s development; 
provide training and support to service providers with 
implementation of the Father-Friendly principles; and 
advocate for more father-specific and father-friendly 
services. 

• Awarded grants to community-based organizations to 
provide drop-in groups to support fathers in addressing 
their challenges in accessing public and community 
supports. 

Policy Advocacy 

• Alameda County Fathers Corps advocates for local 
systems change, and has championed a state resolution 
on the adoption of the Father Friendly Principles. 

http://www.first5alameda.org/files/December%202020%20Commission%20Materials_School%20District%20Grants%2012092020%20v2.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/December%202020%20Commission%20Materials_School%20District%20Grants%2012092020%20v2.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/alameda-county-fathers-corps
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Fathers_Corps/Alameda_County_Fathers_Corps_-_Father_Friendly_Principles_Sheet.pdf
http://www.first5alameda.org/files/Fathers_Corps/Alameda_County_Fathers_Corps_-_Father_Friendly_Principles_Sheet.pdf


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           8 
 

SUPPORTING ECE PROFESSIONALS, TEACHERS, & CARE and EDUCATION SYSTEMS 

ECE professionals 
and K/TK teachers 
need support to 
manage the stress 
and challenges of 
COVID. 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Create strategies and support 

to emphasize the direct 

relationship between quality 

early education and fair 

salaries 

▪ Equitable wages for ECE 

professionals and teachers 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Teachers and families 
stressed about learning loss; 
need to refocus what success 
looks like; provide teachers 
with resources and self-care  

▪ Workforce and families often 
the same population in need of 
supports—teachers and ECE 
professionals need better 
compensation with higher 
wages 

Increase access to affordable quality 

mental health and self-care resources 

for ECE professionals and educators, as 

well as mental health consultation for the 

classroom to support child educational 

achievement. * 

 

Advance policies and supports for 

professional development, capacity 

building, and equitable compensation 

and working conditions which support 

providers and quality care. 

• Named administrator of Measure C: Children’s Health 

and Child Care Initiative for Alameda County. Measure C 

creates a half-percent (0.5%) sales tax, estimated to 

raise ~ $150 million per year, to provide support and 

enhancements for child care, preschool, early education, 

and pediatric health care in Alameda County.  Measure 

C provides an opportunity to improve compensation for 

the early care and education workforce. 

Program Investments 
 
 

• Expand participation in the number of providers 

participating in Quality Counts quality improvement, 

coaching, professional learning communities, and quality 

grants. 

• Investing in training (over 4.5k attendees and 11k 

YouTube views) to strengthen providers’ and families' 

understanding of best practices for early education, 

mental health, family support, health, and administration. 

Policy Advocacy 
 

 

• Provided public comment to the Alameda County 

Behavioral Health — Mental Health Services Act Plan FY 

2022-23 to highlight the need for infant and early 

childhood mental health services and supports through 

investments in the Infant and Early Childhood Mental 

Health workforce and Consultation programs. 

• Submitted a letter to the state supporting the Rate and 

Quality Stakeholder Workgroup’s recommendations for 

investments in the workforce and for an equitable rate 

reimbursement system. 

http://www.first5alameda.org/measure-c-childrens-health-and-child-care-initiative-for-alameda-county#:~:text=What%20does%20Measure%20C%20include,%2C%20prioritizing%20high%2Dneed%20families.
http://www.first5alameda.org/measure-c-childrens-health-and-child-care-initiative-for-alameda-county#:~:text=What%20does%20Measure%20C%20include,%2C%20prioritizing%20high%2Dneed%20families.
https://www.youtube.com/user/first5alameda/videos
https://first5alameda-my.sharepoint.com/personal/ana_rasquiza_first5alameda_org/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fana%5Frasquiza%5Ffirst5alameda%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FECE%2FFirst%205%20Alameda%20County%20Rate%20and%20Quality%20Memo%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fana%5Frasquiza%5Ffirst5alameda%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FECE&ga=1


2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment Policy Recommendations 
 

* Signals a top policy priority identified by the Research Advisory Group           9 
 

Families want 
policy makers to 
improve teaching 
and schools 
through teacher 
and student 
supports. 

Parent/Caregiver Discussion 

▪ Address deep learning and 

social loss that children in K 

and 1st grade are experiencing 

this year through better 

teacher-student ratios 

▪ Facilitate information meetings 

for parents about resources 

and events, in the community 

through partnerships with local 

elementary schools and 

agreements/relationships with 

principals. 

▪ Connect schools with medical 

supports 

▪ More communication and 

transparency with families 

 

Advisory Group Discussion 

▪ Schools should provide drop-
in access to resources 

▪ Support K transitions and use 
of family navigators 

▪ Make schools safe trusting 
environments 

▪ Use school space to support 
family activities  

▪ Smaller Kindergarten class 
sizes and social emotional 
trainings to better support 
students and teachers 

Support communication, collaboration, 

and partnerships between the home, 

informal care settings, early care and 

education professionals, community 

programs, and schools to facilitate the 

transition to Transitional Kindergarten/ 

Kindergarten. * 

Support policies and practices that 

expand family navigation and care 

coordination services to ECE settings 

and schools to promote community 

partnerships that help connect families to 

available programs and services in the 

community. * 

Provide educators with supports to 

mitigate learning loss including smaller 

teacher to child ratios in Kindergarten and 

training to support students’ social-

emotional development. 

Program Investments 

• Financially support school districts with Kindergarten 
transition efforts, including through the Community 
Resilience Fund grants allocated using an equity index. 

• Partnered with Alameda County Social Services Agency 
and Supplybank.org to distribute 880 air purifiers to 440 
family child care providers. 

• Administered $3 Million in family child care grants 
provided by Alameda County Social Services Agency 
from CARES Act funds. 

• Invest in the CARE Family Resource Navigation 
program, which has been effective in supporting families 
experiencing homelessness with child care and access 
to basic needs.  

• Distributed over 12,000 backpacks with supplies to 
incoming kindergarteners through schools and 
community partners. 

 

Policy Advocacy 

• Promote coordination between school districts and the 
Early Care and Education mixed delivery system in the 
planning for implementation for Universal Transitional 
Kindergarten/Prekindergarten.   

http://www.first5alameda.org/community-resilience-fund
http://www.first5alameda.org/community-resilience-fund
https://vimeo.com/610254634/cf87ddaad4
https://vimeo.com/610254634/cf87ddaad4
https://first5.foleon.com/first5/first-5-annual-report-2019-2020/invest/#Invest-2
https://alamedakids.org/resource-directory/program_uploads/36_1292_4919837433.pdf
https://first-5.webflow.io/


Edgar Chávez, Executive Director, Hayward Promise Neighborhoods 

Kindergarten Readiness Assessment, Research Advisory Group Participant 
 

Edgar Chávez serves as the Executive Director of Hayward 

Promise Neighborhoods (HPN) at California State University, East 

Bay. A proud grandson of Mexican farmworkers and a first-

generation immigrant and college graduate, Edgar has dedicated 

his career to working with first-generation students and families 

on their path to postsecondary opportunities across Bay Area 

communities, including East Palo Alto and East San José. 

Edgar earned a B.A. in Comparative Studies in Race and Ethnicity 

with Honors from Stanford University and an Ed.M. in Prevention 

Science and Practice from Harvard Graduate School of Education. 

He currently lives in Cherryland, California, his neighborhood since childhood. 

Edgar Chávez se desempeña como Director Ejecutivo de Hayward Promise Neighborhoods 

(HPN) en la Universidad Estatal de California, East Bay. Edgar, un orgulloso nieto de 

trabajadores agrícolas mexicanos e inmigrante de primera generación y graduado universitario, 

ha dedicado su carrera a trabajar con estudiantes y familias de primera generación en su 

camino hacia oportunidades postsecundarias en las comunidades del Área de la Bahía, incluidas 

East Palo Alto y East San José. 
 

Edgar obtuvo un B.A. en Estudios Comparativos en Raza y Etnicidad con honores de la 

Universidad de Stanford y un Ed.M. en Ciencias y Prácticas de la Prevención de la Escuela de 

Graduados en Educación de Harvard. Actualmente vive en Cherryland, California, su barrio 

desde niño. 



Clarissa Doutherd, Executive Director, Parent Voices Oakland 

Kindergarten Readiness Assessment, Research Advisory Group Participant 
 

Clarissa Doutherd is the Executive Director of Parent Voices 

Oakland, an East Bay chapter of Parent Voices California. Clarissa 

has been a strong advocate for mothers like herself who were 

caught in the crosshairs of ineffective public policy. As a 

collaborative movement builder, Clarissa has forged deep 

partnerships with large local government agencies including the 

Alameda County Social Services Agency, Public Health, and 

Behavioral Health Services. After stepping into leadership as the 

Co-Chair on the Alameda County Early Childhood Policy Committee 

with First 5 Alameda County, Clarissa led efforts to refocus the 

group to become a cross-sector collaborative which brings 

together community-based organizations, parents, and service providers to advance innovative 

strategies for countywide systems change, working to elevate parent leadership in public policy. Clarissa 

has received the following honors: Gloria Steinem "Woman of Vision" award; East Bay Women's Political 

Alliance's "Advocate of the Year"; First 5 Alameda County "Parent of the Year" award; and an award for 

excellence in Human Relations from the Alameda County Human Relations Commission. Clarissa resides 

in Oakland, California, with her son Xavier. 

 

Clarissa Doutherd es la Directora Ejecutiva de Parent Voices Oakland, un capítulo del Este de la Bahía de 

Parent Voices California. Clarissa ha sido una firme defensora de madres como ella que quedaron 

atrapadas en el punto de mira de políticas públicas ineficaces. Como constructora de un movimiento 

colaborativo, Clarissa ha forjado asociaciones profundas con grandes agencias gubernamentales locales, 

incluida la Agencia de Servicios Sociales, Salud Pública y Servicios de Salud del Comportamiento del 

Condado de Alameda. Después de asumir el liderazgo como copresidenta del Comité de políticas de la 

primera infancia del condado de Alameda con First 5 del condado de Alameda, Clarissa lideró los 

esfuerzos para reenfocar el grupo para convertirlo en una colaboración intersectorial que reúna a 

organizaciones comunitarias, padres y proveedores de servicios. para promover estrategias innovadoras 

para el cambio de sistemas en todo el condado, trabajando para elevar el liderazgo de los padres en la 

política pública. Clarissa ha recibido los siguientes honores: premio Gloria Steinem "Mujer de Visión"; 

"Defensora del año" de la Alianza Política de Mujeres de East Bay; Premio "Padre del año" de los 

Primeros 5 del Condado de Alameda; y un premio a la excelencia en Relaciones Humanas de la Comisión 

de Relaciones Humanas del Condado de Alameda. Clarissa reside en Oakland, California, con su hijo 

Xavier. 



LaRichea Smith, Parent and Early Care and Education Director 

Kindergarten Readiness Assessment, Research Advisory Group Parent Participant 
 

My name is LaRichea Smith. I was born and raised in the city of Oakland.  I 
have two children. My son is 18 years old and is a freshman at San Diego 
State University. My daughter is six years old and is in kindergarten. I 
graduated from Merritt College with an A.A. in Child Development and Cal 
State East Bay with a B.A in Human Development. I have been teaching 
for 15 years. I decided to teach preschool children to give them the 
foundation they need to thrive and survive in school and in society. As an 
early childhood educator and parent, I think it’s very important to help 
children develop and be comfortable with who they are as an individual in 
a school and home environment. I believe a child’s experiences are their 
introduction to education and themselves.  
 
In my spare time, I enjoy traveling, attending professional sporting 
events, concerts, shopping, and quality time with family and friends. 

 
Being an educator has been a part of my life since I was young, and I find great joy and appreciation in 
having the opportunity to educate children and advocate for them to give them a chance to be the best 
version of themselves. 
 
Mi nombre es La Richea Smith. Nací y crecí en la ciudad de Oakland. Tengo dos hijos. Mi hijo tiene 18 
años y es estudiante de primer año en la Universidad Estatal de San Diego. Mi hija tiene 6 años y está en 
el kinder. Me gradué de Merritt College con un A.A. en Desarrollo Infantil y también de Cal State East 
Bay con un B.A en Desarrollo Humano. He estado enseñando durante 15 años. Decidí enseñar a los 
niños en edad preescolar para darles la base que necesitan para prosperar y sobrevivir en la escuela y en 
la sociedad. Como educadora de la primera infancia y madre, creo que es muy importante ayudar a los 
niños a desarrollarse y sentirse cómodos con quienes son como individuos en un entorno escolar y 
hogareño. Creo que las experiencias de un niño son su introducción a la educación y a ellos mismos.  
 
En mi tiempo libre, disfruto viajar, asistir a eventos deportivos profesionales, conciertos, ir de compras, 
y pasar tiempo de calidad con familiares y amigos. 
 
Ser educadora ha sido parte de mi vida desde que era joven y encuentro una gran alegría y aprecio por 
tener la oportunidad de educar a los niños y abogar por ellos para darles la oportunidad de ser la mejor 
versión de sí mismos. 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM 8

 
 
 
To:  First 5 Alameda County Commission 
 
From:  Kristin Spanos, Chief Executive Officer 
  Tyson Jue, Chief of Staff 
   
Date:  April 28, 2022 
 
Subject: Resolution authorizing the submittal of the grant application to First 5 California and 

agreement to execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
Approve resolution authorizing the submittal of the grant application to First 5 California and agreement 
to execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 23, 2022, First 5 California released a Request for Application (RFA) to fund Afghan 
Refugee Family Support Services in California.  The RFA requires that First 5 County Commissions 
partner with local organizations and the total award amount for each applying county/counties 
will be for a minimum of $100,000 to a maximum of $750,000.  The total amount of funding will 
be predicated on the award from First 5 California, which will be announced in May.  
 
In anticipation of the release of the RFA, First 5 Alameda County and First 5 Contra Costa County 
jointly released the Afghan Refugee and Other Refugee Family Support Funding RFQ on March 7, 
2022 in support of refugee children 0-5 and families in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties to 
select an organization(s) to submit a joint county grant application to First 5 California.  The two 
organizations selected were Jewish Family and Children Services-East Bay and Refugees and 
Immigrants in Transition.  The contract with the selected organizations will be with First 5 
Alameda County. 
 
First 5 California requires, as part of the application for the RFA, that the lead agency submit a 
county commission resolution, authorizing submittal of the grant application and agreement to 
execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded. 

Fiscal Impact 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
  



AGENDA ITEM 8
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 2 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Commission approve the Resolution authorizing the submittal of the grant application to First 5 
California and agreement to execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded. 

 

 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
Tyson Jue      Kristin Spanos 
Chief of Staff       Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



AGENDA ITEM 8.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
FIRST 5 ALAMEDA COUNTY COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 

 
A resolution of the First 5 Alameda County Commission authorizing the submittal of the grant 
application to First 5 California and agreement to execute the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if 
awarded. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the First 5 Alameda County Commission authorizes Kristin Spanos, Chief 
Executive Officer to submit a grant application to First 5 California and agreement to execute 
the Grant Award Notification (GAN) if awarded. 
 
I hereby certify the foregoing resolution was introduced and read at the regular meeting of the 
First 5 Alameda County Commission on the 28th day of April 2022, and the resolution was duly 
adopted at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:     
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Herzfeld 
Chair 
First 5 Alameda County Commission 

 



AGENDA ITEM 9
 
 

 
1115 Atlantic Ave, Alameda, CA 94501 

p: 510.227.6900     f: 510.227.6901     www.First5Alameda.org 

 

 
To:  First 5 Alameda County Commission 
 
From:  Kristin Spanos, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Date:  April 28, 2022 
 
Subject: FY 2020-21 First 5 California Annual Report Approval 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Approve the First 5 California FY 2020-21 Annual Report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Proposition 10 legislation requires each county Commission to conduct a public hearing on the First 5 
California Annual Report.  The report is a compilation of data collected from counties, and from 
statewide initiatives.  Highlights from Alameda County can be found on page 34.  The report also 
summarizes county results by three focus areas: Child Health, Child Development and Family 
Functioning.  The report can be downloaded at:  
 
https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/pdf/about/budget_perf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual-Report-20-21.pdf 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact for this approval.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
To review and approve the FY 2020-21 First 5 California Annual Report. 
 
Submitted by:      Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
             
Lisa Forti      Kristin Spanos   
Director of Policy, Planning & Evaluation  Chief Executive Officer  
     
 



FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA

2020-21 
Annual Report 

Whole Child—Whole Family

Julia Otani
AGENDA ITEM 9.1





2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 1

First 5 California Commission Members	 3

Message from the Executive Director	 5

Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in                                 
Life and Thrive	 7

Proposition 10 and the Legacy of First 5 California	 7

Building Public Will and Investment	 7

Accountability: Funding and Audit Results	 8

Legislative and Budget Engagement	 9

COVID-19 Emergency Supplies Program	 12

First 5 County Commission Result Areas	 15

Four Result Areas	 15

Improved Family Functioning	 16

Improved Child Development	 17

Improved Child Health 	 17

Improved Systems of Care	 18

Populations Served	 18

Priority Area: Child Health	 19

Kit for New Parents	 19

Smoking and Vaping Cessation	 19

Home Visiting	 20

Funded Research: California Health Interview Survey	 22

Priority Area: Child Development	 24

IMPACT 2020	 24

Quality Counts California	 26

Small Population County Funding Augmentation	 27

Dual Language Learner Pilot	 28

California Family Book Distribution Partnership	 30

Educare	 30

Funded Research: California Emergency Child Care                                      
Bridge Program	 31

TABLE OF CONTENTS



2

Priority Area: Family Functioning	 32

Parent Website	 32

Social Media	 32

Talk. Read. Sing.® Success	 32

First 5 Express	 33

First 5 County Commission Highlights	 34

Appendix A: County Commission Revenues and Expenditures	 58

A1: Revenues by Source, FY 2020–21	 58

A2: Number of Services and Expenditures by Result Area 
and Service Type, FY 2020–21	 59

Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions	 60

Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served, FY 2020–21	 63

References	 64



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 3

FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA COMMISSION MEMBERS

Dr. Nadine Burke Harris, Chair
California Surgeon General, Appointed by the Governor

Molly Munger, Vice Chair
Appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly

Mayra Alvarez
Appointed by the Governor

Monica Fitzgerald
Appointed by the Senate Rules Committee

Shana Hazan
Appointed by the Senate Rules Committee

Elsa Mendoza Jimenez
Appointed by the Governor

Jackie Majors
Appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER:

Mark Ghaly
Secretary of the California Health and Human Services Agency

Kris Perry, Designee
Deputy Secretary of Early Childhood Development of the California 
Health and Human Services Agency

MEMBERS WITH TERMS ENDING IN 2020:

George Halvorson, Chair (Member until December 2020)
Appointed by the Governor

Muntu Davis (Member until December 2020)
Appointed by the Governor



4

02 Message from the Executive Director		

“Our commitment at First 5 California is that we never stop 
learning about, believing in, and supporting the  power of families 

and communities to change the world for the better.”



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 5

MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
As we continue to meet the challenges brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic, we have the 

opportunity to learn from the challenges we faced during this unique time in our history. The length 
and severity of the pandemic have had an impact on how people react to personal and environmental 
stress, especially the youngest among us. Children have gone through periods of isolation that previous 
generations never imagined.

Our lives and the lives of our children will be changed in a variety of ways from this experience. It is 
important to acknowledge this reality, learn from it, and to forge ahead together with new and innovative 
ways to tackle today’s challenges and to remain steadfast in our commitment to improving the lives of 
California’s children through the pandemic and beyond.

First 5 California is committed to the principles that have always been the 
core of our work in serving our state’s youngest children and their families. 
We will continue to partner with the Governor, the Legislature, First 5 county 
commissions, and other agencies and organizations that advocate for what is 
best for our kids and their future as we work toward implementing our 2019-24 
Strategic Plan, our newly adopted North Star Statement and Audacious Goal. 

First 5 California’s 2020-21 Annual Report highlights its accomplishments 
and collaborations at both state and local levels that help us continue to lay the 
foundational investments that help children thrive. These include:

•	 An additional $2 million investment in Fiscal Year 2020-21 to continue to 
support local mitigation efforts to address COVID-19

•	 A $103 million investment in IMPACT 2020 to continue innovative 
approaches to quality improvement and development systems for early 
learning and care providers

•	 One-time funding of $1.48 million for the California Family Book 
Distribution Partnership to provide counties with the option to receive 
children’s books or expand existing Dolly Parton Imagination Library 
programs

•	 Continuing to lead the way on research for dual language learners to 
study and find solutions on how best to serve them

•	 Our investment in Race, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion strategies alongside the First 5 Association to 
clearly identify steps towards a framework that centers equity in the work we do

Our commitment at First 5 California is that we never stop learning about, believing in, and supporting 
the power of families and communities to change the world for the better. Although progress has been 
made, there is still much work to do. I consider it a privilege and an honor to be part of this outstanding 
early learning and care community and its noble work dedicated to improving the lives of young children.

At a time when hope and inspiration are sometimes hard to find, it’s more important than ever to show 
kindness to one another, and to nurture and surround our children with love and support. It’s the greatest 
gift we can give.

CAMILLE MABEN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Whole Child—Whole Family

NORTH STAR

“Trauma-informed, healing-
centered, and culturally 
responsive systems 
promote the safe, stable, 
nurturing relationships and 
environments necessary to 
eliminate inequities and ensure 
healthy development for all 
children.” 

AUDACIOUS GOAL

“In a generation, all children 
0–5 will have the safe, stable, 
nurturing relationships and 
environments necessary to 
achieve healthy development.” 



6

Our Mission
Convene, partner in, support, and help lead the movement to create 
and implement a comprehensive, integrated, and coordinated system 

for California’s children prenatal through 5 and their families. 
Promote, support, and optimize early childhood development.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 7

Ensuring California’s Children Receive 
the Best Start in Life and Thrive
PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA

In 1998, California voters passed Proposition 10—the California Children and Families Act (the Act) 
—and declared the importance of investing in a better future for California’s youngest children. For 
over two decades, the California Children and Families Commission (First 5 California) has promoted 
standards of quality child care and invested in the development of programs and services emphasizing 
improvement in early education, child care, child health and development, research, and community 
awareness.

BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND 
INVESTMENT

First 5 California’s Children’s State Policy Agenda guides 
the agency’s efforts to advocate for the strong start all 
children deserve, with an emphasis on optimizing early 
childhood development and reducing childhood poverty for 
children prenatal through age 5 and their families. The Policy 
Agenda reflects First 5 California’s commitment in its Strategic 
Plan to participate and lead in the area of civic engagement, 
and the recognition of the Commission’s responsibility to the 
people of California to ensure the wise and effective use of 
public funds.

In its 2019–2024 Strategic Plan, First 5 California continues 
its commitment to engage and lead in building public 
will and investment to support the optimal wellbeing and 
development of children prenatal through age 5, and their 
families and communities. The Strategic Plan also recognizes 
First 5 California must engage in partnerships with First 5 
county commissions, stakeholders, and other allies from local 
to federal levels in order to be successful in institutionalizing 
efforts that advance child-centered policies and increase 
these crucial investments.

First 5 California serves as a leader and partner in state 
policy conversations, collaborating with First 5 county 
commissions, state agencies, stakeholders, and other 
advocates to convene, align, support, and strengthen 
statewide advocacy efforts to realize shared goals. Despite 
another unique year, First 5 California continued to expand 
its policy and advocacy engagement in fiscal year 2020–21, 
guided by its Policy Agenda. The Policy Agenda is focused 
on the following four areas the Commission identified as its 
top state policy priorities, including targeted goals within 

each priority area to achieve a seamless statewide system of 
integrated and comprehensive programs for children and 
families:

Resilient Families and Communities
•	 Support effective parent education and engagement, 

including parent engagement on child brain 
development, early literacy, and Talk. Read. Sing.®

•	 Support sustainability of Family Resource Centers and 
other comprehensive community hubs for integrated 
services for children and families

•	 Support multi-generational family strengthening 
policies including economic security, breastfeeding 
resources, paid family leave, and a fair work week, for 
California’s highest need families

•	 Expand access to voluntary home visiting programs
•	 Ensue digital equity across family serving systems, 

including access to broadband and the necessary 



8

devices that are important in bridging the gap in 
telehealth and early learning services

Child Health
•	 Protect children and families’ access to health care, 

and support coordination across health systems to 
ensure affordable and comprehensive health insurance 
coverage and services for every child and mother, 
prenatal through age 5

•	 Support and promote universal developmental, 
behavioral, and ACEs screenings, linkages to 
appropriate services, and seamless coordination across 
systems to improve outcomes for children and families 

Early Learning
•	 Expand access to safe, quality early care and education 

programs for children ages 0 to 3

•	 Support implementation of safe, high-quality universal 
preschool access for all low-income three- and four-
year-old children, and safe, high-quality transitional 
kindergarten and kindergarten statewide

•	 Define, measure, and achieve school readiness for all 
California children

•	 Support a healthy, safe, and high-quality early learning 
workforce through adequate compensation, stability, 
diversity, health and safety policies and supports, and 
robust professional development systems

•	 Promote statewide access to and participation in 
quality improvement systems

Revenue
•	 Promote inclusion of funding for children ages 0 to 5 

and their families in existing and new revenue policy 
proposals

•	 Promote regulation of tobacco-related products, 
including electronic cigarettes, and sustainability of 
licensing and enforcement programs

•	 Promote inclusion of funding for prenatal and 0 to 
3 two-generation prevention strategies in new tax 
funding structures 

ACCOUNTABILITY: FUNDING AND AUDIT 
RESULTS

Under the California Children and Families Act, the 
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration collects 
an excise tax levied on all tobacco products and deposits the 
revenue into the California Children and Families Trust Fund, 
allocating 20 percent to First 5 California and 80 percent to 
county commissions. In FY 2020–21, First 5 California received 
$81.3 million, and county commissions received $325.1 
million. This amount includes Proposition 10, Proposition 
56 Backfill, and interest earned on the California Children 
and Families Trust Fund. The amount of funding allocated 
annually to each county commission is based on the annual 
number of births in the county relative to the total number of 
births in the state. Each county must prepare an independent 
annual audit subject to guidelines prepared by the State 
Controller’s Office. The counties invest their dollars in locally 
designed programs, as well as in First 5 California’s statewide 
programs as match funding. First 5 county commissions use 
their funds to support local programs in four result areas:

•	 Improved Family Functioning
•	 Improved Child Development
•	 Improved Child Health
•	 Improved Systems of Care



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 9

First 5 California’s Program Management Division 
and Administrative Services, Evaluation, Executive 
Communications, External and Governmental Affairs, Fiscal 
Services, Contracts and Procurement, and Information 
Technology offices provide staff support for the following 
functions, operations, and systems:

•	 Fiscal management of the California Children and 
Families Trust Fund

•	 Tax revenue disbursements to county commissions
•	 Audits and annual fiscal reports
•	 Local agreement and program disbursement 

management
•	 Public education and outreach
•	 Evaluation of First 5 California programs
•	 Procurement and contract management
•	 Workforce recruitment and development
•	 Information technology
•	 Business services
•	 Legislative advocacy efforts
The administration of these and other programs is 

consistent with all applicable State and Federal laws, rules, 
and regulations. The State Controller’s Office conducts an 
annual review of the 58 county commissions’ independent 
audits. In November 2021, the Controller published its review 
of the counties’ audits for FY 2019–20, summarizing several 
findings contained in the local audits, but did not deem any 
of them significant enough to withhold funding. Audits can  
be viewed on First 5 California’s website at https://www.ccfc.
ca.gov/about/budget.html.  

LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET 
ENGAGEMENT

The year 2021 marked another unprecedented year 
of policymaking as the COVID-19 pandemic continued 
to impact all aspects of California legislative, budgetary, 
and administrative functions. Amid Capitol closures and a 
continued shift to mostly virtual operations, advocacy once 
again looked different this year. Partnerships and coalition 
building proved critical to elevate priorities at a time of 
immense need across the board. Through shared advocacy 
efforts between First 5 California and its early childhood 
partners, as well as leaders in the State Legislature and 
Congress, the early childhood field was able to secure historic 
budget investments for children and families, capitalizing on 
billions of dollars in federal aid and a once-in-a-generation 
surplus, to make transformative change in family-serving 
systems. 

The state saw major wins in the First 5 California priority 
area of early learning, many of which were years and decades 
in the making. Most notably, child care rate increases and 
rate reform. In the hope of restoring and supporting the early 
care and education workforce and mixed delivery system 
coming out of the pandemic, the final budget contains a 
number of positive changes to provider reimbursement rates. 
Additionally, the budget provides a framework for rate reform 
policy for all child care programs, which First 5 California has 
championed for the last several years. The Legislature was 
critical in passing these reforms, through which we can: 1) 
ensure providers and programs are properly compensated for 
the cost of providing care, 2) ensure rates are responsive to 
the state’s economic diversity and varying quality standards 
and regulations, and 3) incentivize participation in quality 
improvement efforts as a means to improve child outcomes. 

To support a whole-child, whole-family approach, a 
number of key investments were made in child health and 
family strengthening policies. The creation of a Children and 
Youth Behavioral Health Initiative to reimagine mental and 
behavioral health supports for individuals ages 0–25 will be 
central in how children’s declining mental and behavioral 
health coming out of the pandemic is addressed. In addition, 
a variety of multi-generational economic security policies 
were passed, including a second round of financial supports 
through the Golden State Stimulus program, an increase 
in the CalWORKs maximum aid payment, and creation of a 
statewide Universal Basic Income pilot, which together have 
the opportunity to change the financial trajectory of the next 
generation of children. A full summary of progress made in 
First 5 California’s 2021 Children’s Policy Agenda priorities can 
be found on page 10. 

https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/about/budget.html
https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/about/budget.html


10

Vision: California’s children receive the best possible start in life and thrive.

2021 CHILDREN’S POLICY AGENDA PROGRESS UPDATE
First 5 California will advocate for the strong start all children deserve by prioritizing children prenatal through age 5 and 
families from historically marginalized communities, to optimize early childhood development, reduce childhood poverty, and 
increase learning readiness. First 5 California’s efforts will focus on addressing the needs of struggling children and families, 
recognizing the disproportionate impact the COVID-19 pandemic and systemic racism have had on low-income communities 
and communities of color.  

RESILIENT FAMILIES AND COMMUNITIES

Support effective parent education 
and engagement, including parent 
engagement on child brain development, 
early literacy, and Talk. Read. Sing.®

Progress Made: 
•	 $5 million for California Department of Public Health grants for local agencies to use 

evidence-based approaches to distribute books to children in the Women, Infants and 
Children (WIC) program  

•	 State Superintendent of Public Instruction Thurmond established a prenatal to 3rd grade 
literacy task force to ensure every California student learns to read by 3rd grade by 2026, 
which First 5 CA is co-chairing.

Support sustainability of Family 
Resource Centers and other 
comprehensive community hubs for 
integrated services for children and 
families.

Progress Made: 
•	 Statewide expansion of and infrastructure to support the implementation and use of 

the community school model to all schools in communities with high levels of poverty 
(2021–22 Budget).

Support multi-generational family 
strengthening policies including 
economic security, breastfeeding 
resources, paid family leave, and a fair 
work week, for California’s highest need 
families.

Progress Made: 
•	 An extension of the current 60 percent to 70 percent wage replacement rate for paid 

family leave until the end of 2022 (2021 –22 Budget).
•	 Extend Medi-Cal eligibility for post-partum individuals from 60 days to 12 months 

(2021–22 Budget).
•	 Creation of a statewide Universal Basic Income pilot, with language emphasizing the 

need to specifically support foster youth and pregnant women as part of the pilot 
(2021–22 Budget).

•	 An increase in the maximum level of CalWORKs cash grants by 5.3 percent and monthly 
CalWORKs pregnancy supplement aid from $47 to $100 (2021–22 Budget).

•	 A second round of direct financial supports through the Golden State Stimulus program, 
with additional funds for families with young children and ITIN filers (2021–22 Budget).

•	 Legal aid funding to help renters and homeowners avoid eviction and foreclosure 
(2021–22 Budget).

Expand access to voluntary home visit 
programs.

Progress Made: 
•	 $69.1 million for CalWORKs Home Visiting (2021–22 Budget).

Ensure digital equity across family 
serving systems, including access to 
broadband and the necessary devices 
that are important in bridging the gap in 
telehealth and early learning services.

Progress Made:
•	 $6 billion to construct broadband infrastructure and improve access to broadband 

services throughout the state, including $3.75 billion for “middle-mile” infrastructure in 
unserved communities (2021–22 Budget).

•	 Require Caltrans, as part of projects that are located in priority areas, to install 
broadband conduit capable of supporting fiber optic communication cables (AB 41, 
Wood).

•	 Align California law with federal law regarding approval of wireless telecommunications 
applications and provide additional clarity that will allow applicants to deploy 
communications technology (AB 537, Quirk).

CHILD HEALTH

Protect children and families’ access to 
health care, and support coordination 
across health systems to ensure 
affordable and comprehensive health 
insurance coverage and services for 
every child and mother, prenatal through 
age 5.

Progress Made: 
•	 Extend pandemic related telehealth flexibilities through December 31, 2022 (2021–22 

Budget).
•	 Creation of a Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative to reimagine mental and 

behavioral health supports for individuals ages 0-25 (2021–22 Budget).
•	 $800 million to support the addition of dyadic care services as a Medi-Cal benefit 

(2021–22 Budget).
•	 Annual funding to add Doula services as a covered benefit in the Medi-Cal program, and 

to add Community Health Workers to the class of health workers who are able to provide 
benefits and services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries (2021–22 Budget).

•	 Improve data collection and research on socioeconomic factors that contribute to 
negative birth outcomes to close racial disparities in maternal and infant mortality and 
morbidity and improve perinatal outcomes (SB 65, Skinner).



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 11

Support and promote universal 
developmental, behavioral, and ACEs 
screenings, linkages to appropriate 
services, and seamless coordination 
across systems to improve outcomes for 
children and families.

Progress Made: 
•	 $25 million to support All Children Thrive, a statewide program to mitigate the effects of 

ACEs on children (2021–22 Budget).
•	 $25.5 million for public education on ACEs and trauma (2021–22 Budget).
•	 Eliminate the suspension of Proposition 56 supplemental payments, which will continue 

to support incentive payments to providers for conducting development screens and 
screenings (2021–22 Budget). 

•	 Require health care service plans and health insurance policies that provide coverage for 
pediatric services and preventive care to include coverage for ACEs screenings (SB 428, 
Hurtado).

EARLY LEARNING

Expand access to safe, quality early care 
and education programs for children 
ages 0 to 3.

Progress Made:
•	 200,000 new child care spaces in Alternative Payment, General Child Care, Migrant 

Child Care, and bridge program for foster children program (2021–22 Budget).
•	 Supported legislation requiring Dual Language Learner identification, AB 1363, with 

partners Early Edge and the Advancement Project informed by DLL Pilot Study findings. 
Legislation was enacted October 2021.

Support implementation of safe, 
high-quality universal preschool 
access for all low-income three- and 
four-year-old children, and safe, high-
quality transitional kindergarten and 
kindergarten state-wide.

Progress Made: 
•	 Adopt Universal Transitional Kindergarten as part of a mixed delivery system, phasing in 

expanded age eligibility to full implementation by 2025–26 (2021–22 Budget). 

Define, measure, and achieve school 
readiness for all California children.

Progress Made: 
•	 While there were no bills specific to school readiness in 2021, the adoption of Universal 

Transitional Kindergarten impacts the school readiness conversation. Additionally, 
$4.8 million was allocated for planning and initial implementation of a child care data 
system, and requirements were made for a unique child identifier compatible with the 
Cradle to Career data system (2021–22 Budget). First 5 CA also continues Quality Counts 
California implementation to raise the quality of early learning and care and improve 
school readiness.

Support a healthy, safe, and high-
quality early learning workforce through 
adequate compensation, stability, 
diversity, health and safety policies 
and supports, and robust professional 
development systems.

Progress Made: 
•	 An increase in provider reimbursement rates to 75 percent of the 2018 regional market 

rate survey, and funding to bring all providers to 85 percent of the 2018 regional market 
rate survey for the next two years (2021–22 Budget).

•	 Ratify the Child Care Providers United contracts which include rate increases, provider 
stipends and supplemental payments, pandemic flexibilities, and mental health 
supports (2021–22 Budget).

•	 Provide a framework for rate reform policy for all child care programs, which will seek to 
create set rate targets for a single rate system beginning in 2023 (2021–22 Budget).

Promote statewide access to and 
participation in quality improvement 
systems.

Progress Made: 
•	 $20 million to improve equity in our quality systems (2021–22 Budget).

REVENUE

Promote inclusion of funding for 
children ages 0 to 5 and their families 
in existing and new revenue policy 
proposals.

Progress Made: 
•	 Young children and families were included in numerous programs funded with federal 

CARES Act and American Rescue Plan Act dollars, as well as state stimulus funding 
and new 0 to 5 investments via the Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative, 
Community Schools, etc. However, there were no significant state revenue proposals 
during the 2021 legislative year.

Promote regulation of tobacco-related 
products, including electronic cigarettes, 
and sustainability of licensing and 
enforcement programs.

Progress Made: 
•	 Address the disparity in taxation rates between vape products and traditional tobacco 

products by levying an additional 12.5 percent tax on vaping products (SB 395, 
Caballero).

Promote inclusion of funding for 
prenatal and 0 to 3 two-generation 
prevention strategies in  
new tax funding structures.

Progress Made: 
•	 Create parity between the sale of vape products and traditional tobacco products.



12

With the year 2021’s historic investments in California’s 
young children and families, and momentum in Washington, 
D.C. for bold reforms and transformative policies, 2022 
promises to be another year full of opportunity. First 5 
California is committed to supporting children, families, and 
providers through the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond, 
while continuing to build on state and federal advocacy 
achievements. First 5 California will work to strengthen 
its partnerships with stakeholders and its efforts to build 
policymakers’ knowledge base and investment in shared 
priorities. Capitalizing on the deep commitment to early 
childhood wellbeing from state and federal leaders, First 5 
California staff and partners will continue to work with the 
Administration, Legislature, State Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, Department of Social Services, Department of 
Education, Early Childhood Policy Council, and others. These 
entities work together to build and implement a road map for 
building stronger, integrated, more equitable early childhood 
systems for all California children, and determine how best to 
invest scarce resources in this crucial foundation for lifelong 
success. In doing so, the Commission will build on this year’s 
successes and continue working toward the underlying 
Strategic Plan, North Star, and Audacious Goal.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) 

declared COVID-19 a pandemic with a sustained risk of global 
spread. In response, the Governor’s Proclamation of a State 
Emergency and Executive Order, N-25-20, was issued on 
March 12, 2020.

COVID-19 is having a devastating effect on the world, 
impacting the lives of every community and individual 
in some way, shape, or form. Governor Newsom was, and 
continues to be, at the forefront of addressing this pandemic. 
Despite the Governor’s efforts, Californians still struggle with 
economic, emotional, and physical impacts of the virus.

In particular, children and families are experiencing a 
once in a generation health crisis that requires extreme 
caution to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus and 
prevent infecting large portions of the population. Child care 
programs and providers have been especially hard hit by 
closures and dwindling child care services.

To assess COVID-19’s impact, First 5 California worked with 
the Governor’s Office, the First 5 Association, and child care 
advocates to survey counties regarding what supplies were 
most needed. Survey results indicated basic necessities such 
as diapers, baby wipes, and hand soap were in high demand.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 13

In April 2020, the First 5 California Commission took 
action to address the pandemic and approved $4 million to 
provide emergency support to local communities around 
the state grappling with COVID-19. This effort supplemented 
other supply acquisition efforts around the state and was 
coordinated to maximize the various funding sources 
to support the purchase of emergency supplies and not 
duplicate efforts. The goal was to identify and support priority 
populations, including child care providers serving children 
of essential workers and identified high needs families in local 
First 5 communities.

To that end, First 5 California began the development 
of a contract with SupplyBank.org, a 501(3) (c) non-profit 
organization and systems change agency operating similar 
to a food bank, but for basic needs. In partnership with 
SupplyBank.org and the First 5 Association, First 5 California 
conducted a second assessment to further quantify the needs 
of child care providers remaining open for the children of 
essential personnel and the broader community.

The Commission subsequently approved an additional $1 
million during the May 2020 Commission meeting in order to 
continue supporting the local mitigation efforts to address 
COVID-19. Beginning in Fiscal Year 2020–21, SupplyBank.
org worked directly with each First 5 county commission to 
develop a county-specific distribution, storage, and delivery 
plan. This plan included distribution to several local partner 
agencies.

Local partner types included:
•	 Family Resource Centers
•	 Women, Infants, and Children Program
•	 Homeless and domestic violence shelters
•	 Local First 5-run centers
•	 Child care providers
•	 Other nonprofit and agency partners
Through the efforts of this program, SupplyBank.org and 

local partners were able to leverage additional emergency 
supplies through donations and other support to maximize 
on the original investment from First 5 California. SupplyBank.
org and the First 5 Association gathered statewide data 
to illustrate the full scope of this distribution network. 
Through Fiscal Year 2020–21, SupplyBank.org collectively 
distributed the following emergency supplies to every county 
throughout the state:

•	 11 million 3-ply adult and child masks
•	 150,000 washable face masks
•	 33,940 KN95 masks
•	 12 million diapers

•	 20.4 million baby wipes
•	 20,964 baby formula
•	 475,296 feminine hygiene products
•	 206,160 units of all-purpose cleaner and disinfectant
•	 333,286 units of hand sanitizer and hand soap
•	 5 million surgical gloves
•	 11,000 Infrared thermometers
•	 6,500 digital thermometers
•	 63,000 children’s books
As the initial investment and contract with SupplyBank.org 

sunset on February 28, 2021, First 5 California staff went to 
the Commission in March 2021 to recommend an additional 
investment of $2 million to continue pandemic mitigation 
efforts through emergency supplies distribution. With the 
approval from the Commission, First 5 California staff began 
developing another contract with SupplyBank.org and 
working with the First 5 Association to identify local needs for 
emergency supply efforts beginning in Fiscal Year 2021–22. 
Data about the outcomes of the additional investment and 
who it targeted will be provided in the FY 2021–22 Annual 
Report.



14



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 15

First 5 County Commission 
Program Result Areas

FOUR RESULT AREAS
For annual reporting, First 5 California and First 5 county 

commissions track progress in four result areas to inform 
evidence-based funding decisions, program planning, and 
policies:

•	 Improved Family Functioning
•	 Improved Child Development
•	 Improved Child Health
•	 Improved Systems of Care
These result areas comprise a framework for reporting 

early childhood investments and provide an overview of the 
number, type, and cost of services to children and adults. 
Stakeholders can use this information to assess statewide 
resource allocation and impact of First 5 county commissions.

Exhibit 1 contains the total numbers of services provided 
to children ages birth to 5 and adults (including primary 
caregivers and providers) for Improved Family Functioning, 
Improved Child Development, and Improved Child Health. 
During FY 2020–21, First 5 county commissions provided a 
total of 983,820 child services and 732,917 adult services. The 
distribution of expenditures in these three result areas totals 
$283 million.

The result area, Improved Systems of Care, with 
expenditures of $103 million, differs from the others. 
It consists of programs and initiatives for system-wide 
structural supports for efforts within the other three 
result areas. The four result areas combined show total 
expenditures of $386 million.

589,252 

206,660 

187,908 

80,944 

516,594 

135,379 

Child Development

Family Functioning

Child Health

Exhibit 1: Total Number of Services Provided 
to Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in FY 2020–21 
Across Result Areas 

* Totals for Adults include both Primary Caregiver and Provider counts

Adults Children

Exhibit 2: Total Expenditures for Children 
Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in FY 2020–21 
by Result Area

Improved Child Health

Improved Family
Functioning 

Improved Child 
Development 

40%

33%

27%

*Adults include both Primary Caregivers and Providers
Source: County Revenue and Expenditure Summary, December 2021



16

First 5 county commissions are required to report to First 
5 California revenues, expenditures, and fund balances. In 
collaboration with the First 5 Association, First 5 California 
annually develops and adopts annual reporting guidelines 
to standardize data collection. County commission revenues 
are reported in Appendix A1. For expenditures, county 
commission fiscal and service data are aggregated to the 
statewide level under four result areas (Appendix A2) using 
specific definitions for each result area with service category 
detail (Appendix B). The four result areas are listed below.

IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
Family Functioning includes the categories Family 

Literacy and Book Programs, General Family Support, and 
Intensive Family Support. Services include instruction on 
general parenting topics, support for basic family needs and 
case management, parent education and literacy, referrals 
to community resources, and assistance for parents and 
families; and support to schools and educational institutions, 
nonprofit community- based agencies, government agencies, 
and private institutions.

In FY 2020–21, First 5 county commissions provided a 
total of 206,660 services to improve family functioning for 
children ages birth to 5, with 87,033 child services in Family 
Literacy and Book Programs, 107,736 child services in General 
Family Support and 11,891 child services in Intensive Family 
Support.

First 5 county commissions provided a total of 516,594 
services to adults (parents, guardians, primary caregivers, 
relatives, and providers), with 204,296 adult services in 
Family Literacy and Book Programs, 298,905 adult services in 

General Family Support and 13,393 adult services in Intensive 
Family Support. Exhibit 3 displays the numbers of services 
provided.

First 5 county commissions expended $94 million to 
improve Family Functioning, with 6 percent of expenditures 
in Family Literacy and Book Programs, 71 percent of 
expenditures in General Family Support, and 23 percent of 
expenditures in Intensive Family Support. Exhibit 4 shows the 
distribution of expenditures by service category.

6%

23%

Exhibit 4: Family Functioning–Distribution of 
Expenditures for Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* 
in FY 2020–21 by Service

General Family Support

71%

*Adults include both Primary Caregivers and Providers
Source: County Revenue and Expenditure Summary, December 2021

Intensive 
Family Support

Family Literacy
and Book 
Programs

87,033

107,736 

11,891 

204,296 

298,028 

13,393 

Family Literacy and Book Programs

General Family Support

Intensive Family Support

Exhibit 3: Family Functioning—Total Numbers of 
Services Provided to Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* 
in FY 2020–21 by Service 

* Totals for Adults include both Primary Caregiver and Provider counts

Adults Children



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 17

IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
Child Development includes the categories Early Learning 

Program Direct Costs and Quality Early Learning Supports. 
Programs include professional development for educators, 
high-quality preschool, services for diverse populations, and 
school readiness.

In FY 2020–21, First 5 county commissions delivered 
589,252 child development services to children ages birth 
to 5, with 515,997 child services in Early Learning Program 
Direct Costs and 73,255 child services in Quality Early 
Learning Supports.

First 5 county commissions provided 80,944 services to 
adults (parents, guardians, primary caregivers, relatives, 
and providers), with 6,843 adult services in Early Learning 
Program Direct Costs and 74,101 adult services in Quality 
Early Learning Supports. Exhibit 5 displays the numbers of 
services provided.

In FY 2020–21, county commissions expended $77 
million to improve Child Development, with 21 percent of 
expenditures in Early Learning Program Direct Costs and 79 
percent of expenditures in Quality Early Learning Supports.

IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH
First 5 county commissions fund a variety of Child Health 

services promoting identification, treatment, and elimination 
of risks that threaten health and may cause developmental 
delays and disabilities. First 5 Child Health services are 
far-ranging and include the categories Early Intervention, 
General Health Education and Promotion, Oral Health 
Education and Treatment, Perinatal and Early Childhood 
Home Visiting, and Prenatal and Infant/Toddler Pediatric 
Support.  

In FY 2020–21, First 5 county commissions provided a total 
of 187,908 services to children ages birth to 5, with 74,058 
child services in Early Intervention, 18,823 child services 
in General Health Education and Promotion, 48,454 child 
services in Oral Health Education and Treatment, 38,800 child 
services in Perinatal and Early Childhood Home Visiting, and 
7,773 child services in Prenatal and Infant/Toddler Pediatric 
Support.

First 5 county commissions provided 135,379 services to 
adults (parents, guardians, primary caregivers, relatives, and 
providers), with 37,058 adult services in Early Intervention, 
20,622 adult services in General Health Education and 
Promotion, 12,752 adult services in Oral Health Education 
and Treatment, 61,231 adult services in Perinatal and Early 
Childhood Home Visiting, and 3,716 adult services in Prenatal 
and Infant/Toddler Pediatric Support. 

515,997

73,255

6,843

74,101

Early Learning Program Direct Costs

Quality Early Learning Supports

* Totals for Adults include both Primary Caregiver and Provider counts

Exhibit 5: Child Development—Total Number of Services 
Provided to Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in FY 2020–21 
By Service

Adults Children

Exhibit 6: Child Development—Distribution of Expenditures for 
Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in FY 2020–21 by Service

Quality Early
Learning 
Supports 

*Adults include both Primary Caregivers and Providers
Source: County Revenue and Expenditure Summary, December 2021

79% 21%
Early Learning

Programs 

18,823 

48,454 

38,800 

7,773 

37,058 

20,622 

12,752 

61,231 

3,716 

Early Intervention

General Health Education and Promotion

Oral Health Education and Treatment

Perinatal and Early Childhood Home Visiting

Prenatal and Infant/Toddler Pediatric Support

Exhibit 7: Child Health—Total Number of Services 
Provided to Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in 
FY 2020–21 By Service 

*Adults include both Primary Caregiver and Provider counts

74,058

Adults Children



18

In FY 2020–21, county commissions expended $112 
million to improve Child Health, with 30 percent of 
expenditures in Early Intervention, 6 percent of expenditures 
in General Health Education and Promotion, 8 percent of 
expenditures in Oral Health Education and Treatment, 52 
percent of expenditures in Perinatal and Early Childhood 
Home Visiting, and 3 percent of expenditures in Prenatal and 
Infant/Toddler Pediatric Support. 

IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
Systems of Care addresses system-wide structural 

supports as county commissions focus efforts within the 
result areas of Family Functioning, Child Development, 
and Child Health. For example, interagency collaboration 
allows coordinated wrap-around efforts from multiple 
organizations providing focused client services. Since this 
result is at a systems level, counties do not report numbers 
of children and adults served. Expenditure data indicate 
that for FY 2020–21, county commissions expended $103 
million to improve Systems of Care, with 11 percent focused 
on Emergency and Disaster Relief, 43 percent on Policy and 
Public Advocacy, and 45 percent of expenditures toward 
Systems Building.

POPULATIONS SERVED
County commissions served a diversity of populations by 

age, race/ethnicity, and language (Appendix C). Statewide, 
502,638 children were served by county commission 
programs. The total of 778,341 adults served included 
primary caregivers such as parents and other family members 
(703,802) and service providers (74,539).

By age, 37 percent of children served were under 3 years 
old, 39 percent were ages 3 through 5 years old, and 24 
percent were of unknown age.

By race/ethnicity, children served included Hispanic or 
Latino as the largest group (41 percent), followed by White 
(14 percent), Asian (6 percent), Black or African American (4 
percent), Other (3 percent), Two or More Races (3 percent), 
Alaska Native or American Indian (less than 1 percent), 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander (less than 1 percent) and 
unknown race/ethnicity (28 percent).

With respect to primary language of children served, 
the two largest groups served were speakers of English (42 
percent) and Spanish (25 percent), followed by speakers of 
Asian languages (Vietnamese, Cantonese, Mandarin, Korean, 
3 percent) and language unknown (27 percent).

Oral Health 
Education and

Treatment 

Prenatal and 
Infant/Toddler 

Pediatric Support  

52% 30%

3%6%8%

*Adults include both Primary Caregivers and Providers

Exhibit 8: Child Health— Distribution of Expenditures for 
Children Ages 0 to 5 and Adults* in FY 2020–21 by Service

Perinatal and Early 
Childhood 

Home Visiting Early 
Intervention

General Health 
Education and 

Promotion 

Emergency and 
Disaster Relief

45%
11%

Source: County Revenue and Expenditure Summary, December 2021

Exhibit 9: Systems of Care—Distribution of
Expenditures in FY 2020–21 by Service

Systems 
Building

44%
Policy and Public

Advocacy

33%



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 19

Priority Area: Child Health

KIT FOR NEW PARENTS
The award-winning Kit for New Parents targets hard-to-

reach and low-income families, providing key information 
and resources for first-time parents, grandparents, and 
caregivers. The Kit is a foundational resource to support 
parents with the most important job anyone can have: 
parenting. 

Since 2001, First 5 California has distributed the Kit free-of-
charge to local hospitals, physicians, and community groups 
to reach new parents. Kits are available in English, Spanish, 
Chinese, Korean, and Vietnamese. 

The Kit includes a health handbook; a baby board book; 
a Women, Infants, and Children mobile website flyer; a 
poison control brochure and magnet; and other important 
information on paid family leave, literacy, and early learning. 

The Kit also features the California Parent Guide. Written in 
collaboration with UC Berkeley’s Health Research for Action, 
the Guide contains tips for parents on:

•	 Keeping children healthy and safe (includes COVID-19 
safety information) 

•	 Tracking developmental milestones 
•	 Handling emotional and behavioral challenges 
•	 Finding quality childcare 

Parents can also access the Guide online at:
https://parentguide.first5california.com/en-US (English)
https://parentguide.first5california.com/es-MX (Spanish)
First 5 county commissions are encouraged to add local 

references and resources to the Kit to help inform parents 
about services in their own communities.

To date, over 5 million Kits have been distributed 
throughout California since 2001, with 95,000 distributed in 
Fiscal Year 2020–21 alone.

Parents can order the Kit directly by visiting First 5 
California’s ordering portal at https://first5parentingkits.com.

SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
Cigarette smoking among adults in California has 

decreased from 16.5% in 2003 to a new low of 6.5% in 2020.1 

Though smoking prevalence has decreased in California 
overall, smoking remains high among low-income families 
and poses health risks to the most vulnerable children. 
Inequities continue between demographic groups as 
smoking prevalence becomes concentrated among certain 
ethnic minorities and low-income families. As a result, 
existing health disparities among these children can be 
exacerbated when exposed to nicotine, tobacco smoke, 
and e-cigarette (vape) liquid and aerosol.2 For women, 
smoking while pregnant dramatically increases the risk of 
health problems such as preterm birth, low birth weight, 
birth defects, and damage to a developing baby’s brain and 
lungs. Pregnant women who do not smoke but are exposed 
to secondhand smoke also face increased risk of stillbirth.3 
Additionally, newborns exposed to secondhand smoke 
are at elevated risk for Sudden Infant Death Syndrome and 
young children who are exposed are more likely to have ear 
infections, breathing problems, and learning disabilities. 

E-cigarette use is on the rise, especially in young adults, 
up from 10.1% in 2017 to 14.9% in 2018 among those 18–25 
years old.4 The increasing use of e-cigarettes is problematic 
since vaping while pregnant and secondhand exposure 
after birth can expose a developing child to nicotine and 
other toxins. Thirdhand exposure to surfaces in rooms where 
someone smoked or vaped can also be a health hazard for 
children.  

https://parentguide.first5california.com/en-US/
https://parentguide.first5california.com/es-MX/
https://first5parentingkits.com/


20

Helpline Services
First 5 California has funded the California 

Smokers’ Helpline (Helpline) since 2001 to help 
parents and caregivers of young children quit 
smoking, educate the public about the harms 
of tobacco use, and reduce the likelihood that 
babies and young children will develop tobacco-
related health problems. In 2018, Helpline 
services expanded to include vaping because 
of the rise in e-cigarette use. In FY 2020–21, 
the Quitline provided services to 2,411 tobacco 
users who were either pregnant, or parents or 
caregivers of children ages birth to 5; of those, 
317 used e-cigarettes (vapes).  

The Helpline provides one-on-one telephone counseling 
for smokers, vapers, and for non-tobacco using proxies (i.e., 
family members or friends calling on behalf of smokers 
or vape users). Helpline services are available in English 
(1-800-NO-BUTTS for smokers, 1-844-8-NO-VAPE for vape 
users), Spanish (1-800-45-NO-FUME for smokers and vape 
users) and through the Asian Smokers’ Quitline (https://
www.asiansmokersquitline.org/) in Chinese (Cantonese & 
Mandarin) (1-800-838-8917),  Korean (1-800-556-5564), and 
Vietnamese (1-800-778-8440). Helpline services also include:

•	 Automated text, chat, and mobile apps to engage 
people in the process of quitting who might not be 
ready to take the step to work one-on-one with a 
counselor

•	 Counseling services that utilize scientifically validated 
protocols shown to double the odds of callers quitting 
tobacco and vaping

•	 Self-help materials, referrals to local resources, and free 
nicotine patches (for medically eligible tobacco users), 
sent directly to requesters’ homes 

•	 Counseling services for vaping cessation that address 
misunderstandings about health risks associated with 
vaping, difficulty assessing nicotine consumption, and 
challenges in identifying triggers 

•	 Information on the www.nobutts.org website and 
downloadable fact sheets about the dangers of 
secondhand smoke, why “Kids and Vapes Don’t Mix,” 
how to stay smoke-free with a new baby, the health 
consequences of exposing young children to e-liquid 
and vape aerosol, and the relationship between 
smoking/vaping and COVID-19 

Rebrand to Broaden Reach 
Helpline services have evolved over the years to be 

responsive to the rise of vaping and to changes in the way 
people seek help. In FY 2020–21, the groundwork was set 
to launch a more inclusive name that extends to vape users 
and non-tobacco using proxies as well as the more expansive 
forms of intervention services. In fall 2021, the California 
Smokers’ Helpline was rebranded as Kick It California. Along 
with new phone numbers (1-800-300-8086 for English and 
1-800-600-8191 for Spanish), there is a new more interactive 
and user-friendly website (www.kickitca.org). The website 
was designed to appeal to smokers but also those who vape 
or chew tobacco, or those who just want to help others to 
quit. It provides a range of services from interactive self-
guided quitting to chatting or talking with a quit coach for 
individualized care.   

HOME VISITING
Home visiting is a primary prevention strategy for inter-

generational support for pregnant women and families with 
children in the first few years of life. During the past decade, 
the home visiting landscape in California has become more 
complex as federal, state, and local funding is invested in 
home visiting services. Many First 5 county commissions 
support and fund home visiting. The California Department 
of Public Health implemented the California Home Visiting 
Program following passage of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act of 2010 that established the federal 
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 
with funds for evidence-based home visiting in every state. 
Additionally, the California Legislature passed Assembly Bill 
1811 (Chapter 35, Statutes of 2018), appropriating funding 
for implementation of the California Home Visiting Program 
under the CalWORKs program effective January 1, 2019. 

https://www.asiansmokersquitline.org/
https://www.asiansmokersquitline.org/
http://www.nobutts.org
http://www.kickitca.org


2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 21

Research shows intervening as early as possible to 
mitigate the impacts of poverty has the greatest likelihood of 
improving child outcomes. Early childhood home visiting and 
out-of-home prenatal/pediatric supports have proven to help 
vulnerable children and families overcome barriers to health 
and well-being. Yet in California, not all families who are 
eligible and interested have access to voluntary home visiting 
or prenatal/pediatric support services. Only 10 to 20 percent 
of at-risk families who would likely benefit from home visiting 
receive these services.

Recognizing effective home visiting expansion requires an 
infrastructure to recruit and retain a well-qualified workforce 
and coordination across home visiting programs. In 2019, the 
First 5 California Commission authorized two investments to 
promote effective home visiting expansion and coordination:   

1.	 Home Visiting Workforce Study. Effectiveness of 
home visiting relies upon a well-qualified, culturally 
responsive workforce. In July 2019, the Commission 
authorized $2 million through January 2022 for a 
study to understand the demographics, training, 
retention, and well-being of the existing California 
home visiting workforce, map the workforce to the 
demographics of vulnerable families, and provide 
policy recommendations for workforce infrastructure 
and policy. In FY 2020–21, Child Trends conducted 
interviews with over 80 home visiting staff and 
received survey responses from more than 900 home 
visitors representing 171 programs in 48 counties, 
and launched a home visiting supply and demand 
map to inform policymakers and stakeholders about 
service levels and gaps. The study is guided by a Core 
Advisory Group, which includes representatives from 
First 5 county commissions and home visiting partners, 
California Departments of Social Services and Public 
Health, and state policy leaders. 

Child Trends published their findings in March 2021, 
including analysis of how the COVID-19 pandemic 
impacted home visiting programs, staff, and service 
delivery:  
•	 More than 40 percent of home visiting staff are new 

to the field or new to their positions within the last 
three years.

•	 Most home visitors hold at least a bachelors’ degree 
and their most common fields of study include 
child development, early childhood education, 
psychology, social work, and nursing.

•	 Two-thirds (66 percent) of the workforce speaks 
Spanish and identifies as Hispanic or Latinx. Most (90 

percent) reported sharing racial, ethnic, or cultural 
traits with at least some of the families they serve. 

•	 The mental health and well-being of home visiting 
staff is a concern; one-quarter of home visitors and 
15 percent of supervisors reported experiencing 
depressive symptoms above the clinical cutoff. 
Personal and work-related stressors related to the 
pandemic are likely contributing factors. Family 
needs changed during the pandemic. More families 
had basic needs such as diapers or food, parenting 
supports, and mental health services.

•	 Factors contributing to retention of the home 
visiting workforce include longevity in the 
field, training on virtual home visiting, lack of 
discrimination by families or in the workplace, 
satisfaction with on-the-job stress, and salary.
The home visiting workforce study will continue 

during 2021–22 with interviews and additional data 
collection. It will conclude in January 2022 with policy 
recommendations.

2.	 Home Visiting Coordination Funding. Most California 
counties are implementing at least one home 
visiting program through First 5 county commission 
investments, Maternal Infant and Early Childhood 



22

Home Visiting, or CalWORKS (Home Visiting Program) 
funding. Although most counties offer home visiting 
to families, counties report being at different stages of 
service coordination. For most, home visiting programs 
operate as separate and distinct programs even while 
sharing similar goals, principles, and desired outcomes. 
In October 2019, the Commission authorized $24 
million through June 2025 to promote home visiting 
coordination at the local level. The funding is being 
implemented in two stages. Stage one includes 
approximately $9.5 million through June 2022 to 
support county coordination and technical assistance 
to achieve coordination goals. Priorities for stage two 
and the remaining $14.5 million will be determined 
based on what is learned from stage one. Stage two will 
be implemented between FYs 2022–23 and 2024–25. 
Specifically: 
•	 In fall 2021, F5CA funded 50 counties interested 

in improving coordination across home visiting 
programs and integrating home visiting into 
other child- and family-serving systems. Ensuring 
a coordinated home visiting and family support 
system became more important than ever to meet 
family needs during the pandemic to help families 
recover as the pandemic ran its course. 

•	 First 5 California contracted with James Bell 
Associates to host peer-learning opportunities, 
offer monthly group technical assistance sessions 
on topics of interest to the counties, provide 
individualized support, and connect implementers 
to key resources for supporting coordination efforts. 

•	 For participating counties, the first coordination 
activity was the completion of an environmental 
scan to understand the local landscape of 

families who could benefit from home visiting 
and identify existing and potential partners who 
could provide critical services to support children 
and their parents/caregivers. This information laid 
the groundwork for determining how to build or 
strengthen coordination to reach more families and 
improve existing services. 

The home visiting workforce study and coordination 
activities are being implemented in collaboration 
with leaders from the California Department of Social 
Services, California Department of Public Health, First 5 
Los Angeles, and the First 5 Association of California.

FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA 
HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY

First 5 California continued its support of the California 
Health Interview Survey (CHIS) conducted by the UCLA 
Center for Health Policy Research (CHPR) with $1.7 million 
of funding approved by the State Commission in July 
2019. CHIS is the largest state health survey in the nation. 
First 5 California has been the primary funder of the CHIS 
child questionnaire since 2001. The child questionnaire 
asks parents about topics, including child care, preschool 
participation, positive parenting activities (e.g., parents’ or 
caregivers’ knowledge of the Talk. Read. Sing.® campaign), 
breastfeeding practices, health status and conditions, 
child oral health, developmental screening and referrals, 
languages spoken at home and English proficiency of 
parents, and receipt and use of First 5 California’s Kit for New 
Parents. Funding also supports online public access to data 
via the AskCHIS query tool, (ask.chis.ucla.edu), the AskCHIS 
Neighborhood Edition mapping tool (askchisne.ucla.edu), 
and research reports (healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis). 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 23

In June 2021, CHPR UCLA Center for Health Policy 
Research released a policy brief funded by First 5 California, 
Developmental Screening Among Children Ages 1–5 in 
California (https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/
Documents/PDF/2021/Developmental-Screening-Among-
Children-policybrief-jun2021.pdf). During the last decade, 
California has seen progress in the number of screenings for 
young children, but there is still room for improvement in at-
risk communities. Key findings included: 

•	 The percent of all children screened for age-appropriate 
development increased to 72 percent in 2018 
compared to less than 30 percent in 2007

•	 Parents reported being asked if they had any concerns 
about their children’s learning, development, or 
behavior by their child’s physician about 64 percent of 
the time in 2018 compared to 47 percent in 2007

•	 Despite improvement in overall rates of developmental 
screening, researchers found disparities by family 
characteristics such as health insurance type, usual 
source of care, parental education level, race and 

ethnicity, and dual language learner children in the 
household, pointing to directions for improvement 
needed

In October 2020, CHPR released a methodology brief 
partly funded by First 5 California,  Innovative Methods to 
Increase Child Interviews in the California Health Interview 
Survey (https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis/design/
Documents/CHIS2019-Child-Redesign-MethodologyBrief-
Oct2020.pdf). The brief identified difficulties with survey 
data collection and methodologies to improve survey yield. 
In 2019, CHIS replaced its historic telephone mode with a 
mixed-mode web and telephone design using address-based 
sampling. 

Additionally, CHIS implemented two new methods to 
specifically increase the number of child survey completes 
in 2019: 1) placing the child survey questions before the 
adult survey, and 2) oversampling households with children 
through predictive modeling. These changes helped CHIS 
achieve over 3,000 child completes in 2019—the highest 
number of child questionnaire completions since CHIS 2012. 
These innovative methods show promise for other surveys 
seeking to add or improve child survey data collection.

https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/Documents/PDF/2021/Developmental-Screening-Among-Children-policybrief-jun2021.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/Documents/PDF/2021/Developmental-Screening-Among-Children-policybrief-jun2021.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/Documents/PDF/2021/Developmental-Screening-Among-Children-policybrief-jun2021.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis/design/Documents/CHIS2019-Child-Redesign-MethodologyBrief-Oct2020.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis/design/Documents/CHIS2019-Child-Redesign-MethodologyBrief-Oct2020.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis/design/Documents/CHIS2019-Child-Redesign-MethodologyBrief-Oct2020.pdf
https://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/chis/design/Documents/CHIS2019-Child-Redesign-MethodologyBrief-Oct2020.pdf


24

IMPACT 2020
First 5 California completed the first year of IMPACT 

(Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive) 
2020, a $103 million investment to support local and 
regional Quality Improvement System infrastructure. This 
represented a continued commitment to the innovative 
First 5 IMPACT approach to quality improvement and 
professional development systems for early learning and 
care (ELC) providers. IMPACT 2020 is designed to address the 
needs of the whole child and builds upon the initial effort of 
First 5 IMPACT, which was launched in 2015 and sunset on 
June 30, 2020. The implementation of IMPACT 2020 takes 
place at a local consortium level, supported by the Regional 
Coordination and Training and Technical Assistance Hubs 
(T&TA Hubs). IMPACT 2020 is funded from July 1, 2020, 
through June 30, 2023. It was included in a joint request 
for application (RFA) developed in partnership with the 
California Department of Education (CDE), the Quality Counts 
California Local Consortia, and Partnership Grants. The cross-
agency funding opportunity included both CDE Block Grants 
(California State Preschool Programs Block Grant and Quality 
Counts California [QCC] Block Grant), as well as IMPACT 
2020, to align the QCC system of funding and strengthen 
partnerships to streamline implementation, achieve cost 
savings, and create efficiencies at the local and regional level.

IMPACT 2020 works in cooperation with all other ELC 
quality improvement efforts and investments in California to 
support the implementation of the QCC Quality Continuum 
Framework. IMPACT 2020 is specifically designed to fund 
quality improvement expansion and support providers 
serving high-impact communities and populations not 
already receiving support. QCC participation focuses on 
expansion of access to high-quality ELC in private centers; 
family child care (FCC) homes; with family, friend, and 
neighbor (FFN) caregivers; and in alternative settings such as 
home visiting programs and libraries.

The QCC RFA, along with implementation documents, and 
processes and procedures, can be found on the QCC website 
at https://qualitycountsca.net/resources/qcc-local-consortia-
and-partnership-grants-rfa-documents/.

Priority Area: Child Development

Support During the COVID-19 Pandemic
Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, consortia 

and T&TA Hubs have continued to show flexibility and 
responsiveness to the needs of ELC settings and the children 
and families they serve. While the pandemic brought closures 
to sites and delayed classroom observations, ratings, and 
delivery of planned professional development services, QCC 
administrators were able to adjust to meet new priorities 
such as emerging health and safety needs, COVID-19 
prevention practices and resources, family support, child 
social-emotional needs, and training and resources on 
trauma-informed practice.

Because of the flexibility of IMPACT 2020 and T&TA Hub 
supports, consortia and Hubs were able quickly pivot to 
provide COVID response, such as delivering critical supplies 
(personal protective equipment, hand sanitizer, masks, 
gloves, cleaning supplies) to those continuing to provide care 
for the children of essential workforce personnel. In addition, 
many IMPACT 2020 partners supported families whose ELC 
programs were closed, either temporarily or permanently, by 
providing distance learning and mental and physical health 
resources. To address workforce needs, local administrators 
promoted the use of technology to access virtual professional 
development and coaching, when feasible, and many worked 

https://qualitycountsca.net/resources/qcc-local-consortia-and-partnership-grants-rfa-documents/
https://qualitycountsca.net/resources/qcc-local-consortia-and-partnership-grants-rfa-documents/


2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 25

Priority Area: Child Development

to share technology resources. Most consortia also adjusted 
eligibility requirements for teachers and programs to receive 
stipends and grants in order to support essential early 
learning and care providers despite the participation barriers 
due to COVID-19.

For FY 2020–21, amid a global pandemic, local consortia 
participating in IMPACT 2020 reported that of the 8,502 
sites participating in QCC, over two-thirds (5,841) were 
supported in full or in part with IMPACT 2020 funding. With 
support from First 5 California’s Emergency Supplies Program 
and its partnership with Supplybank.org , IMPACT 2020 
lead agencies were provided access to personal protective 
equipment (PPE), including masks, gloves, hand sanitizer, 
cleaning supplies, diapers, and other materials needed for 
early learning environments. Consortia quickly responded 
and utilized existing staff, including coaches, administrators, 
and trainers to distribute these critical supplies to ELC sites 
and families. With immediate health and safety needs met, 
IMPACT 2020 lead agencies continued to provide quality 
improvement supports such as professional development 
training, coaching, and check-ins with providers and 
programs using various platforms to provide dedicated 
virtual quality support. 

Regional Coordination and Training and Technical 
Assistance Hubs

T&TA Hubs continued to be the primary source of support 
for consortia. Funded through IMPACT 2020 dollars, Hubs 
streamlined the collection of data and management of 
expensive data systems, saving substantial administrative 
dollars. T&TA Hubs provided trainings, facilitated 
communication, shared best practices, and promoted 
consistency in supports available to coaches, trainers, and 
administrators. Regional T&TA Hub support was deemed 
particularly beneficial by small and rural consortia that would 
not have been able to access certain training or have the 
critical mass needed for Communities of Practice and other 
professional learning opportunities. 

Local consortia identified the Hubs as very effective in 
supporting the use of data to guide continuous quality 
improvement decisions and in sharing best practices to 
efficiently manage their programs. Hubs analyzed regional 
quality improvement information to target supports 
specifically to local/regional needs. Data also informed 
administrators of gaps in the available trainings. Trauma-
informed care principles and practices were identified 
as the most sought-after coach/trainer content area. 
QCC administrators, as well as coaches and trainers, took 
advantage of race, equity, diversity, and anti-bias learning 
opportunities. T&TA Hubs also identified infusing dual 
language learning strategies into each of their QCC models as 
their next priority area of focus. First 5 California will continue 
to fund T&TA Hubs throughout the IMPACT 2020 funding 
period.

Shared Services Alliance Networks
On August 19, 2020, the First 5 California Commission 

approved funding from IMPACT 2020 for the startup of 
Shared Services Alliance (SSA) Networks to build capacity 
in ELC settings by providing business and operational 
infrastructure support. On June 17, 2021, First 5 California 
announced the release of the SSA Pilot for ELC Request for 
Applications (RFA) funding opportunity. 

This investment was made available to Local Public 
Entities to support private, licensed ELC providers and tribal 
child care settings, with priority given to FCC homes and 
other small and underserved providers. These SSA Networks 
will leverage regional partnerships to streamline local 
operations, such as billing, enrollment, fund management, 
and reporting, which will allow for increased service capacity 
within the Network. 



26

SSAs are an emerging model in California and are 
utilized in other states to strengthen small ELC businesses 
by supporting them to become financially sound and 
more efficient. Small programs that participate in SSAs 
receive access to business support and automation tools 
that enable data sharing and back-office services, led by 
an entity that serves as the SSA Network. The SSA Network 
can deliver these services with less time and money, driving 
more resources directly into classrooms to support qualified, 
effective teachers. 

Seven applicants were selected through a competitive 
application process to receive the SSA Network funds, 
including Merced County Office of Education, First 5 
San Luis Obispo, Yolo County Office of Education, First 5 
Sonoma, First 5 Solano, First 5 Commission of San Diego, and 
Ventura County Office of Education. 

State-Level Support
Through IMPACT 2020, a $6 million state support 

contract was awarded to WestEd Center for Child and 
Family Studies to deliver technical assistance and foster 
partnerships between QCC state agency partners, regions, 
and local consortia. WestEd and First 5 California are working 
together to develop working relationships with institutions 
of higher education (IHE), which includes developing 
common definitions and shared quality standards across 
many professional development (PD) types. WestEd is 
developing a platform for online PD, as well as creating 
resources for non-subsidized ELC providers, including FFN, 
FCC, and private centers. Alignment of quality standards is 

also being improved through the upcoming roll-out of the 
Coach Certification program development. WestEd’s work 
also includes evaluating successes of IMPACT 2020 work, 
identifying effective strategies, and analyzing key factors that 
result in program success. These evaluation findings will be 
used to highlight the benefits of a quality infrastructure for 
children and families to policy makers and to make informed 
decisions about future program development. 

Additional state-level support came from the creation 
of the QCC Reporting Portal. Co-developed by First 5 
California and CDE, and built by First 5 California, the portal 
increases collaboration across QCC funding sources and 
decreases administrative burdens at local and state levels by 
providing a single digital access point for submitting invoices, 
maintaining accurate budgets, tracking spending, and 
submitting data and other reporting to the state. The online 
QCC Reporting Portal provides a one-stop shop for counties 
to submit the various reports required for QCC and has been 
a long-standing request from local partners to more closely 
align and collaborate at the state level to streamline grant 
administration.

QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA
Quality Counts California (QCC) is a statewide system 

of locally implemented Quality Rating and Improvement 
Systems (QRIS) that provide resources and support to early 
learning and care (ELC) providers so they can create engaging 
and effective experiences that help children grow and thrive. 
California’s statewide quality improvement system, QCC, 
was funded by IMPACT 2020, and state and federal funding 
administered by the California Department of Education 
(CDE). 

All ELC participant sites in QCC are reported in the 
statewide common data file, which is inclusive of all the 
state’s QRIS funding streams. This data provides the state an 
efficient and coordinated method for receiving information 
about each county participating in QRIS. As of June 30, 2021, 
there were 8,502 participant QCC sites across the state, 
including 3,162 family child care homes, 4,137 centers, 665 
Family, Friend and Neighbor providers, and 538 additional 
alternative settings. In total, 347,194 children ages 0 to 5 
benefitted from the quality improvement support provided 
by QCC.

Growth in QCC participation increased by 10 percent 
statewide from last fiscal year. Through the QCC Annual 
Performance Report, Consortia reported that 94% of QCC 
participant sites remained open during the COVID-19 
pandemic. Ninety-two percent (92%) of QCC consortia 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 27

indicated participation and support in QCC was as a major 
factor in sites remaining open. This is especially encouraging 
considering as of January 2021, the California Department of 
Social Services (CDSS) reported 8,330 licensed sites, or 11% of 
licensed programs statewide, were closed due to COVID-19. 

The QCC consortia and partners did a tremendous job 
meeting the needs of ELC programs and providers in the 
past year. The support included ongoing communication, 
so participant sites were informed and cared for, and felt 
less isolated, knowing how incredibly chaotic and difficult 
things became as the pandemic unfolded and continued 
to impact the field. Collaboration among existing and 
new partner agencies (including CDSS Community Care 
Licensing, Department of Public Health [CDPH], and local 
Child Care Resource and Referral Agencies) to support 
the workforce and provide care and referrals resulted in 
increased information, allowing the field to keep up with the 
surge of details from public health officials and other state 
agencies. ELC providers received financial support in the 
form of stipends, relief grants, and other business funding, 
and professional development supports such as access 
to coaches, therapists, and early childhood mental health 
consultants to address trauma in staff, children, and families.

The onset of COVID-19 presented QCC local and regional 
partners with many challenges. QCC state leadership 
approved adjustments to local rating cycles for QRIS, 
alleviating stressors on participating sites when support and 
rating processes were significantly limited. As the pandemic 
was realized, and local and state guidance began to roll out 
to providers, consortia provided critical support to programs 
and the field. This included communication and guidance 
(frequently coordinated with local Child Care Resource and 

Referral Agencies) on mandates and information from state 
and federal agencies and programs, as well as supplies and 
resources. These linkages included the CDSS—Community 
Care Licensing, the California Department of Education—
Early Learning and Care Division, CDPH, as well as other 
forms of safety-net support to businesses through the U.S. 
Small Business Administration Payroll Protection Program 
and the California Employment Development Department 
Unemployment Benefits.

Throughout Fiscal Year 2020–21, the F5CA-funded QCC 
website added content for audience-specific webpages, 
updated county profiles, new Regional Hub profile pages, 
and expanded messaging around the importance of quality 
early learning and care. Additional information regarding 
local QRIS efforts to support early learning providers, 
and connections to local resource and referral agencies 
for parents and families looking for quality child care is 
continually added to the QCC website. In addition to website 
expansion, all five virtual modules of the Family Engagement 
Toolkit were released in both English and Spanish and are 
now accessible for professional development hours on the 
QCC website. For more information on QCC, visit the website 
at https://qualitycountsca.net/.

SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING 
AUGMENTATION

The Small Population County Funding Augmentation 
(SPCFA) enables First 5 county commissions in small 
population counties throughout California to meet provisions 
of the Act and provide programs for children prenatal 
through age five that promote, support, and improve 
early childhood development. Without their local First 5 
commission, children in most of these counties would not 
have access to necessary services. Because the statutory 
funding formula in the California Children and Families Act 
(Proposition 10) is based on each county’s proportion of 
statewide annual births, many First 5 county commissions 
receive relatively small amounts of funding for operating 
a commission and local programs. To close this gap, First 5 
California has augmented statutory funding for counties with 
small populations and a low number of births.

The FY 2017–21 SPCFA funding term supported capacity-
building around selection and implementation of evidence-
based and evidence-informed programs, evaluation of 
effectiveness, and fiscal sustainability planning. In FY 
2020–21, the 20 participating small population counties with 
1,000 or fewer annual births received a total of approximately 

https://qualitycountsca.net/


28

$3.9 million in SPCFA funding. SPCFA 
counties reported carrying out local 
systems building activities, as well 
as supporting programs in the areas 
of child health, family support and 
strengthening, and early learning and 
development. 

On January 28, 2021, the First 5 
California Commission approved up 
to $20 million beginning April 1, 2021, 
through June 30, 2025, to focus on 
systems change and system efficiencies. 
In this new funding cycle, 21 small 
population counties with less than 
1,000 births annually are being offered 
technical assistance from Child Trends 
to carry out the goals of the SPCFA 
grant. Counties completed a “Telling 
the Story of Systems Change” tool for 
at least one systems change activity 
by June 30, 2021. For example, five 
counties focused their systems change 
work on improvement of service coordination, while three 
counties focused on increasing access to programs/services. 
With support from Child Trends, SPCFA counties are exploring 
options for pooling services with the goal of piloting 
potential pooled services during the funding term. 

DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
Nearly 60 percent of California’s children ages birth 

through five years old are Dual Language Learners (DLLs) 
learning English and another language at home. Research 
shows supporting DLL children to develop their home 
language and English early in life enhances cognitive skills, 
academic outcomes, and long-term economic gains. In 
2016, First 5 California’s DLL Pilot study was authorized 
by the First 5 California Commission with a $20 million 
investment through Fiscal Year 2020–21. In January 2021, the 
Commission granted a no-cost extension through December 
2022 to complete the DLL Pilot activities which have been 
delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The goals of the 
study are to examine culturally and linguistically responsive 
and effective intentional teaching, family engagement, and 
professional development (PD) strategies for DLLs.

The DLL Pilot study has been implemented in three 
phases: landscape (winter–spring 2019), in-depth (summer 

2019–fall 2020), and expansion phase (fall 2020–summer 
2022), with participation from 16 counties: Butte, Calaveras, 
Contra Costa, Fresno, Los Angeles, Monterey, Orange, 
Riverside, Sacramento, San Diego, San Francisco, Santa 
Barbara, Santa Clara, Sonoma, Stanislaus, and Yolo. The 
American Institutes for Research (AIR) is leading the 
evaluation of the study in each phase. 

Study Findings
In FY 2020–21, AIR published six reports highlighting key 

issues for serving DLLs in early learning and care settings in 
California. Reports are available on AIR’s DLL study website at 
https://californiadllstudy.org/reports. Highlights include the 
following:

•	 Spanish is the most common language spoken by 
DLLs in California early learning programs, followed by 
Mandarin (24%) and Pilipino/Tagalog (19%). 

•	 Many programs incorporate children’s home languages; 
however, the majority of programs (58% centers; 60% 
family child care homes [FCCH]) do not use a specific 
DLL curriculum or model 

•	 There is a lack of trained staff who speak a child’s home 
language or are prepared to work with DLL children 
and their families, and DLL-specific PD is rarely required 
for early educators. 

https://californiadllstudy.org/reports


2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 29

•	 More than three in four sites (78% centers; 75% FCCHs) 
report not having enough funding for PD. Programs 
that require DLL-specific PD tend to be publicly funded 
and serve a larger proportion of DLLs. 

•	 Some linguistically and culturally appropriate materials 
exist in programs, but increased access to more 
materials is needed. There are very few valid and 
reliable assessments available for use in languages 
other than Spanish. To obtain a comprehensive picture 
of the skills of DLLs, children should be assessed in both 
English and their home language. 

•	 DLL identification practices vary by program type and 
funding stream. Few programs administer a home 
language survey or direct child language assessment 
to identify DLLs. Programs are more likely to rely on 
informal strategies such as observing the child (73%) or 
asking a family member informally (82%). 

•	 Many centers (84%) and FCCHs (57%) use assessments 
for DLL children, but few assess DLLs in their home 
language. Assessments in Spanish are much more 
common than assessments in other languages. 

•	 Assessing math skills in the home language is 
particularly important for DLLs who are dominant in 
their home language. Spanish-dominant DLLs were 
most likely to score higher on math as assessed in 
Spanish, compared to balanced bilingual and English 
dominant DLLs. 

Expanding Effective Practices
The expansion phase of the study, launched in summer 

2020 and funded through June 2022, will provide 
information for policymakers to understand how to sustain 
and scale effective instructional support, family engagement, 
and PD strategies, and how to expand these to other contexts 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. This phase also supports 
the DLL Pilot counties to integrate DLL practices into other 
early childhood education initiatives such as Quality Counts 
California.

As of June 2021, DLL Pilot counties reached 44 of 58 
counties by sharing DLL PD opportunities with 28 non-DLL 
Pilot counties. Additionally, the expansion activities included 
education campaigns to emphasize the importance of home 
language competency, and distribution of age-appropriate 
books in multiple languages. 

In April 2021, DLL Pilot counties began participating in 
monthly Communities of Practice (CoP) meetings, a key 

part of the expansion phase. CoPs help counties learn from 
experts and each other about DLL best practices related 
to implementing, expanding, and sustaining their DLL 
expansion projects, make recommendations about policy 
to better support DLLs, and highlight resources that should 
be developed and/or translated to support high-quality 
practices.

The CoPs are focused on two strands:
•	 Educator engagement, preparation, and PD
•	 Improving systems of support for DLLs
The CoPs are implemented in partnership with 

Advancement Project of California, Early Edge California, 
California Department of Education—Opportunities for 
All Branch, and AIR. Funding for the CoP is provided by the 
Emerging Bilingual Collaborative and the monthly CoP 
sessions are facilitated by the Glen Price Group. 

The three phases of the study build on one another to 
further the ultimate goal for California’s youngest DLLs: to 
thrive, develop bilingual ability, be ready for kindergarten, 
and succeed in school and beyond. AIR will summarize 
findings from the three phases of the study in summer 2022, 
including policy recommendations aligned to the California 
Master Plan for Early Learning and Care.  



30

CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK 
DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP

A wide body of research has demonstrated that early 
experiences with books and positive parenting practices, 
such as being read to in the first three years of life, are critical 
to robust brain development.5 Recognizing the importance 
of getting books into households with young children, in 
May 2020, First 5 California provided $1.48 million in one-
time funding for the California Family Book Distribution 
Partnership. Through this partnership, counties were 
provided the option to receive a direct shipment of books or 
expand existing Dolly Parton Imagination Library programs. 

The California Family Book Distribution Partnership aligns 
with the Governor’s Parent Agenda by providing needed 
resources to families and supports the California Surgeon 
General’s goal to reduce adverse childhood experiences.6 
It was also a timely investment, as early literacy programs 
encourage parent/child bonding, promoting resiliency and 
therefore providing positive childhood experiences buffering 
against adverse childhood experiences. Amid a pandemic 
when many schools and child care programs closed and 
stress among parents and children is heightened, it is more 
crucial than ever that children engage in comforting activities 
and routines.7 Activities, such as shared book reading, where 
parents and caregivers spend one-on-one, quality time with 
children, can help protect children from the harmful effects 
of stress and trauma.

Thirty-six counties requested direct book delivery and 
received over 277,000 books packaged in sets of three. In 
response to county feedback, bilingual titles, and a special 
wordless printing of Three Brainy Birds Spreading the Word 
book from the Talk. Read. Sing.® campaign were included as 
part of the book bundles. Additional book acquisition within 
this project focused on content that reflects and affirms the 
diversity of California’s families and communities. First 5 
California and the California Department of Education jointly 
created a bilingual tip sheet for families that was packaged 
with the books for distribution to highlight the importance of 
early literacy and build on First 5 California’s Talk. Read. Sing.® 
campaign.

In addition to direct book distribution, twelve counties 
expanded Dolly Parton Imagination Library programs by 
enrolling 18,957 new children to receive monthly books and 
sustain enrollment for two years. Books acquired through 
the Dolly Parton Imagination Library are vetted and selected 
by early childhood educators with a focus on core human 
values: respect, acceptance, consideration, appreciation, 
listening, openness, affection, empathy, and love towards 
other human beings. The expansion of Dolly Parton 
Imagination Library combined with direct shipment of books 
will provide over 730,000 books to approximately 111,364 
families over two calendar years (2021–2022). 

EDUCARE 
In 2010, the First 5 California Commission voted to become 

an inaugural funder in bringing the public-private Educare 
Quality Early Learning Model to California. The Commission 
dedicated $6 million to support the launch, operation, and 
evaluation of California’s first Educare centers in Santa Clara 
and Los Angeles counties. First 5 California’s investment 
funds high-quality classroom elements, which have proven 
to increase the quality of early learning programs through 
improved teacher-child interactions. 

Through funding from First 5 California and other national, 
state, and local public and private partners, Educare California 
at Silicon Valley serves 168 Santa Clara County children and 
families. The center is co-located with Santee Elementary 
School, and operates in partnership with First 5 Santa Clara, 
the Santa Clara County Office of Education’s Early/Head Start 
and State Preschool programs, and the East Side Union High 
School Child Development Program.⁸ First 5 California’s fiscal 
support to Educare California at Silicon Valley ended in June 
2018.

Educare of Los Angeles at Long Beach (ELALB), another 
public-private partnership led by Long Beach Unified School 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 31

District and the Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce, operates 
its stand-alone facility located on the Barton Elementary 
School campus in the Long Beach Unified School District and 
serves 182 students and parents.⁹

ELALB modified and transitioned programs and 
curriculum due to the onset of the world-wide COVID-19 
pandemic in March 2020 and allowed for the resumption of 
in-person instruction to half the students by July 2020, while 
providing comprehensive, online, virtual services to the rest. 

ELALB worked through the COVID-19 challenges and 
succeeded in serving the communities most vulnerable kids 
and families while raising faculty standards via professional 
development and partnerships. Partnerships included: 
Head Start and Early Head Start, Attendance Works “All 
In” Campaign, Brazelton Touchpoints, and Sobrato Early 
Academic Model (SEAL).

A notable achievement included ELALB and SEAL 
executing a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the 
2020–21 school year, a successful replication of the SEAL 
Model that values English Learners’ home language as an 
asset. The MOU led to the full implementation of a Spanish 
Dual Language Model for Heritage Learners for all 16 Educare 
classrooms in the 2020–21 school year. 

In June 2021, the contract with Educare of Los Angeles at 
Long Beach concluded.

FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA 
EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE 
EVALUATION

During 2021, the Child Care Resource Center released the 
evaluation report, Strengthening California’s Emergency Child 
Care Bridge. First 5 California co-funded the evaluation with 
the Heising-Simons Foundation and First 5 San Bernardino. 
The purpose of the evaluation is to identify outcomes 
and guide continuous improvement for this recently 
implemented statewide emergency child care program for 
children in foster care. 

The Emergency Child Care Bridge Program for Foster 
Children (Bridge Program) was enacted by the State 
Legislature in 2017 to provide kinship caregivers, or other 
caregivers, emergency child care. Overseen by the California 
Department of Social Services, the Bridge Program works 
to connect child welfare agencies and early learning and 
care systems in each county across the state. Foster parent 
caregivers can receive emergency child care vouchers 
with child care navigator support to help them find care 
appropriate for their family, while child care providers receive 

trauma-informed care training and coaching. The first-year 
report identified statewide successes and challenges faced 
by families and staff during implementation of the Bridge 
Program. The following recommendations were made:

•	 Extend the length of the Bridge voucher for each child, 
including through the reunification or adoption process

•	 Develop statewide guidelines for Bridge Program 
implementation

•	 Develop a statewide data system to track Bridge-
specific data that could integrate with existing and 
future data systems in child welfare

•	 Dedicate efforts to outreach and recruit Bridge child 
care providers to participate in  trauma-informed care 
training and coaching

•	 For Trauma-Informed Care (TIC) trainings, offer different 
skill levels relevant to providers’ existing knowledge 
base (e.g., beginner, intermediate, advanced levels)

•	 For TIC training materials, include a breakdown of 
materials by child age because trauma-informed care 
may be different for infants, preschoolers, and school-
age children

•	 Provide trainings in Spanish
During Year 2 of the study, CCRC has conducted additional 

surveys and interviews with Bridge Program administrators, 
staff, caregivers, and providers in the 12 participating 
counties. Findings will be summarized in a forthcoming 
report. The goals are to identify county successes and 
challenges with the program, including changes made to the 
program, and how the COVID-19 pandemic has affected the 
program.



32

PARENT WEBSITE
First5California.com is First 5 California’s 

main resource for parent engagement 
on child health, education, literacy, child 
development, and smoking cessation. 
In recent years, it has expanded to 
incorporate more information about early 
brain development, including activities, 
downloadable resources, and links to 
organizations that support families. In 2020, 
the updated First 5 California Parent Site went 
live in both English and Spanish. Content 
for the site was informed by educators and 
researchers in the field of child development. 
It was redesigned to provide new levels of 
functionality, enabling parents to create an account and 
personalize their visit by inputting their child’s age, allowing 
them to access resources, tips, and activities specific to their 
interests. Parents and caregivers visiting First5California.
com can browse by their child’s age group—Newborn, Baby, 
Toddler, or Preschool—to check developmental benchmarks 
and instantly access a wide variety of parenting tips, articles, 
instructional videos, and developmentally appropriate 
activities geared specifically for that age group. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the First 5 California Parent Site served 
as a resource tool for families seeking up-to-date information 
about COVID-19, services and resources for families needing 
assistance with childcare, unemployment and Paid Family 
Leave information, vaccine FAQs, and worker resources. 

SOCIAL MEDIA
The parent website also links to multiple social media 

channels, including Facebook, Instagram, Pinterest, and 
YouTube. Across most platforms, followers receive regular 
posts that highlight simple, actionable tips and ideas related 
to early brain development. First 5 California’s Facebook 
audience includes 215,433 followers. Instagram has 13,300 
followers and Pinterest has 1,900 followers. Beginning 
spring of 2020, engagement increased as families were 
primarily spending time at home and logging onto social 

Priority Area: Family 
Functioning

media to find activities to engage their children and to 
look for information about staying healthy and the latest 
on COVID-19. Throughout 2020 and 2021, First 5 California 
broadcast numerous Facebook bilingual book readings for 
families teaching or quarantined at home. 

TALK. READ. SING.® SUCCESS
First 5 California’s Talk. Read. Sing.® campaign, prompting 

parents statewide to take active roles in increasing their 
children’s early brain development, has been one of the most 
successful public health awareness efforts in First 5 California 
history. A 2019 study and health policy brief from the UCLA 
Center for Health Policy Research shows 87% of parents of 
children ages 0 to 5 recognize the messages of this campaign 
and understand that engaging with their children in these 
simple, cost-efficient ways will increase their brain capacity 
and better prepare them for school and life. Parents who 
have seen the Talk. Read. Sing.® messages are nearly three 
times more likely to read to their children three or more 
times per week, and twice as likely to sing to their children 
three or more times per week. From 2020 to 2021, specialized 
television and radio spots were produced and aired, 
reminding parents of the heightened importance of staying 
engaged with their children through talking, reading, and 
singing during the COVID-19 pandemic. Moving into 2022, 
First 5 California is building on the Talk. Read. Sing.® message 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 33

with the concept of promoting Safe, Stable, Nurturing 
Relationships and Environments to buffer against the effects 
of toxic stress, which is exacerbated by early adversity, 
even in utero. The presence of ACEs (Adverse Childhood 
Experiences) can lead to negative health and social outcomes 
throughout a lifetime. The messaging will aim to educate and 
support family resiliency and encourage healthy outcomes 
for all Californian families.

FIRST 5 EXPRESS
Since 2006, First 5 California’s mobile outreach tour, First 

5 Express, has traveled to every corner of the state, reaching 
out to families and caregivers of children ages 0 to 5 in all 
58 counties. This interactive exhibit features “Edutainers” 
who educate parents and caregivers and entertain children. 
The Express teaches families about a wide variety of topics, 
including nutrition, physical activity, oral health, literacy, and 

most recently, early brain development. Due to COVID-19, 
the tour of the Express was cut short in mid-March 2020. 
Even though edutainers could not physically visit with 
families throughout the state, First 5 California connected 
with families online. Beginning in May 2020, First 5 California 
began live-streaming on Facebook, engaging bilingual 
reading times featuring Edutainers from the First 5 Virtual 
Express as well as celebrities such as Mario Lopez, Univision’s 
Argelia Atilano, Disney Jr.’s Sonal Shah, and California’s First 
Partner, Jennifer Siebel Newsom. Additionally, the First 5 
Virtual Express team produced multiple videos featuring 
singing, puppet making, exercising, and cooking using 
the First 5 California cookbook for families to enjoy during 
their time at home together. In 2022, First 5 California 
looks forward to finding new and engaging events and 
activities for communities throughout the state as COVID-19 
restrictions are modified or lifted.



34

and trusted location for families to 
participate.

•	 Facilitating use of data across early 
childhood systems: School readiness 
data will be used by the school district 
to customize the start of school for 
incoming students. It will also be 
used by First 5 to better understand 
what services may be most useful in 
preparing kids for kindergarten in the 
future. Additionally, the information 
collected through the family survey 
was also used to identify the need for 
dental services. First 5 and the school 
district will be working together to 
bring a dental van to Alpine County in 
2021–22.

Amador
First 5 Amador County continued to 

invest in areas that support parents as their 
children’s first teacher. The Commission 
made significant changes in service 
delivery to best meet the needs of families 
during the continuation of the COVID-19 
pandemic.  Staff and funded community 
partners worked diligently to create a 
plan and look for opportunities to support 
children, families, and child care providers 
through virtual formats as well as curbside 
and home deliveries.   

•	 Advocated for using COVID relief 
funding for young children and 
families, and proven strategies in the 
state budget.

•	 Partnered with the community to 
use data and research for local policy 
advocacy.

•	 Hosted a policy speaker series with Dr. 
Raj Chetty, the University of Oregon 
RAPID-EC, and UC Berkeley Center for 
Child Care Employment.

Alpine
First 5 Alpine focuses most of its 

investments on child development 
programs and parent education. 

•	 The Alpine Early Learning Center 
(AELC) is the only licensed childcare 
center serving Alpine families.  It 
provides early care and education to 
children as young as eight weeks old 
and continues to serve them until they 
enter kindergarten.

•	 Busy Bears Playschool is a non-
licensed early care and education 
program serving children as young as 
three months old all the way through 
kindergarten.

•	 The Catalyst Community Parent 
Education Project provides learner-
centered workshops to parents, 
caregivers, and providers.  

A key accomplishment this year involved 
coordination of a Kindergarten Round-up 
Event to better prepare children, families, 
and the school system for the start of the 
2021–22 school year. Eleven of the 15 
students anticipated to enter kindergarten 
were served by this event. This is an increase 
over the previous year’s early registration 
of just six students. The results of this event 
included:

•	 Improved service coordination and 
connection to care: The Kindergarten-
Round-up event served as a one-stop 
shop for registering children for 
kindergarten. It also provided needed 
health and vision screenings. Having 
First 5 conduct outreach increased 
the number of early kindergarten 
registrants and hosting it at the Early 
Learning Center offered a convenient 

First 5 County Commission 
Highlights

Alameda	
First 5 Alameda County leveraged 

existing investments, partnerships, and 
infrastructure in service to an equitable 
recovery from the pandemic, and long-
term policy changes that address structural 
inequities and support the conditions for 
families and children to thrive.

•	 Distributed nearly 2 million health, 
safety, and educational supplies.

•	 Partnered with Alameda Alliance for 
Health, Medi-Cal Managed Care plan, 
to outreach to over 1,298 families 
to ensure access and utilization of 
pediatric care and immunizations.

•	 Administered $4 million in CARES Act 
funding for grants and air purifiers to 
family child care providers.

•	 Leveraging pre-pandemic investments 
and partnerships, Neighborhoods 
Ready for School grantees became 
support hubs to connect families with 
resources.

•	 Provided developmental screening, 
care coordination, and linkages to 
services for 5,788 parents/caregivers 
and 5,978 children; 729 providers 
received training/support.

•	 Partnered with Help a Mother Out and 
Supplybank.org to distribute over 4 
million diapers. Funded an evaluation 
for use in policy advocacy.

•	 Hosted monthly “Dad-scussions,” a 
virtual series for fathers.

•	 Distributed over 11,000 earliest learner 
and kindergarten readiness backpacks 
via 27 neighborhood partners.

•	 Trained 1,684 community-based 
and 2,659 early childhood education 
professionals on topics such as 
housing and economic rights, early 
education, and mental health.

•	 Provided emergency relief, training, 
and coaching/consultation to 3,508 
child care providers, impacting 1,240 
parents/caregivers and 8,621 children.

•	 Continued support of an early 
childhood education apprenticeship 
pilot blending CalWORKs, Prop10, 
and philanthropic funding. Eighteen 
people graduated and seventeen 
people were placed in jobs.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 35

•	 Family Resource Centers, the Baby 
Welcome Wagon Universal Home 
Visiting, Dad and Me, Kindergarten 
Readiness programs, Playgroups, and 
Amador Quality for Kids mobilized 
to meet the needs of the community 
through what has been a challenging 
two years.  

•	 First 5 Amador and a few local 
donors continued to fund the 
Imagination Library which mails an 
age-appropriate book monthly to 
children enrolled in the program.  
Approximately 60 percent of age-
eligible children in Amador participate 
in this family engagement, early 
literacy program, and more than 70 
percent have access to the books in 
their homes.  

•	 First 5 Amador continued to assist with 
the coordination and promotion of 
the 33 Little Free Libraries throughout 
the county. These Little Free Libraries 
are stocked and maintained by the 
community with books for children 
and adults.  Fortunately, First 5 
Amador’s e-newsletter, social media, 
and strong relationships with local 
media outlets made it possible to 
remain connected with families and 
caregivers.  

•	 Amador’s Quality for Kids initiative 
continued to engage a high 
percentage of Family Child Care 
homes as well as Center-based 
programs.  

•	 First 5 Amador continued to work with 
community partners to establish and 
improve systems that impact families.  

•	 First 5 Amador continues to 
oversee the Amador/Calaveras 
Perinatal Wellness Coalition. This 
successful group includes nurses, 
paraprofessionals, a retired physician, 
and Women, Infants, and Children, 
and continues to successfully monitor 
the system to ensure families receive 
quality and timely services.

Butte	
First 5 Butte County engaged in strategic 

planning and adopted a 2021–2026 plan 
which envisions that “every child will have 
the opportunity for a resilient, thriving 
future through a nurturing, supportive 
network of families, caregivers, and their 
community.” In service of this vision, 
the Commission provides the following 
highlights:

•	 First 5 Butte partnered with 
community agencies by providing 
emergency funds to support 238 
children and 511 caregivers who were 
impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, 
as well as the catastrophic Bear Fire 
which killed 15 people and devastated 
the community of Berry Creek.

•	 First 5 Butte developed and adopted a 
new data system and website in order 
to streamline and enhance access for 
community members so that they may 
more readily engage with and seek 
funding from the Commission.

•	 First 5 Butte implemented the Dual 
Language Learner Expansion and 
provided funding to four community 
partners as part of a coordinated effort 
that centers language and cultural 
preservation in Hmong and Spanish 
speaking communities, as well as the 
distribution of technology and literacy 
supports to dual language learner 
families experiencing deep poverty 
and the crippling effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

•	 First 5 Butte supported the COVID-19 
vaccination effort by serving as 
the lead agency for identification, 
outreach and communication to child 
care and early care providers when it 
was their turn to receive the vaccine.

•	 First 5 Butte renewed its investment 
in home visiting and family support 
services by committing to five more 
years of funding for both the Butte 
Baby Steps and Tus Tu Menyuam 

programs. Collectively, the programs 
provided intensive services and 
supports to 141 children and 253 
caregivers in fiscal year 2020–21.

•	 First 5 Butte refined its commodity 
distribution skills and coordinated the 
dissemination of tens of thousands 
of personal protective equipment 
supplies and diaper kits to partner 
agencies who distributed directly to 
families and early learning and care 
providers.

Calaveras	
In FY 2020–21, First 5 Calaveras funds 

were invested in prevention activities, early 
literacy promotion, and parent education. 
In this difficult pandemic year, the program 
grantees found innovative and effective 
ways to reach families. This dedication 
and creativity served as a positive force for 
Calaveras County families struggling with 
pandemic-related stressors.

•	 The Raising a Reader home visitor 
adapted to the COVID-19 restriction 
by revamping the whole concept of 
home visiting to virtual and socially 
distancing platforms. Book bags were 
delivered by porch drop-off by a 
masked coordinator.

•	 Home visits were done via the Zoom 
platform or through phone calls. 
Participating parents expressed 
that they were overwhelmed with 
pandemic-related family issues. The 
visits focused on practical approaches 
to positive child interactions. “The 



36

virtual home visits influence families to 
find calm ways to handle big emotions 
and influence adult and child alike.” 
(Raising A ReaderHome Visitor).

•	 Children made early literacy gains. 
Parents made gains in knowledge and 
skills, and found a safe place to share 
their fears and frustrations during the 
pandemic year.    

•	 First 5 Grantees continued to provide 
services to children at preschool 
centers and family child care sites, via 
remote strategies. 

•	 Children were able to continue lessons 
in nutrition, science, and personal 
safety from a variety of programs, 
and received early literacy kits from 
libraries.

•	 Teachers were engaged with the 
curriculum materials provided, and 
children were engaged with age-
appropriate videos and materials. 
“When we did our SAFE Self lessons, 
the children really enjoyed watching 
the videos. We extended the lessons 
throughout the week, recapping what 
the topic was. There was one family 
that really appreciated the topic of 
gun safety,” (Preschool Teacher).    

•	 In addition, we appreciate the 1,800 
books provided by First 5 California, 
which were distributed to a variety 
of early childhood education sites, 
special education, and social welfare 
programs.  

Colusa
In FY 2020–21, First 5 Colusa County 

continued to respond to the ever-changing 
needs of the community as a result 
of the COVID-19 Pandemic. In-person 
programming was essentially halted as 
virtual platforms emerged as a safe format 
to deliver services to children and families. 
Input from families and grantees was 
considered to ensure that virtual formats 
offered the same level of service without 
compromising the integrity or outcome of 
the program. First 5 Colusa also considered 
the ease of accessibility for families that 
were already experiencing additional 
burdens and stress as a result of the 
Pandemic.  

•	 First 5 Colusa Family Resource Centers 
increased food accessibility and access 
for low-income households through 
a county-wide collaboration utilizing 
CARES Act funding. Participation in 
food access programs increased by 

46% from FY 2019–20, serving 2,400 
families.

•	 First 5 Colusa successfully launched 
their localized Help Me Grow program 
in December 2020. Help Me Grow 
provided access to developmental 
screenings to 102 children; 87 of 
which were provided additional case 
management services.   

•	 The Raising A Reader program served 
97 families countywide. The program, 
offered in collaboration with three 
library branches, provided services 
through a virtual format with weekly 
drive-thru book bag dissemination. 
Colusa County Office of Education’s 
literacy initiative provided three books 
per week for each child enrolled, 
building home library collections for 
their families.     

•	 Weekly online Growing Start Parent/
Child Playgroups were offered to 
67 families, serving 85 children. 
Activity kits that correlated with the 
online engagement platform were 
disseminated to families via a drive-
thru process at three different Family 
Resource Centers in the county.

As the climate and conditions of the 
pandemic continued to evolve and change 
daily, the Commission committed to 
ensuring the delivery of quality programs 
and services that reflected the needs of 
children and families in the county.

Contra Costa	  
Last year, First 5 Contra Costa County 

applied a whole child, whole family 
approach to making services more 
coordinated, equitable, and responsive to 
families’ needs. The following are COVID-19 
Survey Highlights (http://www.first5coco.
org/2021-covid-19-impact-survey/;N=533): 

•	 40 percent of parents lost employment 
after the shelter=in-place order. 

•	 Cash assistance, debt forgiveness, 
and free or affordable child care 
arose as top needs for parents. First 5 
Contra Costa connected families with 
COVID-19 supplies, distributing 2,827 
books and 27,632 personal protective 
equipment single packs/items from 
First 5 California and Help A Mother 
Out to programs across the county. 

•	 First 5 California, the Low-
Income Investment Fund, and 
other philanthropic funders also 
collaborated to aid 100 family child 
care providers with $600,000 of 
COVID-19 relief grants. 

•	 For the Antioch CHANGE Housing 
assessment, East County Regional 
Group members and Community 
Engagement staff collected 1,030 
surveys from Antioch residents and are 
holding community forums to share 
learnings and establish housing policy 
priorities.   

•	 Funded by the Adverse Childhood 
Experiences (ACEs) Aware Initiative, 
First 5 Contra Costa held two 
convenings of over 100 providers 
to make collective progress toward 
implementing a trauma-informed 
Network of Care. They also launched 
an online hub for connecting, learning, 
and collaborating on trauma informed 
practice. Currently, First 5 Contra 
Costa is funded by ACEs Aware to 
pilot a Contra Costa Network of Care, 
including key partners, First 5 Contra 
Costa, La Clinica, and the Contra Costa 
Crisis Center. The Network features an 
integrated approach to ACEs screening 
and referring families to buffering 
support services in order to mitigate 
the impact of ACEs on families and 
prevent future ACEs.  

•	 The Ready Kids East County  initiative 
hosted a series of School Readiness 
Parent Cafés for black families in which 
parents voiced hopes for educational 
settings that reflect their children’s 
needs and interests. Ready Kids East 
County has launched a workplan to 
build collective vision and capacity for 
educational stakeholders to best serve 
black families.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 37

Del Norte
In Fiscal Year 2020-21, First 5 Del Norte 

County focused heavily on parental and 
child resiliency through these trying times. 
It is hard to look back at this year without 
seeing COVID-19 as the primary event 
affecting First 5 Del Norte’s work. It may be 
overused, but “unprecedented” is still the 
right word to describe Fiscal Year 2020–21. 
Never before has our entire county 
experienced a community-wide trauma of 
this length and magnitude, shutting schools 
and businesses for months. Fortunately, 
First 5 Del Norte’s work over the past years 
put it in a good position to continue to 
support families even while we couldn’t be 
physically with them. 

•	 One of First 5 Del Norte’s major 
programs, the Family Resource Center 
of the Redwoods continued to provide 
essential services throughout the 
year with drive-through diapers and 
wipes giveaways, personal protective 
equipment giveaways, and multiple 
drive-through community outreach 
events like backpack giveaways, 
Community Baby Showers, and a 
Winter Break Meal Program. Two of our 
key programs required no face-to-face 
contact: Dolly Parton’s Imagination 
Library and the Ready4K parent 
support/engagement texts. 

•	 First 5 Del Norte was able to continue 
to bring Center on the Social and 
Emotional Foundations for Early 
Learning Teaching Pyramid training 
to Del Norte early childhood care 
and education providers. Multiple 
sites, representing over 150 students, 
participated in this social and 
emotional learning training via ZOOM. 
The training-coaching cycle was 
appreciated by providers.   

•	 First 5 Del Norte also expanded the 
reach of Dolly Parton’s Imagination 
Library throughout the year with 
registration forms handed out to every 
preschool class, kindergarten class, 
child care provider, community baby 
shower participant, and new parent kit 
registration in the county. Enrollment 
continues to increase and feedback 
from families has been positive. 

•	 First 5 Del Norte received its third of 
three years of funding from the Mental 
Health Services Act Innovation fund 
that will help continue providing and 
developing culturally appropriate 
content of the parent-support texting 
program, Ready4K. Working with 

ParentPowered, we are adapting their 
existing texting program, Ready4K, to 
provide connections to local programs 
and resources; encourage community 
connections; and boost mental health 
and protective factors messaging. The 
goals of this project are to increase 
parent capacity to support their child’s 
social-emotional development and 
school readiness; increase parental 
resilience, self-care, access to mental 
health services; and connect parents 
to their community and community 
resources. 

El Dorado	
First 5 El Dorado County has always 

taken a regional approach to planning and 
service delivery, recognizing that different 
areas in El Dorado County have unique 
resources and needs. Within this framework, 
the Commission identified Community 
Hubs as the primary strategy within its 
2016–2021 Strategic Plan. In partnership 
with county agencies and community-
based partners, First 5 El Dorado has 
leveraged resources to support a variety of 
services through five Community Hubs. 

During 2020–21, a total of 2,411 (not 
unduplicated) individuals were provided 
with Community Hub services. First 5 El 
Dorado funded partners, and adjusted their 
scope of services and delivery modalities 
in response to COVID-19 restrictions and 
other safety protocols. While all programs 
continued to offer their traditional scope of 
services, they also worked to be responsive 
to the unique needs of families in each Hub 
by:  

•	 Managing and Staffing COVID-19 
Response Activities: Hub staff 

conducted contact tracing and case 
investigation and organized and 
staffed immunization clinics that 
served thousands monthly throughout 
the county.

•	 Distributing Food, Educational 
Materials, and Basic Needs Supplies: 
Hub staff provided thousands of 
families with food, diapers, hygiene 
supplies, books, themed activity kits 
and crafts, and educational resources.

•	 Providing Social Supports: Hub 
staff worked to remain visible in 
their communities, increase their 
outreach on social media and other 
communication platforms, and found 
innovative ways to fill the social gaps.    

First 5 El Dorado reaffirmed its 
commitment to the Hub model within 
its 2021–23 Amended Strategic Plan, 
developing the Hubs 2.0 model which will 
build upon the existing navigation system 
and expand its reach to all individuals 
in the county. The Hubs 2.0 model will 
move the Commission toward systems-
level changes and away from program-
specific investments, prioritizing access to 
services, referral, and navigation, and more 
effectively engage the community.

Fresno	
First 5 Fresno County envisions a future 

where all children and their families are 
healthy, loved, and nurtured. This past year, 
First 5 Fresno adapted and innovated new 
ways to support the wellbeing of families 
amid the COVID-19 pandemic, including:  

•	 Community Health Teams (CHT): 
As part of a countywide goal to 
dramatically scale home visitation 
services for families, First 5 Fresno 



38

partnered with the County of Fresno’s 
Department of Public Health (DPH) 
to launch the CHT project. CHT is a 
cost-effective, localized model pairing 
public health nurses with teams of 
paraprofessionals from community 
benefit organizations (CBOs) to 
provide research-based home-
visitation services to families who may 
otherwise not qualify for federal- or 
state-funded programs. Through 
CHT, DPH partnered with four CBOs 
to support families across the county 
with parenting, early learning, family 
literacy, developmental screening, 
and a multitude of other resources 
and referrals – all while prioritizing the 
health and safety of staff and families 
through virtual and modified service 
delivery.

•	 Lighthouse for Children Community 
Learning Center (CLC): Rooted in 
community and state partnerships, 
the CLC is home to programs and 
services supporting families and early 
childhood professionals. In response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the CLC 
transitioned its direct services into the 
virtual space and supported families 
with essential resources. For example, 
through a partnership with Prevent 
Child Abuse California, First 5 Fresno 
hosted four AmeriCorps members 
who facilitated weekly, virtual classes 
for more than 80 families focused 
on healthy development, enhancing 
interactions between children and 
caregivers, and preparing children for 
school. The AmeriCorps team also led 
the distribution of personal protective 
equipment and supplies to partners 
serving Fresno County families as part 
of the First 5 California Emergency 
Supplies Program and partnered with 
the Central California Food Bank to 
distribute formula, baby food, and 
more than 535,000 diapers.

Glenn
First 5 Glenn County highlights of the 

Fiscal Year 2020–21 program includes:   
•	 Nurturing parenting classes are 
helping parents gain the skills and 
knowledge they need to use nurturing 
and positive strategies to guide and 
teach their child(ren). The Nurturing 
Parenting program provided virtual 
parenting instruction to 43 individuals. 
The average Adult-Adolescent 
Parenting Inventory (AAPI) scores 

increased within all domains for 
the 24 parents and caregivers that 
participated in Nurturing Parenting, 
and they completed both a pre- and 
post-assessment. Additionally, the 
risk of child maltreatment decreased 
between 10 and 14 individuals, 
depending on the AAPI domain being 
considered. 

•	 Families and individuals were provided 
resources through supply distribution 
activities. First 5 Glenn staff distributed 
the diapers and diapering supplies 
with education regarding baby skin 
integrity maintenance, bathing 
supplies, nutritional info. with food 
supplies, formula, bottles, clothing for 
those in desperate need, shoes and 
socks, blankets, bedding supplies. New 
mothers were supplied with personal 
protective equipment for COVID-19 
prevention, sanitary feminine supplies, 
toilet paper, wipes, and bathing 
supplies. All families and children 
were provided with ongoing dental 
education that included toothbrushes, 
toothpaste, and dental floss every 
three months.

•	 All children in preschools, transitional 
kindergarten, kindergarten, infants 
in child care, day cares, and other 
programs were provided with Art 
Materials, Play Dough, Reading Books, 
crayons, markers, scissors, glue, tape, 
activity books, and various learning 
toys. Over 700 bags of these materials 
went to children, including children 
in their homes during the year to 
support parents and children during 
the pandemic lock down here in our 
county. Services were interrupted so 
the Commission agreed to spend the 
funding as needed for immediate and 
basic needs of families and children. 

Humboldt	
The Road to Resilience (RtR) Program 

is a partnership between First 5 Humboldt 
County (F5H) and United Indian Health 
Services (UIHS) that provides intensive 
services and support to pregnant women 
and new parents who are impacted 
by Substance Use Disorder (SUD). RtR 
supports Perinatal Healthcare Navigators 
at UIHS who work closely with families 
to help them access physical and mental 
health care, parenting support, and other 
services during this critical time for child 
development and family bonding. This 
allows for services that meet families where 

they are and centers service plans directly 
around a family’s communicated needs. 
Families are also supported in connecting/
reconnecting with traditional birthing and 
parenting practices.  

An important part of this work has been 
the development of partnerships such 
as that with UIHS. RtR also coordinates 
with Tribal Wellness Courts and Child 
Welfare Services to integrate Navigators 
into Wellness Court and Family Case Plan 
processes.

Training is another part of the work. 
For example, in 2021, F5H, in partnership 
with UIHS, the Yurok Wellness Coalition, 
and the Hoopa Valley Tribal Court, hosted 
three Weaving Wellness community forums 
regarding ways to support tribal families 
to prevent the separation of families and 
reduce prenatal substance exposure. 
Local tribal and national SUD experts 
came together to discuss supporting 
families impacted by SUD and supporting 
traditional birthing and parenting customs 
so that providers know how to best support 
local tribal families. The hope is that these 
partnerships will help “de-silo” services and 
bring about more collaboration among 
service providers. Ultimately, this will reduce 
barriers for families seeking these services.   

The initial three-year grant to F5H from 
the California Office of Child Abuse and 
Prevention for the program was due to 
expire next June, but F5H has been awarded 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 39

almost $1,000,000 to continue the program 
for an additional two years through June 
2024.

Imperial	
First 5 Imperial County, in partnership 

with a number of agencies, continued to 
fund and promote services designed to 
support the healthy development and 
well-being of children 0–5 years of age 
and their families, which was challenging 
due to the many pressures facing families 
and providers in light of the COVID-19 
pandemic.   

In partnership with Court Appointed 
Special Advocates of Imperial County, a 
notable program designed to support one 
of the most vulnerable populations in the 
county provided an array of important 
services based on intensive intervention 
and advocacy support offered to children 
placed under the protective custody of 
the Juvenile Court System as a result of 
adverse childhood experiences related to 
abuse or neglect. All of these children find 
themselves in situations where they are 
in need of care that reflects stability and 
positive experiences in order to support the 
healing process. Through this program, each 
child is assigned an advocate that, upon 
completion of rigorous training, devotes a 
minimum of 18 hours per month to each 
child. The essential functions offered by the 
advocate are to: 

•	 Ensure the child’s needs 
are represented through court 
proceedings

•	 Support the long-term placement of 
the child

•	 Be involved in enrolling the child in 
preschool/child care services

•	 Be engaged in the process to ensure 
that the child completes their basic 
immunization series

•	 Work to safeguard that the child 
receives a developmental assessment 
that is administered by a collaborating 
agency and follows up on any referrals 
for additional screening or services. 

During Fiscal Year 2020–21, all children 
(65) under the custody of the Juvenile Court 
System were appointed an advocate. Of all 
cases closed, 74 percent were reunified with 
at least one biological parent, 93 percent 
were up to date on their immunization 
series, and 53 percent of children who 
received a developmental screening service 
were court ordered to receive additional 
intervention services.

Inyo
When looking back, what is so 

remarkable is how the entire year was in 
a pandemic. Shifting services, meeting 
on Zoom, working from home, and facing 
unprecedented challenges were all 
common themes. 

First 5 Inyo County approached this 
unique year with flexibility and resiliency, 
prioritizing emerging needs and responding 
to challenges facing families and partners. 
Caregivers shared a sense of isolation, cut 
off from community. 

First 5 Inyo County launched a new 
home visiting program with an innovative 
referral system to provide services to high-
risk families. Home visiting staff created 
connections with families, meeting on 
Zoom or socially distanced in the park, 
playing games, reading books, and talking 
about challenges and goals. Caregivers 
also shared concerns about their children’s 
development. 

First 5 Inyo County provided 
developmental screenings online and 
offered Busy Bag activity kits. Each 
month, caregivers could pick up a Busy 
Bag, each containing age-appropriate art 
activities, learning games, and a book to 
read. Caregivers appreciated having new 
activities to fill the extra time children had 
at home and inviting moments to play as 
a family. Partners expressed frustration in 
understanding what services were available. 

First 5 Inyo County created three tools to 
help providers refer clients. When the only 
hospital’s lactation support program closed, 
First 5 Inyo County created a Breastfeeding 
Care Pathway, listing lactation supports to 
refer moms. Through the Triple P Network, 
First 5 Inyo County made a Provider & 
Services Sheet, to refer families to a Triple P 
Positive Parenting Program. 

With the Family Strengthening 
Collaborative, First 5 Inyo County launched 
an online resource list, highlighting over 
200 local services and programs. This is 
the strength and power of First 5 Inyo 
County and across the state, to meet local 
challenges, build systems, and provide 
services for families to be resilient and 
thriving, even in a pandemic.

Kern	
Amid the COVID-19 pandemic, First 5 

Kern County began a new five-year funding 
cycle reinvesting in the Commission’s 
commitment to serving children and their 
families through programs that address 
Health and Wellness, Parent Education 

and Support Services, Early Childcare and 
Education, and Integration of Services.    

•	 Programs worked together to develop 
innovative methods to continue 
service delivery with minimal 
interruptions given the pandemic 
restrictions. The programs used social 
media and hybrid-virtual formats 
to provide court-mandated parent 
education, workshops, center-based 
activities, and case management 
services. In addition to the virtual 
platforms, the Kern County Children’s 
Dental Health Network adapted 
and scheduled drive-thru dental 
screenings to address children’s dental 
needs. This service delivery method 
also provided an opportunity to 
partner with the Children’s Mobile 
Immunization Program and provided 
access to two services at one location.     

•	 In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Kern 
continued its commitment to systems 
change efforts by applying and 
being awarded the Home Visiting 
Coordination grant, the Adverse 
Childhood Experiences (ACEs) Aware 
planning grant, and the Earned 
Income Tax Credit grant. Each award 
presented First 5 Kern with the 
opportunity to engage and work 
with community partners to help 
facilitate conversations on networking, 
collaboration, and system delivery, 
with an overall goal to enhance the 
systems of care by addressing the 
inequities faced by the children and 
families of Kern County.    

•	 First 5 Kern launched ResilientKern.
org, a website designed to collect 
and share information and resources 
specific to trauma-informed care. 
The website includes relevant news, 



40

a list of local partners, training 
opportunities, recordings of past 
sessions on ACEs, and information on 
trauma and toxic stress. In addition, the 
site contains updates on ACEs Aware 
projects and will grow as efforts in this 
area develop.  

Kings
During Fiscal Year 2020–21, one of the 

most significant accomplishments First 5 
Kings County had was the development of 
the First 5 Kings County Family Resource 
Centers. With a funding investment of 
$631,012, the Kings County Family Resource 
Centers provides Early Childhood Education, 
Home Visitation, Developmental Screening, 
Parent Education and Referral services.  

During Fiscal Year 2020–21, 1,041 
children ages 0 to 5 and 835 parents, 
siblings, and caregivers who live in Kings 
County visited a Family Resource Center. 
Kings County’s Family Resource Centers 
continued to be a central hub for families 
to become aware of the various services 
available in the community, especially 
during the pandemic. 

Other highlights that took place during 
Fiscal Year 2020–21 included:

•	 The Linkages 2 Learning project 
provided 1,866 school readiness 
services to incoming kindergarten 
children attending the school site’s 
spring or fall orientation, and/or 
receiving a school readiness backpack.

•	 The Kings County CARES About Quality 
project provided support, ranking, 

technical assistance, and materials to 
66 preschool and child care sites.

•	 The local CARES project provided 
training and professional growth 
advising to 182 professionals working 
in the early childhood education field, 
as well as providing a Professional 
Learning Community for the growing 
home visitation workforce.

•	 The United Cerebral Palsy Special 
Needs project provided 65 
developmental assessments and 63 
interventions to children ages 0 to 5.

•	 The United Cerebral Palsy Parent & 
Me project served 167 children ages 0 
to 5 and 134 parents through weekly 
center based early childhood activities, 
with the majority of services delivered 
virtually.

•	 First 5 Kings County funded the 
translation of the 211 resource line 
database to Spanish, making the 
information on the website and 
mobile application available to 
Spanish-speaking families.

Lake	
First 5 Lake County collaborated within 

the county and across the region to reach 
out and educate families and providers 
serving young children in Fiscal Year 
2020–21. 

•	 In coordination with the Northwest 
Region First 5s, a child abuse 
prevention media campaign 
comprised of videos and radio ads 
was developed. Radio ads aired 

throughout the region, and videos 
were shared via public access 
television and on social media. 
The Lake Family Magazine Positive 
Parenting Guide, funded in part by 
a County of Lake “Cann Grant,” was 
created to encourage parents to 
“dream big” for their family. It explains 
the Strengthening Families™ Protective 
Factors, and child development and 
safety across ages, and includes 
information on how to access 
resources. The Guide is available 
online, and 5,120 copies of the English 
edition and 500 copies of the Spanish 
edition were printed for distribution 
in the first-print run. Copies were 
made available at family-serving 
agencies and placed in waiting rooms 
and anywhere parents may go to get 
information. 

•	 The Substance Free Childhood Toolkit 
was developed to help local providers 
in their efforts to educate families 
about the potential negative impacts 
of substance use during pregnancy 
and while breastfeeding. 

•	 A Perinatal Mental Health Toolkit 
was developed to help medical and 
other providers serving women in 
the perinatal period to screen for 
Perinatal Mood & Anxiety Disorders 
and to be able to follow up with 
connection to appropriate local 
resources. This Toolkit was made 
possible by leveraging Proposition 10 
funds with a Mental Health Services 
Act Prevention and Early Intervention 
Mini Grant from the County of Lake 
Department of Behavioral Health. All 
three publications are available for 
viewing on the First 5 Lake website 
(www.firstfivelake.org). 

•	 To assist with distribution and 
outreach, First 5 Lake County 
developed media toolkits to help 
community partners promote this 
important work. The Imagination 
Library provided books for 67 percent 
of children under age five.  

Lassen	
First 5 Lassen County has invested 

in the Pathways Home Visiting Program 
as its primary strategy for achieving its 
vision that “all Lassen County children will 
thrive in supportive, nurturing, and loving 
environments; enter school healthy and 
ready to learn; and become productive, 
well-adjusted members of society.” While 

http://www.firstfivelake.org


2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 41

COVID-19 continued to impact services, 
Pathways Home Visiting Program made 
some changes to their service delivery. It is 
estimated that half of all home visits were 
conducted virtually using either Facebook 
Messenger’s video chat or over the phone. 
While not ideal, this enabled Pathways to 
work with families during the pandemic. 
As a rural county, it is important that all 
local partners are able to work together 
to provide services to families. To enhance 
this delivery system, First 5 Lassen began 
working on the Home Visiting Coordination 
Funding in December 2020. Since then, a 
comprehensive team has been assembled 
who meet on a monthly basis to examine 
and develop a plan to create a “soft handoff” 
for high-risk families. Upon completion, 
this referral platform will assist families 
in gaining access to the resources that 
are available to them, and help children 
thrive. As COVID-19 continued to have an 
impact, First 5 California shipped personal 
protective equipment to help child care 
providers to continue with their services. 
These supplies helped 19 childcare 
providers to continue services. In addition, 
First 5 Lassen partnered with Lassen 
HEARTS to help distribute diapers and 
wipes to community members that were in 
need. 

Los Angeles	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, almost half of 

First 5 Los Angeles County’s 135 contracts 
supported organizations that carried out 
systems of care work throughout Los 
Angeles County. Grantees reported a variety 
of accomplishments to increase access, 
quality, alignment, and sustainability of 
family-serving systems, thereby improving 
the lives of children and families. Grantees 
strengthened inter-agency collaborations 
and partnered with parents by harnessing 
formal and informal networks to share 
information and resources. Grantees, 
working with parents and other providers, 
advocated for both local and statewide 
issues, such as higher reimbursement 
rates and slots for child care, and increased 
funding. In one example, a collaboration 
between parents and grantees succeeded 
in reinstating LA Metro bus service to pre-
pandemic levels. A committee comprised 
of LA Metro, families, and the grantee 
was established to improve public safety 
resulting in a $40 million commitment 
by LA Metro to explore alternative safety 
ideas. The grantee stated, “By creating these 
collaborations, families felt empowered to 

navigate…and [obtain] more resources.” 
Professional development reached a new 
level by covering referral eligibility and 
follow-up, equity and cultural inclusion, 
trauma-informed care with families, and 
grant writing capacity. For example, one 
grantee launched a webinar series for 300+ 
health professionals on racial/ethnic health 
disparities by offering continuing education 
credits. Also, grantees increased their 
capacity for using and interpreting data for 
decision making, planning, and resource 
allocation. Grantees also gave examples 
of how they have helped families increase 
their awareness of existing services and 
community assets. The number of children 
and providers reached through First 5 Los 
Angeles investments has doubled from 
the previous year, and many direct service 
grantees reported collaborating more with 
each other and with other community 
groups in the county to reach more families 
and fill gaps in services.

Madera	
First 5 Madera County continues 

investing in the healthy development 
of children 0–5 years of age and their 
families. First 5 Madera remains committed 
towards supporting parents and caregivers 
in becoming their child’s first teacher, 
partnering with community stakeholders 
towards systems improvements, and 
investing in opportunities that contribute to 
a child’s overall healthy development.

First 5 Madera County successfully 
converted in-person services to virtual 
platforms this year. Current efforts were 
elevated, and family participation widened 
into the harder-to-reach communities. The 
Family Resource Centers well reflect this 
accomplishment. Family Resource Center 
staff uploaded 52 educational videos to 
social media platforms and provided virtual 
parenting classes. Families also participated 
in drive-thru events where they received 
personal protective equipment and 
educational materials for at-home supports. 
The Special Projects department offered its 
car seat safety education virtually and some 
in-person car seat fittings. Additionally, 
through a partnership with the Tzu Chi 
Mobile Vision Clinic, PreK children received 
a vision screening, and some obtained 
glasses within minutes.

Other funded program highlights 
include:

1.	 Parent Cafés. Two separate parent 
cafés were offered this year, one in 
Eastern Madera County and another 

to the Oaxaqueño community. 
Parents shared that the programs 
equipped them to be better 
advocates for their children and 
helped them make connections with 
other parents.

2.	 Backpack Literacy. In partnership 
with the Madera County Libraries, 
families received training and 
backpacks filled with books, journals, 
and other supplies to support and 
enhance home literacy.

3.	Dynamic Mindfulness. The program 
was self-paced and included six, 
one-hour modules where providers 
received a certificate of completion 
and Dynamic Mindfulness tool kit all 
to ameliorate the impact delivering 
trauma-informed care has on service 
providers.

4.	ASQ Screening. In partnership with 
county social workers, this program 
offered ASQ screenings and referrals 
to foster children.

Marin
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Marin 

County’s Learning Bus continued to align 
efforts with other community partners 
including Parent Services Project, West 
Marin Community Services, and the 



42

Shoreline School district to support and 
engage families with children ages 0 to 
5. The positive impact of building these 
relationships will be supportive wraparound 
support with all community partners in 
alignment and responsive to meet the 
needs of families with young children. The 
Learning Bus found ways to stay connected 
to community via check-in calls with 
attendees, Zoom meetings, virtual Learning 
Bus storytimes, and provided Little Learners 
Kits/Kits Pequeños Aprendizes: Play-based 
learning activities and materials designed 
to nourish children’s learning. Other First 5 
Marin County highlights included:   

•	 First 5 Marin’s Communication Forums 
have a solid place within Marin. As 
previously reported, the forums have 
led to the formation of coalitions 
and collective efforts among those 
looking to move into action on the 
issue explored in a forum. Op-Eds 
and earned media are now routinely 
associated with the gatherings. 
Approximately 1300 individuals 
Participated between August 
2019 through February 2020, with 
individual forums attracting between 
75 to 475 attendees. 

•	 In Fiscal Year 2020–21, forums began 
adapting to the virtual environment. 
An initial offering on Social Emotional 
Development brought more than 900 
participants from within and beyond 
Marin, shining light on the potential 
of the forums to thrive in a virtual 
community.     

•	 Marin County of Education 
successfully expanded the use of 
a standards-based kindergarten 
entry screening with 11 districts 
participating. Which included 4 
districts with 100% participation, and 
continuing to grow the buy-in and 
infrastructure necessary for what will 
hopefully become used countywide.     

•	 Help Me Grow Marin hired key staff, 
a core database was developed, and 
the initial website development was 
launched. Help Me Grow was part of 
coordinating and securing support of 
state funding’s coming into place for 
universal screening and home visiting. 

Mariposa	
During Fiscal Year 2020–21, the 

most significant accomplishment of 
First 5 Mariposa County was the School 
Readiness Program, funded for $222,894. 
The School Readiness Program serves two 

preschools (Catheys Valley and Lake Don 
Pedro), located in Mariposa County. The 
two preschools provide an outstanding 
play-based program that prepares children 
for kindergarten. The facilities, curriculum, 
and activities are creative and educational, 
and focus on developmentally appropriate 
activities using Science, Engineering, 
Technology, and Math (STEM) curriculum. 
This program is free of charge to the 
children in Mariposa. 

Another funded program that was 
highly successful was the instructional aide 
hired to work in the Mariposa Elementary 
School Transitional Kindergarten classroom. 
The program was funded for $18,481 for 
Fiscal Year 2020–21. The instructional 
aide worked with the reading program/
assessments, and she provided extra 
assistance to children who were having 
difficulty. Having the aide in the classroom 
also provided time for the teacher to work 
with the children individually. The class 
had 15 transitional kindergarten students 
who ranged in age from 4 through 5 years, 
and having an aide made it possible for the 
students to work on enrichment projects 
and technology.  

Mendocino
Fiscal Year 2020–21 continued to bring 

challenges from the effects of COVID-19, 
including the closure of the Imagination 
Library program which ran in Mendocino 
County for 11 years. The decision to close 
the Library was difficult, but ultimately 
came down to program inequity. 

•	 First 5 Mendocino continued to offer 
Triple P groups in both English and 

Spanish virtually throughout the 
county in collaboration with multiple 
county and partnering agencies. 
Providing groups virtually has brought 
about both challenges and successes, 
while we are able to provide more 
groups due to the remote capabilities, 
collecting survey data has been 
challenging. Additionally, the State of 
California and County of Mendocino 
unanimously recognized January as 
Positive Parenting Awareness Month 
for the 4th year. 

•	 The IMPACT grant funds are used to 
support the Quality Counts California 
Manager, coaches who provide 
training and mentoring to preschool 
and child care staff, and direct 
financial incentives to sites for their 
participation and quality improvement 
activities.  

•	 First 5 Mendocino, in collaboration 
with Adventist Health Labor and 
Delivery Department and MCHC Care 
for Her, provided funding for a pilot 
year of YoMingo, a parenting app 
which provides information from 
prenatal to parenting, including local 
content and resource information.  

•	 First 5 Mendocino also collaborated 
with Zero to Three to provide a five-
part series on Supporting the Early 
Childhood Workforce: Shifting from 
Shelter-in-Place to the New Normal.  

•	 First 5 Mendocino hired a Home 
Visiting Coordinator to help facilitate 
the Home Visiting Consortium which 
connects and collaborates with all 
home visiting programs throughout 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 43

the county. Efforts within the first year 
included creating a mission and vision, 
and conducting an environmental 
scan, which surveyed the workforce, 
families, and community. Additionally, 
First 5 Mendocino set up a new data 
management to better collect data 
from grantees and the community. The 
efforts of the new system should be 
seen in Fiscal Year 2021–22. 

Merced
First 5 Merced County (F5MC) launched 

its new strategic plan in Fiscal Year 2020–21. 
•	 Over the year, F5MC spent 
approximately $2.1 million to support 
services for more than 8,000 children, 
caregivers, and providers to build and 
enhance the five protective factors 
that promote optimal development 
and enhance the system of effective 
family support/strengthening 
programs. 

•	 As seen globally, the onset of the 
pandemic was a major influencing 
factor for F5MC staff and grantees. 
The F5MC staff were reassigned 
to the public health response to 
the pandemic, as F5MC is housed 
within the County’s Public Health 
Department. This reassignment caused 
the delay of many strategies originally 
planned to start in FY 2020–21. 

•	 For strategies focused on system 
strengthening, the home visiting 
coordination initiative was launched. 

•	 For strategies focused on service 
providers, IMPACT was the only multi-
year strategy funded, and one-time 
COVID-19 Relief Funds were provided 
to family child care homes and centers 
to help cover the costs of staying open 
during the pandemic. 

•	 For strategies directly serving 
children and families, Dolly Parton 
Imagination Library, Week of the 
Young Child, Innovation/GROW grants, 
mini grants, and sponsorships were 
implemented. All other strategies were 
postponed. Every grantee mentioned 
increased stress and difficulty with 
implementing some or all of their 
services. Service providers, however, 
were resilient and expressed gratitude 
for the F5MC staff, allowing them 
to adapt their scopes of work and 
budget. Some grantees reflected on 
the silver lining of pausing or shifting 
of services. After things settled down, 

they would think at a higher level 
about how to change systems and 
strengthen their infrastructure.

Modoc	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Modoc 

County invested in key partnership efforts 
to ensure children and families could 
access high-quality early education and 
care, mental health services, nutrition/
health resources, prenatal health initiatives, 
and parent/family education. Utilizing 
strong relationships, First 5 Modoc and its 
partners addressed barriers created by the 
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Collaborative 
partnerships were built with 10 funded 
programs serving 564 children (334 primary 
caregivers and 41 providers). 

•	 Efforts included the Tulelake/
Newell Family Resource Center 
which promoted self-sufficiency 
through service coordination, case 
management, playgroups, benefits 
access, and parenting classes. 

•	 Modoc County 4-H Cloverbuds offered 
an experiential program engaging 
children and families in agriculture 
and life-skills learning.

•	 Dollywood Imagination Library 
provided monthly age-appropriate 
books at no cost to families with 
1,500+ books delivered. 

•	 Budding Tree Preschool and Surprise 
Valley Child Development Center 

provided high-quality education/care 
environments to families not eligible 
for subsidized programs. 

•	 Breast is Best and Prenatal Inventive 
program promoted lactation 
consultations, breastfeeding 
awareness, and connection to prenatal 
care. 

•	 Early Mental Health Services provided 
11 families intensive family support 
through home-based psychotherapy 
and increased access to therapy for 
families experiencing crisis. 

•	 Also, the First 5 Modoc Early Learning 
& Resource HUB helped programs 
and families mitigate barriers of 
connection by conducting outreach 
through pop-up events at libraries, 
farmer markets, and health fairs. The 
HUB helped connect 339 children 
(245 caregivers), to cross-sector 
systems, services, and resources within 
Modoc, the region, and state. Services 
included early education and care 
connection, health services (physical 
and mental) connection, parenting 
education, professional development, 
and essential needs. 

Mono	
Thanks to the partnership of families, 

childcare providers, funders, and 
community agencies, First 5 Mono County 
continues to offer a strong system of 



44

support to children and families in Mono 
County through home visiting, playgroups, 
oral health support, school readiness, and 
the Mono Alpine Childcare Quality System. 
Specific successes include: 

•	 Partnering with non-tax filing families 
to support access to the Child Tax 
Credit. Through home visiting, First 
5 staff was able to share information 
about the Child Tax Credit and how 
to access it. This critical support to 
families is what many need most—an 
economic boost to provide for basic 
essentials of rent, food, and utilities for 
families.

•	 Resuming in-person home visits, 
playgroups, and Kindergarten 
Round Up. Working with the Health 
Department to get guidelines on 
safety practices and participation 
limitations in groups, First 5 Mono 
staff began offering in-person services 
after ceasing them during the height 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Staff noted 
how critical it is to work with families 
in person to be the best possible 
resource to families. In-person services 
allow for a better understanding of 
the child and family and are better 
able to decrease the isolation so many 
families face especially in a remote and 
rural community.  

•	 Sustaining a high percentage of 
provider participation in the Childcare 
Quality System—88 percent of 
licensed sites in the county. 

Thanks to providers for choosing 
to spend their time working towards 
higher levels of quality, children and 

families in Mono County who have a 
child care provider are supported with 
professional development for their provider, 
developmental screenings for their 
children, and an intentional link to home 
visiting services. While the challenges of 
living in a rural and remote area are many, 
First 5 Mono and partners enjoy personal 
connections with one another contributing 
to streamlined work that quickly identifies 
challenges and often produces solutions.       

Monterey
Throughout Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 

5 Monterey County (F5MC) served 22,270 
children, families, and providers by directing 
time and resources to meet the needs of 
families during the COVID-19 pandemic 
while advocating for systems change to 
address long-term inequities. 

•	 In June, the Monterey County Board of 
Supervisors supported a request from 
Bright Beginnings, an early childhood 
development initiative of the 
Monterey County Children’s Council, 
for $1.5 million of the American 
Rescue Plan Act funds to address child 
care needs in Monterey County. The 
request prioritized short and long-
term child care infrastructure and 
included teacher retention incentives, 
planning for facilities and business 
start-ups, and child care stipends for 
families in need. F5MC is the fiscal 
sponsor for Bright Beginnings and 
collaborated in drafting the request, 
advocated with local systems leaders, 
and crafted outreach messaging. 

•	 F5MC will lead the coordination of 

child care stipends for families. 
•	 F5MC co-sponsored vaccine clinics 
for child care workers and supported 
funded partners in fully implementing 
virtual services for families.   

•	 F5MC serves as the fiscal sponsor for 
the Central Coast Early Childhood 
Advocacy Network. Created in 
2018, Central Coast Early Childhood 
Advocacy Network continues to 
grow its reach through workshops, 
an annual Parent Power Summit, and 
regular state and federal legislative 
visits. All events and materials are 
bilingual in English and Spanish and 
center race, equity, diversity, and 
inclusion. In October 2020, the Central 
Coast Early Childhood Advocacy 
Network  hosted Centering Children 
& Families at the Heart of Recovery: A 
Town Hall with Congressman Jimmy 
Panetta. The panelists discussed how 
the region can collectively recover 
from the current economic, social and 
environmental challenges our children 
and families are facing. Child care, 
education, health and racial equity 
were highlighted. Parent leaders led 
the discussion on the priority focus 
areas sharing how systemic factors 
affect individual families and how 
community voice drives positive, 
lasting change.

•	 The Commission developed and 
adopted a new Strategic Plan for 
2021–2024 and released a Request for 
Proposals for programs that meet the 
Mission, Vision, and Goals set about by 
the new plan. The new Strategic Plan 
and contracts began July 2021.

Napa	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Napa 

County continued investing in systems-
level change through supporting the 
initiatives and projects designed by leaders 
in the First 5 Napa Network . One initiative 
from the first cohort of the First 5 Napa 
Network (2018–19) is the Rainbow Action 
Network , a group of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender, and Queer (LGBTQ) and ally 
community members committed to making 
Napa County a welcoming and safe home 
for LGBTQ families. 

First 5 Napa and Rainbow Action 
Network led efforts in Fiscal Year 2020–21 
to:

•	 Create LGBTQ and gender-inclusive 
early childhood education settings 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 45

using Rainbow Kits and coordinated 
training

•	 Utilize Little Free Libraries to increase 
access to diverse (anti-racist, LGBTQ/
gender-inclusive) children’s books 
throughout Napa County  

In Fiscal Year 2020–21, 64 Rainbow 
Kits were distributed to early childhood 
education settings throughout Napa 
County.

•	 167 providers were trained to best 
utilize the Kits. The Kits include 
LGBTQ and gender-inclusive picture 
books with bookmarks for facilitating 
discussion, LGBTQ-inclusive toys, 
invitations for using the toys in 
the classroom, suggestions for 
inclusive teaching techniques, 
family engagement ideas, and policy 
recommendations that support and 
promote diversity and inclusion. 

•	 Thirty-four providers completed an 
end of year survey. Five out of six 
reported increased confidence in 
implementing LGBTQ and gender-
inclusive practices into their programs 
because of the Rainbow Kits. Providers 
most liked the discussion bookmarks.  

In June 2021, First 5 Napa and Rainbow 
Action Network distributed 500 diverse 
children’s books through Little Free 
Libraries. All books contained tips in 
English and Spanish for grown-ups to have 
discussions about race, diversity, LGBTQ, 

gender inclusion, and standing up against 
unfairness while reading children’s books. 
Many of the books included bookmarks to 
help guide discussions and define terms 
that might be difficult for grown-ups to 
break down for children. First 5 Napa and 
Rainbow Action Network built and utilized 
community members to paint 11 Rainbow 
Little Libraries that were placed in “book 
deserts” in Napa County.

Nevada
Though reports show an overall 

decrease in the number of participants 
served during Fiscal Year 2020–2021, First 
5 Nevada programs reported successes in 
developing creative ways to engage the 
families they are working with. 

•	 The Community Collaborative of 
Tahoe Truckee has worked tirelessly 
to implement a seven-part “Learning 
Journey” to bring information to their 
partners while advancing collective 
race and equity work within local 
community-serving agencies. 

•	 The Family Resource Centers have 
continued to provide engaging 
activities virtually and in-person 
(when approved by Public Health) 
with a focus on reducing isolation 
and promoting age-appropriate 
developmental activities. 

•	 The evidence-based home visiting 
program, Healthy Babies, has been 

working to find ways to resume in-
person home visiting services.     

•	 Internally, staff has been focused 
on the implementation of the 
Persimmony database to track 
contractor deliverables and enable 
programs to gather client-level 
data. The database was launched 
in July 2021 and the Commission 
is encouraged by the potential for 
additional evaluation and program 
improvements.

•	 Commission staff also have focused 
a lot of energy on community-wide 
collaboration through the Home 
Visiting Coordination grant and 
partnering with the Child Abuse 
Prevention Council of Western Nevada 
County on their prevention planning 
efforts. Community collaborative 
efforts allows First 5 Nevada to 
strengthen partnerships with funded 
partners and other community-based 
organizations that serve children and 
families.     

•	 Finally, during Fiscal Year 2020–21, the 
First 5 Nevada Commission developed 
and adopted a new Strategic Plan for 
2021–24 and released a Request for 
Proposals for programs that meet the 
Mission, Vision, and Goals set about by 
the new plan. The new Strategic Plan 
and contracts begin July 2021.



46

Orange	
•	 Championing Equity: Dedicated 
to gaining deeper knowledge/
understanding of race, equity, 
diversity, and inclusion, First 5 Orange 
County partnered with CCSP to build 
staff/consultant skills and confidence 
addressing issues of racial equity, anti-
racism, and parent engagement. First 5 
Orange County is also participating in 
the reStructure program with Orange 
County Human Relations, a 12-session, 
1-year program that unpacks and 
identifies areas of racial equity needs 
and strengths within an organizational 
structure as well as at the individual 
level. First 5 Orange County is 
sponsoring participation in the 
reStructure cohorts for commissioners 
and staff, as well as community 
partners and nonprofits so that we are 
building up champions for equitable 
outcomes.  

•	 Family Engagement: Through 
its Engaged Neighborhood 
collaboratives, First 5 Orange 
County has supported increased 
family engagement through 
education opportunities on the Early 
Development Index, Developmental 
Milestones, and Advocacy. The Santa 
Ana Early Learning Initiative engages 
over 100 parent/caregiver leaders 
who champion early childhood 
development at school district/city 
events; the La Habra Little Learner 
collaborative engages the Parent 
Teachers Association on their task 
force, with parent leaders hosting 
virtual events to share their learnings; 
and Garden Grove and Anaheim 
Engaged Neighborhood collaboratives 

have created goals to incorporate 
family engagement in the coming 
years.  

•	 COVID-19 Response: During the 
pandemic, First 5 Orange County 
pushed out hundreds of thousands 
of dollars of supplies, learning kits, 
personal protective equipment, and 
more. Together, with agencies like 
Early Childhood Orange County, 
Orange County Department of 
Education, and the Orange County 
Child Care and Development Local 
Planning Council, the Emergency 
Child Care Task Force provided 
webinars, stipends, cleaning supplies, 
guidance for reopening, COVID-19 
health and safety trainings, health 
guidance around cleaning, as well as 
information around mental health 
and stress reduction resources for 
providers. First 5 Orange County also 
updated its website with specific 
resources dedicated to mitigating the 
strain that COVID-19 was causing on 
the community.

Placer
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Placer 

County implemented the Collaborative 
Action Plan together with its network to 
advance the strategic priorities related to 
children and families. Staff worked with 
funded partners to develop program logic 
models, conduct program cost analyses, 
and draft scopes of work; contracts 
commenced January 2021.  

•	 As the collective action work proceeds, 
staff are ensuring each funded partner 
has an engagement strategy to reach 
First 5 Placer’s priority populations; 
shared indicators are included across 
similar program areas; and activities 
match First 5 Placer strategies, 
priorities, and funding plan. 

•	 Toward the focus on addressing 
disparities, seven $20,000 mini 
grants were funded to serve targeted 
communities in furtherance of the 
aims of the Strategic Plan.  

•	 The Commission also created a 
Race, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion 
subcommittee to examine how First 5 
Placer can provide funding, evaluate, 
and support outreach with an equity 
lens. 

•	 The Commission also advanced its 
systems improvement work in several 
ways. One-third of First 5 Placer’s 
revenue was unrelated to tobacco 

taxes and included funding to 
support structure and collaboration, 
capacity building, and outreach and 
engagement. These included an 
expansion of Home Visiting programs 
and systems work to develop an 
Adverse Childhood Experiences 
Network of Care. These set the stage 
for implementation of an Early 
Identification and Intervention system 
in Placer County.

•	 In response to emerging needs due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, First 5 Placer 
and its funded partners explored 
opportunities to do their work 
differently, including virtual program 
facilitation; tracking data virtually; 
finding and referring families to high 
quality, affordable child care; and 
having to temporarily cancel programs 
and services. Funded partners were 
flexible, responsive, and resilient.  

Plumas	
First 5 Plumas County supports home 

visiting programs in which trained peer 
professionals provide regular, voluntary 
home visits to expectant and new parents 
and offer guidance, risk assessment, and 
referrals to other services offered in the 
community. While the Commission has 
historically invested in home visiting as 
its primary strategy in realizing its vision 
and fulfilling its mission, these services 
are needed now more than ever. Families 
are enduring the challenges posed by the 
COVID-19 global pandemic and recurring 
wildfires that have decimated large portions 
of the county.    

In the 2020–2021 programming year, 
home visiting programs adjusted their 
practices so they could continue to provide 
a comprehensive service array to families 
with the youngest children. Services were 
offered in nontraditional settings (front 
porch visits and meetings in parks and 
other open spaces) and home visitors 
sought to meet families increasing needs 
for emotional support and basic needs. As 
a result, 56 families were provided support 
with a total of 3,517 services rendered. 
Evaluation results reveal that families 
receiving these services experienced 
enhanced protective factors and routinely 
identified their home visitor as a source of 
information, comfort, and stability.

In addition to direct service delivery, 
the Commission also supported efforts 
to strengthen the family support system 
through the establishment of a Family 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 47

Strengthening Coalition. This Coalition was 
established to ensure that support systems 
are responsive to community needs, 
collaborate to improve access, and work 
in partnership with families to improve 
outcomes. It conducted an environmental 
scan to assess the concentration of risk, 
quality, and capacity of existing family 
support services, with a special emphasis on 
home visiting. This information was used to 
identify opportunities to expand or improve 
services for families and young children in 
Plumas County.

Riverside	
First 5 Riverside County continues to 

focus on opportunities to expand, enhance, 
and integrate key platforms for engaging 
and serving families with a whole child/
whole family/whole community lens. 

In July 2020, First 5 Riverside took 
administrative responsibility for the 
Riverside County Family Resource Centers. 
This community-based service setting 
rounds out the key platforms for in-home, 
healthcare-based and early learning-
based settings that First 5 Riverside has 
historically supported. Further, this gives 
First 5 Riverside an opportunity to develop, 
enhance, and improve cross-sector 
pathways for families from the prenatal 
phase of development through age 5 and 
beyond. Key investments include home 
visiting (997 children served), HealthySteps 
(9,622 served), Quality Start (803 provider 
incentives earned), and direct response to 
Family Resource Center (FRC) constituents 
(5,170 served). 

First 5 Riverside is utilizing a single 
data system to support home visiting 
and FRC programming, allowing for 
integration of home-based and community-
based resources for families. Further, the 
HealthySteps program and the Help Me 
Grow system support the integration of 
early childhood development supports into 
the larger healthcare system by embedding 
these programs into health sector 
databases. FRCs align investments with 
programs that use the Protective Factors 
Framework and promote community hubs 
for integrated services and crisis supports. 
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, the FRCs provided 
pandemic support and resources, increasing 
strategic partnerships to serve respective 
communities with growing needs due to 
COVID-19. This harnessed local leadership 
and combined resources to improve 
county services by building sustainable 
infrastructure through community fairs. 

Some examples in Fiscal Year 2020–21 
include home visiting program outreach, 
personal protective care distribution events, 
flu shot drive-throughs, pre-paid food cards 
to 250 farmworkers, and a toy drive which 
included 371 children ages 0 to 5.  

Sacramento	
First 5 Sacramento County funded an 

evaluation of Help Me Grow Sacramento 
(HMG) to better understand how its three 
primary services (call center, home visiting, 
and informational website) were helping 
families understand and promote their 
child’s developmental milestones and 
get connected to essential services. The 
following highlights key findings:  

•	 6 HMG staff members and seven 
HMG Family Advocate clients were 
interviewed, and 33 call center and 
website users completed an online 
survey.  

•	 Staff were especially proud of HMG’s 
partnerships with wraparound services 
and the ACEs Aware Community, 
and appreciated the ability to work 
through obstacles on behalf of 
families.  

•	 Staff reported challenges, including 
insufficient specialized or accessible 
service providers to which they could 
refer families, staff capacity issues, 
COVID-19, and larger scale social 
issues.   

•	 Clients often heard about HMG 
through word of mouth and referrals 
from agencies, and felt the navigating 

external systems, education on 
parenting styles and strategies, and 
resources provided were beneficial.   

•	 100 percent of family advocate clients 
and call center participants have 
recommended or would recommend 
HMG to someone they know. 97 
percent of call center and website 
users found what they were looking 
for.  

•	 When asked for ways to improve 
HMG, some clients mentioned more 
availability of staff, spreading the word 
to move families in need, and a return 
to in-person services.  

•	 Evaluation recommendations 
included: enhancing communication 
between partners, improving 
marketing strategies, innovate new 
partnerships for language needs, and 
continue evaluating client and staff 
experiences.  

San Benito
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 San Benito 

County continued to provide services 
and supports to children, families, and 
providers that addressed the ongoing 
effects of the Coronavirus. For example, 
through a partnership with nearly 40 other 
agencies, families and child care providers 
received weekly deliveries of food and 
other essential supplies, including cleaning 
supplies, diapers, and formula. Families 
receiving these emergency supplies were 
also referred to case management or home 
visiting services if they needed additional 



48

support. Families who chose to participate 
in the case management and home 
visiting programs demonstrated significant 
improvement in family functioning, 
knowledge of parenting and child 
development, positive parenting practices, 
feelings of social support, access to concrete 
supports, and the parent-child relationship, 
according to pre-post surveys. Children in 
the program also demonstrated improved 
resilience, as measured by their ability to 
stay calm and in control when faced with a 
challenge. 

In addition to direct services, First 5 
San Benito responded to the ongoing 
needs of the community by sponsoring 
and facilitating a multisector collaborative 
of local leaders. The objectives of 
the network collaboration included 
improving the capacity of local agencies 
to understand the impact of Adverse 
Childhood Experiences on families and 
to provide culturally sensitive, trauma-
informed care; addressing complex 
problems by breaking down silos and 
promoting communication, collaboration, 
and alignment within and across service 
sectors; and providing multiple entry points 
to the service system with warm handoffs 
and a collaborative treatment approach to 
address fragmentation. At the end of the 
fiscal year, a survey of the collaborative 
members found that the majority felt the 
collaborative was important and beneficial 
to them, that what they were trying to 
accomplish as a collaborative couldn’t have 
been accomplished alone, and that the time 
is right in the county for this work.

San Bernardino	
Early Literacy Support: During Fiscal 

Year 2020–21, 4 First 5 San Bernardino 
AmeriCorps members provided one-on-
one literacy, mathematics, social emotional, 
and school readiness services to students 
in 4 Head-Start Preschool sites in the San 
Bernardino County Preschool Services 
Department. Adhering to COVID-19 
Pandemic protocols, they also provided 
much needed support and services to 
local food banks, virtual learning support, 
and drive-by community events. These 
members contributed over 4,347 hours and 
served more than 3,460 families and 2,081 
children.   

Fiscal Year 2020–21 was the first 
“full-service” year of the Parent and Child 
Connection Program, working with 4 local 
jails and serving 442 families. The program 
gives inmates an opportunity to bond 
with their children by reading a story and 
recording their voice on a devise which is 
inserted into a stuffed animal and delivered 
to the child and caregivers.  

The Maternal Health Network is made 
up of more than 100 individuals from 
approximately 60 organizations throughout 
San Bernardino County to help improve 
the experience and outcomes for families 
who are planning to get pregnant, those 
who are pregnant, and those who have 
recently delivered a child. The Network 
establishes partnerships between service 
sectors, uses data to drive continuous 
quality improvement efforts, and takes 
collaborative action to improve the health 
and wellness of families engaged in the 
maternal health system.

The Network has made significant 
strides in establishing itself as a successful 
systems change initiative. Key milestones 
achieved in Fiscal Year 2020–21 include:

•	 Established an Action Plan for 
implementation of short-term 
strategies 

•	 Launched the Mental Health Network 
website as a hub for resources and 
information sharing

•	 Collected and analyzed consumer 
data to understand the experience of 
families within the maternal health 
system – centering the voices of 
consumers in quality improvement 
efforts

•	 Facilitated a multi-sector collaboration 
to better serve females who are 
pregnant and incarcerated 

•	 Elevated the needs of Black and 
African American families, with equity 
identified as the most pressing issue 
facing families in San Bernardino 
County  have come 

San Diego	
During Fiscal Year 2020–21, the 

COVID-19 pandemic continued to present 
unique challenges for staff, community 
partners, and San Diego families. First 5 San 
Diego County staff engaged with partners 
in a joint countywide COVID-19 response 
effort. Under the leadership of the First 5 
San Diego Executive Director, First 5 San 
Diego staff worked to provide families and 
providers of children birth to 5 years of age 
with supportive resources and services to 
ensure their safety and well-being.     

•	 First 5 San Diego initiated ongoing 
communication with the Early 
Childhood Education Coalition to 
assess the impact of the pandemic on 
the childcare sector. 

•	 First 5 San Diego maintained the 
Early Care sector support webpage 
to provide up-to-date information 
on the rapidly evolving public health 
situation with local, state, and national 
guidance tailored to the childcare 
community. 

•	 First 5 San Diego also began hosting 
informative telebriefings and engaged 
a diverse provider group throughout 
the county, all while following public 
health guidelines and utilizing digital 
methods of communication. This 
response effort led to the re-activation 
of the Child Care Disaster Council, 
co-chaired by the First 5 San Diego 
Executive Director. The Council 
developed the “Child Care Emergency 
Response Plan” that outlined a means 
to coordinate, receive, and distribute 
emergency supplies from the state 
and from First 5 California through 
regional distribution sites.    

•	 First 5 San Diego service providers 
continued to offer services, 
including virtual phone check-ins, 
virtual developmental/behavioral 
services, virtual home visits, and 
virtual preschool. Maintaining these 
connections and supporting families 
through these most difficult times has 
been critical for families’ well-being. 
Despite the pandemic, thousands of 
families benefited from community-



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 49

wide services, such as daily activities 
on social media and the First 5 San 
Diego website, distribution of the 
Kit for New Parents, maintaining the 
parent warm line, and providing 
community health screenings and 
outreach.  

San Francisco
For over two decades, First 5 San 

Francisco County has invested in the 
county’s youngest children, their families, 
and providers who work on their behalf with 
a mission that all children will thrive and 
start school ready to learn. The COVID-19 
pandemic, stay-at-home mandates, and 
the resulting economic downturn caused 
momentous and unprecedented challenges 
for San Francisco’s families, bringing new 
meaning and urgency to this mission.    

Investments in the Quality Connections 
Quality Rating and Improvement System 
reaches approximately 8,000 children 
in over 400 participating early care and 
education sites. When surveyed during the 
pandemic, 50 percent of programs worried 
they would go out of business in three 
months; 25 percent reported having to lay 
off or furlough staff. Through twice-weekly 
partner meetings at the height of the crisis, 
and continuing weekly round tables that 
reached hundreds of providers with re-
opening guidance and technical support, 
100 percent of city-funded sites were able 
to re-open by September 2020.     

The Family Resource Center Initiative 
pivoted all services to remote and virtual 
modalities providing a vital lifeline by 
distributing food, diapers, and household 
supplies; offering myriad opportunities 
for social connection; advocating with 
landlords; and singing to children over 
Zoom. Supports continued throughout 
2020 and subsequent 2021 pandemic 
surges. Over 1000 COVID-positive homes 
with babies and toddlers received formula, 
diapers, wipes, and baby food from Family 
Resource Centers during this time of 
isolation when they were cut off from other 
supports. Family Resource Centers made 
regular wellness calls to their approximately 
6,000 enrolled families. They oversaw nearly 
2,500 food pantry distributions per week 
and ensured that 2,433 gift cards and food 
vouchers were put in the hands of those 
who had lost some or all income due to 
COVID-19. Case Management supports 
were at record high rates, exceeding the 
average annual participation rate over the 
last 6 years of 1,600 by nearly 200 families.

San Joaquin	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 San 

Joaquin County focused on the areas of 
Enhance Early Learning, Improve Child 
Health, and Strengthen Family and 
Community Support and Partnership. 

First 5 San Joaquin invested in Raising 
Quality! IMPACT 2020: Family, Friend, and 
Neighbor Initiative that aims to enhance the 

quality of care provided by grandparents 
from diverse racial and ethnic communities. 
In this first year, 74 grandparents enrolled 
and cared for 104 children (58 infants and 
toddlers and 46 preschool aged children). 
Grandparents received support that 
included coaching, goal setting, workshops, 
and information regarding early screening 
and detection of developmental delays and 
were provided access to the screening tools. 
Due to screening access, 142 of the children 
were screened and 13 received referrals for 
follow up. First 5 San Joaquin will expand 
this program to approximately 230 new 
grandparents in 2021–23 by leveraging 
local funding. 

Three First 5 San Joaquin WORKs 
programs provided services to families with 
children ages 0 to 5 who receive CalWORKs 
benefits. 

•	 HousingWORKs helps families facing 
homelessness and aids in reducing 
housing barriers. 

•	 JourneyWORKs addresses mental 
health and substance abuse issues, 
helps parents maintain healthy 
independent family lives, and helps 
assure children are in safe and stable 
homes. 

•	 FamilyWORKs supports positive 
health, growth, and well-being; 
expanding educational and economic 
opportunities for families to exit 
poverty. Home visiting participants 
received services such as job search 
and readiness, and screening of 
215 children for early detection of 
developmental delays. 

The WORKs programs served a total 
of 601 individuals from a wide variety of 
ethnic backgrounds, including 230 Latinx, 
180 African American/Black, 51 White, 49 
Multiracial, 15 Asian, 4 Pacific Islander, 
and 72 were unknown, other, or did not 
specify. Evaluation results showed that 
when families participated in two or more 
WORKs programs, had higher success in 
achieving their goals as opposed to those 
participating in one WORKs program.

San Luis Obispo	
Amid challenges of the COVID-19 

Pandemic, First 5 San Luis Obispo County 
continued directing urgent-needs 
investments to its local Community 
Foundation Disaster Response Fund, 
offering support to a wide breadth of 
family-serving agencies across the county. 



50

•	 Under First 5 San Luis Obispo’s new 
Strategic Plan, the Commission 
bolstered basic needs and mental 
health supports while propelling 
new programmatic ventures in early 
learning and resiliency. This included 
providing funding for the expansion of 
a bilingual, inclusive preschool as well 
as parent learning pods focused on 
giving families real-time experiences 
with their children, social networking, 
and age-appropriate insight on 
growth and development. 

•	 In collaboration with County of 
San Luis Obispo Behavioral Health 
Department, San Luis Obispo’s Mental 
Health Services Act-funded 3 by 
3 Partnership with local pediatric 
clinics yielded nearly 340 hours 
of one-on-one health education 
and developmental screenings for 
families, with more than 1,000 children 
screened and 181 children identified 
as needing early intervention services. 
To shine a brighter light on those 
efforts, First 5 San Luis Obispo shifted 
the theme of its monthly “Hands-on 
Heroes” public awareness campaign to 
honor individuals working in the spirit 
of Help Me Grow. 

•	 The First 5 Health Access Training 
Project held provider-outreach events 
on topics ranging from COVID-19 
vaccine updates, rental assistance 
housing and eviction prevention 
resources, child tax credit information, 
and supports specific to Immigrant 
families. 

•	 First 5 San Luis Obispo went from 
advocacy to action with the rollout 
of the community-driven Family-
Friendly Workplace Toolkit, an online 
resource designed to help employers 
assess their current business practices, 
explore the benefits of family-friendly 
workplace policies, and identify 
opportunities for change. 

•	 Work also began on creating an 
associated Family-Friendly Workplace 
“Accelerator” Program in partnership 
with the San Luis Obispo Chamber 
of Commerce and County of San Luis 
Obispo. Both of these projects were 
born from a “We Are the Care” Initiative 
to address local child care challenges. 

San Mateo
During Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 San 

Mateo County maintained its multi-faceted 
investments in programs supporting 
all aspects of a child’s early years, 
including Quality Early Learning; Healthy 
Development; Resilient Families; and Policy, 
Advocacy, and Communications. Supported 
by $4.5 million in community investments, 
First 5 San Mateo’s funded partners served 
nearly 15,000 children, parents, and 
providers. The highlights included:  

•	 Ongoing leadership and collaboration 
in efforts to support the community 
during COVID-19. First 5 San Mateo 
helped to secure and distribute 
$5.3 million through the Child Care 
Relief Fund, including $4.5 million 
from the CARES Act, and $530,000 
in private contributions. There 
were weekly meetings to plan and 
coordinate efforts, and partner in the 
distribution of emergency health and 
safety supplies. Throughout the year, 
partners drove 5,160 miles countywide 
to deliver over 7,000 items, including 
diapers, gloves, masks, and children’s 
books, to more than 300 child care 
providers. 

•	 Launching the next phase of the 
Trauma- and Resiliency-Informed 
Systems Initiative, including 
administration of a Trauma-Informed 
Organizational Practices Assessment 

and Professional Learning Cohorts. 
The Trauma-Informed Organizational 
Practices Assessment was 
completed by over 350 staff across 8 
organizations serving families with 
young children. Six organizations 
joined the inaugural Learning Cohorts. 
Cohorts meet monthly in small 
groups, and each participating agency 
receives tailored coaching to support 
staff as they interpret assessment 
results, develop goals and strategies 
for improvement, and work together 
to nurture a healing environment for 
clients and the workforce.  

•	 Continuing to sustain and develop 
high-quality facilities to meet the 
county’s increasing need for child care. 
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, the Build Up 
Initiative completed 425 new spaces, 
confirmed that 822 spaces will be 
added soon, and initiated planning for 
an additional 369 spaces.   

Santa Barbara	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Santa 

Barbara County invested $3,449,178 in 
programs and services for 826 children, 929 
primary caregivers/family members, and 30 
providers. Investment strategies included 
family support, expansion and quality of 
early childhood spaces, communications 
and policy development, and systems 
change and capacity building. First 5 Santa 
Barbara achieved several noteworthy results 
that improved the lives of children and 
families within the county:  

•	 COVID-19 Response: First 5 Santa 
Barbara-funded partners prioritized 
emergent needs among families with 
children ages 0 to 5 years and made 
numerous referrals for basic needs 
and concrete support. Agencies 
continued providing food and other 
much needed material items to 
families, including diapers, baby wipes, 
masks, books, and developmentally 
appropriate toys and activities for 
children. Programs also hosted 
multiple vaccination clinics and made 
personal phone calls to families to 
answer any questions they had.  

•	 Early Learning Plans (ELPs): First 5 
Santa Barbara and its UC Santa Barbara 
Evaluation Team worked with four 
local school districts on developing 
ELPs that aim to improve continuity 
between the early childhood 
education and K–12 systems, and 
reduce income-based opportunity 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 51

gaps among young, at-risk children. 
The goal of all ELPs is to expand 
efforts to improve social-emotional 
and cognitive development and thus 
promote kindergarten readiness and 
early elementary school success. An 
additional five school districts will join 
this initiative in Fiscal Year 2021–22. 

•	 Dual Language Learner (DLL) 
Study: First 5 Santa Barbara started 
implementing Phase III of the DLL 
study. The main activities included 
a countywide public awareness 
campaign about the importance 
and value of being bilingual. In 
addition, four ELP school districts 
were subcontracted to provide 
early childhood and family DLL 
activities and the Quality Counts and 
Workforce Pathways partnership 
created specialized DLL professional 
development. Due to COVID-19, the 
majority of the DLL activities will be 
conducted in Fiscal Year 2021–22.

Santa Clara	
First 5 Santa Clara County launched an 

expansive COVID-19 relief effort leveraging 
both existing funds and systems to support 
communities using their network of 
partners. First 5 Santa Clara has leveraged 
$11,891,786 for its COVID-19 response 
efforts. 

•	 The Family Strengthening and Support 
initiative tracked their safety-net 
support efforts using the Needs 
Tracker (https://first5kids.org/safety-
net-supports/) they put in place across 
all  their family resources centers. 

•	 Nearly 15,000 family needs were 
recorded in Fiscal Year 2020–21. Food 
(2,372) was the top need for families, 
followed by activities for children 
(1,379), toiletries (1,063), and child care 
(886). 

•	 First 5 Santa Clara organized curbside 
distributions at over 24 community 
sites where families could pick up 
food, calming kits, resource guides 
(provided in English, Spanish, and 
Vietnamese: www.first5kids.org/
resources), diaper kits, formula, and 
personal protective equipment. A 
total of 1,724,800 diapers and 13,824 
formula cans were distributed to 
families. 

•	 To support the stabilization of child 
care for the community, the Early 
Learning Initiative launched the Family 

Child Care Stabilization program 
which awarded more than $5.2 million 
to 528 Family Child Care Homes. In 
addition to using these funds, full-
year scholarships were awarded to 
40 families who were residing in the 
City of San Jose, and 17 subsidized 
classrooms expanding their care to 
serving over 200 families. 

•	 The Health and Wellness Initiative 
oversaw and distributed 473 Calming 
Kits to parents and providers to 
promote coping and calming. In 
addition, 12,894 personal protective 
equipment were provided, and 16,373 
period products were distributed to 
families. 

•	 In conclusion, First 5 Santa Clara was 
able to respond quickly to support the 
needs of the children, families, and 
community they serve and leveraged 
funds in order to provide a wide net of 
support. Findings of these efforts were 
presented at the Santa Clara County 
Children’s Summit as well as the 2021 
American Public Health Association 
Conference.

Santa Cruz	
First 5 Santa Cruz County’s Baby 

Gateway Newborn Enrollment Program 
supports mothers and their newborns at 
three Santa Cruz County hospitals. Before 
leaving the hospital, families are visited by 
a Newborn Enrollment Coordinator and are 
provided Medi-Cal enrollment assistance 
and given the First 5 California Kit for New 
Parents, and newborns are linked to a 
medical home. The program also expanded 
partnerships with key agencies to offer 
additional supports to families.  

•	 Connection to medical care: In Fiscal 
Year 2020–21, 96 percent of all 

mothers had a newborn visit, and 95 
percent received a Kit for New Parents. 
Of all mothers with Medi-Cal births, 97 
percent were assisted to complete an 
application for their new baby, and 99 
percent chose a primary care provider 
for their child.   

•	 New County programs: First 5 Santa 
Cruz began assisting with two new 
programs, which the Newborn 
Enrollment Coordinators incorporated 
into their visits. The State-wide 
Student Identification number 
(SSID) created for newborns by the 
County Office of Education, used to 
support the social, emotional, and 
academic development of children 
from birth through grade 12; and 
the Santa Cruz Community Ventures 
Semillitas savings account program for 
newborns, with incentives throughout 
childhood to save money to be used 
for college or vocational education 
after high school.  

•	 Access to food: The COVID-19 
pandemic has many families in the 
community struggling to get access 
to food. The Newborn Enrollment 
Coordinators provide families with 
resources to apply for the CalFresh 
program and Women, Infants, and 
Children.  

•	 Lowered emergency department use: 
These program services may have an 
effect on the use of the emergency 
department for very young infants, 
and particularly those covered by 
Medi-Cal. Since the launch of this 
program at Watsonville Community 
Hospital, the number of infants on 
Medi-Cal who visited the emergency 
department dropped 74 percent by 
2020.   



52

•	 Summary: Through these efforts, the 
program is helping to increase access 
to affordable quality health care 
for newborns and improve overall 
maternal, child, and infant health.

Shasta	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Shasta 

County began a multi-year Home Visitation 
grant. It established a cohort to create a 
sustainable, unified system to support 
families with home visiting services, and 
is completing an Environmental Scan to 
assess home visiting program needs and 
gaps. Other Shasta County achievements 
included:

•	 Continued work with community 
partners around Adverse Childhood 
Experiences’ (ACEs) education, 
prevention, and intervention, 
including quarterly community 
meetings. 

•	 Completed ACEs’ Aware Planning 
grant and expanded ACEs and 
Pediatric ACES and Related Life Events 
Screener (PEARLS) screenings to over 
300 parents and families. 

•	 Help Me Grow Shasta completed 385 
developmental screenings for children 
ages 0 to 5 and provided referrals and 
case coordination services to over 
1,800 children and families. 

•	 Distributed over $690,000 to 
participants of Quality Counts North 
State to improve the quality of early 
childhood education and distributed 
over $24,000 in academic scholarships 
to 40 early childhood education 
providers to increase their knowledge 
of child development.  

•	 Distributed over $295,000 to 
participants of Quality Counts 
California, Region 2 Hub for training 
and support to early childhood 
education providers. 

•	 Continued to support local child care 
and social service providers with grant 
funds and supplies in response to 
COVID-19. 

•	 Partnered with community-based 
organizations to provide COVID-19-
safe activities for families, such as 
virtual story-times and drive-through 
events.

•	 Coordinated 15 Week of the Young 
Child events, and distributed over 
7,000 children’s books. 

•	 Invested over $119,000 in community 
collaborations to strengthen families 
in Shasta County. 

•	 Invested over $111,000 in the Launch 
Parent Partner program to support 
families and reduce chronic absenteeism 
in Transitional Kindergarten and 
Kindergarten.

•	 Through the Healthy Babies Program, 
First 5 Shasta provided mental health 
services to 51 pregnant women 
and mothers of children aged 0 to 2 
experiencing depression or anxiety 
during pregnancy or postpartum. 

•	 First 5 Institute delivered learning 
opportunities for 800 children and 580 
parents/caregivers through professional 
development and library story times.

•	 Created “Champions for NorCal Kids” 
Podcasts to expand outreach by more 
than 600 listeners

Sierra	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Sierra County 

supported expecting families and children 
starting from birth to have the best first five 
years of life possible, and grow up healthy and 
happy in strong and resilient families. First 5 
Sierra values early educational opportunities 
so all children can develop and become 
strong, smart, and resilient adults. 

•	 First 5 Sierra’s most successful 
achievement continued to be its 
preschool tuition subsidy program. This 
program supports working families, 
most of whom would not be able 
to send their children to preschool 
without tuition assistance. Investing in 
a program where all children living in 
rural communities can attend preschool, 

ensures that Sierra County children 
will start Kindergarten with the most 
optimal preparation with the least 
disparity.  

•	 First 5 Sierra provided backpacks 
and school supplies to all children 
entering Transitional Kindergarten 
and Kindergarten, which was highly 
appreciated by the parents and 
children.  

•	 First 5 Sierra continues to seek 
innovative ways to support and 
positively impact Sierra County’s 
children through programs such as 
yoga, music, and swimming lessons. 

•	 The crisis and changes brought 
by COVID-19 affected the normal 
functioning of scarce child care 
providers, but First 5 Sierra supported 
them in every way possible. As a result, 
all  providers were able to stay open 
with minimal closures, providing 
consistent support for all families and 
essential workers. 

Siskiyou	
“Yes. We are open!” were common words 

heard each time the phone rang at the 
Siskiyou Family and Community Resource 
Centers (FRCs). Co-funded by First 5 Siskiyou 
Children and Families Commission, FRCs 
continued to expand their services in most 
of Siskiyou County, keeping their doors 
open, and providing services without 
disruption, while upholding COVID-19 
safety measures. This critical approach was 
deeply appreciated by county constituents, 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 53

with over 600 parents and 800 children 
receiving services from the FRCs, and over 
250 children participating in playgroups. 
The FRCs continue to be the critical 
community hub for services, supports, and 
resources. 

•	 During Fiscal Year 2020–21, the FRCs, 
in collaboration with First 5 Siskiyou, 
offered evidence-based parent 
education classes and workshops, and 
distributed nearly 2,000 family activity 
kits and over 14,000 children’s books. 
FRCs also hosted over 40 outreach 
events to increase family awareness 
about the array of offerings provided 
at each FRC. These programs improve 
the quality of parent-child interactions, 
support children’s development, 
and increase connections between 
parents.   

•	 Additionally, the Ready4K evidence-
based parenting education program, 
delivered via text messages, was 
adopted by First 5 Siskiyou in 
partnership with the Mental Health 
Services Act. Each week, parents 
receive fun facts and easy tips on 
how to promote their children’s 
development by building on existing 
family routines. More than 600 
parents actively participated in this 
program and received over 150,000 
messages. The extensive menu of 
offerings is made possible through 
diverse funding partners. As a result, 
the total revenue for this small county 
has grown 137 percent. At the core of 
this success is the Small Population 
County Funding Augmentation dollars 
invested by First 5 California. The 
diversified funding and commitment 
by FRCs provide the path for parents 
to have more opportunities to engage 
with resources than ever before and 
build protective factors for family 
success.

Solano	
In early Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 

Solano County established the Vallejo 
First 5 Center, in the zip code with the 
highest risk factors for children.The center 
provides a full range of dual-generation 
services to support healthy behavior, social 
and emotional development, and school 
readiness for children, as well as providing 
parents the tools needed to develop 
positive parent-child relationships. Building 
on the success of the Vallejo First 5 Center, 

and because of Assemblymember Jim 
Frazier’s advocacy, First 5 Solano received $2 
million in the Fiscal Year 2021–22 California 
State Budget to support opening a First 
5 Center in Fairfield. Additionally, First 5 
Solano acted as an anchor institution in 
coordinating COVID-19 responses in Solano 
County for young children, their families, 
and the providers that support them.     

First 5 Solano accessed over $1 million 
in funding from the CARES Act. The funding 
was utilized in a variety of ways, including: 

•	 Supporting child care for essential 
workers as part of the efforts of the 
Office of Emergency Services. Seventy-
six families and a total of 124 children 
were provided care at two pop-up 
child care locations.

•	 Local stipends were provided for 
licensed child care providers. One-
hundred twenty-nine child care 
providers serving a total of 1,056 
children were enrolled in the stipend 
program, preserving their ability to 
stay open despite increased costs in 
providing care.  

•	 Grants were provided for social 
distancing equipment, individual 
learning supplies, cleaning supplies, 
and other supports through the First 5 
Solano Emergency Response Fund.

Sonoma
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Sonoma 

County’s focus was far-reaching in many 
ways. Responding to the impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic remained a high 
priority as the agency elevated the critical 
role of Family Resource Centers and other 
community hubs to distribute supplies, 
basic needs, access to benefits, system 
navigation, COVID-19 testing, and more. 

•	 First 5 Sonoma maximized public 
education and communications 
through its electronic newsletter 
and multiple social media platforms 
to amplify local information about 
COVID-19 testing, vaccines, and safety. 
To mitigate the spread of the virus, 
child care providers and families were 
notified as soon as vaccines became 
available. As a direct response to the 
impact of COVID-19 on the local child 
care system, First 5 Sonoma, with 
the support of collaborative funding, 
distributed over $1 million in grants 
directly to child care providers in the 
Child Care Resiliency Fund. 

•	 The Commission, staff, and 

stakeholders, despite the virtual 
environment, developed and finalized 
a new, robust four-year strategic plan, 
grounded in a bold commitment to 
advancing equity, diversity, belonging, 
and anti-racism—committing over 
$14 million to programs, services, and 
systems improvement. The strategic 
plan also included the development 
of a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
framework to guide internal policies 
and grantmaking mechanisms and 
support funding partners to increase 
cultural responsiveness and authentic 
parent engagement practices. 

•	 In spring of Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 
5 Sonoma became the first local First 
5 commission to partner with the 
California Student Aid Commission, 
receiving funding of over half a million 
dollars to establish over 800 Child 
Savings Accounts for children, ages 2 
to 5. 

•	 As the Federal Government locally 
rolled out the Coronavirus Local 
American Rescue Plan Act funding, 
First 5 Sonoma formed a coalition 
of over 20 child-and-family-serving 



54

organizations to proactively advocate 
to ensure the funding was directed 
toward the impacts of the pandemic 
and families with young children.

Stanislaus	
It is the mission of First 5 Stanislaus 

County to be a catalyst to help give children 
and families the best start. This commitment 
was unwavering with the deepening 
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic during 
this past year.     

•	 Early in Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 
Stanislaus worked with its funded 
partners to ensure services continued 
to be delivered to the community in 
a safe way. First 5 Stanislaus partner 
organizations reach thousands of 
the most vulnerable members of 
the community each year. Partners 
continued to offer services virtually, 
and by phone and drive-through 
formats which allowed children and 
families to remain connected to their 
support systems and receive basic 
needs when they were most needed.      

•	 Through its partnership with a 
network of 12 local Family Resource 
Centers, First 5 Stanislaus invested 

$310,000 of emergency funding into 
the local community for basic human 
needs and support in response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

•	 Over 1,760 individuals impacted by 
the pandemic received assistance 
such as housing/utility payment 
relief, grocery assistance, cleaning 
supplies, or basic needs. $70,000 of 
this special funding was issued to 
community partners for technology 
enhancements to support virtual 
customer engagement strategies.     
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, First 
5 Stanislaus-funded partners were able 
to make a significant impact with the 
children and families they served. 

•	 The parents of 7,687 children received 
family support services through 
countywide Family Resource Centers 
or other programs, and 935 received 
more intensive services focused on 
improving child abuse risk factors. 
The parents of 576 children attended 
parenting classes to increase 
parenting skills and knowledge. 
90 percent (788/880) of families of 
children ages 0 to 5 increased the time 
spent reading with their children at 

home after receiving literacy services.  
808 children ages 0 to 5 who received 
literacy services, received a book to 
build upon the skills they and their 
families learned. 

Sutter	   
First 5 Sutter County Children and 

Families Commission received an Adverse 
Childhood Experiences (ACEs) Aware 
Grant from the State of California. First 5 
Sutter used these funds to start building 
a Network of Care to interrupt the toxic 
stress response in children and adults. 
The Network of Care includes two Medi-
Cal clinics, social services (Sutter-Yuba 
Behavioral Health and Domestic Violence 
Council & Child Abuse Prevention 
Council, and Women’s Shelter), and other 
community-based organizations, such as 
the school district and law enforcement.   

•	 First 5 Sutter has invested resources 
in the “Handle with Care initiative,” 
a trauma-informed approach for 
supporting children who have 
been exposed to a traumatic event 
that requires a response from law 
enforcement. The first virtual Trauma-
Informed Workshop was held in 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 55

the summer and garnered a lot of 
interest from attendees, as well as 
interest from other partners to join the 
Network of Care.   

•	 Another success of First 5 Sutter is 
the partnership with two Medi-Cal 
providers, Peach Tree Health and 
Feather River Tribal Health. First 
5 Sutter worked directly with the 
providers’ behavioral health directors 
to provide ACEs screening during Help 
Me Grow events. Help Me Grow events 
typically have eight screening stations, 
including physical health, child 
development, and positive discipline; 
and now, another station has been 
added for ACEs screening. Medi-Cal 
providers conducted the screenings 
in a sensitive way, while giving 
educational materials to families that 
explain the consequences of ACEs. 

•	 Peach Tree Health has added a HIPPA-
compliant text messaging platform 
to send ACEs and Pediatrics ACEs 
and Related Life Events Screener 
assessments directly to patients and 
are training staff on how to explain 
toxic stress to patients. Thus far, 
there has been a good response 
from the families that completed the 
screenings.  

•	 Lastly, members of the Network of 
Care have shown interest in having 
a unified, bi-directional system for 
screening and referrals. After exploring 
different options, First 5 Sutter will 
host the launch of the Aunt Bertha 
platform.

Tehama	
First 5 Tehama County promotes 

collaborative and creative solutions for 
building sustainable programs that serve 
children ages 0 to 5 and decrease silos to 
better serve Tehama’s children and families. 

In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Tehama 
continued to support the Pregnancy to 
Preschool Partnership, a collaboration of 
publicly funded agencies to streamline 
referral and data sharing processes. An 
online referral system affectionately called 
the “Tracker” launched in the spring of 2020. 
The Pregnancy to Preschool Partnership 
partners have spent the last year utilizing 
the “Tracker” to decrease silos and increase 
access to services. Through support from 
the Small Population County Funding 
Augmentation program, First 5 Tehama 
funds the School Readiness Home Visitation 
and Help Me Grow program to ensure 
that there is no barrier entry point for 
any children. Notably, families have both 
improved family functioning and child 
health, and increased social connections. 

Regarding medical health, 98 percent 
of children participating in home visiting 
had medical services. To better understand 
the impact, the Parenting Interactions 
with Children: Checklist of Observations 
Linked to Outcomes was adopted showing 
the positive impact on families: between 
the pre- and post-tests were statistically 
significant for all domains, including 
Teaching, Responsiveness, Encouragement, 
Affection. 

Through a partnership with the local 
department of education and cradle-

to-career collaborative, First 5 Tehama 
facilitated eight Health and Wellness 
webinar series, attended by 183 community 
educators learning about timely topics, 
such as resilience, equity, social emotional 
wellbeing, and flow. Two of these eight 
webinars were offered in Spanish and 
focused on mind and body strategies for 
resilience. One participant shared, “As a 
home visitor, I have been to many amazing 
trainings, and this was the first time it felt 
like it was just for me. I almost cried when I 
realized it was in Spanish.” 

First 5 Tehama will continue to use the 
learnings from this year to build programs 
and support systems addressing rising pre-
pandemic and pandemic-related needs of 
children, families, and systems.

Trinity	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Trinity 

County Children and Families Commission 
invested in a variety of services aimed at 
supporting children prenatal through age 
five and their families. Primary investments 
include School Readiness Playgroups. The 
Trinity County Office of Education provides 
pre-K programs at various locations 
throughout the county. The pre-K school 
readiness program offers structured 
playgroups using a nationally recognized 
curriculum aimed at preparing children 
for the academic, social, and emotional 
rigors of kindergarten. The school readiness 
program also provides health-related 
supports to ensure that children are 
healthy upon kindergarten entry. Lastly, the 
program offers parenting and family literacy 
activities to support parents and caregivers 
as their child’s first teacher.

Tulare	
First 5 Tulare County’s vision is that all 

Tulare County children thrive in supportive, 
safe, loving homes and neighborhoods, and 
will enter school healthy and ready to learn.

In Fiscal Year 2020–21, all of First 5 Tulare 
County’s funded programs served 42,022 
parents and children. First 5 Tulare is proud 
of all the efforts its programs have put forth 
in Fiscal Year 2020–21. The following are 
highlights of two programs:

•	 United Way of Tulare County 2-1-1 
Resource and Referral Program saw an 
overwhelming increase of 336 percent 
(from 2018 to 2020) in calls for families 
seeking health care services and basic 
needs due to COVID-19, the drought, 
and fires. United Way of Tulare County 
2-1-1 Resource and Referral Program 



56

referred and linked families. The 
program staff worked tirelessly to 
ensure families were linked to services. 

•	 Parenting Network Dinuba Family 
Resource Center opened its doors 
in March of 2020. Initially, they were 
unable to provide services due to 
COVID-19 protocols and procedures. 
This past year, they focused on 
outreach and continued to provide 
services to families in need via creative 
approaches. This program also has 
increased the number of families they 
served this year by 250 percent: Last 
year, they served 30 families, and this 
year they served 104.       

Tuolomne	
First 5 Tuolumne County provides 

leadership and support for programs to 
achieve the vision that all children are 
healthy and ready to learn. 

In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Tuolumne 
County invested $569,300, providing 
services to nearly 1,300 young children, 
parents, and providers. Although First 5 
Tuolumne faced significant challenges 
due to COVID-19, the programs and staff 
adapted and found creative and innovative 
ways to stay connected to local families. 
Many programs have permanently 
improved the systems of delivery. First 
5 Tuolumne’s main focus areas are the 
following:

•	 Improved Family Functioning: Staff at 
the Family Learning Center responded 
to the need of families by delivering 
personal protective equipment, 
diapers, wipes, and other essential 
supplies, reducing stress on families to 
find these necessary items. 

	» First 5 Tuolumne’s parenting 
classes and home visits were also 
transitioned to an online platform, 
which enabled many parents to 
participate whom otherwise would 
not have. There were 653 children 
served with books through the 
Imagination Library. 

	» First 5 Tuolumne has built a great 
partnership with the Birth Center to 
offer a Kit for New Parents to every 
parent who delivers their baby at 
the hospital. Over 300 kits were 
distributed this year.

•	 Improved Child Health: The Smile 
Keepers Oral Health Program was not 
able to visit children in person due 
to public health restrictions, but they 
were able to provide virtual oral health 
education to 50 parents at birthing 
classes and 336 parents through 
online kindergarten registrations.

•	 Improved Child Development: 
Tuolumne County invested $208,000 
in supporting its early childhood 
education system by providing 
professional development and 
coaching. Through blended funding, 
every early childhood educator in 
the county was eligible to receive a 
stipend for completing continuing 
education. Eighty-two providers 
took this opportunity to increase 
their knowledge of early childhood 
development and improve their 
capacity to serve our youngest 
children.

Ventura	
First 5 Ventura County’s Fiscal Year 

2020–21 investments in the county’s 
early childhood system supported 

the continuation of the place-based 
Neighborhoods for Learning Initiative, 
which focused on Parent and Child Together 
classes and family support services; 
maintained preschool services; continued 
investment in Help Me Grow; and ongoing 
systems integration, advocacy, and capacity 
building efforts. 

During Fiscal Year 2020–21, the 
Commission developed an implementation 
plan to support the Fiscal Year 2020–21 
Strategic Plan to extend most of the 
Commission’s current investments and 
target resources towards strengthening the 
larger early childhood systems and building 
organizational capacity. The Commission 
continued to address emerging needs of 
families with young children and service 
providers as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

•	 The Commission convened the Early 
Childhood Education COVID-19 
Taskforce to ensure a coordinated 
response to the child care needs of 
essential workers and issues facing 
child care providers. Taskforce 
partners provided technical assistance 
workshops for providers on COVID-19 
health and safety measures, 
immunizations, and how to apply for 
local, state, and federal relief funding. 

•	 Through First 5 Ventura partner 
networks, emergency supplies of 
diapers and personal protective 
equipment provided by First 5 
California were distributed to child 
care providers. 

•	 First 5 Ventura was invited to 
participate in a national project led by 
Nemours Children’s Health System and 
a state-level project led by the Center 
for the Study of Social Policy to better 
leverage Medi-Cal in promoting child 
outcomes. 

•	 First 5 Ventura is now slated to receive 
reimbursement for a portion of 
expenditures associated with Medi-Cal 
Administrative Activities, as all Help 
Me Grow program components were 
implemented in-house as of July 1, 
2020. Significant strides were made 
this past year with the Commission’s 
parent engagement strategy, which 
is built upon a national model, in 
collaboration with the Center for 
the Study of Social Policy’s EC-
LINC. EC-LINC is a vibrant learning 
and innovation network of local 
communities, dedicated to bringing 
together a mix of services, supports, 



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 57

policies, and practices that help all 
young children and their families 
thrive—locally and across the nation.

Yolo	
In Fiscal Year 2020–21, First 5 Yolo 

County achieved an increasingly 
sharper focus on prevention and deeper 
investments in systems transformation, 
while supporting COVID-19 responses. 
Funded program highlights include the 
following: helping families avoid the need 
for entry into the Child Welfare Services 
system and supporting positive parenting; 
increasing access to early mental health 
screens and supports; providing public 
health support with COVID-19 safety 
trainings; child care provider stabilization; 
vaccination education; vaccination clinics 
for child care providers; and concrete 
supports to families and providers. 

•	 Together with direct service partners, 
First 5 Yolo further developed its 
largest initiative, The CHILD Project: 
Road to Resilience (R2R), for high-
risk perinatal families. All program 
components, including in-clinic/
in-community navigation, Healthy 
Families America Home Visiting, and 
Behavioral Health Home Visiting, are 
increasingly coordinated, aligned, 
and targeted to integrated systems 
transformation. 

•	 The Commission realized significant 
progress in its goal of systems 
improvement and home visiting 
coordination led by R2R progress. 
R2R is designed to prevent conditions 
that contribute to child maltreatment 
and prevent adverse childhood 
experiences by identifying high-risk 
mothers and infants and providing 
intensive services. R2R establishes 
central coordination for home 
visiting, integrates medical and 
social services, and addresses early 
learning and family strengthening 
with over 10 partner agencies. The 
approach helped to support isolated 
and vulnerable families during the 
pandemic. 

•	 Given local and statewide data 
showing the devastating toll of 
COVID-19 related impacts on current 
birth cohorts and noting the inspiring 
successes of R2R, First 5 Yolo proposed 
an American Rescue Plan funding 
project to include postpartum nurse 
visits for all Medi-Cal families and 
expanded access to intensive home 

visiting services in R2R. Recently 
approved, this project will launch in 
Fiscal Year 2021–22 and is planned for 
a 3-year duration.        

Yuba
This past year, for the first time since 

their inception, First 5 Yuba secured over 
$425,000 in external grant funds to support 
the health, development, and wellbeing 
of children ages 0 to 5 and their families. 
With these resources, First 5 Yuba was able 
to bring new programs and services to 
young children and their families, child care 
providers, medical providers, home visitors, 
and community based organizations. 
Specifically, resources were leveraged 
to enhance existing early screening and 
detection programs, build upon current 
systems change strategies within medical 
settings, and respond to the ongoing needs 
of the child care sector induced by the 
pandemic. With these resources, First 5 Yuba 
strengthened existing and established new 
partnerships with both traditional and non-
traditional community-serving agencies 
such as health centers, family resource 
agencies, resource and referral agencies, 
community services development, Office 
of Emergency Services local food bank, 
child welfare, and others. First 5 Yuba 
collaborated with existing funded partners 

to braid funding and build programs to 
meet the unique and challenging needs of 
the families they serve. During the first half 
of the year, First 5 collaborated with County 
Community Services Department, Childcare 
Planning Council and Children’s Home 
Society of California to obtain over $355,000 
of local CARES Act funding. Partners worked 
quickly to establish a new program using 
existing systems to distribute stipends 
directly to licensed and license exempt 
child care providers to ensure child care 
businesses remained open and operating 
safely. Providers were incentivized to 
expand services and provided tools, such 
as Chrome books, to help reduce isolation 
and close the digital divide. During this 
past year, success can be visualized through 
undeniable resiliency among First 5 Yuba 
funded partners, innovative partnerships, 
and internal growth as an agency to obtain 
additional resources and meet the growing 
needs of children ages 0 to 5 and their 
families.



58

Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21

67%
Tobacco Tax Funds

15%

Other Public 
Funds

Other Funds
and Revenues

6%

5%
IMPACT 2020

Funds

3%

Grants

1%
Other First 5 

California Funds

1%
Revenue from 
Interest Earned

1%
SPCFA 
Funds

<1%
DLL Pilot

Funds

<1%
Donations

Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21			   	
			 

Tobacco Tax Funds (1)	 $305,363,626	 67%

IMPACT 2020 Funds (2)	 $24,684,773	 5%

SPCFA Funds (3)	 $4,135,932	 1%

DLL Pilot Funds (4)	 $779,440	 <1%

Other First 5 California 
Funds (5)	 $4,986,229	 1%

Other Public Funds (6)	 $70,648,597	 15%

Donations (7)	 $235,317	 <1%

Revenue From Interest 
Earned (8) 	 $4,245,199	 1%

Grants (9)	 $15,525,246	 3%

Other Funds or Revenues 
(10) 	 $26,798,848	 6%

TOTAL REVENUE	 $457,403,207	 100%		

This table represents revenues for all 58 county 
commissions.	

(1)	 Total Proposition 10 and Proposition 56 tobacco tax 
revenue. Tobacco tax revenues reported by county 
commissions may differ from revenues reported by First 
5 California because of accrued state revenues not yet 
disbursed to counties.	

(2)	 Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive 
(IMPACT 2020) consortia or regional hub funds received 
from First 5 California	

(3)	 Small Population County Funding Augmentation (SPCFA) 
funds received from First 5 California	

(4)	 Dual Language Learner (DLL) Pilot funds received from 
First 5 California	

(5)	 Other funds received from First 5 California	

(6)	 Other federal, state or public funds received	

(7)	 Donations received by the county commission	

(8)	 Interest earned in all Children and Families Trust Fund 
revenue accounts by the county commission	

(9)	 Grants received by the county commission	

(10)	Other funds or revenues received, may include rental 
income or revenue from services provided	
	
	
	
	
	



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 59

	

Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures 
by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020–21
IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING

Service Type Children Primary 
Caregivers

Providers Total Primary 
Caregivers and 
Providers

Total 
Number of 
Services

Percent of Services 
in Result Area 

(1)

Percent of 
Total Number 
of Services 

(1)

Total 
Expenditures 
for Services

Percent of Service 
Expenditures in 
Result Area 

(1)

Percent of Total 
Expenditures 

(1)

Family Literacy and 
Book Programs

 87,033  203,371  925  204,296  291,329 40% 17%  $5,797,695 6% 2%

General Family Support  107,736  291,198  7,707  298,905  406,641 56% 24%  $66,225,473 71% 17%
Intensive Family 
Support

 11,891  12,944  449  13,393  25,284 3% 1%  $21,525,209 23% 6%

Total Improved 
Family Functioning

 206,660  507,513  9,081  516,594  723,254 100% 42%  $93,548,377 100% 24%

IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT

Service Type Children Primary 
Caregivers

Providers Total Primary 
Caregivers and 
Providers

Total 
Number of 
Services

Percent of Services 
in Result Area 

(1)

Percent of 
Total Number 
of Services 

(1)

Total 
Expenditures 
for Services

Percent of Service 
Expenditures in 
Result Area 

(1)

Percent of Total 
Expenditures 

(1)

Early Learning Program 
Direct Costs

 515,997  5,196  1,647  6,843  522,840 78% 30%  $15,888,619 21% 4%

Quality Early Learning 
Supports

 73,255  17,467  56,634  74,101  147,356 22% 9%  $61,479,662 79% 16%

Total Improved Child 
Development

 589,252  22,663  58,281  80,944  670,196 100% 39%  $77,368,281 100% 20%

IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH

Service Type Children Primary 
Caregivers

Providers Total Primary 
Caregivers and 
Providers

Total 
Number of 
Services

Percent of Services 
in Result Area 

(1)

Percent of 
Total Number 
of Services 

(1)

Total 
Expenditures 
for Services

Percent of Service 
Expenditures in 
Result Area 

(1)

Percent of Total 
Expenditures 

(1)

Early Intervention  74,058  29,372  7,686  37,058  111,116 34% 6%  $33,926,426 30% 9%

General Health 
Education and 
Promotion

 18,823  18,985  1,637  20,622  39,445 12% 2%  $6,504,077 6% 2%

Oral Health Education 
and Treatment

 48,454  12,724  28  12,752  61,206 19% 4%  $9,396,505 8% 2%

Perinatal and 
Early Childhood Home 
Visiting

 38,800  61,170  61  61,231  100,031 31% 6%  $58,420,378 52% 15%

Prenatal and Infant/
Toddler Pediatric 
Support

 7,773  3,705  11  3,716  11,489 4% 1%  $3,760,087 3% 1%

Total Improved Child 
Health

 187,908  125,956  9,423  135,379  323,287 100% 19%  $112,007,473 100% 29%

Total Client Service 
Counts

 983,820  656,132  76,785  732,917  
1,716,737 

 

IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE

Service Type Total 
Expenditures 
for Services

Percent of Service 
Expenditures in 
Result Area (1)

Percent of Total 
Expenditures 

(1)

Emergency and Disaster 
Relief

    $11,720,726 11% 3%

Policy and Public 
Advocacy

$44,661,681 43% 12%

Systems Building $46,469,093 45% 12%

Total Improved 
Systems of Care

       $102,851,500 100% 27%

Grand Total  $385,775,631 

(1) Totals may not equal 100 percent due to rounding.

Data include all 58 county commissions. First 5 Kings and First 5 Glenn submitted provisional data for this publication.



60

Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions

RESULT AREA: IMPROVED 
FAMILY FUNCTIONING

Providing parents, families, and 
communities with relevant, timely, and 
culturally appropriate information, 
education, services, and support.

Family Literacy and Book 
Programs

Programs promoting family literacy, 
parent-child book sharing, or book 
ownership for families with children 
ages birth to 5. The Kit for New Parents 
and Talk. Read. Sing.® may be included 
if these statewide efforts are locally 
modified to promote literacy, for 
example, by adding a children’s book 
to the Kit, or using Talk. Read. Sing.® 

as a message for distributing books. 
Program models or initiatives include 
Bookmobile, Dolly Parton’s Imagination 
Library, Habla Conmigo, Kit for New 
Parents, Little by Little, Potter the Otter, 
Raising a Reader, Reach Out and Read, 
Story Cycles, Talk.Read.Sing.,® and other 
Local Models.

General Family Support
Programs providing short-term, 

non-intensive instruction on general 
parenting topics, and/or support 
for basic family needs and related 
case management, including meals, 
groceries, clothing, and temporary 
or permanent housing acquisition 
assistance. General family support 
may include playgroup programs 
that provide parents/caregivers with 
opportunities to engage, learn, and 
play with their children. Playgroups are 
structured, intentional opportunities 
for parents and/or caregivers and 
their young children to engage, learn, 
and play to support the optimal 
development of the child, the social-
emotional needs of the family, and 
increase social connectedness. General 
family support may also include 

referrals to family services such as 
Family Resource Centers (FRC) and 
other community resources. Core 
Operating Support includes staff, 
facilities, materials and other general 
operating costs associated with an 
organization’s day-to-day functioning. 
Fatherhood programs and operational 
support for family service agencies 
and/or networks are included. In 
general, these programs are designed 
to provide less intense and shorter term 
(“lighter touch”) support services and 
classes for families by paraprofessional 
staff (e.g., FRCs). Program models or 
initiatives include Abriendo Puertas, 
Avance, Core Operating Support, 
Playgroups, Triple P Levels 2-3, and Five 
Protective Factors. 

Intensive Family Support
Programs providing intensive and/

or clinical services by a paraprofessional 
and/or professional, as well as one-to-
one services in family support settings. 
Programs are generally evidence-based 
and designed to support at-risk parents 
and families prenatally or with young 
children to increase knowledge and 
skills related to parenting and improved 
family functioning (e.g., counseling, 
family therapy, parent-child interaction 
approaches, and long-term classes 
or groups). This also is the category 
for comprehensive and/or intensive 
services for special populations (e.g., 
homeless families, teen parents, foster 
children, special needs children). 
Program models or initiatives include 
Incredible Years, Nurturing Parenting 
Program, and Triple P Levels 4-5. 

RESULT AREA: IMPROVED 
CHILD DEVELOPMENT 

Increasing the quality of and access 
to early learning and education for 
young children.

Early Learning Program Direct 
Costs 

Early learning programs for children 
0–5 years old may include preschool 
programs, kindergarten transition 
services, and early learning programs 
for all ages. Programs may include 
child related early literacy and Science, 
Technology, Engineering, and Math 
(STEM) programs; programs for 
homeless children; migrant programs; 
and similar investments. Extra supports 
in early learning settings for homeless 
children, Federal Migrant or Tribal Child 
Care programs, and children receiving 
Alternative Payment  vouchers for 
childcare may be included. Program 
models or initiatives include Facility 
Grants, First 5-funded Preschool/
Childcare Reimbursement, and Summer 
Bridge Programs. 

Quality Early Learning Supports
Programs designed to enhance early 

learning programs such as professional 
development for early educators, or 
implementation and integration of 
services. This service category may 
include quality rating and improvement 
system investments as part of IMPACT 
2020 and Quality Counts California. This 
service category covers early learning 
and care settings work, most commonly 
by licensed care providers, but is also 
inclusive of alternative settings such 
as FRCs; Family, Friend and Neighbor 
Care; Boys and Girls Clubs; and libraries. 
This service category may include 
interagency collaboration, quality 
improvement supports, support 
services to diverse populations, 
and database management and 
development. Program models or 
initiatives include Quality Counts 
California.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 61

RESULT AREA: IMPROVED 
CHILD HEALTH

Promoting optimal health 
through identification, treatment, 
and elimination of the risks that 
threaten children’s health and lead to 
developmental delays and disabilities 
in young children.

Early Intervention
Programs providing screening, 

assessment, and diagnostic services, 
including referrals or follow-up to 
needed services. Programs including 
early intervention or intensive 
services to children with disabilities 
and other special needs, or at-risk 
for special needs, may be included. 
May include strategies targeting 
language and communication skills, 
social and emotional development, 
developmental delays, and related 
parent education. Developmental 
playgroups are specifically intended 
for children who have been identified 
as at-risk for developmental delays. 
Additionally, the playgroup staff are 
trained to support each child’s specific 
early intervention goals. Mental Health 
Consultations in early learning and care 
settings are included. Program models 
or initiatives include Care Coordination 
and Linkage, Developmental 
Playgroups, and Mild-to-Moderate 
Supports. 

General Health Education and 
Promotion

Programs promoting children’s 
healthy development, including 
nutrition, fitness, and access to 
insurance (health, dental, vision) 
and health services. Programs also 
may focus on increased awareness 
of information about child safety 
seats, fire, safe sleep, and substance 
education (drugs, alcohol, tobacco). 
Program models or initiatives include 

Nutrition/Breastfeeding, Safety 
Education, and Smoking or Tobacco 
Cessation.

Oral Health Education and 
Treatment 

Programs providing an array of 
services, including dental screening, 
assessment, cleaning and preventive 
care, treatment, fluoride varnish, and 
parent education on the importance 
of oral health care. This category may 
include provider training and care 
coordination of services. Program 
models or initiatives are Local Models. 

Perinatal and Early Childhood 
Home Visiting 

Home visiting is the primary service 
delivery strategy for inter-generational 
family-centered supports. Home 
visiting services are provided in the 
home by qualified professionals 
with parents, prenatally and/or 
with children birth to age 3. These 
voluntary programs tailor services to 
meet the needs of individual families 
and offer information, guidance, 
and support directly in the home 
environment. While home visiting 
programs vary in goals and content 
of services, in general, they combine 
parenting and health care education, 
early intervention, and early learning 
supports for young children and their 
families. Their visits focus on linking 
pregnant women with prenatal 
care, promoting strong parent-child 
attachment, and coaching parents 
on learning activities that foster their 
child’s development and supporting 
families during the pivotal window of 
pregnancy through early childhood. 
Program models or initiatives include 
Early Head Start; Healthy Families 
America; Healthy Steps; Home 
Instruction for Parents of Preschool 
Youngsters; Nurse Family Partnership; 
Parents as Teachers, Other Maternal, 

Infant, and Early Childhood Home 
Visiting Approved; Welcome Baby; and 
other Local Models.

Prenatal and Infant/Toddler 
Pediatric Support 

Out-of-home programs include 
prenatal care and follow-up for healthy 
development-related services during 
the first three years of a child’s life. 
These programs are designed to 
improve the health and well-being of 
women during and after pregnancy, 
and the infant or young child by a 
paraprofessional and/or professional 
outside of the family home, including, 
but not limited, to pediatric or 
clinical environments. Programs may 
provide comprehensive support, 
including parenting education, 
health information, developmental 
assessments, providing referrals, 
and promoting early learning. 
Program models or initiatives include 
Developmental Understanding and 
Legal Collaboration for Everyone , 
Healthy Steps, and other Local Models.

RESULT AREA: IMPROVED 
SYSTEMS OF CARE

Implementing integrated, 
comprehensive, inclusive, and culturally 
and linguistically appropriate services 
to achieve improvements in one or 
more of the other Result Areas.

Emergency and Disaster Relief 
Unplanned expenditures made in 

response to a community disruption 
resulting from local, regional, or 
statewide events such as fires, 
earthquakes, floods, widespread 
illness (epidemic, pandemic), or riots. 
Direct materials or support may 
include addressing immediate needs 
of individuals or communities for 
items such as diapers, clothing, food, 
shelter, transportation, childcare, and 
lost wages. This also includes coalition 



62

building funding used in concert with 
other philanthropic, government, and 
business partners to support broader 
emergency response systems efforts. 
Program models or initiatives include 
Direct Material Support and Coalition 
Building.

Policy and Public Advocacy 
Services include community 

awareness, and public outreach and 
education on issues related to children 
ages 0–5 years old and their families. 
This also includes work focused on 
policy change, work with local and 
statewide stakeholders, Town Halls, 
policy development, and related efforts. 

Program models or initiatives include 
Resilient Families and Communities, 
Child Health, Early Learning, and 
Revenue Sustainability. 

Systems Building 
Efforts to improve service quality, 

connections between programs, 
infrastructure support, and professional 
development. This category 
includes activities such as strategic 
planning, business planning, grant 
writing workshops, sustainability 
workshops, and assistance in planning 
and promoting large community 
conferences or forums. These 
improvement efforts should result in 

improved outcomes for children ages 
0–5 years old. Improvements could be 
geared toward creating a well-trained 
workforce with shared professional 
standards and competencies, creating 
strong and effective linkages across 
system components, or leveraging 
funding to sustain the system of care. 
Database management and other 
cross-agency systems evaluation are 
also included. Program models or 
initiatives include Early Identification 
and Intervention (e.g., Help Me Grow), 
Family Resiliency, Health Systems, 
Place-Based, and Trauma Informed 
Care/Adverse Childhood Experiences.



2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 63

Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served, 
FY 2020–21

AGE INDIVIDUALS SERVED

Children Less than 3 Years Old  185,499 

Children from 3rd to 6th Birthday  194,058 

Children—Ages Unknown (birth to 6th birthday)  123,081 

Primary Caregivers  703,802 

Providers  74,539 

Total Children Ages 0-5  502,638 

Total Primary Caregivers  703,802 

Total Children, Caregivers, and Providers  1,280,929 

RACE/ETHNICITY CHILDREN 0-5 PRIMARY CAREGIVERS TOTAL (1)

Alaska Native/American Indian  3,419  1,797  5,216 

Asian  32,403  56,928  89,331 

Black/African–American  21,680  24,072  45,752 

Hispanic/Latino  203,798  177,746  381,544 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander  1,360  1,170  2,530 

Other  15,606  47,113  62,719 

Two or more races  16,363  12,531  28,894 

White  69,047  49,371  118,418 

Unknown  138,962  333,074  472,036 

Total  502,638  703,802  1,206,440 

LANGUAGE CHILDREN 0-5 PRIMARY CAREGIVERS TOTAL (1)

English  211,341  205,007  416,348 

Spanish  123,773  133,365  257,138 

Vietnamese  12,806  39,272  52,078 

Other  12,651  16,564  29,215 

Cantonese  2,299  1,744  4,043 

Mandarin  1,244  1,157  2,401 

Korean  354  376  730 

Unknown  138,170  306,317  444,487 

Total  502,638  703,802  1,206,440 

(1): Column does not include race/ethnicity and language for providers. These data are not collected for the provider 
population.



64

References
1	 UCLA Center for Health Policy 
Research. Ask CHIS 2003-2020. 
Current Smoking Status—Adults. 
https://ask.chis.ucla.edu/. Accessed 
November 17, 2021.

2 	 World Health Organization (2021). 
Tobacco Control to Improve Child 
Health and Development: Thematic 
Brief. https://www.who.int/
publications/i/item/9789240022218

3 	 Shastri, S.S., Talluri, R., Shete, S. 
(2021). Disparities in Secondhand 
Smoke Exposure in the United 
States: National Health and Nutrition 
Examination Survey 2011-2018. 
JAMA Internal Medicine, 181 (1): 134-
137.   

4 	 Meng, YY, Ponce, NA (2020). The 
Changing Landscape: Tobacco and 
Marijuana Use Among Young Adults 
in California. Los Angeles, California.: 
UCLA Center for Health Policy 
Research.

5	 Barton, L.R., & H.E. Brophy-Herb. 
(2006). “Developmental Foundations 
for Language and Literacy from Birth 
to Three Years.” In Learning to Read 
the World: Language and Literacy 
in the First Three Years, eds. S.E. 
Rosenkoetter & J. Knapp-Philo, 15–60. 
Washington, DC: Zero to Three.

6	 Bhushan D, Kotz K, McCall J, Wirtz S, 
Gilgoff R, Dube SR, Powers C, Olson-
Morgan J, Galeste M, Patterson K, 
Harris L, Mills A, Bethell C, Burke 
Harris N, Office of the California 
Surgeon General. Roadmap for 
Resilience: The California Surgeon 
General’s Report on Adverse 
Childhood Experiences, Toxic Stress, 
and Health. Office of the California 
Surgeon General, (2020). DOI: 
10.48019/PEAM8812.

7	 Bartlett, J.D., & Vivrette, R. (2020). 
“Ways to Promote Children’s 
Resilience to the COVID-19 
Pandemic.” Bethesda, MD: 
Child Trends. http://www.
centerforchildwelfare.org/kb/
SafePrev/COVIDProtectiveFactors_
ChildTrends_April2020.pdf

8 	 Educare California at Silicon Valley. 
http://educaresv.org/ 

9 	 Educare Los Angeles at Long Beach. 
https://www.educareschools.org/
schools/los-angeles-long-beach 

https://ask.chis.ucla.edu/
https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240022218
https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240022218
http://www.centerforchildwelfare.org/kb/SafePrev/COVIDProtectiveFactors_ChildTrends_April2020.pdf
http://www.centerforchildwelfare.org/kb/SafePrev/COVIDProtectiveFactors_ChildTrends_April2020.pdf
http://www.centerforchildwelfare.org/kb/SafePrev/COVIDProtectiveFactors_ChildTrends_April2020.pdf
http://www.centerforchildwelfare.org/kb/SafePrev/COVIDProtectiveFactors_ChildTrends_April2020.pdf
http://educaresv.org/
https://www.educareschools.org/schools/los-angeles-long-beach
https://www.educareschools.org/schools/los-angeles-long-beach


2020-21 • FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA ANNUAL REPORT 65



66

OUR VISION
California's children receive the 

best possible start in life and thrive.

FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA
California Children and Families Commission

2389 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 260
Sacramento, California 95833

P 916.263.1050 F 916.263.1360

www.ccfc.ca.gov



AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1115 Atlantic Ave, Alameda, CA 94501 
p: 510.227.6900     f: 510.227.6901     www.First5Alameda.org 

To:   First 5 Alameda County Commission 
 
From:  Kristin Spanos, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Date:  April 28, 2022 
 
Subject:  FY 2022-27 Strategic Plan  First Reading 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
To review the first reading of the FY 2022-27 Strategic Plan 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The proposed FY 2022-27 First 5 Alameda County Strategic Plan builds upon our current strategic plan, 
which was based on input from over 400 survey respondents, parent focus groups and community 

lan, we interviewed over 40 stakeholders, conducted 4 parent focus groups, 
and held a participatory all-staff process.  We also brought recommended planning parameters to the 
Commission which were adopted in October 2021.   
 
The focus of this strategic plan is on the 
Early Childhood System of Care as a funder, advocate, partner, and an administrator.  We are 
approaching the work with the lens of Place, People, and Policy with equity and basic needs as central to 
supporting the result that all children are ready for kindergarten.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The goal, as per the budget and long-range financial plan, is to keep the Prop 10 funding 
level steady for the first year of the plan, and revisit annually anticipating additional external revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   The plan is submitted for review and consideration prior to the second reading. 
 
Submitted by:      Reviewed by: 
 
 
__________________________    _________________________ 
Lisa Forti          Kristin Spanos 
Director of Policy, Planning and Evaluation   Chief Executive Officer 



First 5 Alameda County
2022-2027 Strategic Plan
Commission Meeting - April 28, 2022

AGENDA ITEM 10.1



Agenda

1. Revisit strategic plan process and framework
2. Meeting this moment: data that informs our work
3. Financial picture
4. Approach and strategies
5. Measuring our progress



Prioritize equity in First 5’s operations and investments

Continue to diversify revenue to support building an Early 
Childhood System, including partnerships with managed care, 
Social Services, and other public entities

Continue building upon existing equity-driven programming in 
Place, People, Policy

In service to equity and parent/community partnership, approve 
adoption of single Population Result: “Children Are Ready for 
Kindergarten”

Steady state budget, temporary use of sustainability fund in 
planning for Measure C

Recommendations Adopted 
by the Commission (October 2021)



Strategic
Planning 
Process



Summary of Strategic Plan Stakeholder Feedback
Build/evolve the early childhood system.

Families and communities have strengths to build upon and should be valued, listened to, and leveraged.
Underlying structural inequities by race and class are impacting families, providers, and communities.

A “seamless” system that addresses basic needs ( i.e., food, 
housing, transportation), child care, health and mental 
health/social connections

PRIORITIES FOR SUPPORTING FAMILIES

• Define and clarify role
• Emphasize partnerships with families, community, 

community-based organizations, and systems
• Leverage place-based investments and consider other 

opportunities by place and population
• Use data and policy advocacy in partnership with 

community for systems change
• Build agency capacity to meet new need and 

opportunity
• Support staff leadership and well-being

PRIORITIES FOR FIRST 5 CAPACITY BUILDING

Wages and professional development, flexible funding, 
and organizational capacity building

PRIORITIES FOR SUPPORTING PROVIDERS

• Invest in families with young children
• Coordinate resources for a system that is responsive and 

accessible
• Invest in community infrastructure that supports 

families (housing, libraries, parks)

PRIORITIES FOR FIRST 5 SYSTEMS PARTNERSHIPS



Early Childhood 
System of Care





MEETING THIS MOMENT IN TIME



Data for Action:
Alameda County’s Context



Data for Action:
Alameda County Kindergarten Readiness

41%

82%
58% 59%

33% 42% 34% 39%

Overall*** Physical*** Social and self-
regulation***

Academic***

2019 2021

Pandemic Impact—Parents’ assessment of their child’s 
readiness was lower in 2021 than it was in 2019



FINANCIAL PICTURE
& STRATEGIES



Strategic Plan Parameters
& Financial Picture



First 5 is using a Maintenance of Effort approach to this strategic plan
for fiscal year 2022–2023. The budget will be updated annually. 

Neighborhoods Ready for School 
$3,500,000 (22%*)

Total = $15,950,000

Proposition 10 Investments

Quality Early Care and Education 
$1,722,500 (11%*)

Parent Partnership 
$2,080,000 or (13%*)

Early Identification, Screening, and 
Care Coordination $1,365,000 (9%*)

Fatherhood 
$262,500 (2%*)

Training 
$700,000 (4%*)

Policy
$1,146,600 (7%*)

Data and Evaluation
$1,058,400 (6%*)

Communications
$605,000 (4%*)

Operations and Administration 
$3,510,000 (22%*)

* % of Prop 10 budget



Proposed Revenue and Expenses
FY 2022-23: $23.3M

Personnel 
Costs, $12.4 

Program 
Contracts/Grants, 

$9.3 

Program 
Operating Costs, 

$0.5 
Infrastructure 

Costs, $1.1 

Proposed Expenses
(in millions)

Tobacco Tax​​, $12.5 
Other First 

5 Income​​, $1.3 

Interagency​​, $2.8 

Grants​​, $0.9 

Fiscal Leveraging​​, 
$2.0 

Other Income​​, 
$0.4 

Sustainability​​ 
Funds, $3.4 

Proposed Revenue
(in millions)



OUR APPROACH



We invest in and advocate for programs and policies that: 

1. Address structural racism and economic inequity

2. Ensure basic family needs, quality health, mental health, housing, food, 
transportation, jobs, child care, and educational experiences

3. Foster economically stable communities and opportunities for 
social connections

Commitment to Equity and Partnership
First 5 is committed to being an anti-racist organization and 

working in partnership with the community. 



POLICY: Address structural racism 
and childhood poverty and build an 
early childhood system of care in 
partnership with parents and 
community.

PLACE: Connection between child/family health 
and well-being and community conditions

PEOPLE: Partner with caregivers 
as experts on strengths, resources, 
and needs of children and families.

We will be successful when all children 
in Alameda County are ready for kindergarten. 

Our Approach



Neighborhoods Ready 
for School (NRFS)

Early Identification, 
Screening, and Care 
Coordination

Program Strategies
Parent Partnership

Fatherhood

Quality Early Care and 
Education



Training

Policy and Advocacy

Data and Evaluation

Communications

Operations and Administration

Agency Strategies



MEASURING OUR PROGRESS—
RESULTS BASED ACCOUNTABILITY



To understand, track, and guide our progress we 
use data, research, and parent and community 
knowledge.

• Helps us understand how well children and families in the 
county are doing in areas that we know correspond to 
Kindergarten Readiness—like access to basic needs, 
participation in early care and education, and neighborhood 
conditions.  

• Data helps make sense of  performance, impact, and 
opportunity for continuous improvement in our programs and 
investments.

• First 5 is committed to participatory, equity-informed and 
community-driven practices in our data, research, and 
evaluation work. 

Measuring Our Progress—
Results Based Accountability



QUESTIONS?



First 5 Alameda County  
Strategic Plan 2022–2027



Acknowledgements
First 5 wishes to acknowledge the contributions of the many people who made this plan possible.  
This plan was developed in a challenging time two years into the pandemic, when families, 
communities, organizations, and public systems are stretched beyond limit. Our deepest respect 
and gratitude to our community for their fortitude, and appreciation to those who were able 
to take time to think about how to best use First 5’s public resources and to envision an early 
childhood system where children and families can thrive. Special thanks to: 

	 •	 Parents and caregivers for their wisdom and experiences 

	 •	� Early childhood providers and community serving 
organizations for “on the ground” insight

	 •	� Community leaders for the clear-eyed systems 
perspective

	 •	� First 5 staff for thoughtful participation, dialogue, and 
decision-making

	 •	� Our consultant Hickman Strategies for their role in our 
strategic planning process

	 •	� First 5 Alameda County Commissioners for their guidance 
and support

Our work is a continuation of the legacy of Alameda County Supervisor and First 5 founding 
Commissioner Wilma Chan.  



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 3     

Table of Contents
A Moment of Urgency and Possibility	 4

Who We Are	 5

Alameda County’s Context—Data for Action	 8

Meeting This Moment in Time	 12

Our Approach	 14

Commitment to Equity	 16

Working in Partnership	 17

Strategic Plan Parameters & Financial Picture	 18

Program Strategies	 20
	 Neighborhoods Ready for School	 20
	 Quality Early Care and Education (ECE)	 22
	 Parent Partnership	 24
	 Early Identification, Screening, and Care Coordination	 25
	 Fatherhood	 27

Agency Strategies	 28
	 Training	 28
	 Policy and Advocacy	 29
	 Data and Evaluation	 30
	 Communications	 31

Operational Support Functions	 32
	 Administration and Facilities	 32
	 Finance	 33
	 Human Resources	 33
	 Technology	 34

Proposition 10 FY 22/23 Investments	 35

Measuring Our Progress—Results Based Accountability (RBA)	 36

Local Revenue for Early Care and Education	 37
	 First 5’s Role as Measure C Administrator	 37



4	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Ensuring Alameda County’s children grow into healthy, 
productive adults is fundamental to our community’s 
prosperity, health, and well-being.  Decades of research have demonstrated 
that the period from birth to age five is the most critical window of opportunity to have a positive 
impact on a child’s future. The correlation between early childhood development, community 
and family conditions, and lifelong health has also been established, and they are undeniably 
intertwined.

The research makes clear that disparate life outcomes of children, related to health, education, and 
employment, are the result of historic and ongoing racist, classist policies that extract resources  
(i.e., poorly paid labor) and do harm to some communities, families, and children, while benefiting 
others. Despite these forces, there are systemic interventions that can positively change the lives of 
children and their families. These findings have profound implications for public policy and the role 
of public systems.

It is evident that President Biden’s proposals in support of families  
with young children and Governor Newsom’s investments in 
early childhood are informed by the growing recognition of 
both the conditions necessary to support family and child 
well-being and the need for public policy to address the 
increasing inequality. The COVID-19 pandemic, which 
has destabilized the private and public sector, has 
also exponentially increased community and family 
needs, and further highlighted government’s unique 
and necessary role in meeting the moment in hopes 
of a better future. 

This is a moment to invest in a better future 
through long-term, systemic solutions for 
children and families.

A MOMENT OF URGENCY  
AND POSSIBILITY 



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 5     

First 5 was established in 1998 by 
California’s Proposition 10.  Our role is 

to improve life outcomes for Alameda County’s youngest 
children. We support, inform, and partner with public 
systems (i.e., health, early care and education, economic, 
and family supports) and community resources to create 
an early childhood system of care that is responsive to the 
needs of caregivers and  families with young children.

We are guided by a “whole community, whole family, whole child” policy and programming 
approach to our work. First 5 uses lessons learned from our investments, research and data, and 
partnerships to inform policy positions and influence local, state, and national decision-making. 

We recognize that the context of lived experience is essential to impactful investment, program 
design, and policy advocacy, and we support the efforts of families, caregivers, and community-
based organizations to that end. We have a multi-year investment in place-based initiatives, and 
we have funded community engagement work, including summer pre-kindergarten programs, 
alongside Alameda County’s school districts. We have partnered with community providers and 
pediatricians to support families’ concerns about their child’s development and access to resources. 
We provide technical assistance and infrastructure support to the early childhood education field 
and community-based providers. We invest in father-friendly programming and systems so men 
and dads are not excluded from conversations affecting their children.

We routinely assess and evaluate our efforts to identify 
areas for improvement, capacity building, and where 
there are gaps in the early childhood system, we strive 
to fund and scale promising programs and proven 
interventions. Where possible we integrate and align our 
activities to improve equitable access to better serve the 
needs of Alameda County families.

“First 5 policy efforts focus on systems 

change, particularly across sectors, with 

an intention to shift the conditions that 

hold problems in place, in order to achieve 

meaningful and lasting social change.”

-First 5 Association 2022-24 Strategic Plan

Our “North Star,” the population 

result that guides our work, is that all 

Children Are Ready for Kindergarten; 

our work is to ensure that policies, 

systems, communities, and schools 

support families and children by 

creating the conditions that position all 

for success.

WHO WE ARE 



6	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Since 2008, First 5 has benchmarked results for our county’s children by conducting a biannual 
Kindergarten Readiness study. Results have shown very little improvement over time and consistently 
point to the countervailing impact of socioeconomics, community conditions, and limited enrollment 
in early education as barriers to kindergarten readiness.1

In light of this data, First 5 is partnering with the 
community to expand our analysis of root causes of low 
kindergarten readiness by assessing the resource level of 
targeted neighborhoods, schools, and systems. In fiscal 
year 2020–2021, we used our data to inform community 
investment strategies in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Using a data-informed equity framework, 
we invested in school districts to support kindergarten 
transitions, allocating money commensurate with need.

In 2017, with nearly 20 years’ experience investing and administering programs, coupled with 
declining Proposition 10 revenues, our 2017–2022 strategic planning priorities were: 1) organizational 
sustainability and 2) an assessment of the local early childhood system and its responsiveness 
to families with young children. First 5 engaged in an extensive strategic planning process that 
included parent, stakeholder, Commission, staff, and community engagement. The feedback 
cemented our focus on a “systems building approach” with the dual priorities of mitigating the 
persistent racial and economic inequities facing our families and improving child outcomes. As a 
result, we adopted a “whole community, whole family, whole child” approach, which incorporated 
each of the elements identified in the early childhood system of care (see Figure 1 on page 7). We 
enhanced our organizational capacity to engage in systems building by: 1) centering community 
need and voice in our data, research, and investments; 2) strengthening our policy advocacy 
engagement; and 3) leveraging federal, state, and local funds to ensure sustainability and scale of 
programming vital to an early childhood system.

Who We Are

Since 1998, First 5 Alameda County has:  

• �Raised $39 million from philanthropic 
and other funding sources 

• �Earned $18 million from federal fiscal 
leveraging  

• �Awarded $246 million to community 
partners and agencies

Defining Systems Building 
Systems initiatives are organized efforts to improve a system and its impacts. They can be publicly or privately 
funded or a combination of the two. Systems initiatives in the early childhood field may have different labels, 
such as systems building, systems change, or systems reform. Yet systems initiatives are best understood by 
their focus or by the areas of the system they are trying to improve. Specifically, an early childhood systems 
initiative might focus on one or more of the following five areas:

From the Early Childhood Systems Building Resource Guide (hhs.gov)

Context:
Improving the 
political context 
that surrounds 
the system so 
it produces 
the policy and 
funding changes 
needed to create 
and sustain it.

�Components:
Establishing 
high-performance 
programs and 
services that 
produce results 
for children and 
families.

Connections:
Creating 
strong linkages 
across system 
components 
that further 
improve results 
for children and 
families.

Infrastructure:
Developing 
the supports 
systems needed 
to function 
effectively and 
with quality.

Scale:
Ensuring a 
comprehensive 
system is 
available to as 
many people as 
possible.



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 7     

Within the Early Childhood System, our role is to:

FUND  organizations and initiatives 
that are mission- and vision-aligned, 
and part of a community-based, 
family-informed early childhood 
system.

PARTNER  with parents, caregivers, 
communities, early childhood 
providers, orgainizations, and public 
agencies in service to an accessible, 
effective, and responsive early 
childhood system.

ADMINISTER  programs for 
young children and families that 
offer services, navigation, and 
care coordination; support and 
connections to resources; and 
training and capacity building  
for providers. 

ADVOCATE  to scale and sustain 
effective programs and for public 
policies grounded in equity and 
justice.

After taking inventory of our impact, local system opportunities, and the needs of families 
and children, in the 2017–2022 Strategic Plan,  First 5 has: 

	 • �Integrated signature programs into larger systems when applicable and sunset programs when 
appropriate

	 • �Launched substantial investments in community-directed, place-based efforts  

	 • �Increased the agency’s focus and capacity in policy advocacy, data, and research for action 

	 • �Identified potential public system partners to scale proven strategies, Early Care and Education, 
and Early Identification

Early Childhood System of Care

Who We Are

First 5’s Role is to...

 A
D

VO
CA

TE
    

    
    

     
      

        
                                                          FU

N
D

 A
D

M
INISTER                                           

      
     

    
 PARTNER  

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten

Figure 1. An early childhood system of care cultivates community 
and family conditions for children’s kindergarten readiness.



8	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Half of children under age 
6 live with at least one 
parent who was born 
outside of the US. (2019)8

1/2

Alameda County’s Context:  
Data for Action

Alameda County Family Demographics

Nearly half of children live 
in households that speak 
a language other than 
English at home. (2019)7

Nearly

114,000
children under age 6 (2019)2

Alameda County’s context and our analysis of the public policy 
levers by which conditions for families can be improved have 
informed our embrace of equity as the center of our work.  
Coupled with a decline in Proposition 10 tobacco revenues, First 5 has adopted a systems change 
approach strategy to address the underlying structural issues—the root causes—affecting 
communities, families, and children.  

76% of 
births to mothers  
of color (2019)1

More than 

18,000
births (2019)5

Approximately

 71,000
households with children 
under age 6 (2019)2

7th
most 

diverse county in the 
United States (2020)6

Approximately

6.8%
of total population (1,656,591) 
under age 6 (2020,2021)3,4

1/2



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 9     

Financial Realities of Families in Alameda County

Alameda County’s Context—Data for Action

Children 0-6 Enrolled in Public Benefits in Alameda County (2021)15

Medi-Cal  32,008 
(28% of total children 0-6)

CalFresh  12,182 
(11% of total children 0-6)

Approximately 

1 in 10
children under 6 lives 
below the Federal 
Poverty Level. (2019)16

3 out of 4 households 
struggling to meet 
their basic needs in 

Alameda County have a head  
of household that identifies as 
a person of color.17

Children and women, especially those who identify as 
people of color, bear the brunt of structural inequities. 

In Alameda County 
and the Bay Area, 
more than 1 in 3  

women are caught in 
financial precarity.17

Child Care

Housing

Food
Health

$56,000 Income of 2 full-time 
workers at California minimum 
wage (2021)12

$102,760 Gap between  
the income required to meet 
basic needs and the income of 
a family living at the Federal 
Poverty Level (FPL), with 
maximum tax credits (2021)10,11,12

$137,660 INCOME REQUIRED TO 
MEET A FAMILY’S BASIC NEEDS (2021)9 
Based on a family of two parents, one 
infant, and one preschooler

$26,500 FPL for a family of 4 
(2021)14

$34,900 = FPL + Maximum State/
Federal Tax Benefits (2021)11

$39,280 Average Income  
of ECE professsional (2020)13 

�1/3 of a family’s income is 
going toward child care

The cost of living continues to rise at an unsustainable rate.

50%
of renters pay more than 1/3  
of their income for rent. (2019)19

$  34%
increase in median family 
income (2000–2019)18

$68%
increase in child care  
cost (2014–2021)17

$



10	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Structural Inequities Lead to Racial Disparities
Maternal and Newborn Health20

Access to Child Care

Alameda County’s Context—Data for Action

Infant/Toddler Unmet Need 
 for Subsidized Care (2021)21

Preschool Unmet Need 
for Subsidized Care (2021)21

8.8% (2,257)  
Number of Eligible 
Children Accessing 
Subsidized Care

53.7% (9,465)  
Number of Eligible 
Children Accessing 
Subsidized Care

Black women and birthing 
people are 3x more likely to die 
during pregnancy or childbirth 
and to experience more 
maternal health complications.

Black babies are 3-4 times 
more likely to be born too 
early, too small, or to die 
before their first birthday.

91.2%
(23,463)

Unmet Need

46.3%
(8,164)

Unmet Need

Child Care Professionals Work in a Critical and Fragile System
We estimate that the Alameda County ECE field lost $395 million in fiscal year 2020–2021 alone 
($220 million without taking the increased cost of providing care into consideration) and continues 
to experience losses in the current fiscal year.22

In 2020, California increased reimbursement rates, which could bring an increase of more than 
$20 million countywide to subsidized child care programs for children from birth to age five. Yet the 
new rates are still far below the true cost of care.23

96%
of Alameda County  
ECE educators identify 
as women. (2020)13

20%
of providers at child 
care centers reported 
earning less than  
$15 per hour. (2020)13

87%
of ECE educators are 
considered very low 
income for Alameda 
County. (2020)13

79%
of Alameda County 
ECE educators 
identify as women 
of color. (2020)13



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 11     

*Zip codes with fewer than 5 participants are not shown.
**�Readiness scores represent individuals living in the zip code and do not represent the overall readiness 

of children in that zip code.

Kindergarten Readiness (2019)1

Kindergarten Readiness Zip Codes

	

	Neighborhoods Ready for School Service Areas

	� Alameda County COVID-19 Priority 
Neighborhoods

	 Alameda County

	Freeways

Legend

Lowest 25%
25% to 50%

50% to 75%
75% to 100%

Learn more about how 
kindergarten readiness is  
assessed on our website. 

LINCOLN
ALL IN Alameda County  
(San Antonio Family Resource Center)

ROOTS COMMUNITY
HEALTH CENTER

UNION CITY 
FAMILY CENTER

Child Outcomes
We find that differences in kindergarten readiness are largely attributable to inequities in 
access to resources. The greatest moveable factor continues to be child health and well-being, 
which is tied to socioeconomics, housing stability, and stress among parents/caregivers.1 

Alameda County’s Context—Data for Action

4 in 5
children who are not ready 
for kindergarten continue 
to struggle academically in 
third grade. (2018)24

44% 44% 44%

20% 21% 18%

2015 2017 2019

36% 35% 38%

Not Ready (0 areas)

Partially Ready (1-2 areas)

Fully Ready (All areas)

Since 2015, only 44% of 
children were found to 
be fully ready for school, a 
stubborn trend that points 
to the underlying structural 
inequities affecting children, 
families, and communities.

Achievement gaps persist 
for children who are not 
ready for kindergarten.

Kindergarten Readiness 2015–20191



12	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

MEETING THIS MOMENT IN TIME

In 2020, First 5’s operating context changed dramatically.  
The COVID-19 pandemic decimated our fragile, underfunded, and fragmented safety net. The vital 
links between families and their local economic, health, and social supports were severed. Families 
experienced historic levels of job loss, child care and school closures, health care challenges, and food 
and housing insecurity. Between March 2020 and January 2021, an estimated 153 (7%) of licensed 
child care facilities in Alameda County closed permanently.25 Social distancing, remote learning, 
and quarantine policies compounded the isolation and stress endured by low- to moderate-income 
families and caregivers. The lack of access to in-person learning, play, and interaction negatively 
impacted children’s learning, growth, and development. The pandemic exacerbated persistent 
health and economic inequities that disproportionately impacted Black and Brown communities, 
creating increased risks for families’ economic security, emotional well-being, educational progress, 
health, and safety. 

Child Poverty 0-5 & COVID-19 Rates26,27

Legend
Areas of High Child Poverty (0-5) & 
High COVID-19

First 5 Neighborhoods Ready for 
School Grantee Service Areas

Alameda County COVID-19 Priority 
Neighborhoods

Alameda County

Freeways

LINCOLN
ALL IN Alameda County  
(San Antonio Family Resource Center)

ROOTS COMMUNITY
HEALTH CENTER

UNION CITY 
FAMILY CENTER



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 13     

MEETING THIS MOMENT IN TIME

 Summary of Strategic Plan Stakeholder Feedback
	 Build/evolve the early childhood system.

	� Families and communities have strengths to build upon and should 
be valued, listened to, and leveraged.

	� Underlying structural inequities by race and class are impacting 
families, providers, and communities.

 PRIORITIES FOR SUPPORTING FAMILIES 

	� A “seamless” system that addresses basic needs ( i.e., food, housing, 
transportation), child care, health and mental health/social connections

 PRIORITIES FOR SUPPORTING PROVIDERS

	 �Wages and professional development, flexible funding, and organizational 
capacity building

 PRIORITIES FOR FIRST 5

	 • Define and clarify role

	 • �Emphasize partnerships with families, community, community-based 
organizations, and systems

	 •� �Leverage place-based investments and consider other opportunities by 
place and population

	 • �Use data and policy advocacy in partnership with community for systems 
change

	 • Build agency capacity to meet new need and opportunity

	 • Support staff leadership and well-being

 PRIORITIES FOR SYSTEMS

	 • Invest in families with young children

	 • �Coordinate resources for a system that is responsive and accessible

	 •� �Invest in community infrastructure that supports families (housing, 
libraries, parks)

Families Staff Community
Data

Stakeholder
Interviews



14	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

We will be successful when all children 
in Alameda County are ready for 
kindergarten. Our work is to ensure that policies, systems, 
communities, and schools are ready to support families and 
children to position them for lifelong success. 

We have learned a lot over the last 20 years about the connection 
between community conditions and children’s outcomes. Given 
our mission and our analysis of opportunities for impact, we have 
adopted a Place-People-Policy framework to guide our investment 
in children and families in the next five years toward building an 
early childhood system of care. 

PLACE
We believe that the health and well-being of children and their families are strongly influenced 
by the social and economic conditions of their neighborhoods. Strong, supportive communities 
help children and families thrive. We invest in programs and policies that promote economically 
prosperous and vibrant environments that afford access to opportunities and promote  
well-being by:

	 • �Building on Neighborhoods Ready for School (NRFS) 
place-based investments

	 • �Integrating services across First 5’s targeted 
neighborhoods, in alignment with Alameda County’s 
priority zip codes

	 • �Strengthening place-based systems change and care 
coordination for families in NRFS sites

OUR APPROACH

“What really matters is childhood 

environment, rather than where you 

live as an adult. Every extra year 

of exposure to a positive childhood 

environment makes a significant 

impact on long-term outcomes.”

– Dr. Raj Chetty

From Dr. Chetty’s presentation as part of the 
2021 First 5 Alameda County Commission 
Speaker Series



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 15     

PEOPLE
We believe caregivers are the experts on their needs  
and the needs of their children and families. We 
work with them to identify their strengths, resources, 
and needs. We partner with them to reinforce their 
family and community supports and improve the 
effectiveness of our investments by:

	 • �Investing in parent partnership and leadership 

	 • ��Connecting families to basic needs and resources

	 • ��Promoting early screening and care coordination to 
address social-emotional, trauma, or developmental 
concerns

	 • ��Fostering family well-being through innovative 
parent-centered programming

	 • � �Maintaining comprehensive, quality early childhood 
training content to providers, parents/caregivers, and 
community in line with our commitment to equity

POLICY
We believe that First 5’s policy work should address structural racism and childhood poverty 
and their impact on child development and family well-being. Furthermore, our policy work is 
most effective when families are engaged in its development and active in a leadership role. 
We believe that data, research, and evaluation should be conducted in partnership with the 
community, informing an action agenda for advocacy and organizing. We believe that public 
systems should be accessible, effective, and responsive to families’ needs. We take a systems 
change approach by advancing solutions that move the early childhood system from a patchwork 
of services to an integrated ecosystem. We build the early childhood system of care by: 

	 • �Measuring continuous improvement in service to equity 

	 • �Evolving quality early care and education and capacity-building for the field

	 • �Expanding local pediatric strategies and systems care coordination capabilities (through Help Me 
Grow and Developmental and Legal Understanding for Everyone, DULCE)

	 • �Using data and policy advocacy to advance local, state, and national investments in people, place, 
and systems

	 • ��Preparing the agency to administer Measure C (Learn more about Measure C on page 37.) and other 
local, state, and federal funding initiatives

With this scaffolding in place, First 5 is well-positioned to build out the early childhood system 
of care. We will continue this transformation by partnering with parents, caregivers, community, 
providers, and public systems to address the underlying inequities. We will leverage the assets 
in Alameda County and seize the opportunity of once-in-a-generation federal, state, and local 
investments to build a more integrated early childhood system.

“The financial and material hardships 

households are experiencing are negatively 

impacting children because they are 

disrupting the well-being of caregivers.”

– Dr. Philip Fisher, RAPID-EC

“We would want anyone working with 

children to be healthy and supported and 

as present with children as they possibly 

can be. We have to provide the conditions 

for them to do so.”

– Dr. Lea Austin,  
Center for the Study of Child Care  

Employment at UC Berkeley

WHAT WE’RE GOING TO DO



16	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

First 5 is committed to being an anti-racist organization.  
Our 2017–2022 Strategic Plan explicitly named equity as a central component of our work. Inequity 
negatively impacts the health and well-being of children and families. We promote equity in our 
organization and within the community broadly. Equity informs our hiring, staff development, 
investments, training, community partnerships, program design and evaluation, and policy 
advocacy.

We invest in and advocate for programs and policies that:

	 1)	 Address structural racism and economic inequity 

	 2)	 Ensure basic family needs are met

	 3)	� Increase access to quality health, mental health, housing, food, transportation, 
jobs, child care, and educational experiences

	 4)	� Foster economically stable communities and opportunities for social 
connections

Our equity work is an ongoing march toward justice and equality. In 2017 and 2018, we adopted 
resolutions opposing inhumane immigration practices and the enforcement threats to immigrant 
families by the federal government. In June 2020, the First 5 Alameda County Commission 
reaffirmed this commitment to equity by adopting a resolution on equity and social justice to stand 
united with our Black and African-American colleagues, partners, and the entire Black community 
against racism in all its forms. We consider these resolutions as public commitments by which we 
hold ourselves accountable.

In our 2022–2027 Strategic Plan, our agency is continuing a long-term, agencywide learning process 
to create a shared definition of equity that will guide us in our next steps in this journey. This work 
will guide how we “operationalize” equity across and throughout the agency’s strategies, programs, 
and operations. Our equity practices will continue to evolve as we deepen our understanding of the 
ways systems of oppression appear in organizations and interpersonal relationships.  

COMMITMENT TO EQUITY



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 17     

In conjunction with our agencywide equity work, First 5 
will refine our stakeholder partnership approach. First 5 defines 
stakeholder partnership as the authentic and intentional work to develop responsive and reciprocal 
practices and relationships—with parents, caregivers, providers, and community so that First 5 
strategies reflect a collective community vision.

Through our practices, we will increase parent and community engagement to promote equity and 
broader systems change. This agencywide commitment is represented in all of our strategies, and 
we are nurturing our continued growth in this area to fulfill our commitment.

In the years ahead, we commit to:
	 •  �Adopt agency principles for stakeholder partnership in all facets of our work. We will 

examine existing models and frameworks, including those introduced via the First 5 
Association, the Ripples of Transformation, and the Center for the Study of Social Policy’s 
manifesto for parent engagement to inform the development of agency principles.

	 •  �Engage in a cross-agency effort to operationalize shared equity principles and goals to  
align our work. Assess our current approach and practices 
including resources to support parent, community, and 
stakeholder participation.

	 •  �First 5 will provide the necessary resources and 
internal organizational capacity to support this 
agencywide commitment.

WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP



18	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

First 5 identified the following planning assumptions and 
parameters, approved by the Commission to guide the 
development of this document. 

THEY ARE: 

	 • �Continue to diversify revenue to support building an early childhood system, including 
partnerships with managed care, Social Services, Health Care Services Agency, and other public 
entities to scale First 5 programs fundamental to an early childhood system, e.g., Help Me Grow, 
DULCE, Fatherhood, ECE workforce development, Measure C. This includes leveraging First 5’s 
infrastructure (financial, contract, staff expertise) to build out the early childhood system.

	 • �Maintain current funding levels, 
temporarily using our sustainability fund 
to offset Proposition 10 reductions while 
planning for diversified revenue sources 
and scale of successful programs.

	 • ��Utilize a largely contracted and 
community-based, equity-focused model 
for Proposition 10-funded activities. 
Available Proposition 10 funds can be 
used to seed new programs, support 
proof-of-concept strategies for policy and 
systems change, and provide funding to 
community-led initiatives. As a declining 
revenue source, it is not a sustainable 
funding stream to scale direct services 
staffed by First 5, or those we consider part 
of the county safety net.

	 • �Upon adoption of Alameda County’s 
Measure C, the 2022-2027 Strategic Plan 
would be substantively revised. The 
Measure C-mandated program plan 
will be developed in partnership with a 
Community Advisory Council (still to  
be seated).

2022–2027 STRATEGIC PLAN PARAMETERS 
& FINANCIAL PICTURE

Stakeholder Interviews 
More than 40 stakeholder 
interviews of county and 
community leaders.

First 5 Staff
All-sta� participation in 
multiple large and small 
group settings.

Parent Focus Groups
Parent focus groups in 
English, Spanish, and  
   Chinese, including parents
         with children with
            special needs, and
               one group speci�cally
                for fathers.

First 5 Comissioners
Commission engagement 
and adoption of 
strategic direction.

First 5 
Leadership

First 5 leadership 
established the 
planning parameters 
and held retreats and 
working sessions 
throughout the process 
as feedback came in.

Strategic
Planning 
Process



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 19     

Long Range Financial Plan FY 2021-2031
BUDGET AND FUND BALANCE IN MILLIONS

2022–2027 Strategic Plan Parameters & Financial Picture

Agenda Item 8.6

6.24.2021

$30,838 

$27,396 

$23,686 

$19,534 

$15,017 

$10,157 

$7,914 $7,349 
$6,720 $6,538 

$24,318 

$22,240

$19,036 $18,964 $18,920 $18,873 

$15,477 

$13,433 $13,177 
$12,421 $12,159 

$11,120 
$9,518 $9,482 $9,460 $9,436 

$7,738 
$6,717 $6,589 $6,210 

 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27  2027/28  2028/29 2029/30 2030/31

LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN FY 2021-2031 BUDGET & FUND BALANCE ($000s)

St

ENDING        
FUND BALANCE

PROPOSED 
BUDGETED 
EXPENSES

MINIMUM
FUND BALANCE

STRATEGIC PLAN
(2017-22)

STRATEGIC PLAN
(2022-27)

We are temporarily using our 
sustainablility fund to support a 
steady state so as not to reduce 
capacity as we anticipate the 
continued build-out of the early 
childhood system supported 
by local public agencies and 
philanthropy.

Prop 10 revenue shows a 
steady decline, with some 
variation and plateauing 
based on tobacco legislation.

Prop 10 Revenue 1999-2027
ACTUAL AND PROJECTED PROP 10 REVENUE IN MILLIONS

Source: First 5 California, May 2021

The Long Range Financial Plan FY 2021-2031 has been prepared based on information available as of March 2022.



20	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Neighborhoods Ready for School

PURPOSE

Thriving neighborhoods are an essential component of an early 
childhood system. First 5’s Neighborhoods Ready for School (NRFS) 
strategy is a place-based investment, asset building, and policy 
response to the relationship and interplay between neighborhood 
conditions, family and child well-being, and the structural factors that 
contribute to overall health, development, and kindergarten readiness. The 
NRFS strategy funds trusted community-based organizations using an equity index to prioritize 
neighborhoods with young children that have been historically marginalized due to racist, 
classist systems and policies. 

PROGRAM STRATEGIES

Overview
Since 2017, First 5 has strategically enhanced its organizational capacity to engage in 
systems building by: 

	 1)	 Increasing organizational capacity to center community needs and voices 

	 2)	 Engaging in policy advocacy 

	 3)	� Leveraging federal, state, and local funds to ensure sustainability and scale of 
programming vital to an early childhood system 

The evolution of First 5’s systems building work has required us to take a multi-pronged approach, 
incorporating place-based investments, administration of programs, and building policy, data, 
evaluation, and communications capacity to articulate impact and advocate for resources.28 Using 
the Place-People-Policy implementation framework, First 5 is catalyzing increased access to services 
and supporting family-friendly community conditions. This enabled First 5 to be nimble in our 
response to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, alongside support of building an early childhood 
system in service to community, family, and child well-being.

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 21     

Our 2019 Kindergarten Readiness study confirmed the importance of this place-based approach. 
We found that neighborhood assets, especially the presence of mutual support among community 
members, along with sidewalks, walking paths, and libraries, significantly boost children’s school 
readiness.1 Families earning at least $50,000 per year were significantly more likely than lower 
income families to report the availability of each asset in their neighborhood. Higher income 
families reported 6.1–6.7 assets in their neighborhoods, while lower income families reported 4.5–5.5 
assets. Children in both low-income families and higher-income families had significantly higher 
kindergarten readiness if they also lived in asset-rich neighborhoods.

The NRFS strategy employs a trust-based philanthropy model that recognizes and prioritizes the 
knowledge and wisdom of those who live and work within communities. Community stakeholders 
are best positioned to define their own needs, appropriate responses, and their role in policy 
advocacy. The key principles guiding this place-based community capacity building and 
infrastructure are:

	 •  �Strengthening economic supports and basic needs, food and supply 
distribution during COVID-19 in service to systems change 

	 •  �Increasing coordination of family services across systems, family 
navigation, and connection to resources 

	 •  �Directing early childhood programs and services, including 
virtual supports  

	 •  ��Expanding the physical infrastructure to promote safe spaces 
for young children and their families

	 •  �Fostering family leadership and civic engagement 

	 •  ��Building partnerships among community organizations and 
government 

	 •  �Supporting policy advocacy efforts catalyzed and led by residents

GOALS	 •	� Work with NRFS sites to identify priorities and current needs post-COVID-19 and make any 
needed refinements to the structure of our engagement.

	 •	� Concentrate First 5 programs in NRFS catchment areas to leverage investments 
and generate multiplier effect across the neighborhoods.

	 •	� Develop an essential data set for reporting and analysis to understand impact, 
identify areas for continuous improvement, and ease the reporting burden on 
grantees. 

	 •	� Invest in school district, service provider capacity and partnerships, and community 
infrastructure that supports families (housing, libraries, parks) and kindergarten 
readiness.

	 •	� In collaboration with NRFS agencies use the qualitative and quantitative data 
collected from neighborhood partners and other sources to advocate for policy 
and systems changes that will help to improve conditions for families with young 
children.

	 •	� Showcase successes and local stories that demonstrate effectiveness to support 
sustainability of the NRFS models.

PROGRAM STRATEGIES



22	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Quality Early Care and Education (ECE)

PURPOSE

Early Care and Education (ECE) is a cornerstone of the early 
childhood system. ECE enables parents to work outside the home 
and is a vital part of the local economy. It is an under-resourced and 
underappreciated profession. 

Participation in ECE is a leading factor in predicting kindergarten readiness, as 
research has shown that participation in ECE significantly narrowed readiness gaps.1 Our biannual 
Kindergarten Readiness studies have consistently found less than half of children in Alameda 
County are fully ready for kindergarten, largely due to socioeconomics tied to structural racism, with 
particular consequences for African-American and Latinx children.

Affordability is a major barrier to accessing ECE. The cost of child care has risen 68% since 2014; a 
family of four in Alameda County with a preschooler and an infant pay one-third of their income 
toward child care costs.17,9 At the same time, there is a significant gap in access to subsidies for 
income-eligible families with an unmet need in 2018 of 91% of eligible infants and 46% of eligible 
preschool children in Alameda County.21 The pandemic worsened existing inequities, with families 
facing historic levels of job loss, school and child care closures, and food insecurity. 

ECE professionals are an underpaid and aging workforce, with high attrition rates. Eighty-seven 
percent (87%) of Alameda County ECE professionals, 79% of whom identify as Black, Indigenous, 
or other women of color, are considered very low-income for the county.13 Across the county, the 
number of licensed family child care providers declined by 34% between 2007 and 2019.21 These 
operational challenges increased in the pandemic. We estimate that the Alameda County ECE field 
lost $395 million in FY2020-21 alone ($220 million without taking into consideration the increased 
cost of providing care) and these losses are expected to continue in the current fiscal year.22

High-quality ECE and licensed and community-based childhood development programming are key 
components of the early childhood system of care. The Quality ECE (QECE) strategy provides quality 

improvement supports for the mixed delivery system–centers, family 
child care (FCC) providers, and family friend and neighbor (FFN) 

providers—with coaching, training, professional development, 
technical assistance, and financial incentives and supports 

that include learning networks for each type of child care 
delivery setting, ensuring technical support, and fostering 
leadership and community. First 5 also partners with 
libraries and family resource centers to support quality 
developmental programming for those children who 
are not in a licensed early educational setting.

We recognize that scarcity of public resources limits the 
existence of and access to quality child care and quality 

community-based programming. As a result, we prioritize 
those caring for children receiving subsidies and those 

who have historically been unable to access QECE supports, 
particularly FCCs and FFNs.

PROGRAM STRATEGIES

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 23     

We recognize the strengths and needs of dual-language learners and promote inclusive practices 
in classrooms to meet the requirements of children with special needs, so that all early learners are 
positioned for success.

Finally, we are updating our child care facilities census and charting the ECE workforce development 
needs. In addition, First 5 is creating opportunities to generate interest and professionalization of 
these important roles by creating apprenticeship programs as a pathway to recruit people new to 
the field and retain current teachers.

GOALS	 •	� Co-design with parents, providers, and community partners a more equity-informed 
approach to quality rating and Quality, Rating, and Improvement Systems (QRIS) in the 
mixed delivery system. 

	 •	� Shift First 5’s resources from formal assessment and rating to training, professional 
learning communities, curriculum support, coaching, professional development, stipends, 
and other financial supports, where allowable.

	 • 	� Provide core infrastructure support to the local Quality Counts California activities in 
Alameda County and maintain county readiness for additional partnership and funding 
opportunities.

	 •	� Increase the number of FCC and FFN providers participating in Quality Counts, especially 
those serving low-income, dual-language learners, children with special needs, and 
children experiencing homelessness.

	 •	� Expand partnerships with parks and recreation departments and libraries to serve children 
outside of formal care settings, while identifying ways to increase and improve place-
based support for FFN and FCC in Neighborhoods Ready for School (NRFS) settings/
neighborhoods.

	 •	� Increase collaboration between QECE and other First 5 programs and investments, 
including NRFS, Help Me Grow, Parent Partnership, and Fatherhood.  

	 •	� Leverage and streamline, in partnership with Policy, Planning, and Evaluation staff, the 
local use of ECE data systems, including Hubbe and the California ECE Workforce Registry, 
to strengthen the collection of data and to better support planning, data decolonization, 
and tools for community partners and the ECE field.

	 •	� Conduct and promote an ECE Facilities Needs Assessment to develop strategies to 
increase capacity and quality of facilities and infrastructure in key areas of unmet need.

	 •	� Monitor, in partnership with Policy, Planning and Evaluation staff, the implementation of 
TK-Universal Pre-K and support plans that incorporate best practices for meeting family 
and children’s needs and support the mixed delivery system.

	 •	� Conduct a workforce landscape study, in partnership with the ECE Planning Council, 
Alameda County Office of Education, and community stakeholders, to develop county 
strategies for leveraging state and local resources to address ECE workforce development 
pathways (i.e., apprenticeships, credentialing, higher education cohorts, etc.).

PROGRAM STRATEGIES



24	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Parent Partnership

PURPOSE

Family Leadership is one of the core components of an early childhood 
system, as it enhances parents’ leadership and advocacy in early 
childhood programs and at home. First 5’s redefined Parent Partnership 
strategy invests in direct services to families and children with a focus 
on maternal and child health and the 0-3 years and uses parent leadership 
to inform programming and investments. The Parent Partnership strategy 
increases access and reduces disparities stemming from inequities through program design, 
investments, and systems partnerships. 

Inequities in policies, systems, and practices with roots in structural racism have an impact on 
families and children. Black women and birthing people are three times more likely to die during 
pregnancy or childbirth and to experience more maternal health complications.20 Black babies are 
three to four times more likely to be born too early, too small, or to die before their first birthday.20 
Given the deep disparities and recognizing that the period from birth to age five is a critical time for 
children and families, First 5 is committed to programming, investments, and engagements that 
seek to improve underlying structural conditions and outcomes.  

The revised Parent Partnership strategy includes: 1) formulating parent-advised investments in 
programs, supports, and services that promote equity in birth outcomes, maternal and child health, 
family well-being, and kindergarten readiness, 2) ensuring parents representing the diversity of 
languages in Alameda County can be active partners through interpretation and translation, and  
3) building partnerships with maternal and child health-serving agencies and organizations.

GOALS	 •	� Collaborate with parents and systems partners to define type of investment, program 
approach, and guiding frameworks to increase focus on birth equity, Black Maternal 
Morbidity and Mortality, and promoting equity in the 0-3 space.

	 •	� Assess First 5’s Cultural Access Services (CAS) structure within the agency to best meet the 
diverse interpretation and translation needs of families, providers, and contractors.

	 •	� Identify emerging opportunities, legislative and budgetary, related to maternal health and 
birth equity to inform program design, policy advocacy, and the evolution of the local early 
childhood system.

	 •	� Employ data and lessons learned in collaboration with 
parents, staff, and partners to:

			   - �Advocate for scaling of DULCE, and the 
importance of legal, medical, 
and social services partnerships to address 
the social determinants  
of health.

			   - �Demonstrate how parent partnership 
initiatives have improved outcomes for 
children and families to make a case for 
sustainability and systems change.

PROGRAM STRATEGIES

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 25     

Early Identification, Screening,  
and Care Coordination 

PURPOSE

Comprehensive Health and Development is a key component of the 
early childhood system. First 5’s Early Identification, Screening, and 
Care Coordination (EISCC) strategy focuses on achieving a common goal 
that all children in Alameda County grow up healthy, thriving, and strong. 
Decades of national research have demonstrated that early childhood 
development and overall well-being are affected by the social determinants of 
health including community and environmental conditions, racism, poverty, stress, relationships, 
access to resources, and education.

There are more than 32,000 low-income children under age six enrolled in Medi-Cal in Alameda 
County.15 While Alameda County has been a state leader in enrolling income-eligible children in 
public health coverage, approximately one in three are not engaging in or receiving regular pediatric 
preventive care, including but not limited to well-child care and early childhood screenings.29 
Approximately 85% of children served through Help Me Grow, First 5’s centerpiece program of this 
strategy, are insured through Medi-Cal, and 24% of families served were also referred to services for 
basic needs, such as food, housing, health care, and child care.30 

Given this landscape, the primary goal of this strategy is to connect and integrate public and 
community screening, referral, and response resources. Our focus is to engage, assess, and connect 
children, especially Medi-Cal enrolled families, to pediatric preventative care, medically-necessary 
services, and community-based programming and support. 

Fundamental to this strategy is maximizing the family’s pediatric visit. Pediatric visits are an entry 
point to care management, resource referral, and other community supports. Research has shown 
that expanding community-based care management improves overall family health and well-being.31 

The EISCC strategy fosters collaboration with community stakeholders to leverage data and develop 
targeted strategies to fill service gaps, reduce barriers, and advance racial equity, thereby ensuring 
equitable access to supports and benefits. 

First 5 adopted the nationally recognized Help Me Grow model as the primary implementation 
framework for the EISCC strategy. The HMG program provides: 

	 •	� Training and technical assistance to providers serving the Medi-Cal pediatric population (0-5) in 
Alameda County  

	 •	� Implementation and referral assistance to pediatric and early child care and education providers 
with recommended developmental, social-emotional, and/or Adverse Childhood Experiences 
Screenings (ACEs) 

	 •	� Multilingual access to HMG’s Central Access Point to provide support and care coordination to 
parents/caregivers for families of children with an identified need for developmental, behavioral, 
or other resources and services  

	 •	� Outreach and convenings to build a coordinated network of services and promote awareness of 
HMG

PROGRAM STRATEGIES

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



26	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

GOALS  	 •	� Build a menu of navigation services to provide support to families enrolled in Medi-
Cal and other insurance providers for referrals to early intervention, community 
resources, family support, and basic needs.  

	 •	� Recommend strategies for increasing agency and HMG community capacity to 
address unmet needs, with a focus on First 5’s Neighborhoods Ready for School 
catchment areas and other high-need areas in the county. 

	 •	� Enhance the scope of Help Me Grow program training, screening, and resource 
referral activities to include social needs, support for pregnant and parenting 
populations, and those who have been exposed to Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACEs), with a particular emphasis on children insured through Medi-Cal.  

	 •	� Expand outreach and education that increases provider, community-based 
organization, and partner agencies understanding of individual and community 
conditions (such as social determinants of health and protective factors) that 
impact child development, well-being, and kindergarten readiness.  

	 •	� Assess opportunity and risks associated with funding streams that support EISCC, 
in particular, the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) program.  

	 •	� Develop strategy and approach to enhance partnerships with early childhood 
system providers across health and education agencies, including Alameda 
Alliance for Health, Health Care Services Agency, Regional Center, and Local 
Educational Agencies to better connect supports and improve experiences for 
families.  

	 •	� Align and expand care coordination through pediatric delivery system programs 
and partnerships (e.g., HMG and Development and Legal Understanding for 
Everyone, DULCE).  

	 •	� Assess opportunities for care coordination through early care and education, 
particularly with the expansion of Universal Transitional Kindergarten.  

	 •	� Evaluate new technology solutions, beginning with resource directory and referral 
platforms, to support improved coordination and communication among parents/
families, providers, managed care plans, and First 5. 

PROGRAM STRATEGIES



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 27     

Fatherhood

PURPOSE

First 5’s Fatherhood program is a unique approach to the early 
childhood system of care’s family leadership principles. Historically, 
early childhood and family and community support programs 
have focused on serving mothers and children; in most cases, this 
unintentionally leaves fathers and father-figures out of the equation. 
The Fatherhood program raises awareness of the benefits of the active role 
that fathers and father-figures have in early childhood development. We have focused on 
strengthening collaboration with public systems and community-based organizations to promote 
and acknowledge the critical roles fathers and father-figures can play. To increase acceptance 
of and the experiences of fathers and father-figures participating in child development 
activities, First 5 sponsors training, support groups, and technical assistance geared toward the 
development of high-quality, father-centered services. 

Our Kindergarten Readiness studies have confirmed locally what the national research indicates. 
High-quality, involved fathering by dads who live in the child’s home and apart, has strong, positive 
impacts on a child’s development, including academic achievement, emotional well-being, and 
behavior.32, 33 Locally, we found that fathers who accessed a greater number of community resources 
(parks, libraries, and museums) with their children contributed to their child’s greater readiness for 
kindergarten.21  

The Fatherhood program supports service providers with training that fosters healthy co-parenting 
relationships to ensure that parents are functioning as a team. High-functioning, healthier co-
parenting relationships support young children’s optimal development and bolster their social and 
emotional learning. These skills and interactions are shown to improve children’s cognitive skills, 
which leads to increased kindergarten readiness.  

GOALS	 •	� Incorporate Fatherhood and Father-Friendly Principles into First 5 structures and 
infuse Fatherhood strategies into First 5 programs: Neighborhoods Ready for 
School, Help Me Grow, Parent Leadership, and Quality ECE. 

	 •	� Engage fathers and male providers to inform the 
development of the Healthy Relationship Principles 
(HRP) tools to support providers with the 
integration of HRP in work with families and 
provide training on HRP.

	 •	� Position the Fatherhood work for sustainability 
and scale through fund development and 
public systems partnerships.

	 •	� Promote integration of Father-Friendly 
Principles in public and community-based 
systems of care.

	 •	� Identify strategies to strengthen internal 
collaboration and referral pathways for  
additional public system support connecting 
fathers to employment, financial education, health, 
and housing.

PROGRAM STRATEGIES

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



28	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Agency Strategy: Training

PURPOSE

A diverse, well-informed, and well-trained provider and parent community are critical elements 
of the early childhood system. In partnership with First 5 staff and community, First 5’s Training 
department identifies, coordinates, and delivers instructional content, skill-building workshops, 
and information sessions to build the capacity of the early childhood system in Alameda County.

Our 2019 Kindergarten Readiness study found that fewer than half of the kindergarten teachers 
surveyed had received training related to children with special needs, trauma-informed care, cultural 
humility, and family engagement. Pediatricians have historically had limited specialized training on 
child development mental and behavioral health.34,35 The same holds true for other direct service 
workers who serve young children and their families.36 Equally important, parents and caregivers 
benefit from, and are eager for, information on topics relevant to their young children, but often do 
not know how to obtain it.37  

The Training department delivers content aimed at supporting agency priorities and community 
needs. The Training team provides technical assistance to staff and community partners in best 
practices for identifying, planning, delivering, and evaluating educational programming.

GOALS	 •	� Reassess training offerings to ensure greater alignment with agency and 
community priorities and needs to ensure programming is focused on areas  
critical to sustainability of key investments and ongoing service provision.

	 •	� Assist human resources with implementation of staff trainings ranging from 
professional development and technical assistance directly linked to agency 
strategy and program goals.

	 •	� Incorporate equity framework into content development and mode of delivery  
to increase reach into underrepresented child care providers.

AGENCY STRATEGIES



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 29     

Agency Strategy: Policy and Advocacy

PURPOSE

First 5’s Policy and Advocacy strategy utilizes analysis, data, information, and coalitions to support 
the evolution of an equity-centered local early childhood system. We engage in advocacy to scale 
and sustain effective programs and to promote public policies grounded in equity and justice.  

Our policy work seeks to shape, support, and sustain policies that proactively address the needs of 
families with young children and their caregivers in public systems. We anchor our policy efforts 
to our equity framework and the lessons learned from our program work with staff, community 
partners, providers, parents, and caregivers. Through our policy work, we mobilize a shared vision 
of an early childhood system of care that is a network of coordinated and responsive organizations 
that improve outcomes for children from birth to age five. First 5’s biannual Kindergarten Readiness 
study repeatedly points to the importance of structural conditions, e.g., socioeconomics, access 
to early care and education, as critical to supporting children’s success. In Alameda County 
approximately 1 in 10 children under six years lives below the Federal Poverty Level ($26,500 for a 
family of four).16 It takes $137,660 to meet the basic needs of a two-parent family with one infant and 
one preschooler.9

By understanding the legislative, budgetary, regulatory, and administrative levers of public systems, 
we create a multifaceted policy agenda for systems change. We leverage our resources, access, 
expertise, analytical skill set, and partnerships to listen, lift up needs, share successes, and evaluate 
impact of public investments that improve outcomes for children and families. 

GOALS	 •	� Document success of First 5’s work catalyzing sustainability, scale, and systems 
change initiatives that are contributing to the evolution of an early childhood 
system of care.

	 •	� Convene partners, community, stakeholders, elected officials and their staff 
in discussions of policy issues and advocacy specific to families with young 
children, using findings from the 2021–2022 Kindergarten Readiness study and 
Neighborhoods Ready for School evaluation.

	 •	� Create an annual policy agenda with input from staff and community; lift 
messages, insights, and policy priorities learned from programs including direct 
service needs of parents and caregivers, and gaps in the system.

	 •	� Position First 5 with elected officials, policymakers, First 5 
California, and other statewide associations as a key leader, 
partner, and convener in the work to advance the well-
being of families with young children in Alameda 
County. 

	 •	� Craft a policy narrative in support of increased public 
investments  in proven strategies to support an early 
childhood system of care with input from community 
leaders and policy makers.

	 •	� Increase integration of data among systems at the 
local level to support data-driven policymaking with an 
equity and “whole community, whole family, whole child” 
approach.

AGENCY STRATEGIES



30	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Agency Strategy: Data and Evaluation

PURPOSE

First 5’s Data and Evaluation strategy supports shared accountability, continued organizational learning, 
public awareness, and policy advocacy as part of our role in evolving the early childhood system.  

Research and data can provide a roadmap to systems change. Our research has pointed to the underlying 
structural conditions and opportunities necessary to support families with young children. Our 
Kindergarten Readiness study shows that differences in kindergarten readiness are largely attributable to 
inequities of access to resources and educational experiences.1 Our 2018 longitudinal study found that 4 
out of 5 children who are not ready for kindergarten are still not caught up to grade level by third grade, 
pointing to the importance of early investments in children, families, and communities.24  

We believe data, research, and evaluation are tools for 
making policy change, and creating a shared system 
and stakeholder understanding of community priorities 
and needs. We focus on generating and sharing data, 
research, and results to inform internal agency decision 
making and our work with partners, public policy, 
planning, and advocacy. Through participatory research, 
storytelling, and other practices consistent with data 
decolonization and democratization, we put the power 
of data back into the hands of the people. We use data to 
highlight community conditions, the strengths and needs 
of our county’s youngest children, their families, and the 
providers who serve them, and to advance policies that 
promote equity. 

We partner with colleagues and community stakeholders on data and evaluation efforts to identify 
promising practices, demonstrate effectiveness, support efforts to scale and sustain effective strategies, 
and promote continuous quality improvement in the early childhood system.

GOALS	 •	� Deepen our understanding of equitable data and research practices, data decolonization, 
and democratization. Document learning, practices, and opportunities.  

	 •	� Use First 5’s biannual Kindergarten Readiness study and NRFS evaluation in collaboration 
with the community to inform policy advocacy and program investments. 

	 •	� Streamline production and elevate dissemination of data and research products as policy 
and communication tools for use by external stakeholders and staff.

	 •	� Strengthen understanding and support the interconnected needs of families and 
communities by developing robust data sharing agreements with public agencies and 
other key partners.

	 •	� Identify opportunities for evaluation/research projects in collaboration with partners and 
community to make a case for sustainability, scale, and/or systems change.

	 •	� Streamline data collection, Results Based Accountability (RBA) measures, and reporting with 
an eye to information that would most meaningfully contribute to agency decision-making, 
continuous improvement, and the identification of promising practices.

	 •	� Complete agencywide implementation of RBA framework so staff and leadership 
consistently use data and research findings to inform decisions and promote continuous 
improvement across all programs.

AGENCY STRATEGIES

Working Definitions to Support 
Continued Learning and Practice:

Data Decolonization refers to practices 
adopted to intentionally shift focus 
and ownership of data collection and 
analysis to Indigenous, Black, and Brown 
communities.38

Data Democratization refers to practices 
adopted to intentionally approach data 
collection and analysis with a community 
lens, supporting broad access to data and 
data analysis, including by those whom the 
data is about, as powerful tools for change, 
and eliminating unnecessary barriers to 
accessing and utilizing data.



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 31     

Agency Strategy: Communications

PURPOSE

First 5’s communications strategy builds public awareness, mobilizes support, promotes systems 
coordination, and advocates for investments in an equity-centered early childhood system of 
care. The communications department works with internal and external audiences to inform 
and guide key stakeholders and decisionmakers in understanding, building, and supporting an 
equitable, sustainable, and comprehensive early childhood system.

First 5’s communications department creates compelling narratives about the importance of early 
childhood, positive and adverse childhood experiences, and “whole community, whole family, 
whole child” policy and programs. We use messages, stories, and data that point to the structural 
conditions, including racism and classism, underpinning children’s outcomes and highlight 
opportunities to build thriving communities, families, and children.

First 5’s communications strategy reinforces the agency’s position as a leading local policy voice for 
children and families. Communications initiatives provide support for the early childhood system in 
the form of investments, capacity building, and community data to inform priorities and decision-
making.  We promote centralized resources, information, and services for parents, caregivers, and 
service providers.

First 5 advances equity and stakeholder engagement in its communications by using feedback 
loops to listen to and report back to community stakeholders, allowing us to: 

	 •	 Create accessible content and design, using multiple languages and modalities 

	 •	 Elevate community voice in communications materials 

	 •	 Highlight family and community successes despite structural barriers 

	 •	 Represent diverse families and family structures across all media

GOALS	 •  �Update First 5’s Communications Plan to advance equity 
commitment, promote programmatic success, policy 
advocacy, and partnerships for systems change, 
and to sustain and scale effective and promising 
programs.

	 •  �Generate and disseminate content for 
policymakers, advocates, and providers by 
producing multimedia collateral material, 
policy and data briefs, case studies, 
website, social media, and media 
engagement.

	 •  �Increase access to and ease of 
navigation of centralized information 
and resources for neighborhoods, 
families, caregivers, providers, and 
policymakers.

AGENCY STRATEGIES



32	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

First 5’s Operations Division includes finance, human 
resources, technology, facilities, and administration. Not only do 
these functions support the day-to-day operations of the agency, they also allow the organization 
to play a backbone role to community-based organizations, providers, and public agencies that are 
part of the early childhood system. 

These backbone capabilities are of increasing importance as First 5 adjusts its strategies and 
operations in light of the steady decline in Proposition 10 revenues. These functions are necessary 
to enable First 5 to shift away from direct services funded by Proposition 10 to a contracted and 
community-based model. With the competencies and capabilities detailed below, First 5 is 
positioned to administer direct services—and with other revenue sources, such as Alameda County’s 
Measure C and managed care funds—in service to the expansion and evolution of an effective early 
childhood system.

Administration and Facilities
First 5’s Administration and Facilities’ strategy is to provide a safe, productive, efficient and inclusive 
work environment for staff and partners. Administrative and facilities staff ensure that the facility is 
operating as it should on a daily basis by completing regular inspections, ensuring compliance with all 
relevant requirements and standards, and conducting repairs and maintenance.  Office administrative 
operations are performed in a seamless manner to ensure the efficient operations of the agency. 

GOALS 	 •	�� Maintain and operate an office facility that provides for a safe, clean, functional, and 
welcoming environment. 

	 •	� Perform maintenance and repairs in a minimally disruptive manner. 

	 •	� Review operational efficiencies to maximize the utilization of resources. 

	 •	� Ensure that the office facility meets legal requirements and health and safety 
standards. 

	 •	� Provide efficient and effective administration procedures and practices. 

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT FUNCTIONS



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 33     

Finance

PURPOSE

�First 5’s Finance strategy enables the agency to use Proposition 10 funds strategically for direct 
service programs, as First 5 transitions away from providing direct services funded by Proposition 
10 to a contracted and community-based model.  

Finance focuses on budgeting, financial planning, forecasting, and managing revenue and 
expenditures for programs core to the agency’s mission. The Finance department effectively and 
transparently communicates fiscal data to the First 5 Alameda County Commission to ensure the 
ongoing health and viability of the organization.

GOALS	 •	� Develop and maintain fiscally responsible and sustainable budgets that reflect our 
strategies with input from stakeholders and system partners. 

	 •	� Present timely financial reports to identify current and future revenue and 
expenditure trends. 

	 •	� Implement the agency’s financial policies and procedures to ensure the timely, 
accurate, and complete reporting of financial information.

	 •	� Ensure that financial operations and transactions are accurate and in compliance 
with federal, state, and financial requirements. 

Human Resources

PURPOSE

To serve First 5’s function as a backbone to the early childhood system, Human Resources builds 
the capacity of the agency and our workforce. First 5’s Human Resources strategy focuses on aligning 
agency structure, staffing, operations, and culture with its organizational focus on systems change 
work. Human Resources serves as an effective partner by providing efficient and solution-focused 
services, maintaining a culture of inclusiveness and belonging, and ensuring First 5 has the requisite 
expertise, competencies, and skills needed to successfully execute the 2022–2027 Strategic Plan. We 
seek to retain and recruit a diverse workforce that reflects Alameda County, support staff development, 
ensure regulatory compliance, and support agency planning to inform organizational structure and 
business processes.

GOALS	 •	� Engage in organizational development to improve the agency’s capability through 
alignment of our mission, strategy, people, structure, and processes.

	 •	� Focus our talent acquisition strategies on attracting, developing, and retaining a talented 
and diverse workforce.

	 •	� Expand professional development and create resources dedicated to offering learning 
opportunities that support our organizational goals while enhancing the knowledge and 
skills of our workforce and increasing employee engagement, retention, and morale.

	 •	� Provide support and guidance to agency equity training and definition processes, 
incorporating future recommendations into internal practices.

	 •	�� Cultivate leadership within the agency, including succession planning and staff capacity 
building. Doing so will help to support the agency and develop leaders for the early 
childhood field.

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT FUNCTIONS



34	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

Technology

PURPOSE

First 5’s Technology strategy focuses on deploying technology applications and tools to support 
coordination and linkages, communication, and shared accountability among agency staff, 
partners, and grantees. With equity at the center of service design and delivery, this strategy 
provides support to staff and partners for operational efficiencies, data collection and tracking, and 
performance management. 

GOALS	 •	�� Conduct a technology assessment to create a roadmap for decision-making regarding 
applications for accounting, Salesforce, case management, resource directory, and website 
applications. 

	 •	�� Develop a process for selection of technology solutions that foster teaching, 
learning, research, and operations.

	 •	�� Plan for the eventual implementation of data systems to prepare for the likely 
implementation of Measure C, including a child care Centralized Eligibility List 
(CEL) and enrollment systems, contingent on funding.

INTRODUCTION TO OPERATIONAL SUPPORT FUNCTIONS



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 35     

Neighborhoods Ready for School 
($3,500,000) is a place-based investment, asset 
building, and policy response to the relationship and 
interplay between neighborhood conditions, family, 
and child well-being and the structural factors that 
contribute to overall health, development, 
and kindergarten readiness.

Quality Early Care and 
Education ($1,722,500) 
provides quality improvement 
supports for centers, family 
child care (FCC) providers, and 
family, friend and neighbor 
(FFN) providers with coaching, 
training, professional 
development, technical 
assistance, and financial 
incentives and supports; 
learning networks for each 
type of child care delivery 
setting; funds community-based 
programming for those children 
who are not in a licensed early 
educational setting. 

Parent Partnership ($2,080,000) 
provides direct services to families and 
children with a focus on maternal and child 
health and the 0-3 years and uses parent leadership 
to inform programming and investments.

Early Identification, Screening, and Care 
Coordination ($1,365,000) connects and 
strengthens public system and community resources 
to engage, assess, and connect children, with a focus on 
Medi-Cal-enrolled families, to pediatric preventative care, 
medically-necessary services, and community-based 
programming and support.

Fatherhood ($262,500) strengthens  
collaboration with public systems and community-based 
organizations, increases the representation and improves 

the experiences of men and fathers through training, 
strategic messaging, and the development of  

high-quality father-centered services.

Training ($700,000) identifies, 
coordinates, and delivers training to foster 
a diverse, well-trained provider workforce 

and support awareness, leadership, 
and linkages in each of the core 

components of the early childhood 
system.

Policy ($1,146,600) utilizes 
analysis, data, information, 

and coalitions to support the 
evolution of an equity-centered 

local early childhood system. 
We engage in advocacy to scale 
and sustain effective programs 
and to promote public policies 

grounded in equity and justice.

Data and Evaluation ($1,058,400) 
supports shared accountability, 

continued organizational learning, public 
awareness, and policy advocacy as part of our 

role in evolving the early childhood system.

Communications ($605,000) works with internal 
and external audiences to inform and guide key 

stakeholders and decisionmakers in understanding, 
building, and supporting an equitable, sustainable,  

and comprehensive early childhood system.

Operations and Administration ($3,510,000)
includes finance, human resources, technology, 

facilities, and administration.

PROPOSITION 10  
FY 22/23 INVESTMENTS

First 5 is using a Maintenance of Effort approach to this 
strategic plan for fiscal year 2022–2023 to maintain strategy 
budgets as we seek to build out the early childhood system. 
The budget will be updated annually.

First 5’s Role is to...

 A
D

VO
CA

TE
    

    
    

     
      

        
                                                          FU

N
D

 A
D

M
INISTER                                           

      
     

    
 PARTNER  

P
LA

CE

PEO
PLE

POLICY

Basic Needs

E q u i t y

Health & W
ell

-B
ei

n
gLearning & Care

Neighborhood
s

Fa
m

ily

Ready for
Kindergarten



36	 First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.  

To understand, track, and guide our progress we use data, 
research, and parent and community knowledge. Together, this 
information helps us understand how well children and families in the county are doing in areas that we 
know correspond to kindergarten readiness—like access to basic needs, participation in early care and 
education, and neighborhood conditions.

We also use data to understand the performance, 
impact, and opportunity for continuous improvement in 
our programs and investments.

This method of distinguishing “Population” and 
“Performance” data is part of a framework called 
Results Based Accountability. It is a disciplined way of 
thinking and taking action to improve quality of life in 
communities, as well as to improve the performance of 
programs. 

In our approach we strive to use data for action, and 
we work within our agency and with partners to make 
data accessible, relevant, and actionable. Data can shed 
light on partnership opportunities and guide actions 
that advance our equity commitment, are driven by 
community, and are low- or no-cost.

We use evaluation as a tool to help us get “under the 
hood” to understand why and how investments or 
programs might be working, and lift promising practices 
for policy advocacy, sustainability, and scale.

We are committed to participatory, equity-informed, and community-driven practices in our data, 
research, and evaluation work. At every stage—from identifying research questions and measures, to 
data collection methods, to interpreting findings and developing recommendations—we seek to be in 
deep partnership with community stakeholders. In the implementation of this Strategic Plan, we will 
develop performance measures to understand our progress toward our goals.

MEASURING OUR PROGRESS 

Results Based Accountability as a Tool 
for Equity

Population Result: The well-being of a 
whole population in a geographic area  
(e.g., all children under five in Alameda 
County, or all families with children under 
five in a zip code)

All Children in Alameda County are 
Ready for Kindergarten

We look at disaggregated data to 
understand structural inequities that 
create disparities in outcomes. This helps 
to inform our programs and investments.

Performance Accountability: The well-
being of client populations for programs, 
agencies, or service systems (i.e., all 
children 0-5 on Medi-Cal, all families 
served by ABC community organization) 

For our programs and investments, we ask 
ourselves:
	 •  How much do we do? 
	 •  How well do we do it? 
	 •  Is anyone better off?

For more on RBA and Equity, Racial Equity: 
Getting to Results (2017)



LOCAL REVENUE FOR  
EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES CREATE 
OPPORTUNITY
Significant public investment from recent state 
and federal government actions, combined with 
local initiatives, have created an unprecedented 
opportunity for Alameda County to evolve its 
local early care and education (ECE) system 
to better serve children, families, and ECE 
professionals. 

In Alameda County there were two recent 
countywide ballot measures related to ECE. 
The first, which was unsuccessful, was county-
sponsored Measure A in 2018. The City of 
Oakland’s Measure AA (see sidebar) was run 
congruently and with intended administrative 
alignment to Measure A. Upon Measure A’s 
defeat, the community led a signature campaign 
to place Measure C on the ballot, which was 
passed by voters in March 2020 and names First 5 
as the administrator of the Child Care, Preschool, 
and Early Education portion of the revenue.  

Measure C Allocation
Measure C is a half-percent (0.5%) sales tax that 
would raise an estimated $150 million per year 
to provide support and enhancements for child 
care, preschool, early education, and pediatric 
health care in Alameda County. The funds will be 
divided 80/20 into two subaccounts, a Pediatric 
Health Care Account (20%), overseen by a citizen 
oversight committee, and a Child Care, Preschool, 
and Early Education Account (80%), administered 
by First 5.

Measure C is expected to impact thousands of 
children and families across Alameda County 
who will have improved access to trauma care, 
specialized pediatric care, and treatment and 
expanded access to child care. Measure C also 
includes an increase in ECE workforce wages to 
$15 per hour, improvements to ECE quality, and 
teacher retention.

Currently the implementation of Measure C is 
delayed due to litigation currently pending in 
Alameda County Superior Court that challenges 
Measure C on numerous grounds, including that 
it required a two-thirds vote, an argument that 
has already been rejected by several appellate 
courts.

CHILD CARE FUND COMPONENTS

	 • �Increases access to quality care for 
participating providers through

		  - New enrollments
		  - Rate enhancements

	 • �Ensures teacher wages at a minimum of 
$15 per hour to be increased annually with 
revenue increases

	 • �Allows services to 0–12-year-olds, but defines 
a focus on 0–5-year-olds

	 • �Targets low-income families and those 
children/families with the greatest needs, 
e.g., families experiencing homelessness 
and foster children 

FIRST 5’S ROLE AS MEASURE C 
ADMINISTRATOR
First 5 commits to the responsible stewardship of 
these resources, in partnership with the Alameda 
County Board of Supervisors, Community 
Advisory Committee (CAC), and other ECE 
stakeholders, particularly parents/caregivers and 
ECE professionals. First 5’s role as outlined in 
section 2.08.305.B of the Ordinance:

	 • �Developing Program Plan & Annual 
Expenditure Plan

	 • Allocating funds based on Expenditure Plan

	 • �Developing, implementing, administering, 
and overseeing all programs and services 
paid for by the Child Care, Preschool, and 
Early Education account

Oakland’s Measure AA: The Children’s 
Initiative of 2018

Measure AA is a parcel tax projected to provide 
approximately $30 million annually in funding 
for early care and education and college 
preparedness programs in Oakland.

Measure AA was upheld by courts in December 
2021.

First 5 is named as a potential administrator in 
Measure AA



	 • Providing staff support for the CAC

	 • Developing the Program Plan Evaluation

	 • �Operating with transparency and public 
accountability, good fiscal stewardship of 
public resources, annual audit to ensure 
compliance

	 • �Awarding funds pursuant to our contracting 
policies and the Ordinance requirements

MEASURE C, FIRST 5, AND ALAMEDA 
COUNTY’S EARLY CHILDHOOD SYSTEM
Measure C will benefit Alameda County’s early 
childhood system of care broadly and will impact First 
5 as the county’s only governmental agency solely 
dedicated to families/caregivers with children 0-5 by:

	 • �Aligning new investment with First 5’s current 
investments and providing resources for 
“backbone” support to the early childhood 
system

	 • �Allowing First 5 to leverage our subject matter 
expertise, community partnerships, and 
infrastructure

	 • �Facilitating integration with First 5 
programming and fiscal leveraging of 
Proposition 10 and Measure C, in addition to 
federal, state, local, and philanthropic funds

	 • �Shifting First 5’s role, budget, operations, scale 
(i.e., staff and contracts), and community and 
public partnerships

PRE-PLANNING FOR INFRASTRUCTURE AND 
SYSTEM READINESS

	 • �First 5 has not initiated the Program Plan, 
which must be developed in coordination with 
the CAC (still to be seated) and community, 
for approval by the First 5 Alameda County 
Commission and Board of Supervisors.

	 • �To ready the agency and shore up the early 
childhood system in anticipation of Measure 
C, First 5 has begun pre-planning, with 
community and partners, in the areas of:

			   - �Supporting and advancing quality 
supports for ECE providers, including 
family, friend, and neighbor (FFN) 
caregivers, in meeting their identified 
quality goals

			   - �Investing in an ECE Facilities Needs 
Assessment for centers and family 
child care providers to understand the 
infrastructure and space needed to offer 
high quality care

			   - �Assessing and planning for technology 
and data systems that promote and 
monitor the effectiveness of local strategies, 
including the mandated evaluation; 
integrating information on subsidies; 
support quality and the ECE workforce; 
providing for a local centralized child 
care subsidy eligibility list; and expanding 
opportunities for parent, family, provider, 
and community engagement

			   - �Partnering with the field to develop 
workforce strategies to attract, train, retain, 
and promote ECE professionals 

Current Landscape of ECE in Alameda County
ACCESS: Even prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the ECE system suffered from low supply and high cost. The 
shortage of licensed child care is particularly acute in infant and toddler settings, with capacity for fewer than 
one out of every ten infants and toddlers in the county.39

AFFORDABILITY: In Alameda County, the average cost of child care is more than 40% of the average family’s 
income.40 With most income-eligible families unable to access subsidies that would mitigate the cost of care,  
any available care is unaffordable.

UNDER-RESOURCED PROVIDERS: Systemic and historical disinvestment in the ECE system has harmed child 
care providers, a population comprised primarily of women of color who possess years of experience, education, 
and expertise, yet are poorly compensated. Eighty-seven percent of the ECE workforce is considered very 
low-income for Alameda County.13 Forty percent of the ECE workforce are aged 50 or older, and attrition was a 
challenge in the ECE field even prior to the COVID-19 crisis.13

The Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on Early Care and Education
Alameda County’s ECE system, like many across the country, was on perilous footing before the COVID-19 
pandemic began. We estimate that the Alameda County ECE field lost $395 million in fiscal year 2020–2021 alone 
and continues to experience losses in the current fiscal year.22 Two years into the pandemic, the ECE system, 
infrastructure, and workforce remains under-resourced. ECE providers face significant challenges to providing 
quality, equitable access and affordable care.



First reading April 2022. Pending approval in June 2022.	 39     

1.	 Applied Survey Research. (2020). 2019 Alameda County Kindergarten Readiness 
Assessment. http://www.first5alameda.org/2019-alameda-county-kindergarten-
readiness-assessment 

2.	 US Census Bureau. (2019). Households and Families, 2019 American Community 
Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=S1
101&g=0500000US06001&tid=ACSST1Y2019.S1101&hidePreview=true 

3.	 State of California, Department of Finance, P-1B: Population Projections 
by Individual Year of Age, California, 2010-2060 (Baseline 2019 Population 
Projections; Vintage 2020 Release). Retrieved from https://www.dof.ca.gov/
Forecasting/Demographics/

4.	 US Census Bureau (2020). P2: Hispanic or Latino, and not Hispanic or Latino 
By Race. 2020 Decenniel Census Redistricting Data. Retrieved from https://
data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Alameda%20County,%20California%20
Populations%20and%20People&d=DEC%20Redistricting%20Data%20%28PL%20
94-171%29&tid=DECENNIALPL2020.P2

5.	 California Department of Public Health, Birth Statistical Master Files. (2019)

6.	 US Census Bureau (2020). “The Chance that two people chosen at random are 
of a different race or ethnicity group has increased since 2010”. https://www.
census.gov/library/stories/2021/08/2020-united-states-population-more-racially-
ethnically-diverse-than-2010.html 

7.	 US Census Bureau. (2019). Age by Language Spoken at Home for the Population 
5 Years and Over, 2019 American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved 
from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=B16007&g=0500000US06001&tid=A
CSST1Y2019.S1101&hidePreview=true

8.	 US Census Bureau. (2019). AGE AND NATIVITY OF OWN CHILDREN UNDER 
18 YEARS IN FAMILIES AND SUBFAMILIES BY NATIVITY OF PARENTS, 2019 
American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from https://
data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=children%20to%20foreign%20born%20
parents&g=0500000US06001&tid=ACSDT1Y2019.C05009 

9.	 Insight Center (2021). California Family Needs Calculator (formerly the California 
Family Economic Self-Sufficiency Standard or Self-Sufficiency Standard), 
Alameda County. Retrieved from https://insightcced.org/family-needs-calculator/

10.	 Analysis by First 5 Alameda County calculating the difference between Income 
Required to Meet Basic Needs [see citation 9] – (FPL + 2021 Max Tax Credits) [see 
citation 11] = $102,760. Based on a family of two adults and two children under 
age 6 filing with an Individual Tax Identification Number.

11.	 Analysis by First 5 Alameda County calculating the sum of the income of a family 
of four living at the 2021 Federal Poverty Level (FPL) [$26,500] plus the maximum 
tax credits available from the expanded federal 2021 Child Tax Credit ($7,200) 
and the 2021 California Golden State Stimulus ($1,200) = $34,900. Based on a 
family of two adults and two children under age 6 filing with an Individual Tax 
Identification Number.

12.	 California Department of Developmental Services. (2021). Minimum Wage – 2021. 
Based on two workers working 40 hours per week, 50 weeks per year. Retrieved 
from https://www.dds.ca.gov/rc/vendor-provider/minimum-wage/

13.	 California Early Care and Education (ECE) Workforce Registry. (October 2020). 
Note: Self-reported data for 2,348 people registered in the Alameda County 
Workforce Registry as of October 2020. The Workforce Registry only represents 
a subset of the ECE workforce as it is a voluntary database. The registry 
includes an overrepresentation of those working at child care centers and Title 
5 programs compared to other child care program types. Registry participants 
report wages as an hourly gross rate or annual, monthly, or weekly gross salary. 
Annual wage was calculated by multiplying their self-reported wage and their 
self-reported number of hours worked by 50 weeks.

14.	 US Department of Health & Human Services (HHS). (2021). HHS Poverty 
Guidelines for 2021. Based on a household of four. Retrieved from https://aspe.
hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines

15.	 Alameda County Social Services Agency. (2021). Enrollment numbers represent a 
one-month snapshot for January 2021.

16.	 US Census Bureau (2019). Poverty Status in the past 12 months of related children 
under 18, American Community Survey 5-year estimates (B17006). Retrieved 
from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=child%20poverty&tid=ACSDT5Y2019.
B17006

17.	 Insight Center (2021). Family Needs Indicator - Alameda County Fact Sheet. 
Retrieved from: https://insightcced.org/the-cost-of-being-californian-alameda-
county-fact-sheet/

18.	 US Census Analysis by First 5 Alameda County calculating the percentage 
difference between Median Family Income in 2019 and 2000 (adjusted to 2019 
dollars). US Census Bureau (2000,2019). Income in the past 12 months (in 2019 
inflation-adjusted dollars), American Community Survey 1-year estimates. 
Retrieved from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Income%20and%20
Poverty&g=0500000US06001&tid=ACSST1Y2019.S1901&hidePreview=true 

19.	 US Census Bureau (2019). Selected Housing Characteristics, American 
Community Survey 1-year estimates (DP04). Retrieved from https://data.census.
gov/cedsci/table?q=rent%20burden&tid=ACSDP5Y2019.DP04

20.	 Alameda County Public Health Department. (n.d.). Perinatal Equity Initiative 
webpage. Retrieved from https://acphd.org/programs-and-services/perinatal-
equity-initiative/ 

21.	 Alameda County Early Care and Education Planning Council, Alameda County 
Early Care and Education Needs Assessment. (2021) 6.4. Retrieved from http://
www.first5alameda.org/files/2021%20Alameda%20County%20ECE%20Needs%20
Assessment%20FINAL.pdf 

22.	 Estimate based on extrapolation from survey data and administrative data from 
October 2020 Alameda County Child Care Program Survey conducted by the 
Alameda County Early Care and Education Program Local Planning Council and 
First 5 Alameda County

23.	 First 5 Alameda County analysis conducted in October 2021. Estimates suggest 
that, based on population, Alameda County could see nearly 4,000 more 
subsidized slots based on the 2021–2022 adopted budget. Meanwhile, estimates 
suggest that the new reimbursement rates could bring an increase of over 
$20 million countywide to subsidized child care providers just for the slots for 
children age 0-5 currently in the system (estimates based on assumption of full 
day care rates). The Center for American Progress provides estimates of the true 
costs of care for child care programs in California.

24.	 Applied Survey Research. (2018). Kindergarten Readiness and Later 
Achievement: A Longitudinal Study in Alameda County. Retrieved from http://
www.first5alameda.org/files/Alameda%20Longitudinal%20KRA%20 Study%20
Final.pdf

25.	 California Department of Social Services, Community Care Licensing Division, 
Child Care Licensing Program. (2021). Facility Closures and New Licenses 
Between March 2020 and January 2021, and Net Loss or Gain of Facilities by 
County as of January 31, 2021.

26.	 US Census Bureau (2019). Poverty Status in the past 12 months, American 
Community Survey 5-year estimates (S1701). Retrieved from https://data.census.
gov/cedsci/table?q=children%

27.	 Alameda County Public Health Department (ACPHD). (2021). COVID-19 Data by 
Zip Code as of March 31, 2021. Retrieved from https://covid-19.acgov.org/data 

28.	 LaPiana Consulting. (2019). The Nonprofit Strategy Revolution. Retrieved from 
https://www.lapiana.org/insight/the-nonprofit-strategy-revolution-2/

29.	 Focali Consulting. (2020, December 30). Meeting Summary 

30.	 Help Me Grow Alameda County. (2021). Program data analysis of families served. 

31.	 McNally, K.R., Enneking, B., Ramaker M., et al. (2020). Family-centered care 
coordination in an interdisciplinary neurodevelopmental evaluation clinic: 
Outcomes from care coordinator and caregiver reports. Frontiers in Pediatrics. 
8:538633. doi: 10.3389/fped.2020.538633

32.	 Adamsons, K. (2018). Quantity versus quality of nonresident father involvement: 
Deconstructing the argument that quantity doesn’t matter. Journal of Child 
Custody, 15(1), 26-34. doi: 10.1080/15379418.2018.1437002

33.	 Adamsons, K., Johnson, S.K. (2013). An updated and expanded meta-analysis of 
nonresident fathering and child well-being. Journal of Family Psychology, 27(4), 
589–599. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0033786

34.	 McMillan, J.A., Land, M., Tucker, A.E., et al. (2020). Preparing future pediatricians 
to meet the behavioral and mental health needs of children. Pediatrics, 145(1): 
e20183796. https://doi.org/10.1542/peds.2018-3796

35.	 Macary, S. (2020). Preparing future pediatricians to address behavioral health 
needs of children: opportunities in pediatric residency training programs. Child 
Health and Development Institute of Connecticut, Inc. Issue Brief. Retrieved 
from https://www.chdi.org/index.php/publications/issue-briefs/issue-brief-76-
preparing-future-pediatricians-address-behavioral-health-needs-children-
primary-care 

36.	 University of California, Davis, Continuing and Professional Education, Human 
Services. Summary: Recommendations for High Fidelity Wraparound Services 
in California. (2020). Retrieved from https://humanservices.ucdavis.edu/news/
summary-recommendations-high-fidelity-wraparound-services-california 

37.	 Bartlett, J.D., Guzman, L., Ramos-Olazagasti M.A. (2018). 5 things to know 
about parents’ knowledge of parenting and early childhood development. 
Child Trends. Retrieved from https://www.childtrends.org/publications/5-
things-to-know-about-parents-knowledge-of-parenting-and-early-childhood-
development 

38.	 Secaira, M. (2019). Abigail Echo-Hawk on the art and science of “decolonizing 
data.” Crosscut. Retrieved from https://crosscut.com/2019/05/abigail-echo-hawk-
art-and-science-decolonizing-data 

39.	 Alameda County Early Learning Needs Assessment Tool. (2018). 

40.	 The average annual cost of center care for an infant ($25,812) and preschooler 
($19,350) in a family of four with a median county income of $111,700. 

Citations





AGENDA ITEM 10a

 
 
 
To:  First 5 Alameda County Commission 
 
From:  Kristin Spanos, Chief Executive Officer 
  Christine Hom, Finance Officer 
  Maria Canteros, Finance Administrator 
 
Date:  April 28, 2022 
 
Subject: FY 2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
To review, discuss and provide feedback on the following FY 2022-23 Budget Proposal.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Each First 5 Commission is required by statute to adopt a Strategic Plan that outlines the use of tobacco 
tax funds to serve children age 0-5 and their families.  First 5 Alameda County staff and Commission have 
been engaged in developing the new FY 2022-27 Strategic Plan with the support of Hickman & 
Associates.  This budget proposal covers the first year of the new Strategic Plan period, FY 2022-23.   
 
This presentation is the first reading of the FY 2022-23 budget proposal. Staff will prepare the second and 
final reading for the June Executive and Commission meetings. Any changes directed by the Commission, 
new information related to the tobacco tax and other revenue streams, as well as major changes to 
expenditures will be incorporated between now and the June reading. In addition, the presentation in 
June will include the list of contracts which require Commission authorization.  
 
As is the practice of First 5 Alameda County, changes that occur during the course of the fiscal year will be 
formally incorporated into the budget during the Mid-Year Budget Modification in February 2023.    
  
CURRENT BUDGET PROPOSAL 
 
This document provides a fiscal summary of revenue projections and budgeted expenditures as follows: 
  

 First 5 staff salaries and benefits 
 Contracts 
 Grants & Stipends 
 Professional Service Contracts 
 Program Operating Costs 
 Infrastructure costs 

 
The following Revenue and Expense projections reflect the priorities of the first year of the new FY 2022-
27 Strategic Plan that will be approved by the Commission in June 2022.   



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 2 

REVENUE AND AVAILABLE FUNDS FOR FY 2022-23 
 
Combined Revenues and Sustainability Funds for FY 2022-23 are projected to be $23.3 million. This figure 
is consistent with the proposed FY 2022-31 Long Range Financial Plan.  $3.4 million of Sustainability 
Funds is budgeted to close the gap between revenue and projected expenses ($385k less than the 

).   
 

REVENUE TYPE 2022-23 
PROPOSED RATIONALE/DETAILS 

Prop 10 Tobacco Tax 
 
 
 

$12,508,053 The tobacco tax revenue projection (Prop 10 and 56) is 
based on California Department of Finance and First 5 
California projections for county commissions. Prop 10 
Tobacco taxes are expected to decrease as per First 5 

released in May 2021. 
Other First 5 Income 
 $1,294,073 Funding includes the First 5 California IMPACT 2020 grant 

Francisco (First 5 San Francisco) funding for the IMPACT 
Local Regional Training and Technical Assistance Hub. 

Interagency Income 
 $2,839,925 Funding includes contract with Alameda County Health 

Care Services Agency and Social Services Agency (via 
ACHCSA) to support Fathers Corp work, funding from the 
Alameda County Office of Education/CA State Block 
Grant for projected monies for QRIS 9 grant and Inclusive 
Learning Grant, funding from Alameda County Public 
Health Department for shared ECChange maintenance 
and hosting costs and the Help Me Grow Central Access 
Phone Line Services, funding from Alameda County 
Social Services Agency for workforce development 
activities and Early ID support, funding from the 
California Department of Education for the Preschool 
Development Grant, and projected monies from the 
California Department of Social Services for Quality 
Counts California QRIS Block Grant. 

Grants 
 $875,473 Funding from Sunlight Giving for general operating 

support, Alameda Alliance for Health and Stupski 
Foundation for the HMG Pediatric Care Pilot, and Kaiser 
Permanente Hospitals Foundation for Fatherhood 
activities. 

  

 



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 3 

REVENUE TYPE 2022-23 
PROPOSED RATIONALE/DETAILS 

 

Fiscal Leveraging 
Fiscal Leveraging $2,000,000 Projected funding for Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 

(MAA); estimates are based on MAA invoices submitted 
in FY 2021-22. 

Other Income 
 $353,700 Projected other income includes revenue from 

investments and rental income from the First 5 
Association. 

Total Revenue (1) $19,871,224 Prop 10 Tobacco Tax, Other First 5 Income, Interagency 
Income, Grants, Fiscal Leveraging and Other Income 

Reserves: 
Prop 10 Sustainability 
Funds (2) 
 

 $3,471,947 
 

Draw down from Proposition 10 Sustainability Fund to 
balance the budget.   
 

Grand Total $23,343,171 Total Revenues and Available Funds = (1) + (2) 

 
EXPENDITURES FOR FY 2022-23 
 
In the FY 2022-27 Strategic Plan planned activities are categorized under ten major strategies:  

PROGRAMS STRATEGIES: 
 Early Identification, Screening and Care Coordination 
 Parent Partnership 
 Neighborhoods Ready for School 
 Fatherhood  
 Quality Early Childhood Education 

AGENCY STRATEGIES: 
 Data and Evaluation 
 Policy and Advocacy 
 Training 
 Communications 

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT STRATEGY: 
 Finance 
 Human Resources 
 Technology 
 Administration and Facilities 

 
The following Expense proposal provides the cost for each of the ten strategies detailed in the Strategic 
Plan.  The program strategy expenditures presented below consist of Salaries and Benefits, Program 
related Contracts, Grants, Stipends, Professional Services costs and Program Operating costs.  



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 4 

Operational Support Strategies include Finance, Human Resources, Technology, Administration and 
Facilities costs.  Indirect agency infrastructure costs are reflected in the Operational Support Strategies 
budgets. The budget narrative provides detail on each Strategy and is to be read in conjunction with the 
Strategic Plan.   
 
Consistent with legislative requirements brought about by AB 109, expense costs continue to be 
separated into three categories: Program, Evaluation and Administration.  The expenses in each category 
are consistent with First 5 California guidelines, and those set forth in the Government Finance Officers 

 
 
Salaries and Benefits 
 
For FY 2022-23, total salaries and benefits are projected to be $12,397,054. Salaries are budgeted based 
on actual amounts.  Benefits are budgeted at 51% of salaries.  Consistent with direction from the 
Commission, the approved benefit package has remained mostly consistent with Alameda County, 

.  The 51% 
allocation is based on actual cost estimates that are revised periodically as needed. 
 
The Early Identification, Screening and Care Coordination strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is 
$3,077,489 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$3,077,489  Tobacco Tax 
 Medi-Cal 
Administrative 
Activities (MAA) 

 Alameda County 
Public Health 
Department 

 Alameda County 
Social Services Agency 

 Alameda Alliance for 
Health 

 Stupski Foundation 
 

 Continue support to parents and caregivers in 
accessing resources, and increase parent 
knowledge of child development through 
family navigation 

 Broaden screening efforts in alignment with 
Help Me Grow Strategic Plan including 
enhancing screening technology and 
purchase of ASQ kits 

 Continue support for HMG Pediatric Care 
Pilot 

 Continue programming for ACES Aware grant 
 Continue to explore local system integration 

and expansion with managed care plans, 
health care and social services agencies 
 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 5 

The Parent Partnership strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $3,158,000 and consists of:
FY 2022-23 

PROPOSED AMOUNT 
FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$3,158,000  
 

 Tobacco Tax 
 Medi-Cal 
Administrative 
Activities (MAA) 

 Alameda County 
Social Services Agency 

 Continue support of ECE workforce pilot 
program  

 Continue support of Family Navigation 
services 

 Continue support of Project DULCE activities  
 Continue support of parent focused services 
prioritizing children age 0-3 years with 
community partners and parent leaders to 
inform programming and investments 

 
The Neighborhoods Ready for School strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $3,500,000 and  
consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$3,500,000 
 

 Tobacco Tax  
 

 Continued support of school readiness and 
place based work with Oakland Unified School 
District in the Castlemont Corridor 

 Continue support of Parent Café programming 
 Continue implementation of place based 

investments including West and East Oakland, 
Fruitvale/San Antonio neighborhoods and 
Union City   
 

 
The Fatherhood strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $767,283 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$767,283 
 

 Tobacco Tax 
 Alameda County 
Health Care Services 
Agency 

 Kaiser Permanente 
Hospitals Foundation 

 Continue incorporating Father Friendly 
Principles into additional programs and 
community initiatives 

 Continue Father Friendly Principles awareness, 
adoption, implementation, and capacity 
building campaign to public systems and CBOs 

 Implement Fatherhood Interagency 
Workgroup 

 Support for Fatherhood Training and Technical 
Assistance for Northern California FJC 
Collaborative 
 

 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 6 

The Quality Early Childhood Education (QECE) strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $4,057,422 and
consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$4,057,422 
 

 Tobacco Tax 
 First 5 California 
 Council of 
San Francisco 
(Regional IMPACT 
T/TA Hub) 

 Alameda County 
Office of Education 

 CA Department of 
Education 

 CA Department of 
Social Services 

 Continue to provide core infrastructure, 
coordinator and convener role for the Quality 
Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) 
system 

 Continue the recruitment, training and 
engagement of ECE providers in to the QRIS 

 Continue to conduct and communicate 
assessment and rating with providers 

 Continue to support trainings, playgroups and 
provide stipends for Family, Friend and 
Neighbor providers and Family Child Care sites 

 Provide coaching, consultation, quality 
improvement services and training on social 
emotional development (CSEFEL)   

 Continue support for sustainable advising and 
professional development in institutions of 
higher education  

 
The Data and Evaluation strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $1,058,400 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$1,058,400 
 

 Tobacco Tax 
 

 Funding to support evaluations of ECE 
Workforce activities, HMG Parent Survey, 
Fathers Corp 10 Year report, place-based work 

 Technical assistance to contractors for RBA 
reporting 

 Continue development of data dashboard, 
performance monitoring and analysis for each 
F5AC program strategy in alignment with 
results-based accountability 

 
The Policy and Advocacy strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $1,146,600 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$1,146,600  Tobacco Tax 
 

 

 Continue focus on local policy and systems 
changes to result in the institutionalization of 
the work that began at First 5 

 Contribute to First 5 Association policy work 
 Continue developing an annual policy platform 

for local efforts aligned with F5AC programs 
and priorities around school readiness, child 
development, family supports, child friendly 
neighborhoods 



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 7 

 Continue support of Alameda County Early 
Childhood Policy Committee activities 

 
The Training strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $700,000 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$700,000 
 

 Tobacco Tax  Continue to provide training on best, 
promising practices and peer learning 
communities for the multi-disciplinary 
workforce serving families with young children 

 Develop curriculum and capacity building tools 
connecting trainings to workforce 
development, parent engagement and place 
based strategies 

 Support training for staff development 
program 

 
The Communications strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $605,000 and consists of: 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$605,000 
 

 Tobacco Tax  Continue development of dissemination 
strategy for F5AC reports and information 

 Continue development of social media 
strategy 

 Continue enhancements to agency website 
 Develop multi-year campaign that connects 

with policy platform, parent engagement and 
education on child development 

 Develop collateral materials regarding 
impacts of F5 investments to promote 
sustainability 

 
 
The Operational Support (Finance, Human Resources, Technology, Administration and Facilities) 
strategy budget proposal for FY 2022-23 is $5,272,977 and consists of: 

ADMINISTRATION, INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY 

FY 2022-23  
PROPOSED AMOUNT 

FUNDING SOURCES PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

$5,272,977 
 

 Tobacco Tax  
 Medi-Cal 
Administrative 
Activities (MAA) 

 Alameda County 
Public Health 
Department 

 Includes Administration, Technology, Finance, 
Human Resources, Commission, facilities 
management and consolidated operating costs 
to support agency operations 

 Expand and update data systems to build 
capacity for cross data systems exchange of 
information including the enhancement of 
internal databases, expansion of data system 



AGENDA ITEM 10a
 

2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading 4.28.2022 8 

 Alameda County 
Social Services Agency 

 Investment Revenue 
 First 5 Association 
(rent) 

 Grant Indirect 
Revenue  
 

agility and responsiveness, improved 
performance and productivity, update of 
electronic data sharing confidentiality and 
privacy practices 

 Includes agency wide infrastructure costs of 
insurance, memberships/dues, professional 
services, utilities, janitorial and maintenance 

 
Administrative Cap 
 
As part of the agency Financial Policies and consistent with AB 109 and SB 35, First 5 Alameda County has 
set an administrative cost cap of 15%.  Costs are segregated through the year into the Program, 
Evaluation and Administrative areas according to guidelines and definitions set forth by First 5 California 
and the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) First 5 Financial Management Guide. 
 

costs are: 
 

FY 2022-23 COSTS 
 Program   78.3%  
 Evaluation                                          7.7%        
 Administration   14.0%     
  TOTAL 100.0%      

Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impact is $23,343,171 in budgeted expenses, a major portion of which will be funded by a 
combination of Prop 10 and other revenue sources amounting to $19,871,224. The balance is proposed 
to be funded by the use of Proposition 10 Sustainability Funds totaling $3,471,947 in FY 2022-23. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Commission review the FY 2022-23 Budget Proposal  First Reading and give feedback for 
clarification or changes in preparation for the second and final reading on May 26, 2022. 
 

 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
Christine Hom      Kristin Spanos 
Finance Officer       Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
______________________________ 
Maria Canteros 
Finance Administrator 



First 5 Alameda County

Proposed Budget - Revenue

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 10a1

Revenues

 Adopted 

Modified Budget

FY2021-22 

 First Reading 

Proposed 

Budget

FY2022-23 

 Change 

Increase/ 

(Decrease) Notes NOTES 

Proposition 10 Tobacco Tax Revenue x 11,765,441             12,508,053      742,612           1

Other First 5 Income

First 5 California (IMPACT 2020) 1,049,218               1,136,073         86,855             2

First 5 California (IMPACT Incentive Layer) 309,613                   -                     (309,613)          3 The balance of IMPACT Incentive Layer award was spent down in FY2021-22

Children's Council of San Francisco (First 5 San Francisco/Hub) 110,000                   158,000            48,000             4

Total Other First 5 Income 1,468,831               1,294,073         (174,758)          

Interagency Income

Alameda County Health Care Services Agency (Fathers Corp) 138,000                   400,000            262,000           5

Alameda County Office of Education (QRIS 8/9) 447,292                   447,292            -                    6 ACOE QRIS 9 projected grant award term is July 2022 to June 2023 

Alameda County Office of Education (Inclusive ELC Grant) 134,626                   74,723               (59,903)            7 ACOE Inclusive ELC grant ends December 31, 2023

Alameda County Public Health Dept. (shared Technology costs) 114,000                   122,812            8,812                8 ACPHD projected annual shared technology costs to support ECChange maintenance and hosting

Federal Pass-through Grants:

Alameda County Public Health Dept. CHDP (Linkage Line) 449,344                   479,658            30,314             9 ACPHD HMG Linkage Line grant award term is July 2020 to June 2023

Alameda County Social Services Agency (Workforce Pilot & HMG support) 717,507                   717,507            -                    10 ACSSA Workforce Pilot, Family Navigation & Early ID support grant award term July 2022 to June 2024

Federal Pass-through State Grants:

California Dept. of Social Services (QCC QRIS Block Grant) 542,852                   542,852            -                    11 CDSS QCC Block Grant #5 projected grant award term July 2022 to June 2023

California Dept. of Education (Preschool Development Grant) 78,700                     55,081               (23,619)            12 CDE PDG-R grant ends December 2022

Total Interagency Income 2,622,321               2,839,925         217,604           

Grants

Sunlight Giving 595,852                   120,000            (475,852)          13 Sunlight Giving general support award carryover of funds receive in FY2021-22

Alameda Alliance for Health 572,473                   572,473            0                        14 Projected Alameda Alliance for Health grant to support HMG's Pediatric Care Pilot (conduct member engagement activities related to care coordination)

Aurrera Health Group 50,517                     -                     (50,517)            15 Aurrera Health Group grant ended Sept 2021 supporting ACEs Aware activities

Stupski Foundation 100,000                   73,000               (27,000)            16 Stupski Foundation grant ends October 2022 supporting HMG's Pediatric Care Coordination activities

Kaiser Permanente Foundation Hospitals 33,450                     110,000            76,550             17 Kaiser Permanente Hospitals Foundation grant award (January 2022 to December 2023) will support Fatherhood Training and T/A for Northern California FJC Collaborative

Cal Wellness Foundation 45,000                     -                     (45,000)            18 No new one-time funding from California Wellness Foundation

Total Grants 1,397,292               875,473            (521,819)          

Fiscal Leveraging - MediCal Administrative Activities 1,850,000               2,000,000         150,000           19 MAA FY2022-23 projected revenue from FY2021-22 invoices (paid a year in arrears)

-                    

Other Income -                    

Investment Revenue 450,000                   324,000            (126,000)          20 Projected investment revenue 

Miscellaneous Revenue - Fatherhood Summit 189,999                   -                     (189,999)          21 No new funding projected for the Fatherhood Summit

Miscellaneous Revenue - Other 38,750                     29,700               (9,050)              22 Rental income from First 5 Association

         TOTAL REVENUE 19,782,634             19,871,224      88,590             

RESERVES

Proposition  10 - Sustainability Funds 3,857,433               3,471,947         (385,486)          

Proposition 10 - Prior year budget savings for Community Resilience Fund 678,391                   -                     (678,391)          

Interagency and Grants Revenues - received in prior years

TOTAL REVENUES & AVAILABLE FUNDS               24,318,458        23,343,171 (975,287)          

Prop 10 and Prop 56 tobacco tax revenue projections per First 5 California's revenue projections released May 2021

First 5 California IMPACT 2020 grant has a 3 year term (July 2020 to June 2023), currently in year 3 of 3

First 5 IMPACT Regional Training and Technical Assistance Hub for Region 4

ACHCSA Fathers Corp projected 5 year award term July 2022 to June 2027

 4.28.2022



First 5 Alameda County 

Proposed Expenditure Budget by Expenditure Category

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 10a2

Modified Proposed Variance

Expenditures Budget Budget Difference from Notes

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 Prior Year

Personnel Costs $12,024,063 $12,397,054 $372,991 3% 1

Program Contracts/Grants $10,727,634 $9,308,322 ($1,419,312) -13% 2

Program Operating Costs $511,563 $492,445 ($19,118) -4% 3

Infrastructure Costs $1,055,197 $1,145,350 $90,153 9% 4

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $24,318,458 $23,343,171 ($975,287) -4%

Notes:

1. Personnel Costs

2. Contracts

3. Program Operating Costs

4. Infrastructure Costs The FY 2022-23 proposed infrastructure costs reflect an increase in MAA fees and 

expected increase in agency insurance costs. 

Major changes in Expenditure Category costs, between the FY 2021-22 Modified 

Budget and the Proposed FY 2022-23 Budget.

The FY 2022-23 proposed personnel costs includes new external funding in Fatherhood 

(Kaiser Foundation) and Early ID (Stupski Foundation) strategies and a minimal 

increase in Prop 10 funding to support anticipated adjustments due to the class and 

compensation study results.

The FY 2022-23 proposed contracts budget reflects a decrease in costs of one-time 

administrative/Infrastucture costs (e.g., strategic planning, class and compensation 

study, technology and building upgrades) and the wrap-up of the two-year COVID-19 

Community Resilience Fund activities. 

The FY 2022-23 proposed program operating expenses are minimally reduced with the 

continued plan for virtual program activities.



 
First 5 Alameda County 

Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget By Strategy

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 10a3

Parent Partnership Early ID

Quality Early 

Childhood 

Education

Fatherhood
Neighborhoods Ready 

for School
Policy & Advocacy Data & Evaluation Training Communications

Operational Support 

(Finance, Human 

Resources, 

Techonology & 

Admin/Facilities)

TOTAL PROPOSED 

BUDGET

FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23 FY 2022-23

Personnel Costs

Salaries & Benefits 1,140,004 2,316,059 2,011,024 386,747 528,070 1,055,097 882,103 379,153 500,000 3,198,797 12,397,054

Program Contracts/Grants

Contracts 1,956,496 676,255 1,444,100 282,500 2,910,930 81,700 156,297 271,000 95,000 760,800 8,635,078

Grants & Stipends 0 0 450,000 24,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 474,000

Professional Services* 0 7,224 28,446 49,000 41,000 0 0 35,000 0 38,574 199,244

Total Contracts/Grants 1,956,496 683,479 1,922,546 355,500 2,951,930 81,700 156,297 306,000 95,000 799,374 9,308,322

Program Operating Costs** 61,500 77,951 123,852 25,036 20,000 9,803 20,000 14,847 10,000 129,456 492,445

Infrastructure Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,145,350 1,145,350

Total Direct Program Costs 3,158,000 3,077,489 4,057,422 767,283 3,500,000 1,146,600 1,058,400 700,000 605,000 5,272,977 23,343,171

PROPOSED FY2022-23 BUDGET - FIRST READING

 4.28.2022  



AGENDA ITEM 10b

FY 2022-31 LRFP Memo 4.28.22 1 

 
 

To:  First 5 Alameda County Commission 
 
From:   Kristin Spanos, Chief Executive Officer 
  Christine Hom, Finance Officer 
  Maria Canteros, Finance Administrator 
 
Date:  April 28, 2022 
 
Subject: FY 2022-2031 Long Range Financial Plan  First Reading 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
To review the following FY 2022-31 Long Range Financial Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
First 5 Alameda County has adopted a Long Range Financial Plan annually since March 2004.  Adoption 
of a Long Range Financial Plan has been a statutory requirement of all First 5 Commissions since 2006-
07.  The current LRFP was formally approved by the Commission in June 2021.  An update to the LRFP is 
included with underlying assumptions as well as historical background information.  The update reflects 
the Proposed Budget for FY 2022-2023 and the most recent Prop 10 Tobacco Tax revenue forecast from 
the California Department of Finance and First 5 California that was received in May 2021.  
 
MINIMUM FUND BALANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
First 5 Alameda County has used Sustainability Funds to augment operating budget needs and to meet 
revenue shortfalls, to the extent authorized by the Commission. The Sustainability Fund balance as of 
June 30, 2021 was $34.1 million. This Fund may not be spent down to zero; some funds must be 
maintained as an operating reserve to cover ongoing cash flow requirements to act as a buffer for delays 
in receiving state tobacco tax monies or other revenues.  The policy is to maintain an amount in the 
Fund Balance, at a minimum, equal to six months of operating expenses plus an amount to cover fiscal 
obligations under the Reduction in Workforce Policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
To review the following FY 2022-31 Long Range Financial Plan and to give feedback for clarification or 
changes in preparation for the second and final reading on June 2, 2022.  



AGENDA ITEM 10b

2 

 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
Christine Hom      Kristin Spanos  
Finance Officer       Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
_______________________________    
Maria Canteros        
Finance Administrator        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM 10b

3 

ASSUMPTIONS FOR THE REVISED LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN
 
Presented below are the assumptions used to develop the Long Range Financial Plan. 
 
REVENUES 
 
FY 2021-22 figures reflect the revised budget approved in February 2022.  For FY 2022-23 and 
subsequent years, the following revenue assumptions were used: 
 

 Tobacco Tax  The California Department of Finance (DoF) prepared revised projections of First 
5 tobacco tax revenues in May 2021 through the period ending FY 2025-26. These consider the 
effects of the federal tobacco tax, other declines in state tobacco tax revenues due to newer 
legislation (SBx2-7 Smoking Age Increase to 21 effective June 2016, Proposition 56 $2 dollar 
tobacco tax increase effective April 2017) Prop 99, backfill amounts and other factors.  The 
projections listed below cover FY 2026-2031. 

 
Historically, the DoF projections have been on the conservative side; actual revenues received 
being equal to or higher than projections with the exception of FY 2018-19.  We anticipate 
receiving updated revenue projections from the DoF and First 5 CA this year and we will 
continue to forecast revenue conservatively. 
 
Fiscal Year    DoF Projection   Actual Revenue 
2010-2011     $14.0m    $14.3m 
2011-2012     $13.8m    $14.5m 
2012-2013     $13.3m    $13.6m 
2013-2014     $13.2m    $13.2m 
2014-2015     $13.0m    $13.3m 
2015-2016    $12.1m    $13.2m 
2016-2017    $11.6m    $12.6m    
2017-2018    $10.6m    $11.3m    
2018-2019    $12.8m    $12.1m   
2019-2020    $11.5m    $12.6m 
2020-2021    $11.9m    $13.0m 
2021-2022    $12.9m 
2022-2023    $12.5m 
2023-2024    $12.2m 
2024-2025    $11.8m  
2025-2026    $11.4m  
2026-2027    $11.1m  
2027-2028    $10.8m               
2028-2029    $10.4m             
2029-2030    $10.1m  
2030-2031    $9.8m  
  
Based on the above DoF projection for FY 2022-23, the Long Range Financial Plan assumes a 
3.1% decrease in tax revenue from the prior year. Moving forward beyond FY 2022-23, revenues 
are expected to continue decreasing at rates between approximately 2.6% and 3.7% per year 
through 2031.  If actual revenues show a significant change during the year, the projection for 



AGENDA ITEM 10b

4 

the current year will be brought to the Commission at mid-year, along with other budget 
modification proposals. 

 
 Interagency Income -  

 Funding from First 5 California (IMPACT 2020)  to support local QRIS work including 
rating and quality improvement in child care settings ($1,136,000) 

 Funding from First 5 San Francisco via Children s Council of San Francisco  for the 
IMPACT Local Regional T/TA Hub $158,000) 

 Funding from AC Health Care Services Agency and AC Social Services Agency to support 
Fathers Corps work (projected award $400,000) 

 AC Public Health Department funding for ECChange database hosting and maintenance 
($123,000) 

 Funding from AC Office of Education Block Grant 9 to support Quality Rating 
Improvement Systems work (projected award $447,000) 

 Funding from the AC Office of Education to support the Inclusive Early Learning Grant 
($74,000) 

 AC Public Health Department funding for Help Me Grow (HMG) Linkage Line services 
($480,000) 

 Pass through funding from AC Social Services Agency to support early child development 
activities in the Castlemont neighborhood, workforce development pilot and family 
navigation services ($718,000) 

 
 State Grants -  

 Funding from the California Department of Social Services QCC QRIS Block Grant 4 
(projected award $543,000) 

 Funding from the California Department of Education Preschool Development Grant 
($55,000) 

 
 Other Grants   

 Projected funding from the Alameda Alliance for Health for continued support of HMG's 
Pediatric Care Pilot to conduct member engagement activities related to care 
coordination ($572,000) 

 Funding from the Stupski Foundation through 
Care Coordination activities ($73,000) 

 Funding from Sunlight Giving for general operating support ($120,000) 
 Funding from Kaiser Permanente Foundation in support of Fatherhood activities 

($110,000) 
 

As and when new grants are awarded, the Long Range Financial Plan will be revised accordingly. 
 

 Miscellaneous Income  Consists primarily of rental income from the First 5 Association. 
 

 Fiscal Leveraging  Since FY 2009-10, fiscal leveraging revenues consist entirely of federal 
reimbursements under the Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) program. Gross MAA 
revenues for the prior fiscal year are usually received 8-12 months in arrears.  As a result of the 
perpetual time study methodology introduced by the granting agency in FY 2013-14 and the 
inclusion of actual client count for invoicing, revenues are expected to average approximately $2 
million. For the purposes of this LRFP, it is assumed that programs eligible for MAA claiming will 



AGENDA ITEM 10b

5 

be reimbursed at this level in the FY 2022-23 budget year and conservatively continuing at 
approximately $1.85 million through FY 2030-31. 

 
 Investment Revenue  The FY 2022-23 proposed budget assume $324,000 of investment 

revenue due based on current year projections. 
 
EXPENSES 
 
FY 2022-23 expenditure figures are from the current proposed budget process.  For FY 2023-31, total 
expenses have been reduced to leave a minimum fund balance as recommended below. The plan does 
not provide for any cost of living allowances or inflationary increases. In prior years these increases have 
been covered within the range of annual budgetary savings, and this is expected to continue in future 
years as well. 
 
Use of Sustainability Funds 
 
The budgeted use of Prop 10 Sustainability Funds for FY 2022-23 is comprised of $3.4 million to close the 
gap between revenue and projected expenses. 
 
MINIMUM FUND BALANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Sustainability Fund cannot be spent down to zero; some funds must be maintained as an operating 
reserve to cover ongoing cash flow requirements to act as a buffer if there are delays in receiving state 
tobacco tax revenues or other revenues.  The recommendation is to maintain an amount in the Fund 
Balance, at a minimum, equal to six months of operating expenses plus an amount to cover fiscal 
obligations. 
 
HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 
 
The Long Range Financial Plan tool was designed to strategically guide the use of First 5 Alameda 

Commission as a strategy to ensure a long term commitment to funding services for children age 0-5, 
even as the tobacco tax revenue declined. 
 
The Sustainability Fund is projected to be approximately $31 million at the end of the current 2021-22 
fiscal year and was accumulated in a number of ways over the past years.   First, the Fund developed 
through the initial reserve that occurred when tax dollars were accumulated but could not be spent until 
a Strategic Plan was passed (Jan. 1999-Jan. 2000). Thereafter, contributions to the Sustainability Fund 
were intentionally budgeted over several years (2001-2004).  Finally, budgeted funds that remained 
unspent were directed by the Commission to be added to the Sustainability Fund, rather than be rolled-
over -present).  It is important to note however that, 
Sustainability Funds have been budgeted for program use since 2005-06, which means that expenses 
have been projected higher than revenues in each of those years, but budget savings in those years 
made it unnecessary to draw from the Fund.  These changes have resulted in draws periodically from 
the Sustainability Fund only since FY 2009-10.  
 



AGENDA ITEM 10b

6 

The following is a summary of the use of sustainability funds as indicated in the Long Range Financial 
Plan. The plan assumes that Sustainability Funds will continue to be used to maintain a balanced budget, 
throughout the plan time frame. 
 
    Draw down from Sustainability for Operations ($millions) 
 
Fiscal Year   Planned draw down   Actual amount drawn 
FY 2009-2013 Strategic Plan 
2009-10   $6.9m    $3.3m 
2010-11   $9.3m    $6.7m1 
2011-12   $4.1m    $0.8m   
2012-13   $9.0m    $5.3m2 
FY 2013-17 Strategic Plan 
2013-14   $1.7m     $0.0 
2014-15   $2.3m     $1.5m  
2015-16   $2.3m     $1.2m 
2016-17   $4.9m     $0.0 
FY 2017-22 Strategic Plan 
2017-18   $3.5m     $0.0 
2018-19   $2.0m     $0.0 
2019-20   $3.7m     $0.0 
2020-21   $6.1m     $1.4m 
2021-22   $4.1m          - 

                                            
1 Increased outlay on Contracts in order to reduce fund balance in anticipation of AB 99  which required all First 5s to transfer half 
their fund balance to the State of CA by the end of 2012. AB 99 was subsequently repealed and the threat passed. 
2 Purchase of office building at 1115 Atlantic Ave., Alameda in April 2013. 



Agenda Item 10b1

Dollars in Thousands
Modified

Actual Budget
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31

Beginning Fund Balance 35,568$           34,158$           30,838$           27,366$           23,656$           19,504$            14,987$            10,127$            7,884$              7,319$              6,690$              

REVENUES
Tobacco Tax  13,045$           12,947$           12,508$           12,240$           11,798$           11,433$            11,090$            10,757$            10,435$            10,122$            9,818$              
Other First 5 Revenue 1,432$             1,469$             1,294$             ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  

‐ First 5 California (IMPACT & IMPACT 2) 930$                 1,049$             1,136$            
‐ First 5 San Francisco/Childrens Council of SF 
(T/TA Hub) 117$                 110$                 158$                
‐ First 5 California (IMPACT Incentive Layer) 385$                 310$                

Interagency Income ‐ County 5,960$             2,001$             2,242$             928$                 880$                 880$                 880$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                  
‐ ACHCSA  (Fathers Corps) 118$                 138$                 400$                 400$                 400$                 400$                 400$                
‐ ACPHD (Data Systems Hosting and 
Maintenance) 216$                 114$                 123$                
‐ ACPHD Home Visiting/PHOC 54$                  
‐ AC Office of Educ. (QRIS Block Grant 6) 178$                
‐ AC Office of Educ. (QRIS Block Grant 7)  215$                
‐ AC Office of Educ. (QRIS Block Grant 8, 9 
projected) 447$                 447$                
‐ AC Office of Educ. (Inclusive Early Learning) 82$                   135$                 74$                   48$                  

Interagency Income ‐ Federal Pass‐through
‐ ACPHD HMG Linkage Line 503$                 449$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                 480$                  
‐ ACPHD Dental Transformation (HTHC) 318$                
‐ ACSSA (Navigation, Workforce Pilot, 
Comprehensive Child Dev) 676$                 718$                 718$                
‐ ACSSA FCC Grants &Essential Supplies 3,600$            

State Grants 1,000$             622$                 598$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  
‐ CA Dept. of Education (QCC QRIS Block Grant 
#2, #3, #4, #5 projected)

1,000$             543$                 543$                

‐ CA Dept. of Social Services (Preschool 
Development Grant)

79$                   55$                  

Other Grants (Private, Foundation or Other) 861$                 1,396$             875$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  
‐ Alameda Alliance for Health (projected for 
FY22‐23) 165$                 572$                 572$                

‐ Aurrera Health Group 276$                 50$                  
‐ Sunlight Giving  355$                 596$                 120$                
‐ Stupski Foundation 100$                 73$                  
‐ CA Wellness Foundation (Fatherhood 
activities)

45$                  

‐ Kaiser Permanente Foundation 33$                   110$                
‐ Packard Foundation 25$                  
‐ Connecticut Children's Medical Center 10$                  
‐ Center for the Study of Social Policy 30$                  

Miscellaneous Income 178$                 263$                 30$                   20$                   35$                   35$                   35$                   40$                   20$                   20$                   20$                    
Fiscal Leveraging (MAA) 2,601$             1,850$             2,000$             1,850$             1,850$             1,850$              1,850$              1,850$              1,850$              1,850$              1,850$              
Investment Income 106$                 450$                 324$                 287$                 248$                 205$                 157$                 106$                 83$                   77$                   70$                    

25,183$           20,998$           19,871$           15,325$           14,811$           14,403$            14,012$            13,234$            12,867$            12,548$            12,238$            

26,593$           24,318$           23,343$           19,035$           18,963$           18,920$            18,872$            15,476$            13,433$            13,177$            12,420$            

CASHFLOW

Total Disbursements 26,593$           24,318$           23,343$           19,035$           18,963$           18,920$            18,872$            15,476$            13,433$            13,177$            12,420$            

(1,410)$            (3,320)$            (3,472)$            (3,710)$            (4,152)$            (4,517)$             (4,860)$             (2,243)$             (565)$                (628)$                (182)$                

Ending Fund Balance 34,158$           30,838$           27,366$           23,656$           19,504$           14,987$            10,127$            7,884$              7,319$              6,690$              6,508$              

MINIMUM FUND BALANCE REQUIRED 13,297$           12,159$           11,672$           9,518$             9,482$             9,460$              9,436$              7,738$              6,716$              6,588$              6,210$              
(50% OR 6 Months of annual disbursement)

TOTAL EXPENSES

(Shortfall)/Surplus Revenue over Expenses
(Use of Sustainability Fund)

2022 ‐ 2027 Strategic Plan  2027‐2031 Strategic Plan TBD 

Projections Projections

TOTAL REVENUES

 2017 ‐ 2022 Strategic Plan 

 4.28.2022



Agenda Item 10b2

04.28.2022

$30,838 

$27,366 

$23,656 

$19,504 

$14,987 

$10,127 

$7,884  $7,319 
$6,690  $6,508 

$24,318 
$23,343 

$19,035  $18,963  $18,920  $18,872 

$15,476 

$13,433  $13,177 
$12,420 $12,159 

$11,672 

$9,518  $9,482  $9,460  $9,436 

$7,738 
$6,716  $6,588  $6,210 

 $‐

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27  2027/28  2028/29 2029/30 2030/31

LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN FY 2022‐2031 BUDGET & FUND BALANCE ($000s)

St

ENDING                  
FUND BALANCE

PROPOSED 
BUDGETED 
EXPENSES

MINIMUM
FUND BALANCE

STRATEGIC PLAN
(2017‐22)

STRATEGIC PLAN
(2022‐27)



AGENDA ITEM 11 and 12 
 

 
 

First 5 Association Update 

Recent Key Meetings 
In this month’s First 5 Association Policy committee the group shared First 5 Association’s Budget Priorities 

which includes the Governor’s Budget, First 5 Association Initiatives, and other group initiatives. The meeting 

focused on recommended First 5 Association position on bills and budget item requests.  See Legislation 

Tracker for has more details on the bills and the recommended positions and the Budget Tracker for additional 

details on the budget requests and the recommended positions.  

Advocacy Day 2022 
On April 19th, First 5 Alameda participated in the First 5 Association Advocacy Day, holding meetings with the 

offices of state legislators that represent Alameda County, including the offices of Senator Glazer, Senator 

Skinner, Senator Wieckowski, Assemblymember Bonta, Assemblymember Lee, and Assemblymember Quirk.   

Kindergarten Readiness Webinar Series 
First 5 Alameda participated in a two-part webinar series hosted by the First 5 Center for Children’s Policy to 

assess current frameworks and methods for measuring kindergarten readiness, with an explicit focus on race, 

equity, diversity, and inclusion. Laura Schroeder, Senior Administrator Data and Evaluation, presented First 5 

Alameda’s 2021 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment approach to attendees.   

Federal Update 

Federal Investments in Child Care and Early Learning 

The Biden Administration Build Back Better economic proposal has stalled in its progress through Congress.  

The proposal includes substantial investments in families with young children, including expanded child tax 

credit, paid family and medical leave, child nutrition, housing, health, and child care and preschool.   

 

On March 23rd, Republican lawmakers led by Senator Tim Scott (South Carolina) introduced legislation 

proposing to reauthorize the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act (CCDBG) which is a main source of 

federal funding for child care. The proposed legislation is regarded as the Republican response to the Bill Back 

Better proposal; high-level analysis of the proposal is available here. Meanwhile, Senate Democrats are 

exploring using the Budget Reconciliation process as a vehicle for investments in child care and early learning.  

 

Federal Engagement 
In March, First 5 Alameda signed on to a support letter urging Congress to pass the Afghan Adjustment Act 
which proposes to provide legal permanent residence to Afghans arriving with humanitarian parole in the U.S.  

https://app.box.com/s/is67kdj1vm0ruqhrbigd60qs3gxoesqq
https://public.boxcloud.com/api/2.0/internal_files/922311709639/versions/998782519210/representations/pdf/content/?access_token=1!gZvQd_PnbMdM_JkEM41Cvz5gwTYGoCvV-gLlk99KjdVio1LpbwrYAvhFSfplFFfQRLdn7gvW3872ahpNhoZbzc3qrUuHATqr7yOok7hK6M41pDECJDU1LBIstN5djjSbjMmemltpDoVKX4hx84ZOVG0A4-uFXABbqlstRvtOLSOtxqPpaF3ZSJGo94vV1o9utYGXHda1u--dDLE_KNe-NxXPR5ILjP5v3loItBcVisGYsWC_kOExMKa0Xj_K9E06PzbcA-VfGsOBZ829xE3zRJXNSbDnJ2JnT0db1ZXnXCFqpcXzxD_DhRygkTt8ntqujC-Ewlns_QYh46Z9QqbsIExWcWwKr9-qGw9F8XxSDNQAQtyYipFYlFb_GafHSdZBObn7R5nAZ2dKQlQQ3IUCDAhy2lL7KifR6dFIljrAbUwWyCyroNUf6wOgd2td-9vkA3RnR-TtDheUK8VXbd7yrtBmJxSTmIj-z8n7nqR7CsCoqzV7tAwqaUFOXVVUA4ZVmvI_8FuTaqcawx497b7j2qaofDTJDxc4RQcL3ommvM5kg4wFVi7s4QGvQEhcmPA.&shared_link=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.box.com%2Fs%2Fis67kdj1vm0ruqhrbigd60qs3gxoesqq&box_client_name=box-content-preview&box_client_version=2.83.0#%5B%7B%22num%22%3A3%2C%22gen%22%3A0%7D%2C%7B%22name%22%3A%22XYZ%22%7D%2C69%2C459%2C0%5D
https://public.boxcloud.com/api/2.0/internal_files/922311709639/versions/998782519210/representations/pdf/content/?access_token=1!gZvQd_PnbMdM_JkEM41Cvz5gwTYGoCvV-gLlk99KjdVio1LpbwrYAvhFSfplFFfQRLdn7gvW3872ahpNhoZbzc3qrUuHATqr7yOok7hK6M41pDECJDU1LBIstN5djjSbjMmemltpDoVKX4hx84ZOVG0A4-uFXABbqlstRvtOLSOtxqPpaF3ZSJGo94vV1o9utYGXHda1u--dDLE_KNe-NxXPR5ILjP5v3loItBcVisGYsWC_kOExMKa0Xj_K9E06PzbcA-VfGsOBZ829xE3zRJXNSbDnJ2JnT0db1ZXnXCFqpcXzxD_DhRygkTt8ntqujC-Ewlns_QYh46Z9QqbsIExWcWwKr9-qGw9F8XxSDNQAQtyYipFYlFb_GafHSdZBObn7R5nAZ2dKQlQQ3IUCDAhy2lL7KifR6dFIljrAbUwWyCyroNUf6wOgd2td-9vkA3RnR-TtDheUK8VXbd7yrtBmJxSTmIj-z8n7nqR7CsCoqzV7tAwqaUFOXVVUA4ZVmvI_8FuTaqcawx497b7j2qaofDTJDxc4RQcL3ommvM5kg4wFVi7s4QGvQEhcmPA.&shared_link=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.box.com%2Fs%2Fis67kdj1vm0ruqhrbigd60qs3gxoesqq&box_client_name=box-content-preview&box_client_version=2.83.0#%5B%7B%22num%22%3A21%2C%22gen%22%3A0%7D%2C%7B%22name%22%3A%22XYZ%22%7D%2C69%2C129%2C0%5D
https://app.box.com/s/cd36kku1vwdbunexuwuya6r2nvxx675e
https://app.box.com/s/cd36kku1vwdbunexuwuya6r2nvxx675e
https://app.box.com/s/rn8son26ais5eck9o1mne45dl2lhu11y
file:///C:/Users/ana.rasquiza/OneDrive%20-%20First%205%20Alameda%20County/Commission/March%202022%20Assessing%20Kindergarten%20Readiness%20-%20Alameda%20County.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ana.rasquiza/OneDrive%20-%20First%205%20Alameda%20County/Commission/March%202022%20Assessing%20Kindergarten%20Readiness%20-%20Alameda%20County.pdf
https://www.whitehouse.gov/build-back-better/
https://www.zerotothree.org/resources/4232-what-s-in-build-back-better-for-babies
https://www.scott.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/KIN22074.pdf
https://www.ffyf.org/lawmakers-introduce-bill-to-reauthorize-ccdbg/
https://www.ffyf.org/appropriations-and-budget-reconciliation-understanding-federal-early-learning-care-funding-opportunities/
https://humanrightsfirst.quorum.us/campaign/36088/thanks/


AGENDA ITEM 11 and 12 
 

 
 

State Update 

State Engagement 
On March 7, First 5 Alameda submitted a letter of support for Help A Mother Out’s (HAMO) application for a 

$25,000 Women’s Recovery Response grant from the California Commission on the Status of Women. HAMO’s 

application was successful and the grant will be used to elevate community voices about diaper need.  

On March 25, Ana Rasquiza, Senior Administrator, represented First 5 Alameda County at the “It Takes a 

Village Act” Day of Action. Ana joined Assembly member Mia Bonta, community-based organizations, 

community leaders, families, and the Cradle to Career Coalition to speak on First 5 Alameda’s investments in 

the Neighborhoods Ready for School place-based initiative and our coordinated service approach.   

On March 29, Diana Garcia, Data and Policy Analyst, testified before the California State Assembly Health 

Committee in support of AB 2402: Medi-Cal Continuous Eligibility, which would extend access to health and 

preventive services for children during a critical period of development. Thanks to Loren Farrar and Beatriz 

Dominguez who collected stories of family experiences with Medi-Cal recertification through Help Me Grow.  

CA Early Care and Education Rate and Quality Stakeholder Workgroup 
On April 1st, First 5 Alameda sent a letter to the members of the California Child Care Rate and Quality 

Stakeholder Workgroup, expressing support and providing local context for their recommendations toward 

building an equitable reimbursement rate system for child care and early learning in California.  

State Legislation 
First 5 Alameda County has recently sent and signed on to a number of legislative supports: 
 

• Medi-Cal Premiums and Copayments: AB 1995 proposes to eliminate monthly Medi-Cal premiums or 
copayments so that families living with low-income can have more resources to cover essential needs.   

• California Health Equity and Racial Justice Fund: First 5 Alameda sent a letter of support to the Senate 
Budget Subcommittee on Health and Human Service to support a $100 million budget ask for ongoing 
annual funding to establish a California Health Equity and Racial Justice Fund.  

• Increased Wage Replacements: First 5 Alameda signed on to a budget letter requesting that the California 
Legislature and Administration increase wage replacement rates for low-wage workers in the State 
Disability Insurance and Paid Family Leave programs.   

• Early Childhood Mental Health: First 5 Alameda signed onto a letter requesting a one-time investment of 
$250 million to increase infant and early childhood mental health services and provider training.   

• CalWORKs: Pregnancy and Homeless Assistance: SB-1083 (Skinner) which would provide specific tools to 
help families experiencing homelessness and support pregnant people become eligible for homeless family 
benefits before giving birth.  

• Hope, Opportunity, Perseverance, and Empowerment (HOPE) for Children Act of 2022: SB 854, 
introduced by Senator Nancy Skinner, would create Hope Savings Accounts for children from lower income 
families who’ve lost a parent or primary caregiver to COVID-19.  

• It Takes a Village Act: AB 2517 (Bonta) proposes to establish a two-year California Coordinated 
Neighborhood and Community Services grant program to implement new, and strengthen existing, 
neighborhood and regional cradle to career (C2C) networks to reduce inequities and increase economic 
mobility in communities across California through integrated place-based support systems.    

https://first5alameda.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/First5andExternalPartners/Ed2v_kc3F3ZOpXHhry0c95IB0XKxwK7Vma3k2ICJ-Cm5Hw?e=w2UJsQ
https://www.einpresswire.com/article/563840080/assemblymember-mia-bonta-champions-grant-program-to-expand-coordinated-neighborhood-community-services-networks
https://www.einpresswire.com/article/563840080/assemblymember-mia-bonta-champions-grant-program-to-expand-coordinated-neighborhood-community-services-networks
https://first5alameda.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/First5andExternalPartners/EX4MPGO0bWlArv4YOPg6e7MBV5ByQ_v_lNsEgKesm8vsAQ?e=5XrrJk
https://first5alameda-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/ana_rasquiza_first5alameda_org/EawrD6nd9EhEu-i3u0mU974BKC9FciTcahe78WyedmfFHg?e=oJz0O8
https://cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/child-care-and-development/rate-reform-and-quality
https://cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/child-care-and-development/rate-reform-and-quality
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1995
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1083
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB854
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2517


AGENDA ITEM 11 and 12 
 

 
 

• Food with Care: SB 1481 (Becker) would provide free daily meals to children in child care by enabling all 
child care providers to qualify for the highest level of reimbursements for the meals they serve.  

• Strengthen Accountability for Services Provided by CHDP Programs: On March 25, First 5 Alameda sent a 
letter to the Senate and Budget Health Subcommittees to elevate issues related to the sunset of the Child 
Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) program. The letter recommends steps to mitigate disruption of 
the coordination of services to children and families, and to leverage the network of local partners and the 
skilled workforce that adeptly serve this specialized population of children and families.   

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1481

	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?



	758519f5-5b68-4a38-ad06-927a1c173246.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?




	9477983a-319c-4644-a339-767f4da27fd8.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?



	758519f5-5b68-4a38-ad06-927a1c173246.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?





	9477983a-319c-4644-a339-767f4da27fd8.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?



	758519f5-5b68-4a38-ad06-927a1c173246.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?


	133634fa-afa3-4523-ba2a-82bee3f56d60.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?

	4b79014a-8844-40a4-b8b7-97ee0b576a85.pdf
	0-Commission Meeting Agenda 4-28-22 FINAL
	4-Executive Committee Report
	4.1-Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 2-10-22 FINAL
	5a-Staff Announcements 4-28-21 FINAL
	5b-FY 2021-22 CEO Authorizations April 2022 FINAL
	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4-28-22
	8-Resolution FINAL
	8.1-Afghan Resolution FINAL
	9-F5CA 20-21 Annual Report Recommendation
	9.1-F5CA Annual-Report FY 20-21 FINAL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	First 5 California Commission Members 
	Message from the Executive Director 
	Ensuring California’s Children Receive the Best Start in Life and Thrive
	PROPOSITION 10 AND THE LEGACY OF FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA 
	BUILDING PUBLIC WILL AND INVESTMENT
	Accountability: Funding and Audit Results 
	LEGISLATIVE AND BUDGET ENGAGEMENT
	COVID-19 PANDEMIC ASSISTANCE

	First 5 County Commission Program Result Areas
	FOUR RESULT AREAS
	IMPROVED FAMILY FUNCTIONING
	IMPROVED CHILD DEVELOPMENT
	IMPROVED CHILD HEALTH 
	IMPROVED SYSTEMS OF CARE
	POPULATIONS SERVED

	Priority Area: Child Health 
	KIT FOR NEW PARENTS 
	SMOKING AND VAPING CESSATION
	Home Visiting 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA HEALTH INTERVIEW SURVEY 

	Priority Area: Child Development 
	IMPACT 2020 
	QUALITY COUNTS CALIFORNIA 
	SMALL POPULATION COUNTY FUNDING AUGMENTATION 
	DUAL LANGUAGE LEARNER PILOT
	CALIFORNIA FAMILY BOOK DISTRIBUTION PARTNERSHIP
	EDUCARE 
	FUNDED RESEARCH: CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY CHILD CARE BRIDGE EVALUATION

	Priority Area: Family Functioning
	PARENT WEBSITE
	SOCIAL MEDIA
	TALK. READ. SING. SUCCESS
	FIRST 5 EXPRESS

	First 5 County Commission Highlights
	Appendix A1: Revenues by Sources, FY 2020-21
	Appendix A2: Number of Services and Expenditures  by Result Area and Service Type, FY 2020-21
	Appendix B: Result Area and Service Type Definitions
	Appendix C: Demographics of Populations Served,  FY 2020-21
	References

	10-Strategic Plan Memo - First Reading_April 2022
	10.1-Strategic Plan 22-27 FINAL
	10a-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget First Reading FINAL
	10a1-FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget Revenue First Reading
	10a2-FY 2022-23 Proposed Expenditures by Category First Reading
	10a3-FY 2022-23 Proposed Operating Expenditure Budget by Strategy First Reading
	10b-Long Range Financial Plan Narrative First Reading FINAL
	10b1-LRFP First Reading
	10b2-LRFP Chart First Reading
	11 and 12-Commission policy and Association updates FINAL
	8-Resolution FINAL.pdf
	Action Requested
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	Recommendation

	7-2021 Alameda KRA Survey Results Commission Presentation FINAL 4.22.22.pdf
	Alameda County
	Evolution of First 5 Alameda County KRA
	Structure of the Partnership and Process
	Community Involvement, Collaboration Through Each Stage
	Research Advisory Group Members 
	Introduction and Purpose
	Sample
	Priority Zip Codes and Neighborhoods 
	Sample: Parents/Caregivers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of Parent/Caregiver Participants
	Sample: ECE Professionals (Weighted Sample)
	Map of ECE Professional Participants
	Sample: TK and K Teachers (Weighted Sample)
	Map of K/TK Teacher Participants
	Key Findings
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child Is Ready for Kindergarten, by Skill Domain and Year 
	Perceived Readiness of Children Entering Kindergarten/TK in Fall 2021 Compared Before COVID, by Skill Domain and Educator Type
	Top Factors Associated with Readiness
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Income
	Percent of Parents/Caregivers who Say Child is Ready for Kindergarten Overall, by Race/Ethnicity and Income
	Parent/Caregiver Perceptions of Readiness, by Assets
	Community Supports Families Need
	Research Advisory Group Priorities & Recommendations
	Parent Policy Suggestions*
	KRA Policy Recommendations
	3 Categories of Findings & Recommendations
	�Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Children and Families�
	Economic Supports and Basic Needs
	Child Health/Mental Health & Well-Being
	Parent/Caregiver Experiences of Stress and Discrimination
	Early Care & Education
	Findings & Recommendations: Supporting Communities
	Family Navigation and Care Coordination 
	Neighborhoods, Assets, and Place-Based Investments 
	Kindergarten Transition Supports
	Findings & Recommendations:�Supporting ECE Professionals, Teachers, and Care and Education Systems
	Support for ECE Professionals & TK/K Teachers
	Support for Care & Education Systems
	Research Advisory Group Perspective
	Questions?






